THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

This document (the “Scheme Document”) contains important information and should be read in its
entirety. If you are in any doubt about what action you should take, you should consult your professional
adviser without delay.

Further copies of this document can be obtained from the Specified Address (as defined in this Scheme
Document) during normal business hours on any day prior to the date of the Scheme Meeting
(other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a public holiday).

Unless otherwise defined, the capitalised terms used throughout this Scheme Document shall bear the
same meanings as defined in the Scheme enclosed herein.

SCHEME DOCUMENT
in relation to a

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
Under Section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50)

Between
FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)
(the “Company”)
And

THE SCHEME CREDITORS
(as defined in the Scheme)

The Scheme Meeting to consider and, if thought fit, approve the Scheme will be held on 30 April 2021
at (i) 9.30AM (Singapore time) for the Lenders' Scheme Meeting; (ii) 10.30AM (Singapore time)
for the Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme Meeting; and (iii) 12.00PM (Singapore time) for the
Associated Creditors’ Scheme Meeting, via Video-Conference (unless otherwise notified by the
Company).

The action required to be taken by the Scheme Creditors is set out in this Scheme Document. As a
Scheme Creditor, whether or not you intend to be present at the Scheme Meeting, you are requested
to complete and return as soon as possible the Proof of Debt and Voting Instruction Form enclosed with
this document in accordance with the instructions contained herein.

Dated 10 February 2021
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IMPORTANT NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 211 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50) explaining the effects
of the Scheme proposed by the Company

1.

The Explanatory Statement contained in this Scheme Document is being distributed to all Scheme
Creditors of the Company solely for purposes of the Scheme. A fuller description of who may be
Scheme Creditors can also be found at paragraph 2.2 of this Explanatory Statement.

Except as provided for below, this Scheme Document is for the exclusive use of the persons to whom
it is addressed and their advisers and shall not be copied, reproduced or distributed to any other
person without the prior written consent of the Company. The information contained in this Scheme
Document is confidential and provided solely for the purposes mentioned above. Recipients of this
Scheme Document are required to keep this information confidential and use it only for the purposes
of consideration of the Scheme.

This Scheme Document contains extensive and detailed information and should be read in its entirety.
If you are in doubt about this document or as to the action which you should take, you should consult
your financial or investment adviser, stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor or other professional adviser
immediately. You should note that the Scheme Document is not intended to constitute professional
advice and that you should seek your own professional advice in relation to the Scheme.

The actions required to be taken by Scheme Creditors are set out in the Explanatory Statement.
Whether or not you intend to be present at the Scheme Meeting, you are asked to complete and return
as soon as possible the Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt as the case may be (a copy of which
is enclosed herein respectively at Appendix C and Appendix D) in accordance with the instructions
set out herein. Failure to take action could have consequences in respect of your rights against the
Company.

While the Company has taken reasonable care in the preparation of the information provided herein,
no representation or warranty is made that the information contained herein in the Explanatory
Statement and the Scheme is accurate or complete.

The Explanatory Statement and the Scheme are to be taken as mutually explanatory of one another
but in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the Explanatory Statement and the Scheme,
the terms of the Scheme shall prevail.



IMPORTANT NOTICE

FOR NOTEHOLDERS ONLY

1.

The Explanatory Statement set out in this Scheme Document is directed at persons who are believed
to be Scheme Creditors. Scheme Creditors include Noteholders who hold an economic or beneficial
interest as principal in respect of the Notes before the submission of the Voting Instruction Form.

If a Noteholder has assigned, sold or otherwise transferred or will assign, sell or otherwise transfer all
of your interests as Scheme Creditor before the submission of the Voting Instruction Form, the
Company requests that you forward a copy of this Scheme Document to the Noteholder to whom you
have assigned, sold or otherwise transferred or to whom you will assign, sell or otherwise transfer,
such interests. Thereafter, you need not take any further action with respect to this Scheme Document.

If you have only partially assigned, sold or otherwise transferred such interests, or will partially assign,
sell or otherwise transfer such interests before the submission of the Voting Instruction Form, the
Company requests that you (i) read this Scheme Document carefully; (ii) forward a copy of this Scheme
Document to the Noteholder whom you have assigned, sold or transferred, or to whom will you assign,
sell or otherwise transfer, such partial interests; and (iii) take such steps as you consider appropriate
following consideration of the matters described in this Scheme Document.



IMPORTANT NOTICE

Submission of documents by Scheme Creditors
(who are not Noteholders)

Last date and time for lodgement of the Proof of Debt
for purposes of voting at the Scheme Meeting

Last date and time for lodgement of Proxy Form for
purposes of voting at the Scheme Meeting

Address for submission of Proof of Debt and Proxy
Form (“Specified Address”)

E-Mail address for submission of electronic copies of
documents ("Specified E-Mail Address”)

Submission of documents by Noteholders

Last date and time for submission of Voting Instruction
Form (including proxy instruction) by Noteholders
(through Account Holders)

Address for submission of Voting Instruction Form
(including proxy instruction)

E-Mail address for submission of electronic copies of
documents

Scheme Meeting

Date and time of Lenders’ Scheme Meeting
Date and time of Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme
Meeting

Date and time of Associated Creditors’ Scheme
Meeting

Venue of Scheme Meetings

24 February 2021, 5:00PM (Singapore
time)

27 April 2021, 10:00AM (Singapore
time)

Falcon Energy Group Limited
10 Raeburn Park

#01-33B

Singapore 088702

scheme@feg.com.sg

24 February 2021, 5:00PM (Singapore
time)

Falcon Energy Group Limited
10 Raeburn Park

#01-33B
Singapore 088702

scheme@feg.com.sg

30 April 2021 at 9.30AM (Singapore
time)

30 April 2021 at 10.30AM (Singapore
time)

30 April 2021 at 12.00PM (Singapore
time)

Video-Conference (unless otherwise
notified by the Company)



CONTACT DETAILS

SCHEME MANAGERS

Name : Mr Wong Pheng Cheong Martin / Ms Toh Ai Ling

Address : c/o KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.
16 Raffles Quay
#22-00, Hong Leong Building
Singapore 048581

E-Malil : sg-fmfalconenergy@kpmg.com.sg

THE COMPANY

Name : Falcon Energy Group Limited
Address : 10 Raeburn Park
#01-33B

Singapore 088702
(Attention : Ms Tan Sooh Whye / Ms Christina Peh)

Telephone : 6538 7177

E-Mail : sw.tan@feg.com.sg
christina@feg.com.sg



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Dated the 10t day of February 2021

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 211 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50)

to the

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
Under Section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50)

Between

FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)
(the “Company”)

And

THE SCHEME CREDITORS
(as defined in the Scheme)

To: The Scheme Creditors
Dear Sir/Madam,

PROPOSED SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AND COMPROMISE UNDER SECTION 210 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT (CAP. 50) BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND THE SCHEME CREDITORS

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Capitalised terms used herein shall, unless otherwise defined, have the same meaning
attributed to them under the Scheme, a copy of which is enclosed herein at Appendix B.

1.2 The Company issues this Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 211 of the Act. This
Explanatory Statement is to accompany the proposed Scheme that will be tabled at the Scheme
Meeting to be held on 30 April 2021 via Video-Conference (unless otherwise notified by the
Company). Pursuant to an Order of Court dated 3 February 2021 made in HC/OS 32/2021, the
Court has granted leave to the Company to call the Scheme Meeting on a date within 3 months
from the date of the Order, and hold the Scheme Meeting by way of Video-Conference, should
it choose to do so. The form of the notice of the Scheme Meeting is enclosed herein at
Appendix A.

1.3 The purpose of this Explanatory Statement is to provide the Scheme Creditors with information
on the Scheme and to explain the effect of the Scheme proposed to be entered into between
the Company and the Scheme Creditors. Please note that this Explanatory Statement does not
form the basis of the legal contract between the Company and the Scheme Creditors. The
legally binding contract between the Company and the Scheme Creditors in the event the
proposed Scheme is approved, is the Scheme.

2, GENERAL
2.1 What is a Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement?

2.1.1 Under Singapore law, a scheme of arrangement and compromise of the kind proposed
here is a compromise or arrangement provided for under section 210 of the Act. The
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2.2

2.3

23.1

arrangement becomes legally binding on all of the Scheme Creditors to whom it is
intended to apply if a majority in number (over 50%) representing three-fourths in value
(that is, 75%) of the Scheme Creditors, voting in person or by proxy, vote in favour of it
at the Scheme Meeting and the Court subsequently approves it.

2.1.2 The Sanction Order takes effect on and from the date of lodgement of a sealed copy of
the order with the Registrar of Companies (i.e. ACRA) or such earlier date as the Court
may determine and as may be specified in the Sanction Order.

Are you a Scheme Creditor?

2.2.1 The Scheme is proposed to all creditors of the Company who hold a Claim as at the
Ascertainment Date except Excluded Creditors and include (for the avoidance of doubt,
but without double counting in each case):

(@) Lenders; and

(b)  Unsecured Creditors (which includes, for the avoidance of doubt, the
Noteholders and Associated Creditors).

For the avoidance of doubt, Related Creditors are also considered Scheme Creditors.
However, the Related Creditor Claims will not form part of the Total Eligible Debt.

2.2.2 A Claim means any claim or right in respect of the indebtedness or any other liability of
the Company to any Scheme Creditor arising out of, in relation to and/or in connection
with any and all agreements, transactions, dealings and matters effected or entered
into or occurring at any time on or prior to 31 March 2020 (the “Ascertainment Date”)
(whether the claim be present or contingent or whether liquidated or sounding only in
damages and whether in contract or tort or howsoever arising including, but not limited
to, all interest, default interest, premium, principal, additional amounts, make whole
amounts, fees and commissioners accruing on or payable in respect of, or any other
accretions whatsoever arising in respect of, such claims or rights whether on or prior to
the Ascertainment Date).

What are Scheme Creditors required to do?

If you are a Scheme Creditor, you are entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting to be convened
for the purpose of approving the Scheme. The Scheme Meeting, notice of which is given in
Appendix A, will be held as follows: (a) the Lenders’ Scheme Meeting will be held on 30 April
2021 at 9.30AM (Singapore time) via Video-Conference; (b) the Unsecured Creditors’
Scheme Meeting will be held on 30 April 2021 at 10.30AM (Singapore time) via Video-
Conference; and (c) the Associated Creditors’ Scheme Meeting will be held on 30 April 2021
at 12.00PM (Singapore time) via Video-Conference. Please note that in the event that you
are no longer a Scheme Creditor by virtue of your having transferred your interests, please
forward this and all related documents to the Scheme Creditor to whom you have transferred
your interests to. For the avoidance of doubt, Account Holders (who are not Noteholders),
Intermediaries, the CDP and the Notes Trustee are not entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting
in respect of any interest in the Notes.

23.1.1 If you are a Noteholder, Account Holder or Intermediary

It will be the responsibility of the Account Holders to obtain from Intermediaries
and/or Noteholders on whose behalf they hold interests in the Notes, whatever
information or instructions they may require to submit a duly completed Voting
Instruction Form in respect of such Notes to the Company at the Specified Address
or the Specified E-Mail Address by no later than 24 February 2021, 5:00PM
(Singapore time) (the “Voting Instruction Form Submission Date”).
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Please refer to Appendix C for a copy of the Voting Instruction Form for the Notes,
for your attention and use.

Noteholders (through Intermediaries, if appropriate) are to contact the Account
Holder through which they hold their interest in the Notes to instruct the relevant
Account Holder to record their voting instruction in a Voting Instruction Form and
submit the completed Voting Instruction Form, through the Account Holder, to the
Company at the Specified Address or Specified E-Mail Address by no later than the
Voting Instruction Form Submission Date.

(i)

(ii)

Voting Instruction Form

In order to be entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting in person or by proxy
and receive benefits under the Scheme, a Noteholder is to submit through
the Account Holder the completed Voting Instruction Form in respect of
his Notes to the Company at the Specified Address or the Specified E-Mail
Address by no later than the Voting Instruction Form Submission Date (i.e.
5:00PM on 24 February 2021).

The Approved Claim of a Noteholder will be determined based on their
entitlement to the outstanding amount owing to the relevant Account
Holders recorded in the books of the CDP as at the Ascertainment Date.

Please carefully read the instructions set out in the Voting Instruction Form
at Appendix C.

Voting in Person or Proxy

A Noteholder who wishes to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting in
person will need to instruct his Account Holder to record in the Voting
Instruction Form that the Noteholder wishes to attend and vote at the
Scheme Meeting in person.

A Noteholder who wishes to appoint a proxy to vote at the Scheme
Meeting will need to instruct his Account Holder to record in the Voting
Instruction Form that the Noteholder wishes to appoint a proxy and the
voting instructions.

Returning the duly completed Voting Instruction Form will not prevent the
Noteholder from attending and voting in person should it wish to do so. In
the event that the Noteholder attends and votes in person, the voting
instructions of the Noteholder in the Voting Instruction Form shall become
null and void.

Noteholders should note that unless a valid Voting Instruction Form
(including the proxy instruction, if any) submitted through the relevant
Account Holder is received by the Company at the Specified Address or
the Specified E-Mail Address by no later than the Voting Instruction Form
Submission Date (i.e. 5:00PM on 24 February 2021), such Noteholder or
its proxy will not be entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting or receive
benefits under the Scheme unless so admitted at the discretion of the
Chairman / Scheme Manager. The Noteholder will, nevertheless, be
bound by the terms of the Scheme in the event that it becomes effective
and shall have its Claim compromised or waived under the terms of this
Scheme.
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3.1

2.3.1.2 If you are an Other Creditor

0] In order to be entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting in person or by proxy
and receive benefits under the Scheme, an Other Creditor must submit a
completed Proof of Debt (a copy of which is enclosed herein at Appendix
D) in respect of its Claim to the Company at the Specified Address or the
Specified E-Mail Address by no later than 24 February 2021, 5:00PM
(Singapore time) (the “Proof of Debt Submission Date”).

(ii) Other Creditors should note that failure to return the Proof of Debt by the
Proof of Debt Submission Date will result in the Other Creditor (whether in
person or proxy) being barred from voting at the Scheme Meeting as well
as being entitled to receive benefits under the Scheme and vote at any
General Meeting unless so admitted at the discretion of the Chairman /
Scheme Manager.

(i) Any Other Creditor who wishes to appoint a proxy to attend the Scheme
Meeting and vote on its behalf will need to submit a completed Proxy Form
(the form of which is enclosed at Appendix E) to the Company at the
Specified Address or Specified E-Mail Address by no later than 27 April
2021, 10:00AM (Singapore time) (the “Proxy Form Submission Date”).

(iv) Please note that if an Other Creditor fails to lodge a Proxy Form by the
stipulated deadline, the proxy of such Other Creditor shall not be entitled
to vote at the Scheme Meeting unless so admitted to vote at the discretion
of the Scheme Manager / Chairman of the Scheme Meeting.

(v) Submitting a duly completed Proxy Form will not prevent the Other
Creditor from attending the Scheme Meeting and voting in person should
it wish to do so. In the event the Other Creditor attends and votes in
person, the Proxy Form shall become null and void.

(vi) Please note that any Other Creditor who is barred from voting at the
Scheme Meeting will, nevertheless, be bound by the terms of the Scheme
in the event that it becomes effective and shall have its Claim
compromised or waived under the terms of the Scheme.

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Given that the Scheme Meeting is to be held via Video-Conference,
Scheme Creditors who fail to provide a valid E-Mail address in the Voting Instruction
Form, Proof of Debt or Proxy Form (as the case may be) will not be allowed to participate
in the Scheme Meeting save as the Chairman may otherwise permit in his absolute
discretion.

BACKGROUND TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL DIFFICULTIES AND PRESENT
FINANCIAL POSITION

Background

3.1.1 The Company was listed on the SGX SESDAQ on 2 December 2004 through a reverse
takeover of Sembawang Music Holdings Limited and changed its name to “Falcon
Energy Group Limited” on 6 November 2006. The Company was transferred to the
Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited on 8 September
2009. The registered office of the Company is at 10 Raeburn Park #01-33B Singapore
088702.

3.1.2 The Company is the ultimate holding company of a group of companies in various
jurisdictions (the “Falcon Group”) in the offshore marine, and oil and gas industries. A

10
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3.2

3.1.3

3.14

3.15

3.1.6

diagrammatic representation of the corporate structure of the Falcon Group as at 20
February 2020 is annexed hereto at Appendix K.

The Falcon Group provided 4 core categories of services in connection with the
offshore marine, and oil and gas industries:

(@) The Marine Division operates a fleet of offshore support vessels and
accommodation work barges, mainly for the production phase of oil and gas
projects;

(b)  The Oilfield and Drilling Services Division complements the Marine Division by
providing agencies, logistics, procurement, general support and drilling services
to a wide customer base;

(c)  The Oilfield Projects Division executes various projects for oil companies; and

(d) The Resources Division taps into the energy resource sector to carry out coal
mining and other resources-related business.

The aforesaid services have been provided through the Company’s subsidiary
companies as the Company is primarily an investment holding vehicle. By 2019, save
for the Marine Division, the other divisions of the Falcon Group (namely, the Oilfield
and Drilling Services Division, the Oilfield Projects Division and the Resources Division)
had become dormant. In or around July 2019, the Falcon Group disposed of its Oilfield
and Drilling Services Division (comprising the subsidiary companies under Falcon
Qilfield Services Pte Ltd, which were loss making entities) in line with the objectives of
shedding liabilities and shrinking the Falcon Group’s operations to its core marine
business. Save for the Marine Division, the Oilfield Projects Divisions and the
Resources Division do not (and it is not envisaged that they will) contribute to the Falcon
Group.

The directors of the Company are:
(@) Tan Pong Tyea;

(b)  Lien Kait Long; and

(c) Mak Yen-Chen Andrew;

Ms Tan Sooh Whye is an alternate director to Mr Tan Pong Tyea of the Company.

Financial position of the Company

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

The global oil and gas industry has been in a protracted downturn since around June
2014, which has in turn depressed the offshore marine and subsea industry. This has,
consequently, had an adverse effect on the Company and the Falcon Group’s ability to
meet their financial obligations in the subsequent years, as well as AMPL’s business.
Vessels that were managed by AMPL experienced long periods of off-hire which had
an impact on AMPL’s cashflow. In addition, as a result of the financial difficulties faced
by the Falcon Group, AMPL has not been able to collect receivables owing to it by
related companies.

The operating environment for the offshore support vehicles and oilfield services
business has been, and is expected to continue to be, challenging. The offshore
support vessel market continues to suffer from low rates due to intense competition and
low margins. The oilfield services market remains lacklustre due to reductions in capital
expenditure and operating expenditure by the oil and gas companies.

The aforesaid circumstances negatively affected the Falcon Group’s performance in
terms of revenue, profit margins and financial position. For example, the Falcon Group
recorded a decrease in revenue of US$62.28 million or 58.3% from US$106.82 million
in the financial year ended 30 June 2017 to US$44.54 million for the financial year
ended 30 June 2018. The Falcon Group recorded a decrease in revenue of US$135.73
million or 55.96% from US$242.55 million in the financial year ended 30 June 2016 to
US$106.82 million in the financial year ended 30 June 2017. The Falcon Group's

11
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3.24

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

3.2.8

3.2.9

performance in the financial year ended 30 June 2017 was significantly worse
compared to the financial year ended 30 June 2016, where the Falcon Group's revenue
decreased by US$39.1 million or 11.4% from US$342.4 million for the 12 months ended
31 March 2015 to US$303.3 million for the 15 months ended 30 June 2016.

The Marine Division's revenue decreased by US$14.62 million to US$29.86 million in
the financial year ended 30 June 2018, mainly as a result of lower deployment rate of
the vessels as well as decrease in charter rates. The Oilfield & Drilling Services
Division's revenue decreased by US$45.47 million to US$8.67 million in the financial
year ended 30 June 2018, due to a lower volume of works. The Falcon Group's average
gross profit margin reduced from 10.4% in the financial year ended 30 June 2017 to a
gross loss margin of 21.4% in the financial year ended 30 June 2018 mainly due to low
vessel deployment rate in the Marine Division during the financial year.

As a result of the Falcon Group’s financial difficulties, the Company has not been able
to provide financial support to AMPL for it to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
AMPL effectively ceased operating in or around June 2018.

As stated at paragraph 3.1.2 above, the Company is primarily an investment holding
vehicle. As a substantial part of the Company’s liabilities arise from corporate
guarantees given by the Company to secure banking facilities granted to the
Company’s subsidiaries, the consequent cash crunch faced by the Falcon Group led to
events of default under these banking facilities.

The Company has no secured creditors save for CIMB Bank Berhad (“CIMB”) who
holds a registered memorandum of charge over cash deposits in any accounts held in
the Company’s name with CIMB. As there are currently no balances in any accounts
held in the Company’s name with CIMB, the value of CIMB’s charge over cash deposits
is basically ‘nil and CIMB effectively stands as an unsecured creditor of the Company.

The Company’s main creditors are its bank lenders, namely, AmBank (M) Berhad
(Labuan Offshore Branch) (“AmBank”), CIMB, Malayan Banking Berhad (“Maybank”)
and Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC”) (together, the
“Lenders”), Keppel FELS Ltd (“Keppel FELS”) and the holders of the Series 001
SGD50 million Notes (the “Notes”, and the holders of the Notes shall be referred to as
the “Noteholders”) issued by the Company pursuant to a Multicurrency Medium Term
Note programme.

Copies of the Company’s audited annual reports for the financial year ended 31 March
2015, financial year ended 30 June 2016, financial year ended 30 June 2017 are
available on the website of the SGX-ST. For ease of reference, a copy of the
Company’s audited annual report for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 (“FY2018”)
is enclosed herein at Appendix F and a copy of the latest available consolidated
unaudited management accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 30 June
2019, 31 December 2019, 31 March 2020 and 30 June 2020 are enclosed herein at
Appendix G, Appendix H, Appendix | and Appendix J respectively. The Company
applied to the SGX-ST for a further extension of time in respect of the following: (a) the
announcement of the Company’s full year results for the financial year ended 30 June
2019, and to hold its annual general meeting for the financial year ended 30 June 2019;
(b) the announcement of the Company’s 1st quarter results for the financial period
ended 30 September 2019; (c) the announcement of the Company’s 2™ quarter results
for the financial period ended 31 December 2019; (d) the announcement of the
Company’s 3 quarter results for the financial period ended 31 March 2020; and (e) the
announcement of the Company’s 1t quarter results for the financial period ended 30
September 2020. On 11 September 2020, the SGX-ST notified the Company that the
application for the further extension has been rejected and that the Company is required
to announce the aforesaid results and hold its annual general meeting for the financial
years ended 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2020 as soon as possible. FEG is currently
working on completing its financial reports.

12
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3.3

Restructuring efforts and protection under Section 211B of the Act

331

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.34

3.35

3.3.6

3.3.7

3.3.8

3.3.9

Following the downturn in the oil and gas industry in June 2014, the Company took
steps to restructure its business operations and balance sheet and implemented
measures to rein in costs. These included, amongst others, the sale of non-core assets,
undertaking a consent solicitation exercise on or around 24 August 2017 to obtain the
approval of the Noteholders to, amongst others, extend the maturity date of the Notes
by a period of 3 years, engaging KPMG Services Pte. Ltd. (‘KPMG”) as independent
financial advisor to advise and assist the Falcon Group in a financial and debt
restructuring exercise and engaging the Lenders in discussions to address significant
debt maturities and achieve a consensual restructuring.

Although CIMB, Maybank and OCBC were generally supportive of the Falcon Group’s
efforts to restructure its debt maturities, the Company was unable to reach a consensus
with all the Lenders.

On or about 28 August 2017, AmBank commenced the following proceedings in the
High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur:

(@) WA-22NCC-327-08/2017 ("KL Suit 327") against the Company, as 1%t
Defendant, and PT Bayu Maritim Berkah (incorporated in Indonesia) ("PT BMB"),
as 2" Defendant, in their capacities as guarantors under the CM Banking
Facilities, claiming inter alia a sum of USD8,769,131.38;

(b) WA-22NCC-328-08/2017 ("KL Suit 328") against the Company, as 1%t
Defendant, and PT BMB, as 2" Defendant, in their capacities as guarantors
under the EM Banking Facilities, claiming inter alia a sum of USD5,263,108.58;
and

(c) WA-22NCC-329-08/2017 ("KL Suit 329") against the Company, as 1%t
Defendant, and PT BMB, as 2" Defendant, in their capacities as guarantors
under the MM Banking Facilities, claiming inter alia a sum of USD5,916,735.04.

On 12 April 2018, AmBank obtained summary judgment against the Company and its
subsidiaries in KL Suits 327, 328 and 329.

The Company and its subsidiaries filed Notices of Appeal with the Court of Appeal in
Kuala Lumpur against the foregoing orders.

In this connection, on 23 May 2018, the Company received a statutory demand letter
from AmBank’s solicitors, Joseph Tan Jude Benny LLP (“JTJB”), claiming payment of
a sum of USD20,594,226.22 which is part of the subject matter of the aforesaid civil
appeals.

On 23 May 2018, the Company’s solicitors, Rajah & Tann Singapore LLP (“R&T”"),
wrote to JTJB to, inter alia, request that the aforesaid statutory demand be withdrawn
pending the final disposal of the appeals before the Court of Appeal in Kuala Lumpur.
On 28 May 2018, JTJB wrote to R&T indicating that they are entitled and will proceed
with winding up proceedings if they do not receive the claim amount demanded within
21 days of the date of the aforesaid statutory demand.

Subsequent to JTJB’s letter dated 28 May 2018, the Company entered into further
discussions with the Lenders, including AmBank, with the aim of achieving a
consensual restructuring between the Falcon Group and the Lenders. These
discussions continued into 2019.

On 25 November 2019, the Company’s appeals against the decision of the Kuala

Lumpur High Court to allow AmBank’s applications for summary judgment came on for
hearing before the Court of Appeal in Kuala Lumpur and were dismissed.
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3.3.10

3.3.11

3.3.12

3.3.13

3.3.14

3.3.15

3.3.16

On or about 6 June 2019, the Company received a letter of demand from Keppel FELS
claiming a sum of US$77,370,283.81 pursuant to a guarantee executed by the
Company in favour of Keppel FELS in connection with a construction contract for B358
TS Topaz (Hull No. B358) between FTS Derricks Pte Ltd (“FTS Derricks”) and Keppel
FELS. The claim made by Keppel FELS has a significant impact on the financial
position of the Company and the Falcon Group and the restructuring plans. As stated
in notes 37 and 38 of the Company’s audited annual report for FY2018 (a copy of which
is enclosed here in at Appendix F; in particular pages 614 and 615), the Company
essentially took the view that no provisions were required to be made in respect of its
contingent liabilities in connection with performance guarantees issued by the
Company to secure certain obligations of FTS Derricks on the basis that underlying
claims against FTS Derricks were subject to dispute.

In view of the change in the Company’s financial position, the risk of Keppel FELS
pursuing its claim and the threat of winding up proceedings from AmBank, on 25 July
2019, the Company filed HC/OS 957/2019 (“OS 957”) for moratorium protection under
section 211B of the Act to obtain breathing space to formulate a restructuring plan for
the benefit of its creditors. A similar application was filed by Asetanian Marine Pte Ltd
(“AMPL"), a subsidiary of the Company, in HC/OS 956/2019 (“OS 956").

OS 956 and OS 957 were both heard by the Honourable Justice Aedit Abdullah on 22
August 2019 pursuant to which a short moratorium was granted to the Company and
AMPL to provide further information and documents. The moratoria were eventually
further extended up till 2 March 2020 pursuant to Orders of Court dated 21 October
2019 and 27 November 2019 made in both OS 956 and OS 957 on the basis of the
Company and AMPL filing their respective applications under section 210(1) of the Act
by 14 February 2020, at the latest.

On 19 December 2019, the Company submitted its application for an in-principle no
objection to its resumption of trading proposal to the SGX-ST.

In early January 2020, the SGX-ST reverted with some requests for clarification with
respect to the Company’s application but informed the Company’s solicitors that it is
unlikely to have objection to allowing the Company to resume trading subject to
approval of the Scheme by creditors, shareholders and the Court, upon successful
implementation of the intended Scheme. The SGX-ST would require the directors of
the Company to confirm in the listing application the adequacy of working capital for the
next 12 months following implementation of the Scheme together with their basis which
must be well explained and supported. Further, their approval for the listing and
guotation of the Shares to be issued under the proposed scheme will be subject to their
review of the Company’s full submission in due course and compliance with the listing
rules.

On 14 February 2020, the Company filed HC/OS 206/2020 ("OS 206”) for leave to
convene a meeting of its creditors for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit,
approving with or without modification, a scheme of arrangement. AMPL filed a similar
application in HC/OS 207/2020 ("OS 207”). Substantially complete drafts of the scheme
documents were filed together with the aforesaid applications.

OS 206 and OS 207 were first heard by the Court on 5 March 2020. The hearing was
adjourned to 3 April 2020 allow the Company and AMPL to provide further information
to the Court and address the Court on certain issues in relation to the classification of
creditors.
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3.3.17

3.3.18

3.3.19

3.3.20

3.3.21

3.3.22

3.3.23

3.3.24

As a result of the worsening global conditions due to the escalation of the COVID-19
pandemic and collapse in U.S. oil prices, the Company had to relook and revise certain
aspects of its proposed scheme, in particular, the Cash Waterfall mechanism, to give
the Lenders the option of an early exit from the Cash Waterfall Many of the
assumptions underlying the terms of the proposed scheme (including the projected
profit, revenue and expenses of FEG and its subsidiaries for the 7 years following the
implementation of the proposed scheme), in particular, the Cash Waterfall mechanism
as previously drafted, were no longer workable in view of the COVID-19 situation. As
such, at the hearing of OS 206 and OS 207 on 3 April 2020, the Company and AMPL
requested for and were granted an extension of time till 30 April 2020 to present revised
scheme documents.

The Company and AMPL subsequently sought and obtained 2 further extensions of
time up till 5 June 2020 and 9 July 2020 respectively to present revised scheme
documents as well as consequential extensions of the moratorium granted in OS 957
and OS 956. These extensions were necessitated by worsening global economic
conditions, which resulted in the Company having to reassess and amend various
components of the Scheme with the assistance of KPMG.

Pursuant to Orders of Court dated 30 July 2020 made in OS 206 and OS 207
respectively, the Company and AMPL were granted leave to convene its scheme
meetings on a date falling within 4 months from the Orders (i.e. by no later than 30
November 2020), and to hold the scheme meetings by way of Video-Conference. On
7 August 2020, pursuant to the Orders of Court dated 30 July 2020 made in OS 206
and OS 207, the Company and AMPL each issued a notice convening its scheme
meetings together with a Scheme Document dated 7 August 2020.

On 4 November 2020, the Company and AMPL each issued an addendum to their
respective Scheme Documents dated 7 August 2020 annexing modified schemes
(each an “Addendum” and together, the “Addendums”). The Addendums served to
supplement the matters set out in the Scheme Documents dated 7 August 2020 issued
by the Company and AMPL. The Company’s Addendum also set out an update on the
sale of the Vessel “Energy Miner” which was owned by PT Bayu Maritim Berkah and
mortgaged to OCBC. The modifications to the Company’s and AMPL’s Schemes dated
7 August 2020 pursuant to the Addendums were primarily attributable to requests made
by and/or discussions with the Company’s Lenders.

Shortly after the Addendums were issued, the Company and AMPL each received
some requests from its Scheme Creditors for more time to consider the contents of
their respective Addendums. In view of the aforesaid requests, at the scheme meetings
which were duly convened on 13 November 2020, the Company and AMPL each
proposed a resolution to adjourn the scheme meetings to 30 November 2020 at the
same time via Video-Conference (the “1%t Adjournment Resolutions”).

The 1st Adjournment Resolutions were passed by a majority in number representing
three-fourths in value of each class of the Company and AMPL’s Scheme Creditors
present and voting (in person or by proxy) at their respective scheme meetings in
accordance with section 210(3) of the Act. Consequently, the Company’s and AMPL’s
scheme meetings were adjourned to 30 November 2020.

On 24 November 2020, the Company and AMPL were still in discussions with some of
their respective Scheme Creditors on matters arising out of and/or in connection with
the proposed scheme, and some Scheme Creditors indicated that they required more
time to consider and come to a decision on the proposed scheme.

In the circumstances, on 25 November 2020, the Company and AMPL informed their
respective Scheme Creditors that they intended to propose a resolution to further
adjourn the scheme meetings which were to be held on 30 November 2020 to 21
December 2020. In connection with the foregoing, on 27 November 2020, the Company
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3.3.25

3.3.26

3.3.27

3.3.28

and AMPL filed their respective applications in OS 206 and OS 207 for an order that
the time for convening their respective scheme meetings be extended till 21 December
2020 or other order of Court. On the same date, the Company and AMPL also filed
their respective applications in OS 957 and OS 956 for an order that the moratoria
under section 211B of the Act (which was due to expire on 11 December 2020) be
extended till 31 January 2020 or other order of Court.

On 30 November 2020, at the Company’s and AMPL’s respective adjourned scheme
meetings, a resolution was tabled to further adjourn the scheme meetings to 21
December 2020 at the same time via Video-Conference (the “2"¢ Adjournment
Resolutions”). The 2" Adjournment Resolutions were passed by a majority in number
representing three-fourths in value of each class of the Company’s and AMPL'’s
respective Scheme Creditors present and voting (in person or by proxy) at the scheme
meetings in accordance with section 210(3) of the Act.

On 7 December 2020, the Court granted the Company’s and AMPL’s respective
applications for an order that the time for convening their respective scheme meetings
be extended till 21 December 2020 or other order of Court and for an order that the
moratoria under section 211B of the Act (which was due to expire on 11 December
2020) be extended till 31 January 2021 or other order of Court.

On 21 December 2020, the Company held its scheme meeting during which the
following resolution was put to vote by each class of the Company’s Scheme Creditors
(the “Scheme Resolution”):

“To approve (with or without modification) the Scheme of Arrangement dated 4
November 2020 proposed to be made pursuant to section 210 of the Companies Act
(Cap. 50) between [FEG] and the Scheme Creditors.”

The Scheme Resolution was not passed by the requisite statutory majority of Scheme
Creditors present and voting (in person or by proxy) at the Company’s scheme meeting
under section 210(3) of the Act. Details of the voting results on the Scheme Resolution
at the Company’s scheme meeting on 21 December 2020 are set out below.

Lenders’ Scheme Meeting

For Against Total
Number 2 2 4
Number (%) 50% 50% 100%
Value (USD) uUsD uUsD uUsD
49,695,066.93 55,096,546.34 104,791,613.27
Value % 47% 53% 100%

Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme Meeting

For Against Total
Number 21 7 28
Number (%) 75% 25% 100%
Value (USD) USD USD USD
9,708,044.84 88,234,094.21 97,942,139.05
Value % 10% 90% 100%
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3.4

3.3.29

3.3.30

3.3.31

3.3.32

3.3.33

Associated Creditor Scheme Meeting
For Against Total
Number 1 0 1
Number (%) 100% 0% 100%
Value (USD) USD USD usSD
4,819,468.26 0.00 4,819,468.26
Value (%) 100% 0% 100%

Given that the approval of the Company’s scheme by the requisite statutory majority at
the Company’s scheme meeting is one of the conditions precedent to AMPL’s
proposed scheme, AMPL withdrew its proposed scheme and did not proceed with its
scheme meetings (which were to be held on the afternoon of 21 December 2020).

Following the Company’s scheme meeting on 21 December 2020, the Company
continued to engage some of its dissenting creditors (in particular, CIMB) in discussions
with respect to a proposed scheme.

Pursuant to these discussions, on 15 January 2020, the Company and AMPL filed
HC/OS 32/2021 (*OS 32”) and HC/OS 33/2021 (“OS 33”) respectively to convene fresh
Scheme Meetings pursuant to section 210(1) of the Act. In addition, the Company and
AMPL filed HC/SUM 244/2021 (in OS 957) and HC/SUM 243/2021 (in OS 956) for a
consequential extension of the moratoriums granted in OS 957 and OS 956.

The Schemes proposed by the Company and AMPL in OS 32 and OS 33 are
substantially the same as the schemes proposed in OS 206 and OS 207 save for
certain modifications to the terms of the Company’s Scheme dated 4 November 2020
to address, amongst others, certain conditions requested by CIMB. The relevant
modifications to the Company’s Scheme dated 4 November 2020 as at 29 January
2021 are set out at Appendix O of this Scheme Document.

At the hearing of OS 32, SUM 244, OS 33 and SUM 243 on 3 February 2021, the Court
granted leave to both the Company and AMPL to convene their respective Scheme
Meetings pursuant to section 210(1) of the Act within 3 months from the date of the
Order, and granted an extension of the moratoria in respect of the Company and AMPL
to a date falling 4 months from the date of the Order.

Objectives and design of the Scheme

34.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

The Company is proposing the Scheme to ensure that its creditors are able to obtain a
better return than the distribution they would receive in the event the Company is placed
in liquidation (see paragraphs 7.1 and 7.2 below). Further, given that the Company is
a public listed company, many members of the public who are shareholders would be
affected by the winding up of the Company.

In addition, the winding up of the Company would have an adverse impact not just on
the Company’s stakeholders, but other parties as well. As is evident from the structure
chart of the Falcon Group enclosed herewith at Appendix K, the Company is the
ultimate holding company of a large number of subsidiaries. The Falcon Group
collectively employs more than 70 people (not including crew for vessels). The
commencement of the winding up of the Company is likely to have a knock-on effect
on the business and operations of its subsidiaries (and, consequently, the employees
of the Falcon Group).

The proposed Scheme has been designed with the underlying intention of restructuring
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4.1

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

3.4.7

3.4.8

the Company to sustainable levels by deleveraging the balance sheet. Debt holders
will be converted to equity and in aggregate will account for up to 90% of the Company’s
enlarged share capital.* The salient terms of the proposed Scheme are set out in
Section 4 below.

The Company in its current state is unlikely to pique the interest of any white knight. By
recapitalising the Company’s equity base through a debt-to-equity conversion exercise,
the hope is that the Company will be better able to present itself as an investable
platform to attract strategic investors who may inject much needed fresh capital. The
debt-to-equity conversion will also permit debt holders to exit the Company by disposing
of their shares in the SGX-ST once share trade suspension is lifted.?

As at the date hereof, the Company has disposed of all its material unencumbered
assets. Proceeds arising from the sale of these assets have been applied towards
funding working capital requirements and/or servicing interest payments on its
borrowings. The only remaining assets capable of generating cash, at present, are the
Vessels owned by the Falcon Group, all of which are secured to various financial
institutions.®* For completeness, as at 9 February 2021, the Falcon Group holds
approximately 45,379,956 unencumbered CHO Shares. As at 9 February 2021, the
value of the unencumbered CHO Shares is approximately S$1,905,958.

The Scheme is inter-conditional on the AMPL Scheme. Although the Company and
AMPL are separate legal entities, they are economically inseparable on account of past
commercial transactions and from an ongoing operational point of view. AMPL falls
within the Falcon Group’s Marine Division and is in the business of providing freight
forwarding, packing, crating and ship management services (including servicing
companies within the Falcon Group). Much of the liabilities recorded in the books of
AMPL were incurred as a result of how the Company’s assets were managed and
deployed. Copies of AMPL’s management accounts as at 30 June 2019, 31 December
2019, 31 March 2020, 30 June 2020 and detailed breakdowns of AMPL’s receivables
and payables from the financial year ended 31 March 2015 to financial year ended 30
June 2019 have been disclosed in OS 956.

AMPL is currently facing the threat of liquidation pursuant to a winding up application
filed by PT Multi Karya Bajatama. In the event of liquidation, the appointed liquidator of
AMPL will likely seek to recover its books receivables, including that owed by PT BMB,
one of the Falcon Group’s currently operating subsidiaries. Given the existing security
arrangements with the Lenders and the Falcon Group’s current financial position, any
actions which may be commenced by a liquidator of AMPL to recover inter-company
receivables is unlikely to yield returns. Instead, any such actions will invariably result in
the catastrophic collapse of the current ecosystem that enables the Company and the
Falcon Group to function and scupper any possibility of rehabilitating the Falcon Group.

In order for the Company to survive and to enable general or ordinary unsecured
creditors of the Company to extract better recovery than a close to “nil” return in
liquidation, the assets and liabilities of the Company and AMPL will need to be pooled
in aggregate as if they all exist at the Company level.

SALIENT TERMS OF THE SCHEME

Scheme Creditors

4.1.1

The Scheme shall apply to any and all creditors to whom the Company owes liabilities
save for the Excluded Creditors. However, only Participating Scheme Creditors shall
be entitled to receive any payment or distribution under the terms of the Scheme.

1 Source: KPMG's Report dated 11 October 2019 at paragraph 1.1.
2 Source: KPMG's Report dated 11 October 2019 at paragraph 1.1.
8 Source: KPMG's Report dated 11 October 2019 at paragraph 1.2.
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4.2

4.3

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

In this regard, a “Scheme Creditor” is defined as a creditor of the Company who holds
a Claim except Excluded Creditors.

“Excluded Creditors” are defined as the following persons or entities:

(@) the Company’s professional advisors, namely, KPMG and Rajah & Tann
Singapore LLP;

(b)  any person or entity with whose claim against the Company would be entitled to
priority under section 328 of the Act in the event of liquidation of the Company
including amounts payable to the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore and the
Company’s employees; and

(c) sundry creditors identified in Schedule D of the Scheme including service
providers such as the Company’s auditors and the landlord of the Company’s
office premises.

A “Participating Scheme Creditor” is defined as any and all Scheme Creditors except
the Non-Participating Scheme Creditors.

A “Non-Participating Scheme Creditor” is a Scheme Creditor who fails to submit a
Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt (as the case may be) in accordance with
Clause 5.2 of the Scheme or whose Approved Claim is determined to be nil in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

Excluded Creditors shall be paid in the ordinary course of business as and when any
amount owing to them falls due.

“Related Creditors” are the entities within the Falcon Group listed in Schedule E of the
Scheme that fall within one of the following categories:

(@) any corporation which would be deemed to be a subsidiary of the Company
under section 5 of the Act;

(b)  any corporation of which the Company would be deemed to be the ultimate
holding company under section 5A of the Act;

(c) any corporation which would be deemed to be related to the Company under
section 6 of the Act.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Associated Creditors are not Related Creditors and will
participate in the Scheme as Unsecured Creditors, but will vote in a separate class at
the Scheme Meeting.

Claims and Approved Claim

421

4.2.2

A “Claim” is defined as any claim or right in respect of the indebtedness or any other
liability of the Company to any Scheme Creditor arising out of, in relation to and/or in
connection with any and all agreements, transactions, dealings and matters effected or
entered into or occurring at any time on or prior to the Ascertainment Date (whether the
claim be present or contingent or whether liquidated or sounding only in damages and
whether in contract or tort or howsoever arising including, but not limited to, all interest,
default interest, premium, principal, additional amounts, make whole amounts, fees and
commissioners accruing on or payable in respect of, or any other accretions
whatsoever arising in respect of, such claims or rights whether on or prior to the
Ascertainment Date).

An “Approved Claim” is defined as the Claim of a Scheme Creditor against the
Company to the extent admitted in accordance with Clause 5 of the Scheme.

Scheme Conditions and Effectiveness
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4.4

4.3.1 The Scheme shall become effective on the date on which all the following conditions
precedent (“Scheme Conditions”) have been satisfied or, where applicable, waived,
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (“Effective Date”):

@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

(@)
(h)

(i)

)

(k)

o

the approval of the Scheme by the Requisite Majority at the Scheme Meeting;

the approval of the AMPL Scheme by the Requisite Majority at the AMPL
Scheme Meeting;

the approval of the Scheme by the Court with or without modifications, additions
or conditions imposed by the Court pursuant to section 210 of the Act;

the approval of the AMPL Scheme by the Court with or without modifications,
additions or conditions imposed by the Court pursuant to section 210 of the Act;

a copy of the Orders of Court sanctioning the Scheme being lodged with ACRA
in accordance with section 210(5) of the Act;

a copy of the Orders of Court sanctioning the AMPL Scheme being lodged with
ACRA in accordance with section 210(5) of the Act;

the approval of the SGX-ST for the listing and quotation of the Scheme Shares;

the approval of the SGX-ST for the resumption of trading of the Company’s
shares on the SGX-ST,;

the approval of the shareholders of the Company being obtained at an
extraordinary general meeting for the allotment and issue of the Scheme Shares;

the SIC granting a whitewash waiver from the requirement to make a mandatory
general offer pursuant to the Code in connection with the allotment and issue of
the Scheme Shares and independent shareholders of the Company approving
the whitewash waiver at an extraordinary general meeting;

all necessary governmental and regulatory approvals and consents to the
Scheme and the AMPL Scheme and underlying transactions thereunder being
obtained; and

the execution of the Security Documents.

All the above conditions are inter-conditional and are required to be fulfilled or waived
in order for the Scheme to become effective. Accordingly, if any of the above conditions
are not fulfilled or are not waived, the Scheme will not become effective.

4.3.2 Upon the Effective Date:

(a)

(b)

(©

the Scheme shall be binding on all Scheme Creditors regardless of whether such
Scheme Creditors attended or voted (in favour of or against the Scheme) at the
Scheme Meeting;

all rights of each Scheme Creditor to the payments and distributions in
accordance with the Scheme shall be accepted in full and final settlement and
absolute discharge of all of its Claims; and

The Company shall take the necessary steps to implement the Scheme.

Release and Discharge

20



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

On and from the Effective Date:

44.1

4.4.2

4.4.3

the Company shall be completely and absolutely released and discharged from all
Claims to each Scheme Creditor (regardless of whether or not it has submitted a Proof
of Debt or Voting Instruction Form under this Scheme);

unless otherwise expressly provided in the Scheme, the Scheme Creditors waive:

(@) all default interest, premium, additional amounts, make whole amounts, fees,
commissions and penalties chargeable, accruing on, or payable in respect of, or
any other accretions whatsoever arising in respect of the Claims, as at or after
the Ascertainment Date under or in connection with any other agreement relating
to a Claim;

(b) any and all right to claim for any legal fees incurred by the Scheme Creditors
arising out of and/or in connection with the Claims other than those awarded
under an order of court or arbitral award made on or before the Ascertainment
Date or agreed to be paid by the Company, which shall be subject to the Scheme.

each of the Scheme Creditors shall (regardless of whether or not it has submitted a
Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form under this Scheme):

(@) discontinue, withdraw and/or terminate any and all legal, arbitration, insolvency,
enforcement or other proceedings commenced by that Scheme Creditor against
the Company or any assets of the Company in any jurisdiction for the payment
or recovery of its Claims;

(b) release or take all such action required for the release to the Company of all
rights, funds or property arrested, seized, garnished or attached in any such
legal, arbitration, insolvency, enforcement or other proceedings,

with no order as to costs within fourteen (14) days from the Effective Date, failing which,
the Company shall be entitled to seek the appropriate orders or awards against the
Scheme Creditor from the relevant court or tribunal to enforce and/or give effect to this
undertaking. The Scheme Creditor shall be liable for any costs incurred by the
Company in enforcing and/or giving effect to the undertaking under the Scheme on an
indemnity basis.

4.5 Moratorium

451

45.2

Pursuant to Clause 4 of the Scheme, save as expressly provided in the Scheme, during
the Scheme Period, no Scheme Creditor shall, whether directly or indirectly, take any
steps to initiate, commence, procure, or continue any legal or other proceedings
against the Company or any of its assets and properties in respect of any Claims in
any jurisdiction including, but not limited to, court action (including winding up
proceedings, judicial management and any analogous proceedings in any other
jurisdiction), arbitration, the appointment of a receiver or receiver and manager, and/or
the enforcement of any judgment or court order.

Any Scheme Creditor who receives or recovers, at any time, on or after the
Ascertainment Date, from the Company any sum in discharge of any portion of its
Approved Claim, shall within the timeframe stipulated in Clause 4.2 of the Scheme,
notify the Company of the amount and currency so received, how it was received or
recovered and whether it represents principal or interest or other sums. Such Scheme
Creditor shall, within two (2) Business Days after receiving a request from the
Company, pay to the Company an amount equal to the sum so received or recovered
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(free and clear of all deductions or withholdings).

4.6 Determination of Approved Claims

46.1

4.6.2

4.6.3

4.6.4

4.6.5

4.6.6

All Approved Claims, which will in turn determine the Scheme Creditors’ entitlement to
receive benefits under the Scheme and vote at the Scheme Meeting and any General
Meeting, shall be determined as at the Ascertainment Date.

Please refer to paragraphs 2.3.1.1 and 2.3.1.2 above for the procedure for the
submission of Voting Instructions Forms and Proofs of Debt.

Subject to Clauses 5.7 and 5.11 of the Scheme, the adjudication of the Proofs of Debt
and Voting Instruction Forms for the purposes of determining the Approved Claim of
each Scheme Creditor shall be carried out in accordance with section 68 of the
Insolvency, Restructuring and Dissolution Act 2018 read with the provisions of the
Insolvency, Restructuring and Dissolution (Proofs of Debt in Schemes of Arrangement)
Regulations 2020.

For the purpose of determining the Noteholders’ Approved Claims, the Claim of a
Noteholder will be admitted based on the aggregate of:

(@) the principal amount of the Notes held by a Noteholder recorded in the books of
the CDP as at the Ascertainment Date; and

(b) any and all interest accruing on the Notes up to and including the Ascertainment
Date which shall be calculated by the Company (subject to review by the
Chairman, Independent Assessor or Scheme Manager, as the case may be,
pursuant to the adjudication of the Voting Instruction Forms in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme).

Any Scheme Creditor who fails to raise a dispute in relation to the rejection of its Proof
of Debt or Voting Instruction Form as the case may be in accordance with section 211F
of the Act read with the provisions of the Companies (Proofs of Debt in Schemes of
Arrangement) Regulations 2017 shall be deemed to have admitted and accepted the
decision or determination of the Chairman or the Independent Assessor (as the case
may be) as regards its Claim in its Proof of Debt and the amount(s) of its Approved
Claim.

Pursuant to Clause 5.10 of the Scheme, notwithstanding the completion of the
adjudication of any Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form in accordance with section
211F of the Act, in the event the Scheme becomes effective in accordance with its
terms, the Scheme Manager may adjudicate any Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction
Form de novo, or review and revise any past adjudication of any Proof of Debt or Voting
Instruction Form, at his sole and absolute discretion. Any Scheme Creditor who wishes
to dispute such fresh adjudication of its Approved Claim must comply with the
procedure set out in Clause 5.11 of the Scheme.

4.7 Restructuring Plan

The Lenders

4.7.1

The Lenders’ Approved Claim. Each Lender’s Approved Claim shall be restructured
under the Scheme as follows:

(&) Each Lender may elect to take delivery of or instruct the Company to procure the
sale of all or some of its Secured Assets by submitting a written notice to the
Company within the timeframe stipulated in the Scheme identifying which of its
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

Secured Assets it wishes to take delivery of or instruct the Company to procure
the sale of. If a Lender does not submit a written notice, the Lender shall be
deemed to have elected to take delivery of all its Secured Assets.

Each Lender who has elected to take delivery of or instructed the Company to
procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets shall be allocated and issued
Scheme Shares for the whole of its Approved Claim in accordance with Clause
6.1(e) of the Scheme.

With respect to each Lender who elects to take delivery of its Secured Asset(s),
the Company shall procure that each Lender’s Secured Assets are delivered or
transferred to the Lender by no later than the date falling 6 months after the
Effective Date on such terms as may be agreed upon in writing between the
Company and the relevant Lender (each party acting reasonably). All costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the delivery and/or transfer of a Secured
Asset shall be borne by the Lender. Upon election by the Lender to take delivery
of or instruct the Company to procure the sale of its Secured Asset(s), the Lender
shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses in connection with the
Secured Asset and the Group shall have no further obligations to pay any such
costs and expenses. With respect to each Lender who elects to instruct the
Company to procure the sale of all or some of its Secured Assets, the Company
shall assist the Lender in procuring a purchaser willing to pay the full sale
proceeds in respect of the Secured Asset(s) into and held in an escrow account
pending completion of the sale. Pending completion of the sale of the Secured
Asset(s) on terms to be approved by the Lender, the Group shall continue to
manage the Secured Asset(s) and all costs and expenses in connection with the
Secured Asset(s) incurred up till completion of the sale shall be debited from any
earnings generated by the Secured Asset(s).

The terms of the delivery and/or transfer will need to be discussed between the
Company and the relevant Lenders as some of the Vessels may still be working
and generating revenue.

All Secured Assets shall be sold or disposed of by the Lender who has elected
to take delivery of or instruct the Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured
Assets by no later than the Disposal Date and the net proceeds of sale from the
Lender's Secured Assets shall be applied towards reducing the Lender’s
Approved Claim. If a Lender fails to sell or dispose of any of its Secured Assets
by the Disposal Date, any portion of the Lender’s Approved Claim which remains
unsatisfied shall automatically be deemed to have been settled in full and the
Lender shall not be entitled to receive any Allocated Shares.

With respect to any Lender who has elected to take delivery of or instructed the
Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets and who has sold or
disposed of all of its Secured Assets by no later than the Disposal Date, the
Company shall issue the Allocated Shares to that Lender within the timeframe
stipulated in the Scheme in full and final settlement of such portion of the
Lender's Approved Claim which remains unsatisfied pursuant to the sale or
disposal or the Secured Assets as at the Disposal Date. Any Allocated Shares
which are not issued to such Lender shall be distributed in accordance with
Clause 6.6 of the Scheme.

With respect to any Lender who has not elected to take delivery of or instruct the
Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets, any portion of the
Approved Claim of the Lender which remains unsatisfied pursuant to the sale or
disposal or the Secured Assets as at the Disposal Date shall be settled in
accordance with Clause 6.3 of the Scheme.
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4.7.2

Remaining Secured Assets. With respect to any Lender who has not elected to take
delivery of or instructed the Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets,
pursuant to Clause 6.3 of the Scheme, the Company shall make payment to the Lender
in respect of its Approved Claim as follows. For the avoidance of doubt, Clauses 6.3(a)
to 6.3(s) of the Scheme do not apply to a Lender who has elected to take delivery of or
instructed the Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets or to any
Secured Assets which has been transferred or delivered to a Lender pursuant to Clause
6.1 of the Scheme:

@)

(b)

Cross-collateralisation and further security. The securities held by a Lender in
respect of the Lender's Approved Claim shall be cross-collateralised (if not
already done) at the option of the relevant Lender over securities granted in its
favour in accordance with the terms of the Scheme to secure the Lender’s
Approved Claim. All costs and expenses to be incurred in connection with the
cross-collateralisation exercise shall be borne by the Lender. For the avoidance
of doubt, a Lender’s securities will not be cross-collateralised with the securities
held by another Lender.

Where the Secured Asset(s) which the Lender has elected not to take delivery
of or instruct the Company to procure the sale of in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme comprise Vessels, the Company shall procure the establishment of
a Designated Account for the Lender (if one has not already been established)
and shall execute or procure the execution of (as may be applicable) a charge
over the Designhated Account established in favour of the Lender.

Cash management principles under the Cash Waterfall

(©)

(d)

Vessel Income. All Vessel Income shall first be credited into the Group’s Bank
Mandiri Account. Within T+3 business days of receipt of any Vessel Income
attributable to the Lender’'s Vessels into the Group’s Bank Mandiri Account
(where “T” is the date of receipt of such Vessel Income in the Group’s Bank
Mandiri Account), the Group shall issue letter(s) of instruction to Bank Mandiri
for all such Vessel Income to be transferred to the relevant Desighated Account
established by the Group for the Lender.

Cash Waterfall. The Vessel Income shall be applied in the following manner:
0] First, payment of Vopex for the Lender’s Vessels in accordance with L1.

Under L1, the Vopex for a given month shall be debited from the Total
Vessel Income every month based on the Vopex Budget agreed with the
Lender or the actual Vopex incurred, whichever is lower. If the actual
Vopex incurred exceeds the Vopex Budget, the Group must obtain the
prior written consent from the relevant Lender before debiting any amount
exceeding the Vopex Budget from the Total Vessel Income for the
settlement of the additional Vopex incurred.

(i)  Second, payment of the Lender’s Interest in accordance with L2.
Under L2, any surplus funds in a Designated Account after compliance
with L1 shall be applied towards payment of the Lender’s COF and 0.25%
Margin.
Contractual interest and default interest shall continue to accrue on the

Principal, but shall not be compounded and shall be paid in accordance
with the Cash Waterfall.
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(iii)

(iv)

v)

Subject to the completion of the Scheme in accordance with Clause 9.1 of
the Scheme and without prejudice to Clause 6.3(m) of the Scheme, upon
the expiry of the Scheme Period, the Lender agrees to, in good faith,
consider waiving, releasing and discharging (be it in whole or in part) the
Company from any and all claims for any default interest payable to the
Lender which remains outstanding at the end of the Scheme Period, but
for the avoidance of doubt is not bound to do so.

Any available funds in a Designated Account (after taking into account any
deductions allowed by the Account Holder under L1) shall be applied
towards payment of the Lender’s Interest on a monthly basis.

Third, payment of Administrative Overheads in accordance with L3.
Under L3, the Lender agrees to bear the Administrative Overheads.

Subject to Clause 6.3(l)(ii) of the Scheme, the Lender’s contribution to the
Administrative Overheads shall be debited from its Designated Account.
The maximum amount of Administrative Overheads which may be debited
from the Designated Account shall be the Administrative Overheads
Budget agreed with the Lender or the actual Administrative Overheads
incurred, whichever is lower.

If the actual Administrative Overheads incurred exceeds the
Administrative Overheads Budget, the Group will have to obtain the
Lender’s prior written consent before debiting any amount exceeding the
Administrative Overheads Budget from the Designated Account for the
settlement of the excess Administrative Overheads incurred.

Fourth, payment of the Remaining Margin (subject to Reserve) in
accordance with L4.

Under L4, any available funds in a Designated Account (after taking into
account any deductions under L1 to L3) shall be applied towards payment
of the Remaining Margin subject to there being sufficient funds in the
Designated Account to satisfy the Reserve.

In the event there are insufficient funds in the Designated Account to pay
the Remaining Margin, any shortfall in the payment of the Remaining
Margin shall be paid in subsequent months when there is a surplus in the
Designated Account after settling the Remaining Margin payable to the
Lender for a given month.

Fifth, repayment of Principal in accordance with L5.

Under L5, starting from the second year of the Scheme Period, any
available funds in a Designated Account (after taking into account any
deductions under L1 to L4) shall be applied towards payment of the
Principal due and owing to the Lender under the Lender’s Facilities subject
to there being sufficient funds in the Designated Account to satisfy the
Reserve.

For the avoidance of doubt, any and all Vessel Income from a Lender’s Vessels shall
only be applied for the benefit of that Lender.

Sale of Non-Performing Vessels

Sale of Non-Performing Vessels. The Lender shall have the right to sell and/or

request that the Company use all reasonable endeavours to procure the sale or
scrapping of a Non-Performing Vessel, on terms to be agreed between the
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()

)

(h)

(i)

Company and the Lender (each, acting reasonably). The Lender shall use all
reasonable endeavours to procure that any Existing Security in respect of the
Non-Performing Vessel shall be discharged in order to facilitate any such sale.

Application of Proceeds. Any proceeds from the sale or scrap of any Non-
Performing Vessel shall be applied in the following order of priority:

0] first, towards payment of any expenses incurred in relation to and/or
payable for the purpose of giving effect to the sale or scrap of the Non-
Performing Vessel (e.g. shipyard dues and government tariffs etc.);

(i)  second, towards payment of the Principal due and owing to the relevant
Lender;

(i) third, towards payment of any remaining balance of the relevant Lender’s
Approved Claim (including interest);

(iv)  fourth, to the Company.

Disposal of other Secured Assets. Without prejudice to paragraph 4.7.3(e)
above, and subject to paragraph 4.7.3(h) below, during the Scheme Period, the
Company may with the prior written consent of the relevant Lender dispose of
any Secured Asset. Any proceeds from such disposal shall be applied in the
order of priority set out in paragraph 4.7.3(f) above save that, with respect to
paragraph 4.7.3(f)(i), the reference to expenses incurred in relation to and/or
payable for the purpose of giving effect to the sale or scrap of the Non-Performing
Vessel shall be deemed to be a reference to expenses incurred in relation to
and/or payable for the purpose of giving effect to the any disposal pursuant to
this paragraph. The Lender shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that
any Existing Security in respect of the Vessel shall be discharged in order to
facilitate any such sale.

The Company shall have the right to deal with, sell or scrap a Non-Performing
Vessel as it deems fit if the Company has provided the relevant Lender with a
request in writing to dispose of the Non-Performing Vessel pursuant to paragraph
4.7.3(g) above, and such Lender fails to respond within 3 weeks of the date of
such written request. In the event the Lender informs the Company of its refusal
to consent to the Company’s request to dispose of a Non-Performing Vessel
(such notice of refusal to be given in writing by a Lender no later than 3 weeks
from the date of the written request by the Company), starting from the date of
the Lender’s notice of refusal, the Lender shall bear all Administrative Overheads
in respect of such Non-Performing Vessel even if the actual Administrative
Overheads incurred exceeds the Administrative Overheads Budget, and shall
continue to do so until the earlier of such time as the Vessel is no longer a Non-
Performing Vessel or the Vessel is sold, scrapped or otherwise disposed of.

In the event all Secured Assets over which a Lender holds an Encumbrance have
been sold, scrapped and/or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the Approved Claim of the relevant Lender has not been settled in
full, notwithstanding that the Scheme Period has not expired, the remaining
Approved Claim shall be automatically, completely and absolutely released and
discharged, and the Company and the relevant companies in the Group shall
have no further obligations and liabilities to the relevant Lender in respect of such
remaining Approved Claim. The relevant Lender shall, if called upon to do so,
execute and deliver to the Company such forms of release, discharge or
discontinuance of any undertakings and/or liability as the Company may
reasonably require.
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If a Lender’s Approved Claim has not been settled in full at the end of the Scheme
Period, the outstanding balance of the Lender’'s Approved Claim shall be
sustained post-Scheme Period. Within three (3) months after the last day of the
Scheme Period (or other such date as may be agreed upon in writing between
the Company and the Lender), the Company shall either refinance the amount
of Approved Claim sustained post-Scheme Period or the Company or the Lender
shall renegotiate and enter into a new agreement governing the repayment of
the amount of Approved Claim sustained post-Scheme Period, failing which the
Lender shall be entitled to enforce all its rights under the Lender’s Facilities.

Reporting Requirements

(k)

o

At every monthly interval following the Effective Date, the Company shall:
0] provide an MVF Report to the Lender and the Scheme Manager;
(i) provide a D&C Status Report to the Lender and the Scheme Manager.

The Scheme Manager shall at every 3-month interval following the Effective Date
prepare and provide a monitoring report to the Lender based on the MVF Report,
the D&C Status Report and any and all other information that the Scheme
Manager may require and request from the Company as the Scheme Manager
may in his sole and absolute discretion deem appropriate.

Scheme Shares

4.7.3 Total Eligible Debt. The Total Eligible Debt which shall participate in the issuance of
Scheme Shares by the Company shall comprise of the following:

4.7.4

4.7.5

(a)
(b)

the FEG Eligible Debt; and

the AMPL Eligible Debt (which shall be treated as an indebtedness of the
Company).

Share Recipient. The following persons shall be eligible to participate in the issuance
Scheme Shares in accordance with the terms of the Scheme:

@)
(b)

(©)

the Unsecured Creditors;

the Lenders who have elected to take delivery of or instruct the Company to
procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets pursuant to Clause 6.2 of the
Scheme; and

the AMPL Scheme Creditors.

Scheme Share Issuance. The Total Eligible Debt shall be settled as follows:

@)
(b)

(©

The Total Eligible Debt shall be converted into Scheme Shares.

The number of Scheme Shares to be allotted to each Share Recipient shall be
determined by the following formula:

Approved Claim of the Share Recipient X 90% of the enlarged share
Total Eligible Debt capital of the Company

The Scheme Shares shall (i) be duly authorised, validly issued and credited as
fully paid-up; (ii) rank pari passu in all respects with any other shares of the
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4.8

4.9

Company then in issue; and (iii) free from all encumbrances and entitled to all
rights attached thereto on or after the date of issue.

(d) The Scheme Shares shall be issued by the Company to Unsecured Creditors
and the AMPL Scheme Creditors within 2 weeks of the Implementation Date.

(e) The Scheme Shares shall be issued by the Company to the Lenders who have
elected to take delivery of or instruct the Company to procure the sale of all
Secured Assets pursuant to Clause 6.2 of the Scheme in accordance with Clause
6.1 of the Scheme (summarised at paragraph 4.7.1(a) above). Any Allocated
Shares which are not issued to a Lender in accordance with Clause 6.1 of the
Scheme shall be distributed pari passu to all Share Recipients.

Related Creditor Claims. Related Creditors shall not be entitled to receive any distributions,
payments or benefits under the Scheme or vote at any General Meeting, and the Company shall
be completely and absolutely released and discharged from all Related Creditor Claims on and
from the Effective Date.

Completion and termination

49.1 Pursuant to Clause 9.1 of the Scheme, the Scheme shall terminate by performance
when:

(a) the Scheme Manager (acting reasonably) certifies under hand that the Scheme
has been completed or so substantially completed that it cannot be continued
without needlessly protracting this Scheme;

(b) the Scheme Creditors in General Meeting resolve by Special Resolution to
terminate this Scheme upon issuance of the Scheme Manager’s certification
pursuant to Clause 9.1.1(a) of the Scheme that the Scheme has been completed
or so substantially completed that it cannot be continued without needlessly
protracting this Scheme; or

(c) an order of the Court sanctioning the termination of the Scheme is obtained.

4.9.2 Pursuant to Clause 9.2 of the Scheme, the Scheme shall also terminate if the Scheme
Creditors in general meeting resolve by Special Resolution to terminate this Scheme
upon any of the following events occurring:

(@) if the Company does not comply with any provision of the Scheme, provided that
no failure of the Company to comply with any provision of the Scheme shall be
deemed to have occurred if the failure to comply is capable of remedy and is
remedied within thirty (30) days of any Participating Scheme Creditor giving
notice to the Company;

(b) if the Company ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business or any
material part thereof or materially changes the nature or mode of conduct of its
trading in any material aspect;

(c) an order is made for the Company to be placed under judicial management and
for the appointment of a judicial manager;

(d) if a receiver and/or manager or other similar officer is appointed over the
undertakings, properties, assets, or revenues of the Company;

(e) if an order is made for the winding up of the Company or a resolution passed or

if a notice is issued convening a meeting for the purpose of passing any such
resolution;
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4.9.3

) if, in Singapore or elsewhere, the Company is declared by the Minister to be a
declared company under the provisions of Part IX of the Companies Act;

(g) if the AMPL Scheme is terminated; or

(h) if a material situation shall arise which in the opinion of any of the Creditors
(acting reasonably) makes it improbable that the Company will be able to perform
its obligations under the Scheme.

Pursuant to Clause 9.3 of the Scheme, in the event that the Scheme is terminated under
Clause 9.2 of the Scheme, the Scheme shall cease to be binding on the Scheme
Creditors and each Scheme Creditor shall be entitled to exercise any and all of its rights,
powers and remedies against the Company for any outstanding part of the Scheme
Creditor's Approved Claim which the Company has failed to settle in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme.

410 Scheme Manager

4.10.1 The proposed Scheme Managers are Wong Pheng Cheong Martin and Toh Ai Ling of

KPMG, acting jointly and severally, or any other person appointed in accordance with
Clause 10 of the Scheme.

4.10.2 The Scheme Manager shall oversee the implementation of and the Company’s

compliance with the provisions of the Scheme and shall have the power to do all such
things as he may consider necessary or desirable towards that end.

5. ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN IN IMPLEMENTING THE SCHEME

51 Adjudication of Voting Instruction Form and Proof of Debt

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

The Voting Instruction Forms and the Proofs of Debt submitted by the Scheme
Creditors shall be adjudicated by the Chairman in accordance with Clause 5.7 to 5.11
of the Scheme. For the avoidance of doubt, the Voting Instruction Form shall be
deemed to be a Noteholder’s proof of debt for purposes of section 211F of the Act.

The timelines in relation to the adjudication of Voting Instructions Forms and Proof of
Debt which Scheme Creditors should take note of are set out in Appendix M hereto.

Scheme Creditors who fail to submit a Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt as the
case may be in accordance with Clause 5.2 of the Scheme on or before the Voting
Instruction Form Submission Date or Proof of Debt Submission Date as the case may
be shall be considered a Non-Participating Scheme Creditor unless so admitted at the
discretion of the Chairman / Scheme Managers. A Non-Participating Scheme Creditor
shall not be entitled to any distributions, payments or benefits under this Scheme or be
entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting and any General Meeting (unless so admitted
at the discretion of the Chairman / Scheme Manager) but shall, nonetheless, be bound
by the terms of the Scheme in the event that it becomes effective and shall have its
Claim compromised or waived under the terms of this Scheme.

5.2 Scheme Meeting and Classification of Scheme Creditors

521

In accordance with the directions of the Court, separate meetings for the Lenders, the
Unsecured Creditors (not including Associated Creditors) and the Associated Creditors
will be held for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving the Scheme. If
the Company were to be placed in liquidation, the Lenders would be treated as
unsecured creditors of the company. However, under the terms of the Scheme, the
Lenders will be treated as secured creditors on the basis of the security provided by
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5.3

6.1

5.2.2

523

524

5.25

other entities in the Falcon Group. As such, the Lenders will vote in a separate class
from the general body of unsecured creditors of the Company. Further, Mr Tan Pong
Tyea, Mr Lien Kait Long, Mr Mak Yue-Chen Andrew who are directors of the Company,
and Mr Tan Tee Beng who is a former director of the Company, who are intended
Unsecured Creditors under the Scheme, will abstain from voting at the Scheme
Meeting.

Given that Related Creditor Claims will be released and discharged in full, the Related
Creditors will be classed separately from the Lenders and the general body of
Unsecured Creditors. In any event, the Related Creditors will abstain from voting on
the Scheme.

The Scheme Meeting will be held via Video-Conference on the date and at the time set
out in the notice of Scheme Meeting and in accordance with the Protocol enclosed
herein at Appendix N. Scheme Creditors are requested to take note of the date and
time of the Scheme Meeting, and the guidance given in the Protocol in relation to
attending the Scheme Meeting via Video-Conference.

Before the Scheme can be sanctioned by the Court, it must first be approved by a
majority (over 50%) in number and representing seventy-five percent (75%) in value of
the Scheme Creditors or class of the Scheme Creditors present and voting at Scheme
Meeting (whether in person or by proxy).

Scheme Creditors who have any issues in relation to the proposed Scheme are
encouraged to contact the Chairman’s office at the 16 Raffles Quay, #22-00, Hong
Leong Building, Singapore 048581. Scheme Creditors will also be given an opportunity
to raise any questions they have in relation to the proposed Scheme at the Scheme
Meeting. The Company may require that the Scheme Creditors or their proxies (if
applicable), send to the Chairman, by post or electronic mail, the matters which the
Scheme Creditors wish to raise at the Scheme Meeting, and each matter, if substantial
and relevant and sent within a reasonable time before the Scheme Meeting, is to be
responded to at or before the Scheme Meeting by electronic means.

Approval by the Court

5.3.1

5.3.2

Provided that the Scheme is approved by the Scheme Creditors at the Scheme
Meeting, the Company will make an application to the Court for Court approval of the
Scheme.

Scheme Creditors will be entitled to attend the hearing(s) of the Company’s application
to the Court to approve the Scheme. Scheme Creditors will be provided with the
relevant court papers upon request.

OVERSEAS SCHEME CREDITORS

Overseas Scheme Creditors

6.1.1

6.1.2

The applicability of the Scheme to Scheme Creditors whose addresses are outside
Singapore as shown in the records of the Company (each, an “Overseas Scheme
Creditor”), may be affected by the laws of the relevant overseas jurisdictions. In
particular, the distribution of this Scheme Document in jurisdictions outside Singapore
may be affected by law. Accordingly, all Overseas Scheme Creditors should inform
themselves about, and observe, any applicable legal requirements in their own
jurisdictions.

Where there are potential restrictions on sending this Scheme Document to any

overseas jurisdiction, the Company reserves the right not to send such documents to
the Overseas Scheme Creditor in such overseas jurisdiction.
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6.2

7.1

7.2

8.1

6.1.3 Overseas Scheme Creditors who are in doubt as to their positions should consult
their own professional advisers in the relevant jurisdictions.

6.1.4 For the avoidance of doubt, this Scheme is proposed to all Scheme Creditors and
applies to all Scheme Creditors, including those to whom this document has not been
and will not be sent. Notwithstanding that such Scheme Creditors (including but not
limited to Overseas Scheme Creditors) may not receive notices or documents relating
to this Scheme, they shall be bound by the Scheme if the Scheme becomes effective.

Copies of the Scheme Document

6.2.1 Overseas Scheme Creditors (and any other Scheme Creditors) may obtain an
electronic copy of this Explanatory Statement at the website of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”). Alternatively, an Overseas
Scheme Creditor may write in to the Company at the Specified Address or Specified
E-Mail Address to request for this Explanatory Statement and any related documents
to be sent to an address in Singapore by ordinary post, or an e-mail address specified
by the Overseas Scheme Creditor, up to 7 days prior to the date of the Scheme Meeting
at such Scheme Creditor’s own risk.

6.2.2 Itis the responsibility of any Overseas Scheme Creditor who wishes to request for this
Explanatory Statement and any related documents to satisfy himself as to the full
observance of the laws of the relevant jurisdiction in that connection, including the
obtaining of any governmental or other consent which may be required, and
compliance with all necessary formalities or legal requirements. If any Overseas
Scheme Creditor is in any doubt about his position, he should consult his professional
adviser in the relevant jurisdiction.

LIQUIDATION SCENARIO

KPMG had issued a report dated 11 October 2019, which was supplemented by a report dated
26 November 2019, to express their views on the viability and projected earnings of the
Company post-implementation of the Scheme and setting out a liquidation scenario analysis.
A copy of KPMG’s report dated 11 October 2019 and supplemental report dated 26 November
2019 are enclosed herewith at Appendix L.

Based on the liquidation scenario analysis prepared by KPMG in October 2019, the general
body of unsecured creditors of the Company are likely to receive approximately a 0.72% return
if the Company were to be placed in liquidation. In contrast, the estimate recovery to the
Unsecured Creditors under the proposed Scheme is approximately between 58% to 91%, using
50% and 80% of last traded share price as an indication. While it is expected that recovery
under the Scheme will be reduced in view of the current global economic conditions, recovery
under the proposed Scheme is nonetheless still expected to be higher than in liquidation.
Accordingly, the proposed Scheme is a better alternative than placing the Company into
liquidation, as liquidation of the Company will provide a much lesser return to the Scheme
Creditors.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTOR

As at 9 February 2021, the directors have shareholding interests in the Company as follows:

Name of Director No. of Ordinary Shares No. of Ordinary Shares
(Direct) (Indirect)

Tan Pong Tyea 384,334,972 -

Lien Kait Long 75,000 -

Mak Yen-Chen Andrew - -

Tan Sooh Whye (alternate to 10,000,000 4,209,500

Tan Pong Tyea)
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8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

As at 9 February 2021, none of the directors of the Company have shareholding interests in
the subsidiaries of the Group.

RISK FACTORS

In considering whether to vote in favour of the Scheme, each Scheme Creditor should carefully
consider all the information contained in this document in particular the risk factors described
below. These risk factors described below are not exhaustive and Scheme Creditors should
also consider all other risks relevant in the circumstances.

Even if the appropriate level of support is obtained from the Scheme Creditors at the Scheme
Meeting (which cannot be assured), approval of the Scheme is at the discretion of the Court.
Whilst the Company believes that the relevant statutory formalities have been complied with,
the Court could determine that the Explanatory Statement is inadequate, that the solicitation of
votes was improper due to the inadequacy of disclosure or for other reasons, and/or could
determine that the Scheme fails to meet various other requirements, and require amendments
or modifications which might not be acceptable to the Company or the Scheme Creditors or
may not be accomplished in a timely manner. The Court could also differ from the selection
and/or classification of creditors of the Company as Scheme Creditors.

Further, appeals or requests for other reviews in respect of the Scheme and appeals against
the Sanction Order could delay the effectiveness of the Scheme.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The proposed Scheme is a better alternative than placing the Company into liquidation, as
liquidation of the Company will provide a much lesser return to the Scheme Creditors.

In the circumstances, the board of directors of the Company recommend that Scheme Creditors
vote in favour of the Scheme at the Scheme Meeting.

Yours faithfully

Tan Pong Tyea

Director
For and

on behalf of Falcon Energy Group Limited
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APPENDIX A — NOTICE OF SCHEME MEETING

IN THE GENERAL DIVISION OF THE HIGH COURT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE

HC/OS 32/2021 )

In the Matter of Part VII, Section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50)

FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)
... Applicant(s)

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
Under Section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50)
Between
FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)
(the “Company”)
And

THE SCHEME CREDITORS
(as defined in the Scheme)

NOTICE OF SCHEME MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to an Order of Court dated 3 February 2021 (the “Order”)
made in the above matter, the following meetings of the Scheme Creditors (as defined in the Scheme
referred to below) of Falcon Energy Group Limited (Singapore UEN No. 200403817G) (the “Company”)
will be held for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving (with or without modification) the
Scheme of Arrangement dated 10 February 2021 (the “Scheme”) proposed to be made pursuant to
section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50) (the “Act”) between the Company and the Scheme
Creditors:

(@) The Lenders’ Scheme Meeting will be held on 30 April 2021 at 9.30AM (Singapore time) via
Video-Conference;

(b)  The Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme Meeting will be held on 30 April 2021 at 10.30AM (Singapore
time) via Video-Conference ; and

(c) The Associated Creditors’ Scheme Meeting will be held on 30 April 2021 at 12.00PM (Singapore
time) via Video-Conference .

Unless otherwise notified by the Company, the Scheme Meeting shall be held by way of Video-
Conference in accordance with the Protocol set out in Appendix N of the Scheme Document (as
defined below).

Pursuant to the said Order, Wong Pheng Cheong Matrtin, care of KPMG Services Pte. Ltd. of 16 Raffles

Quay #22-00, Hong Leong Building Singapore 048581, shall be appointed as chairman (the
“Chairman”) of the Scheme Meeting.
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APPENDIX A — NOTICE OF SCHEME MEETING

The Scheme and other related documents are incorporated in the Explanatory Statement required to
be furnished pursuant to section 211 of the Act, of which this Meeting Notice forms part (the aforesaid
documents shall collectively be referred to as “Scheme Document”). Copies of the Scheme Document
have been sent: (a) by ordinary or registered post, hand delivery or courier as is appropriate to the
Scheme Creditors who are not Noteholders (the “Other Creditors”) for whom the Company has an
address, which address the Company understands to be the last known address of that Scheme
Creditor; and/or (b) by electronic mail to the Other Creditors for whom the Company has an E-Mail
address, which E-mail address the Company understands to be the last known E-mail address of that
Scheme Creditor or any director, employee, agent or representative of that Scheme Creditor; save that,
where there are potential restrictions on sending the Scheme Document to any overseas jurisdiction,
the Company need not send the Scheme Document to the Scheme Creditors in such overseas
jurisdiction.

With respect to Scheme Creditors who are Noteholders, the Company has sent the Scheme Document
(including this Meeting Notice) to the Account Holders for whom the Company has an address and/or
E-Mail address (which address or E-Mail address the Company understands to be the last known
address or E-Mail address of that Account Holder) by post, hand delivery, courier or electronic means,
as the Company may deem appropriate.

Additional copies of the Scheme Document may also be obtained by the Scheme Creditors from the
offices of the Company, at 10 Raeburn Park #01-33B Singapore 088702 (“Specified Address”) or by
writing in to scheme@feg.com.sg (“Specified E-Mail Address”) during normal business hours on any
day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) prior to the day appointed for the Scheme Meeting.

An electronic copy of the Scheme Document shall be made available at the website of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”). A Scheme Creditor in an overseas jurisdiction
may also write to the Company at the Specified Address or Specified E-Mail Address to request for the
Scheme Document to be sent to an address in Singapore by ordinary post, or an e-mail address
specified by the Overseas Scheme Creditor, up to 7 days prior to the date of the Scheme Meeting at
such Scheme Creditor’s own risk.

For the purpose of participating and voting at the Scheme Meeting:

(@) Every Noteholder must submit a duly completed Voting Instruction From (the form of which may
be found at Appendix C of the Scheme Document) in respect of its Notes (as defined in the
Scheme) through the Account Holder to the Company at the Specified Address or Specified E-
Mail Address, by no later than 5:00PM on 24 February 2021;

(b)  Every Other Scheme Creditor must submit a duly completed Proof of Debt (the form of which
may be found at Appendix D of the Scheme Document) in respect of its Claim (as defined in the
Scheme) against the Company as at the Ascertainment Date (as defined in the Scheme) to the
Company at Specified Address or Specified E-Mail Address by no later than 5:00PM on 24
February 2021.

Any Scheme Creditor who fails to submit a duly completed Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt as
the case may be in the manner and within the period stated in this Notice will not be allowed to vote
(whether in person or by proxy) at the Scheme Meeting and any General Meeting (as defined in the
Scheme) and will not be entitled to any distribution, payments or benefits under this Scheme (unless so
admitted at the discretion of the Chairman / Scheme Manager) but shall, nonetheless, be bound by the
terms of the Scheme in the event that it becomes effective, and shall have its Claim compromised or
waived under the terms of this Scheme.

Each Scheme Creditor shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting either in person or
by proxy:

(&8 A Noteholder who wishes to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting in person will need to instruct
the relevant Account Holder to record in the Voting Instruction Form that the Noteholder wishes
to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting in person. A Noteholder who wishes to appoint a proxy
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to attend and vote will need to instruct the relevant Account Holder to record in the Voting
Instruction Form that the Noteholder wishes to appoint a proxy and the voting instructions;

(b)  Any Other Creditor who wishes to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on its behalf at the Scheme
Meeting will need to submit a Proxy Form (the form of which may be found at Appendix E of the
Scheme Document) to the Company at the Specified Address or Specified E-Mail Address by no
later than 10:00AM on 27 April 2021.

If a Scheme Creditor fails to lodge a valid Voting Instruction Form (including the proxy instruction) or
Proxy Form as the case may be in the manner and within the period stated in this Notice, the proxy of
such Scheme Creditor shall not be entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting unless so admitted to vote
at the discretion of the Chairman.

Submitting a proxy instruction via the Voting Instruction Form or a duly completed Proxy Form (as the
case may be) will not prevent the Scheme Creditor from attending the Scheme Meeting and voting in
person should it wish to do so. In the event the Scheme Creditor attends and votes in person, the proxy
instruction via the Voting Instruction Form or Proxy Form (as the case may be) shall become null and
void.

Dated this 10t day of February 2021
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IN THE GENERAL DIVISION OF THE HIGH COURT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE

HC/OS 32/2021 )

In the Matter of Part VII, Section 210
of the Companies Act (Cap. 50)

And

In the Matter of FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED.
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
under Section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50)

Between

FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED.
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)

And

THE SCHEME CREDITORS
(as defined herein)

Dated the 10" day of February 2021
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PREAMBLE

(A) The Company (as defined in Clause 1 below) was listed on the SGX SESDAQ on 2 December
2004 through a reverse takeover of Sembawang Music Holdings Limited and changed its name
to “Falcon Energy Group Limited” on 6 November 2006.

(B) The Company is experiencing financial difficulties and proposes, inter alia, to restructure and
repay its unsecured liabilities in accordance with the terms set out herein.

(C) This Scheme (as defined in Clause 1 below) is entered into between the Company and the
Scheme Creditors (as defined in Clause 1 below) and is proposed under section 210 of the Act
(as defined in Clause 1 below).

1. DEFINITIONS

1.1 Inthis Scheme (as defined below), except where the context or subject matter otherwise indicates

or requires, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings set out opposite them:
“0.25% Margin” 0.25% of the margin applicable to the
Lender’s facilities.
“Account Holder” A person who is recorded in the books of
the CDP as being a holder of a book entry
interest in the Notes in an account with the
CDP or, as the context may require, is or
was recorded in such books as being such
a holder of Notes in such an account at the
Ascertainment Date.

“ACRA” The Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority of Singapore.
“Act” The Companies Act (Cap. 50).

“‘“Administrative Overheads” Any and all ship management costs in
respect of a Lender's Vessels, such
amounts to be determined by the

Company.

The maximum amount of a Lender’s
contribution to Administrative Overheads
which shall be agreed in writing between
the Lender and the Company (and which
may be amended by mutual consent in
writing from time to time by the Company
and the Lender).

“Administrative  Overheads

Budget”

“Allocated Shares”
“AmBank”
“AMPL”

“AMPL Eligible Debt”

“AMPL Scheme”

As defined in Clause 6.1(b) below.
AmBank (M) Berhad
Asetanian Marine Pte Ltd

The aggregate of the approved claims of
the AMPL Scheme Creditors.

The scheme of arrangement proposed to
be entered into between AMPL and the
AMPL Scheme Creditors subject to any
modifications approved or imposed by the
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“AMPL Scheme Creditors”

“AMPL Scheme Meeting”

“Approved Claim”

“Ascertainment Date”

“Associated Creditors”

“Associated Creditors’

Scheme Meeting”

“Bank Mandiri Account”

“Business Day”

“Cash Waterfall”
“CDP”
“Chairman”
“CHO”

“CHO Shares”
“cimB”

“Claim”

relevant creditors and/or the Court.

The creditors of AMPL who are subject to
and entitled to participate in the AMPL
Scheme.

The meeting of the AMPL Scheme
Creditors to be convened pursuant to
AMPL’s application under section 210 of
the Act for the purpose of considering, and
if thought fit, approving (with or without
modification) the AMPL Scheme.

The Claim of a Scheme Creditor against
the Company to the extent admitted in
accordance with Clause 5 below.

31 March 2020
The following Unsecured Creditors:

(a) CH Offshore Limited,;
(b) TS Amber Limited;
(© TS Pearl Limited; and
(d) TS Drilling Pte Ltd.

The meeting of the Associated Creditors
who are associated creditors of the
Company to be convened pursuant to the
Company’s application under section
210(1) of the Act for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving
with or without modification, the Scheme.

USD account no. 117-000-6132-385 and
IDR account nos. 117-000-6132-377 and
117-000-6263-503.

A day (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and
gazetted public holidays) on which
commercial banks are open for business
in Singapore.

As defined in Clause 6.3(d) below.

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited
Wong Pheng Cheong Martin of KPMG
CH Offshore Limited

Energian Pte. Ltd’s shares in CHO

CIMB Bank Berhad

Any claim or right in respect of the
indebtedness or any other liability of the
Company to any Scheme Creditor arising

out of, in relation to and/or in connection
with any and all agreements, transactions,
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dealings and matters effected or entered
into or occurring at any time on or prior to
the Ascertainment Date (whether the claim
be present or contingent or whether
liquidated or sounding only in damages
and whether in contract or tort or
howsoever arising including, but not
limited to, all interest, default interest,
premium, principal, additional amounts,
make whole amounts, fees and
commissions accruing on or payable in
respect of, or any other accretions
whatsoever arising in respect of, such
claims or rights whether on or prior to the
Ascertainment Date).

“Code” . Singapore Code on Take-overs and
Mergers

“COF” . Cost of funds

“Company” . Falcon Energy Group Limited

“Court” : The High Court of the Republic of

Singapore, or where applicable on appeal,
the Court of Appeal of the Republic of

Singapore.
“D&C Status Report” . As defined in Clause 6.3(r)(ii) below.
“Delivered Vessels” . Any and all Vessels which a Lender elects

to take delivery of in accordance with
Clause 6.2 below.

“Depositor” . As defined in section 81SF of the
Securities and Futures Act (Cap. 289).

“Designated Account” : All account(s) established / to be
established by the Group for a Lender into
which all Vessel Income for the Lender’s
Vessels shall be transferred, and which
shall be subject to a charge in favour of the
Lender, in accordance with Clause 6.3(b)
below.

“‘Disposal Date” . The date falling 30 months after the
Effective Date.

“Disputed Claim” . Any Claim (or part thereof) stated in a
Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form
which is disputed and subject to
adjudication in accordance with section
211F of the Act read with the provisions of
the Companies (Proofs of Debt in
Schemes of Arrangement) Regulations

2017.
“Effective Date” . As defined in Clause 2.1 below.
“Encumbrances” : Any claim, charge, mortgage, security,
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“Exchange Rate”

“Excluded Creditor”

“Existing Security”

“Explanatory Statement”

‘FEG”

“FEG Eligible Debt”

“General Meeting”

“Group”

“Implementation Date”

lien, option, equity, power of sale,
hypothecation or other third party rights,
retention of title, right of pre-emption, right
of first refusal or security interest of any
kind.

The currency conversion rate to be
ascertained for the conversion of an
amount denominated in a foreign currency
amount into an amount in US$, such
conversion rate being the foreign
exchange rate published or reported in
Reuters for the conversion of that currency
into US$.

Any of the following persons or entities:

€) KPMG Services Pte. Ltd,;

(b) Rajah & Tann Singapore LLP;

(c) Any person or entity whose claim
against the Company would be
entitled to priority under section
328 of the Act in the event of
liquidation of the Company
including but not limited to the
Inland Revenue Authority of
Singapore and the Company’s
employees; and

(d) The creditors listed in Schedule D
hereto.

Any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge,
assignment, debenture or other security
on or against a Non-Performing Vessel
which is required to be discharged in order
to facilitate the sale of the said Non-
Performing Vessel in accordance with
Clause 6.3(j) below.

The explanatory statement relating to this
Scheme issued by the Company pursuant
to section 211 of the Act.

Falcon Energy Group Limited

The aggregate of (i) the Approved Claims
of the Unsecured Creditors and (ii) the
Approved Claims of the Lenders who elect
to take delivery of all their Secured Assets
in accordance with Clause 6.2 below.

Any meeting of the Participating Scheme
Creditors convened in accordance with
Clause 14 below.

The Company and the subsidiaries set out
in Schedule B hereto.

The Effective Date or date on which all
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“Independent Assessor”

“Intermediary”

“KPMG”

“Lenders”

“Lender’s Facilities”

“Lenders’ Scheme Meeting”

“Lodgement Date”

“Maybank”
“MVF Report”
“‘Non-Performing Vessel”

“Non-Participating Scheme

Creditor”

“Notes”

Disputed Claims are resolved in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme,
whichever is later.

An independent assessor appointed in
accordance with Clause 5.11(b) below.

A person who holds an interest in any
Notes on behalf of another person or
persons (or, as the context may require,
who held an interest at the Ascertainment
Date).

KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.

Collectively refers to (i) AmBank, (ii) CIMB,
(iii) Maybank, and (iv) OCBC, and each a
“Lender”.

The facilities granted to the Group, details
of which are set out at Schedule C hereto.

The meeting of the Lenders to be
convened pursuant to the Company’s
application under section 210(1) of the Act
for the purpose of considering and, if
thought fit, approving with or without
modification, the Scheme.

The date on which a copy of the Sanction
Order is lodged with ACRA in accordance
with section 210(5) of the Act, or such
earlier date as the Court may determine
and as may be specified in the Sanction
Order.

Malayan Banking Berhad
As defined in Clause 6.3(r)(i) below.
As defined in Clause 6.3(j) below.

Any Scheme Creditor who fails to submit a
Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt as
the case may be in accordance with
Clause 5.2 below on or before the Voting
Instruction Form Submission Date or Proof
of Debt Submission Date as the case may
be or whose Approved Claim is
determined to be nil in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme.

The Series 001 SGD50 million Notes
issued by the Company pursuant to a
Multicurrency  Medium  Term  Note
programme  signed with  Standard
Chartered Bank.
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“Noteholders”

“Notes Trustee”

NOCBC”

“Ordinary Resolution”

“Other Creditor”

“Participating Scheme

Creditor”

“Principal”

“Proof of Debt”

“Proof of Debt Submission
Date”

“Proxy Form Submission
Date”
“Related Creditor”

“Related Creditor Claims”

“Requisite Majority”

“Reserve”

Any person or entity with an economic or
beneficial interest as principal in the
Notes.

Deutsche Bank AG in its capacity as
trustee of the Notes

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited

A resolution passed at any General
Meeting with the support of a majority in
number of each class of Participating
Scheme Creditors present and voting
(whether in person or by proxy) on the
resolution and whose Approved Claims at
that time in aggregate constitute more
than fifty percent (50%) in value of the total
Approved Claims of each class of all the
Participating Scheme Creditors present
and voting (whether in person or by proxy)
on the resolution.

A Scheme Creditor (including, for the
avoidance of doubt, a Lender) who is not
a Noteholder

Any and all Scheme Creditors except the
Non-Participating Scheme Creditors.

The principal debt due and owing under a
Lender’s Facilities, details of which are set
out in Schedule C hereto.

A proof of debt of a Scheme Creditor in
respect of its Claim the form of which is set
out in Appendix D of the Scheme
Document.

24 February 2021, 5:00PM (Singapore
time)

27 April 2021, 10:00AM (Singapore time)

The creditors of the Company listed in
Schedule E hereto.

The aggregate of the Claims of all Related
Creditors.

A majority in number representing three-
fourths in value of the relevant creditors or
class of creditors present and voting either
in person or by proxy at each Scheme
Meeting.

An amount equivalent to the aggregate of
3 months of Vopex and Administrative
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“Sanction Order”

“Scheme”

“Scheme Conditions”

“Scheme Creditor”

“Scheme Manager”

“Scheme Manager Claim”

“Scheme
Proceeding”

Manager

“Scheme Meeting”

“Scheme Period”

“Scheme Shares”

“Secured Assets”

“Securities Account”

“Security”

Overheads, or such other amount as may
be agreed in writing between the Lender
and the Company from time to time.

The order of the Court approving the
Scheme under section 210(4) of the Act.

This scheme of arrangement proposed by
the Company under section 210 of the Act
in its present form or with or subject to any
modifications, additions or conditions
approved or imposed by the Court or the
Scheme Creditors.

As defined in Clause 2.1 below.

A creditor of the Company who holds a
Claim except Excluded Creditors.

Wong Pheng Cheong Martin and Toh Ai
Ling of KMPG Services Pte. Ltd., acting
jointly and severally, or any other person
appointed in accordance with Clause 10.4
below.

Any claim by a Scheme Manager against
any person to enforce this Scheme.

Any legal proceeding in any jurisdiction in
which any Scheme Manager Claim is
made against any person (whether as a
claim, counterclaim or otherwise).

Together, the Lenders’ Scheme Meeting,
the Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme
Meeting and the Associated Creditors’
Scheme Meeting, or any one of them (as
the case may be).

A period of 5 years starting from the
Effective Date or the period starting from
the Effective Date to the Termination Date,
whichever is shorter.

Shares forming 90% of the enlarged share
capital of the Company.

Any and all assets which form the subject
matter of the Security Documents
including, for the avoidance of doubt, the
Vessels and any CHO Shares.

A securities account maintained by a
Depositor with the CDP, but does not
include a securities sub-account.

Any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge,
assignment, debenture or other security
on or against any property, right or
entitlement or other security interest given
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“Security Documents”

“SGX-ST”

“Share Recipient”

“Shares”

“SIC”

“Special Resolution”

“Specified Address”

“Specified E-Mail Address”

“Termination Date”

“Total Eligible Debt”

“Total Vessel Income”

“Transfer Instrument”

by the Company.

The documents to be designated by the
Company as a Security Document for the
purpose of cross-collateralising the
securities held by a Lender (if necessary)
to secure the Approved Claim of the
relevant Lender pursuant to Clause 6.3(a)
below and the charges over each
Designated Account referred to in Clause
6.3(b) below.

The Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.

The persons eligible to participate in the
issuance of Scheme Shares in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme
as described in Clause 6.5 below.

Ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company

Securities Industry Council

A resolution passed at any General
Meeting with the support of a majority in
number of the Participating Scheme
Creditors present and voting (whether in
person or by proxy) on the resolution and
whose Approved Claims at that time in
aggregate constitute more than seventy-
five percent (75%) in value of the total
Approved Claims of all the Participating
Scheme Creditors present and voting
(whether in person or by proxy) on the
resolution.

Falcon Energy Group Limited
10 Raeburn Park

#01-33B

Singapore 088702

scheme@feg.com.sg

The date on which this Scheme is
terminated pursuant to Clause 9 below.

As defined in Clause 6.4 below.

The aggregate amount of Vessel Income
from a Lender’s Vessels credited into the
Group’s Bank Mandiri Account in a given
month in accordance with Clause 6.3(c)
below for all the Lender’s Vessels.

A transfer instrument (the form of which is
set out in Schedule A hereto) to be duly
executed by a Scheme Creditor and a
transferee in respect of any assignment
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and transfer of all rights, title, interest and
benefits under and arising from the
Scheme in relation to a Claim, subject to
the terms of the Scheme.

“US$” or “USD” : United States Dollars, being the lawful
currency of the United States of America.

“Unsecured Creditors” : All Scheme Creditors who hold an
Approved Claim (including, for the
avoidance of doubt, the Noteholders) save
for the Lenders.

“Unsecured Creditors’ : The meeting of the Unsecured Creditors

Scheme Meeting” (not including Associated Creditors) to be
convened pursuant to the Company’s
application under section 210(1) of the Act
for the purpose of considering and, if
thought fit, approving with or without
modification, the Scheme.

“Valuation Reports” . The valuation reports dated 18 September
2019 by Ritchie & Bisset (Asia) Pte. Ltd.
on the Vessels of the Group.

“Vessels” . All vessels owned by the Group which the
Lenders hold security over as at the
Effective Date, and each a “Vessel”.

“Vessel Income” . All earnings / proceeds with respect to
each Vessel
“Video-Conference” . Any video-conferencing platform as may

be deemed appropriate by the Chairman
or Scheme Managers (as the case may
be) at their sole and absolute discretion
including, but not limited to, Microsoft
Teams or Zoom.

“Yopex” . Any and all operating expenses incurred
by any company in the Group in respect of
and attributable to a Vessel

“Vopex Budget” . The maximum amount of a Lender’s
contribution to Vopex which shall be
agreed in writing between the Lender and
the Company (and may be amended by
mutual consent in writing from time to time
by the Company and the Lender).

“Yoting Instruction Form : 24 February 2021, 5:00PM (Singapore

Submission Date” time)
The headings in this Scheme are inserted for convenience only and shall be ignored in construing
this Scheme.
Words denoting the singular number only shall, where applicable, include the plural number and

vice versa, and words denoting persons only shall, where applicable, include firms and
corporations.
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1.4

15

1.6

1.7

21

Any reference to any document or agreement shall include a reference to such document or
agreement as amended, modified, supplemented and/or varied from time to time.

Words importing any gender shall, where applicable, include the other gender and references to
any person shall, where applicable, include that person’s successor and permitted assigns.

Any reference to a statutory provision shall include such provision and any regulations made in
pursuance thereof as may from time to time be modified or re-enacted whether before or after
the date of this Scheme.

Any reference in this Scheme to a time of day and date shall be a reference to Singapore time
and date, unless otherwise stated.

SCHEME CONDITIONS, EFFECTIVENESS AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SCHEME
This Scheme shall become effective on the date on which all the following conditions precedent
(“Scheme Conditions”) have been satisfied or, where applicable, waived, in accordance with

the terms of the Scheme (“Effective Date”):

€) the approval of the Scheme by the Requisite Majority at the Scheme Meetings;

(b) the approval of the AMPL Scheme by the Requisite Majority at the AMPL Scheme
Meeting;

(© the approval of the Scheme by the Court with or without modifications, additions or
conditions imposed by the Court pursuant to section 210 of the Act;

(d) the approval of the AMPL Scheme by the Court with or without modifications, additions
or conditions imposed by the Court pursuant to section 210 of the Act;

(e) a copy of the Orders of Court sanctioning the Scheme being lodged with ACRA in
accordance with section 210(5) of the Act;

) a copy of the Orders of Court sanctioning the AMPL Scheme being lodged with ACRA in
accordance with section 210(5) of the Act;

(9) the approval of the SGX-ST for the listing and quotation of the Scheme Shares;

(h) the approval of the SGX-ST for the resumption of trading of the Company’s shares on
the SGX-ST;

0] the approval of the shareholders of the Company being obtained at an extraordinary
general meeting for the allotment and issue of the Scheme Shares;

)] the SIC granting a whitewash waiver from the requirement to make a mandatory general
offer pursuant to the Code in connection with the allotment and issue of the Scheme
Shares and independent shareholders of the Company approving the whitewash waiver
at an extraordinary general meeting;

(k) all necessary governmental and regulatory approvals and consents to the Scheme and
the AMPL Scheme and underlying transactions thereunder being obtained; and

() the execution of the Security Documents.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.

All the above conditions are inter-conditional and are required to be fulfilled or waived in order
for the Scheme to become effective. Accordingly, if any of the above conditions are not fulfilled
or are not waived, the Scheme will not become effective.

The Scheme Conditions in Clause(s) 2.1(a) to 2.1(h) above are not capable of being waived.
The Scheme Conditions in Clauses 2(i) to 2(j) above may only be waived by the relevant
regulatory authorities while the Scheme Condition in Clause 2.1(l) above may only be waived by
the relevant Lender whose Security Documents are to be dispensed with (to the extent legally
permissible).

Upon the Effective Date:

€) this Scheme shall be binding on all Scheme Creditors regardless of whether such
Scheme Creditors attended or voted (in favour of or against the Scheme) at the Scheme
Meeting;

(b) all rights of each Scheme Creditor to the payments and distributions in accordance with

the Scheme shall be accepted in full and final settlement and absolute discharge of all
of its Claims; and

(© The Company shall take the necessary steps to implement the Scheme.

RELEASE AND DISCHARGE

On and from the Effective Date:

3.1

3.2

3.3

the Company shall be completely and absolutely released and discharged from all Claims to each
Scheme Creditor (regardless of whether or not it has submitted a Proof of Debt or Voting
Instruction Form under this Scheme);

unless otherwise expressly provided in the Scheme, the Scheme Creditors waive:

€) all default interest, premium, additional amounts, make whole amounts, fees,
commissions and penalties chargeable, accruing on, or payable in respect of, or any
other accretions whatsoever arising in respect of the Claims, as at or after the
Ascertainment Date under or in connection with any other agreement relating to a
Claim;

(b) any and all right to claim for any legal fees incurred by the Scheme Creditors arising
out of and/or in connection with the Claims other than those awarded under an order of
court or arbitral award made on or before the Ascertainment Date or agreed to be paid
by the Company, which shall be subject to this Scheme;

Each of the Scheme Creditors shall (regardless of whether or not it has submitted a Proof of Debt
or Voting Instruction Form under this Scheme):

€) discontinue, withdraw and/or terminate any and all legal, arbitration, insolvency,
enforcement or other proceedings commenced by that Scheme Creditor against the
Company or any assets of the Company in any jurisdiction for the payment or recovery
of its Claims; and

(b) release or take all such action required for the release to the Company of all rights,
funds or property arrested, seized, garnished or attached in any legal, arbitration,
insolvency, enforcement or other proceedings referred to in Clause 3.3(a) above,

with no order as to costs within fourteen (14) days from the Effective Date, failing which, the

Company shall be entitled to seek the appropriate orders or awards against the Scheme Creditor
from the relevant court or tribunal to enforce and/or give effect to this undertaking. The Scheme
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4.1

4.2

51

5.2

5.3

54

55

Creditor shall be liable for any costs incurred by the Company in enforcing and/or giving effect to
this undertaking on an indemnity basis.

MORATORIUM

Save as expressly provided under the Scheme, during the Scheme Period, no Scheme Creditor
shall, whether directly or indirectly, take any steps to initiate, commence, procure, or continue
any legal or other proceedings against the Company or any of its assets and properties in respect
of any Claims in any jurisdiction including, but not limited to, court action (including winding up
proceedings, judicial management and any analogous proceedings in any other jurisdiction),
arbitration, the appointment of a receiver or receiver and manager, and/or the enforcement of
any judgment or court order.

Any Scheme Creditor who receives or recovers, at any time, on or after the Ascertainment Date,
from the Company any sum in discharge of any portion of its Approved Claim, shall within two
(2) Business Days after it receives or recovers such sum (other than the payments made
pursuant to this Scheme), notify the Company of the amount and currency so received, how it
was received or recovered and whether it represents principal or interest or other sums. Such
Scheme Creditor shall, within two (2) Business Days after receiving a request from the Company,
pay to the Company an amount equal to the sum so received or recovered (free and clear of all
deductions or withholdings).

DETERMINATION OF APPROVED CLAIMS

All Approved Claims, which will in turn determine the Scheme Creditors’ entitlement to receive
distributions, payments or benefits under the Scheme and vote at the Scheme Meeting and any
General Meeting, shall be determined as at the Ascertainment Date.

Subject to Clauses 5.3 and 5.4 below, Scheme Creditors who fail to submit a Proof of Debt
or Voting Instruction Form (through any relevant Account Holder) as the case may be in
accordance with Clause 5.5 and 5.6 below before the Proof of Debt Submission Date or
Voting Instruction Form Submission Date as the case may be shall be considered a Non-
Participating Scheme Creditor. A Non-Participating Scheme Creditor shall not be entitled
to any distributions, payments or benefits under this Scheme or be entitled to vote at the
Scheme Meeting and any General Meeting but shall, nonetheless, be bound by the terms
of the Scheme in the event that it becomes effective and shall have its Claim compromised
or waived under the terms of this Scheme.

The Chairman may at his sole and absolute discretion accept and admit a Proof of Debt or Voting
Instruction Form as the case may be submitted by a Scheme Creditor for voting purposes at the
Scheme Meeting notwithstanding that the Scheme Creditor has not submitted its Proof of Debt
or Voting Instruction Form at the Specified Address or the Specified E-Mail Address on or before
the Proof of Debt Submission Date or Voting Instruction Form Submission Date as the case may
be.

The Scheme Manager may at his sole and absolute discretion accept and admit a Proof of Debt
or Voting Instruction Form as the case may be submitted by a Scheme Creditor for purposes of
receiving distributions, payments and benefits under the Scheme and voting at any General
Meeting notwithstanding that the Scheme Creditor has not submitted its Proof of Debt or Voting
Instruction Form at the Specified Address or the Specified E-Mail Address on or before the Proof
of Debt Submission Date or Voting Instruction Form Submission Date as the case may be.

Noteholders

The Account Holders shall obtain from Noteholders on whose behalf they hold interests in the
Notes, whatever information or instructions they may require to submit a duly completed Voting
Instruction Form in respect of the each Noteholder’s Claim up to and including the Ascertainment
Date to the Company at the Specified Address or the Specified E-Mail Address by no later than
the Voting Instruction Form Submission Date.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

511

Other Creditors

Each Other Creditor shall submit a Proof of Debt in respect of its Claim up to and including the
Ascertainment Date to the Company at the Specified Address or the Specified E-Mail Address
by no later than the Proof of Debt Submission Date.

Adjudication Procedure

Subject to Clause 5.11 below, the adjudication of the Proofs of Debt and Voting Instruction Forms
for the purposes of determining the Approved Claim of each Scheme Creditor shall be carried
out in accordance with section 68 of the Insolvency, Restructuring and Dissolution Act 2018 read
with the provisions of the Insolvency, Restructuring and Dissolution (Proofs of Debt in Schemes
of Arrangement) Regulations 2020. For the avoidance of doubt, the Voting Instruction Form shall
be deemed to be a Noteholder's proof of debt for purposes of section 68 of the Insolvency,
Restructuring and Dissolution Act 2018.

For the purpose of determining the Noteholders’ Approved Claims, the Claim of a Noteholder will
be admitted based on the aggregate of:

(@) the principal amount of the Notes held by a Noteholder recorded in the books of the CDP
as at the Ascertainment Date; and

(b) any and all interest accruing on the Notes up to and including the Ascertainment Date
which shall be calculated by the Company (subject to review by the Chairman,
Independent Assessor or Scheme Manager, as the case may be, pursuant to the
adjudication of the Voting Instruction Forms in accordance with the terms of this Scheme).

Any Scheme Creditor who fails to raise a dispute in relation to the rejection of its Proof of Debt
or Voting Instruction Form as the case may be in accordance with section 68 of the Insolvency,
Restructuring and Dissolution Act 2018 read with the provisions of the Insolvency, Restructuring
and Dissolution (Proofs of Debt in Schemes of Arrangement) Regulations 2020 shall be deemed
to have admitted and accepted the decision or determination of the Chairman or the Independent
Assessor (as the case may be) as regards its Claim in its Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form
and the amount(s) of its Approved Claim.

Notwithstanding the completion of the adjudication of any Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction
Form in accordance with section 68 of the Insolvency, Restructuring and Dissolution Act 2018,
in the event the Scheme becomes effective in accordance with its terms, the Scheme Manager
may adjudicate any Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form de novo, or review and revise any
past adjudication of any Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form, at his sole and absolute
discretion.

Following the adjudication of any Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form pursuant to Clause
5.10 above:

(@) The Scheme Manager shall give written notice to each Scheme Creditor of the results of
his adjudication pursuant to Clause 5.10 above and of the Scheme Creditor's Approved
Claim within three (3) months of the Effective Date or such longer period as the Scheme
Manager may reasonably determine at his discretion;

(b)  Any Scheme Creditor who wishes to dispute any aspect of the Scheme Manager's
determination as notified to such Scheme Creditor by the Scheme Manager pursuant to
Clause 5.11(a) above must give written notice of such dispute to the Scheme Manager at
the 16 Raffles Quay, #22-00, Hong Leong Building, Singapore 048581 within seven (7)
Business Days after the date of the Scheme Manager's notice, after which the Scheme
Creditor shall be deemed to have admitted and accepted the decision or determination of
the Scheme Manager as regards its Approved Claim pursuant to Clause 5.10 above. If a
Scheme Creditor gives such notice of dispute to the Scheme Manager, such Scheme
Creditor shall send a written request to the Scheme Managers to seek their agreement on
the appointment of an Independent Assessor. If no agreement can be reached on the
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5.12

5.13

()

(d)

()

(f)

(9)

appointment of an Independent Assessor within fourteen (14) Business Days after the date
of the Scheme Manager's notice, the Scheme Creditor may take out an application to the
Court to determine the appointment of the Independent Assessor;

After the appointment of the Independent Assessor, the Scheme Manager is to, as soon
as practicable, provide the relevant Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form to the
Independent Assessor;

After the Independent Assessor has been provided with the Proof of Debt or Voting
Instruction Form, he must, within seven (7) Business Days, make a decision on the dispute
and send a written notice of the decision along with the reasons for his decision to the
Scheme Manager, the Company and the Scheme Creditor referred to in this Clause;

The costs of any Independent Assessor shall in any event be borne by the Scheme
Creditor wishing to dispute the result of the Scheme Manager’'s adjudication pursuant to
Clause 5.11(b) above;

Any determination or decision by any Independent Assessor appointed under this Clause
shall be subject to appeal to the Court within 7 calendar days of such determination or
decision, and for the avoidance of doubt, neither the Company nor the Scheme Manager
shall be liable in any event for any such costs, fees and expenses incurred by such
Scheme Creditor in relation to or arising from such Scheme Creditor's submission of an
application to the Court; and

Any part of the Claim that is admitted pursuant to such fresh adjudication shall be the
relevant Scheme Creditor's Approved Claim for the purpose of receiving distributions,
payments and benefits under the Scheme and voting at any General Meeting.

Each Scheme Creditor shall promptly provide the Scheme Manager with all such information and
documents requested by the Chairman or the Scheme Manager (as the case may be) which are
relevant to its Claim in its Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt (as the case may be), or to
the determination of the amount of its Approved Claim.

The Claims of each Scheme Creditor shall be:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

()

for the purposes of computation under the Scheme, insofar as the Claim is in a currency
other than US$, the value of such Claim shall be converted to US$ at the Exchange Rate;

reduced by any amount paid or distributed by the Company to that Scheme Creditor
under this Scheme;

reduced by any amount recovered or received by or for the account of that Scheme
Creditor under or arising from any guarantee given to that Scheme Creditor by any
person with respect to any indebtedness or liability of the Company as at the
Ascertainment Date to that Scheme Creditor;

where there have been any mutual credits, mutual debits or other mutual dealings
between the Company and any Scheme Creditor as at the Ascertainment Date, the debts
and liabilities to which each party is or may become subject as a result of such mutual
credits, debits or dealings as at the Ascertainment Date shall be set off against each
other and only the balance, if any, shall be used for the purposes of calculating and
determining a Scheme Creditor’'s Approved Claim;

where a Scheme Creditor submits more than one Voting Instruction Form or Proof of
Debt as the case may be (each Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt being submitted
in respect of a separate Claim against the Company), the amounts under all Voting
Instruction Forms or Proofs of Debt as the case may be submitted by such Scheme
Creditor shall be totalled, and treated as one amount and one vote;
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(f)

(9)

for Claims that contain an interest, commission and/or fee component, only interest,
commissions and/or fees accruing up to the Ascertainment Date may be set out in a
Voting Instruction Form or Proof of Debt as the case may be relating to such Claim, and
(as the case may be) admitted and no interest shall accrue on any commission or fee;

where the Scheme Creditor is a Lender, reduced by any amount paid to, recovered or
received by or for the account of that Lender before the Effective Date under or arising
from any Security held by that Lender over any Secured Assets.

6. RESTRUCTURING PLAN

The Lenders

6.1 Principal terms. Each Lender's Approved Claim shall be restructured under the Scheme as

follows:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

()

Each Lender may, in accordance with Clause 6.2 below, elect to take delivery of or
instruct the Company to procure the sale of all or some of its Secured Assets;

Each Lender who has elected to take delivery of or instructed the Company to procure
the sale of all of its Secured Assets shall be allocated and issued Scheme Shares for
the whole of its Approved Claim in accordance with Clause 6.1(e) below (the “Allocated
Shares”);

With respect to each Lender who elects to take delivery of its Secured Asset(s), the
Company shall procure that each Lender's Secured Assets are delivered and/or
transferred to the Lender by no later than the date falling 6 months after the Effective
Date on such terms as may be agreed upon in writing between the Company and the
relevant Lender (each party acting reasonably). All costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the delivery and/or transfer of a Secured Asset shall be borne by the
Lender. Upon election in accordance with Clause 6.2 below, the Lender shall be solely
responsible for all costs and expenses in connection with the Secured Asset and the
Group shall have no further obligations to pay any such costs and expenses.

With respect to each Lender who elects to instruct the Company to procure the sale of
all or some of its Secured Assets, the Company shall assist the Lender in procuring a
purchaser for the Secured Asset(s) and shall endeavour to find a purchaser willing to
pay the full sale proceeds in respect of the Secured Asset(s) into and held in an escrow
account pending completion of the sale. Pending completion of the sale of the Secured
Asset(s) on terms to be approved by the Lender, the Group shall continue to manage
the Secured Asset(s) and all costs and expenses in connection with the Secured
Asset(s) incurred up till the completion of sale shall be debited from any earnings
generated by the Secured Assets.

All Secured Assets shall be sold or disposed of by the Lender who has elected to take
delivery of or instruct the Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets by
no later than the Disposal Date and the net proceeds of sale from the Lender’s Secured
Assets shall be applied towards reducing the Lender’s Approved Claim. If a Lender fails
to sell or dispose of any of its Secured Assets by the Disposal Date, any portion of the
Lender’s Approved Claim which remains unsatisfied shall automatically be deemed to
have been settled in full and the Lender shall not be entitled to receive any Allocated
Shares;

With respect to any Lender who has elected to take delivery of or instructed the
Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets and who has sold or disposed
of all of its Secured Assets by no later than the Disposal Date, the Company shall issue
the Allocated Shares to that Lender within 2 weeks after the Disposal Date in full and
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6.2

6.3

final settlement of such portion of the Lender's Approved Claim which remains
unsatisfied pursuant to the sale or disposal or the Secured Assets as at the Disposal
Date. Any Allocated Shares which are not issued to a Lender shall be distributed in
accordance with Clause 6.6 below;

) With respect to any Lender who has not elected to take delivery of or instruct the
Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets, any portion of the Approved
Claim of the Lender which remains unsatisfied pursuant to the sale or disposal of the
Secured Assets as at the Disposal Date shall be settled in accordance with Clause 6.3
below.

Election for delivery of or instruction to procure sale of Secured Assets. Within 7 days after
the Effective Date, each Lender shall submit a written notice to the Company identifying which of
its Secured Assets it wishes to take delivery of or instruct the Company to procure the sale of. If
a Lender does not submit a written notice in accordance with this Clause 6.2, the Lender shall
be deemed to have elected to take delivery of all its Secured Assets.

Remaining Secured Assets. With respect to any Lender who has not elected to take delivery
of or instructed the Company to procure the sale of all of its Secured Assets, the Company shall
make payment to the Lender in respect of its Approved Claim in accordance with Clauses 6.3(a)
to 6.3(s) below. For the avoidance of doubt, Clauses 6.3(a) to 6.3(s) below do not apply to a
Lender who has elected to take delivery of or instructed the Company to procure the sale of all
of its Secured Assets or to any Secured Assets which has been transferred or delivered to a
Lender pursuant to Clause 6.1 above:

€) Cross-collateralisation and further security. The securities held by a Lender in respect
of the Lender’s Approved Claim shall be cross-collateralised (if not already done) at the
option of the relevant Lender over securities granted in its favour to secure the Lender’s
Approved Claim. All costs and expenses to be incurred in connection with the cross-
collateralisation exercise shall be borne by the Lender. For the avoidance of doubt, a
Lender’s securities will not be cross-collateralised with the securities held by another
Lender.

(b) Where the Secured Asset(s) which the Lender has elected not to take delivery of or
instruct the Company to procure the sale of in accordance with Clause 6.2 above
comprise Vessels, the Company shall procure the establishment of a Designated
Account for the Lender (if one has not already been established) and shall execute or
procure the execution of (as may be applicable) a charge over the Designated Account
established in favour of the Lender.

Cash Management Principles Under The Cash Waterfall

(c) Vessel Income: All Vessel Income shall first be credited into the Group’s Bank Mandiri
Account. Within T+3 business days of receipt of any Vessel Income attributable to the
Lender’'s Vessels into the Group’s Bank Mandiri Account (where “T” is the date of
receipt of such Vessel Income in the Group’s Bank Mandiri Account), the Group shall
issue letter(s) of instruction to Bank Mandiri for all such Vessel Income to be transferred
to the relevant Designated Account established by the Group for the Lender.

(d) Cash Waterfall: The Vessel Income shall be applied in the following manner:
0] First, payment of Vopex for the Lender’s Vessels in accordance with L1;
(ii) Second, payment of the Lender’s Interest in accordance with L2;
(iii) Third, payment of Administrative Overheads in accordance with L3;
(iv) Fourth, payment of the Remaining Margin (subject to Reserve) in accordance
with L4; and
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()

(f)

(9)

(h)

(v) Fifth, repayment of Principal in accordance with L5.

For the avoidance of doubt, any and all Vessel Income from a Lender’s Vessels shall
only be applied for the benefit of that Lender.

L1 (Vopex): The Vopex for a given month shall be debited from the Total Vessel Income
every month based on the Vopex Budget agreed with the Lender or the actual Vopex
incurred, whichever is lower. If the actual Vopex incurred exceeds the Vopex Budget,
the Group must obtain the prior written consent from the Lender before debiting any
amount exceeding the Vopex Budget from the Total Vessel Income for the settlement
of the additional Vopex incurred.

L2 (Lender’s Interest): Any surplus funds in a Designated Account after compliance
with L1 shall be applied towards payment of the following:

0] Lender's COF; and
(ii) 0.25% Margin

Contractual interest and default interest shall continue to accrue on the Principal, but
shall not be compounded and shall be paid in accordance with the Cash Waterfall.

Subject to the completion of the Scheme in accordance with Clause 9.1 below and
without prejudice to Clause 6.3(m) below, upon the expiry of the Scheme Period, the
Lender agrees to, in good faith, consider waiving, releasing and discharging (be it in
whole or in part) the Company from any and all claims for any default interest payable
to the Lender which remains outstanding at the end of the Scheme Period, but for the
avoidance of doubt is not bound to do so.

Any available funds in a Designated Account (after taking into account any deductions
allowed by the Lender under L1) shall be applied towards payment of the Lender’s
Interest on a monthly basis.

L3 (Administrative Overheads): The Lender agrees to bear the Administrative
Overheads.

Subject to Clause 6.3(l)(ii), the Lender’s contribution to the Administrative Overheads
shall be debited from its Designated Account. The maximum amount of Administrative
Overheads which may be debited from the Designated Account shall be the
Administrative Overheads Budget agreed with the Lender or the actual Administrative
Overheads incurred, whichever is lower.

If the actual Administrative Overheads incurred exceeds the Administrative Overheads
Budget, the Group will have to obtain the Lenders’ prior written consent before debiting
any amount exceeding the Administrative Overheads Budget from the Designated
Account for the settlement of the excess Administrative Overheads incurred.

L4 (Remaining Margin subject to Reserve): Any available funds in a Designated
Account (after taking into account any deductions under L1 to L3) shall be applied
towards payment of the Remaining Margin subject to there being sufficient funds in the
Designated Account to satisfy the Reserve.

In the event there are insufficient funds in the Designated Account to pay the Remaining
Margin, any shortfall in the payment of the Remaining Margin shall be paid in
subsequent months when there is a surplus in the Designated Account after settling
the Remaining Margin payable to the Lender for a given month.
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(i)

L5 (Principal repayment): Starting from the second year of the Scheme Period, any
available funds in a Designated Account (after taking into account any deductions under
L1 to L4) shall be applied towards payment of the Principal due and owing to the Lender
under the Lender’s Facilities subject to there being sufficient funds in the Designated
Account to satisfy the Reserve.

Sale of Non-Performing Vessels

0

(k)

()

Sale of Non-Performing Vessels: The Lender shall have the right to sell and/or request
that the Company use all reasonable endeavours to procure the sale or scrapping of a
Vessel if the utilisation of the Vessel for a 9-month rolling period starting from the
Effective Date is less than 30% (“Non-Performing Vessel”), on terms to be agreed
between the Company and the Lender (each, acting reasonably). The Lender shall use
all reasonable endeavours to procure that any Existing Security in respect of the Non-
Performing Vessel shall be discharged in order to facilitate any such sale.

Application of proceeds: Any proceeds from the sale or scrap of any Non-Performing
Vessel shall be applied in the following order of priority:

0] First, towards payment of any expenses incurred in relation to and/or payable
for the purpose of giving effect to the sale or scrap of the Non-Performing
Vessel (e.g. shipyard dues and government tariffs etc.);

(ii) Second, towards payment of the Principal due and owing to the relevant
Lender;
(i) Third, towards payment of any remaining balance of the relevant Lender’s

Approved Claim (including interest);
(v) Fourth, to the Company.
Disposal of other Secured Assets. Without prejudice to Clause 6.3(j) above:

0] Subject to Clause 6.3(I)(ii), during the Scheme Period, the Company may with
the prior written consent of the relevant Lender dispose of any Secured Asset.
Any proceeds from such disposal shall be applied in the order of priority set
out in Clause 6.3(k) above save that, with respect to Clause 6.3(k)(i), the
reference to expenses incurred in relation to and/or payable for the purpose
of giving effect to the sale or scrap of the Non-Performing Vessel shall be
deemed to be a reference to expenses incurred in relation to and/or payable
for the purpose of giving effect to the any disposal pursuant to this Clause
6.3(). The Lender shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that any
Existing Security in respect of the Secured Asset shall be discharged in order
to facilitate any such sale.

(i) The Company shall have the right to deal with, sell or scrap a Non-Performing
Vessel as it deems fit if the Company has provided the relevant Lender with
a request in writing to dispose of the Non-Performing Vessel pursuant to
Clause 6.3(l)(i), and such Lender fails to respond within 3 weeks of the date
of such written request. In the event the Lender informs the Company of its
refusal to consent to the Company’s request to dispose of a Non-Performing
Vessel (such notice of refusal to be given in writing by Lender no later than 3
weeks from the date of the written request by the Company), starting from the
date of the Lender’s notice of refusal, the Lender shall bear all Administrative
Overheads in respect of such Non-Performing Vessel even if the actual
Administrative Overheads incurred exceeds the Administrative Overheads
Budget, and shall continue to do so until the earlier of such time as the Vessel
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is no longer a Non-Performing Vessel or the Vessel is sold, scrapped or
otherwise disposed of.

(m) If a Lender’s Approved Claim has not been settled in full at the end of the Scheme
Period, the outstanding balance of the Lender's Approved Claim shall be sustained
post-Scheme Period. Within three (3) months after the last day of the Scheme Period
(or such other date as may be agreed upon in writing between the Company and the
Lender), the Company shall either refinance the amount of Approved Claim sustained
post-Scheme Period or the Company and the Lender shall renegotiate in good faith
and enter into a new agreement governing the repayment of the amount of Approved
Claim sustained post-Scheme Period, failing which the Lender shall be entitled to
enforce all its rights under the Lender’s Facilities.

Reporting requirements
n At every monthly interval following the Effective Date, the Company shall:

® provide a monthly fund movement report prepared by the Company to the Lender
and the Scheme Manager setting out the Vessel Income and Vopex for the
preceding month in respect of all Vessels which remain mortgaged to the Lender
as at the date of the report (the “MVF Report”);

(i)  provide a report prepared by the Group to the Lender and the Scheme Manager
setting out an update on the deployment and charter status for the preceding
month of all Vessels which remain mortgaged to the Lender as at the date of the
report (the “D&C Status Report”).

(s) The Scheme Manager shall at every 3-month interval following the Effective Date
prepare and provide a monitoring report to the Lender based on the MVF Report, the
D&C Status Report and any and all other information that the Scheme Manager may
require and request from the Company as the Scheme Manager may in his sole and
absolute discretion deem appropriate.

Scheme Shares

6.4

6.5

6.6

Total Eligible Debt. The Total Eligible Debt which shall participate in the issuance of Scheme
Shares shall comprise the following:

€)) the FEG Eligible Debt; and
(b) the AMPL Eligible Debt (which shall be treated as an indebtedness of the Company).

Share Recipient. The following persons shall be eligible to participate in the issuance Scheme
Shares in accordance with the terms of the Scheme:

€) the Unsecured Creditors;

(b) the Lenders who have elected to take delivery of or instruct the Company to procure the
sale of all of its Secured Assets pursuant to Clause 6.2 above; and

(c) the AMPL Scheme Creditors.
Scheme Share Issuance. The Total Eligible Debt shall be settled as follows:

(a) The Total Eligible Debt shall be converted to Scheme Shares.

(b) The number of Scheme Shares to be allotted to each Share Recipient shall be
determined by the following formula:
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7.

7.1

7.2

(©)

(d)

()

Approved Claim of the Share Recipient 90% of the enlarged share
Total Eligible Debt X capital of the Company

The Scheme Shares shall (i) be duly authorised, validly issued and credited as fully
paid-up; (ii) rank pari passu in all respects with any other shares of the Company then
in issue; and (iii) free from all Encumbrances and entitled to all rights attached thereto
on or after the date of issue.

The Scheme Shares shall be issued by the Company to Unsecured Creditors and the
AMPL Scheme Creditors within 2 weeks of the Implementation Date.

The Scheme Shares shall be issued by the Company to the Lenders who have elected
to take delivery of all Secured Assets pursuant to Clause 6.2 above in accordance with
Clause 6.1 above. Any Allocated Shares which are not issued to a Lender in
accordance with Clause 6.1 above shall be distributed pari passu to all Share
Recipients.

DISTRIBUTION AND PAYMENT MECHANISM

Any and all distributions or payments under this Scheme shall:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

in the case of any cash distribution or payment, be made by the Company by cheque or
by bank transfer to a bank account designated by the payee, provided that the fees and
expenses incurred in connection with such bank transfer shall be borne by the payee and
may be deducted from any sum payable to the payee under this Scheme;

in the case of any distribution of the Scheme Shares to Noteholders, the Company shall
allot and issue the Scheme Shares to the relevant Account Holder, who shall distribute the
Shares to the relevant Noteholder and pending such distribution, the relevant Account
Holder shall hold on trust the Scheme Shares for the Noteholders;

in the case of Scheme Creditors who are not Depositors or who have not provided the
Company with details of a Securities Account, the Company shall execute such
instrument(s) or instruction(s) of transfer for the transfer of the relevant number of Scheme
Shares to the relevant Scheme Creditors. Thereafter, the relevant share certificate(s)
pertaining to such Scheme Shares made out in favour of such Scheme Creditors shall be
sent by ordinary post in prepaid envelopes addressed to such Scheme Creditors at their
respective registered addresses in Singapore or such other address in Singapore as any
such Scheme Creditor may notify to the Company at the sole risk of such Scheme
Creditors, and the Company shall not be liable for any delay or loss in transmissions of the
relevant share certificate(s);

on and from the Effective Date, each Scheme Creditor (not being a Depositor or who have
not provided the Company with details of a Securities Account) irrevocably agrees and
authorises the Company and the Scheme Manager to execute or effect on behalf of such
Scheme Creditor any and all instrument(s), document(s) or instruction(s) as shall be
necessary or as the Company or the Scheme Manager may reasonably require to give
effect to the Scheme. Every such instrument, document or instruction to be executed by
the Company and/or the Scheme Manager shall be effective as if it had been executed by
the relevant Scheme Creditor;

on and from the Effective Date, each Scheme Creditor being a Depositor irrevocably
agrees and authorises the Company and/or the Scheme Manager to execute or effect on
behalf of each such Scheme Creditor any and all instrument(s), document(s) or
instruction(s) as shall be necessary or as the Company or the Scheme Manager may
reasonably require to give effect to the Scheme. Every such instrument, document or
instruction to executed by the Company and/or the Scheme Manager shall be effective as
if it had been executed by the relevant Scheme Creditor.

If for any reason whatsoever, any distribution or payment made to a Participating Scheme
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8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

Creditor pursuant to this Scheme is not received by that Participating Scheme Creditor and such
non-receipt of distribution or payment is not the result of any fault on the part of the Company,
such Participating Scheme Creditor shall be deemed to have waived all its rights in relation to
that distribution or payment upon the expiry of six (6) months from the date of such payment
being made.

RELATED CREDITOR CLAIMS

Related Creditors shall not be entitled to receive any distributions, payments or benefits under
this Scheme or vote at any General Meeting, and the Company shall be completely and
absolutely released and discharged from all Related Creditor Claims on and from the Effective
Date.

COMPLETION AND TERMINATION OF THE SCHEME
The Scheme shall terminate by performance when:

(& the Scheme Manager (acting reasonably) certifies under hand that the Scheme has been
completed or so substantially completed that it cannot be continued without needlessly
protracting this Scheme;

(b) the Participating Scheme Creditors in General Meeting resolve by Special Resolution to
terminate this Scheme on the basis that the Scheme has been completed or so
substantially completed that it cannot be continued without needlessly protracting this
Scheme; or

(c) an order of the Court sanctioning the termination of the Scheme is obtained.

The Scheme shall also terminate if the Participating Scheme Creditors in General Meeting
resolve by Special Resolution to terminate this Scheme upon any of the following events
occurring:

(a) ifthe Company does not comply with any provision of the Scheme, provided that no failure
of the Company to comply with any provision of the Scheme shall be deemed to have
occurred if the failure to comply is capable of remedy and is remedied within thirty (30)
days of any Participating Scheme Creditor giving notice to the Company;

(b) if the Company ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business or any material part
thereof or materially changes the nature or mode of conduct of its trading in any material
aspect;

(c) an order is made for the Company to be placed under judicial management and for the
appointment of a judicial manager;

(d) if a receiver and/or manager or other similar officer is appointed over the undertakings,
properties, assets, or revenues of the Company;

(e) if an order is made for the winding up of the Company or a resolution passed or if a notice
is issued convening a meeting for the purpose of passing any such resolution;

Q) if, in Singapore or elsewhere, the Company is declared by the Minister to be a declared
company under the provisions of Part IX of the Companies Act;

(o) ifthe AMPL Scheme is terminated; or
(h) if a material situation shall arise which in the opinion of any of the Participating Scheme
Creditors (acting reasonably) makes it improbable that the Company will be able to perform

its obligations under the Scheme.

In the event that the Scheme is terminated under Clause 9.2, the Scheme shall cease to be
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10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

binding on the Participating Scheme Creditors and each Participating Scheme Creditor shall be
entitled to exercise any and all of its rights, powers and remedies against the Company for any
outstanding part of the Participating Scheme Creditor's Approved Claim which the Company has
failed to settle in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

SCHEME MANAGER

The Company shall appoint the Scheme Managers before the Effective Date on terms to be
agreed between the Scheme Managers and the Company and such appointment shall continue
until terminated in accordance with Clause 10.4 below or until completion or termination of the
Scheme in accordance with Clause 9 above, whichever is earlier. The Scheme Managers shall
be entitled to such reasonable fees and remuneration for their performance of their duties and
services as Scheme Managers and for taking any action that they are required, authorised or
empowered to take under or in respect of this Scheme as may be agreed with the Company or
determined by the Court.

The Company shall do everything that is necessary to give effect to the directions and instructions
of the Scheme Managers, to the extent reasonably necessary and expedient to enable the
Scheme Managers to carry out their functions under this Scheme, and the Company shall not
prevent, frustrate, object to or otherwise prejudice the carrying out by the Scheme Managers of
their duties and functions under this Scheme.

Duties and powers of Scheme Managers

(@ The Scheme Managers shall oversee the implementation of and the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Scheme and shall have the power to do all such
things as he may consider necessary or desirable towards that end including without
limitation:-

0] to initiate, prosecute, discontinue, withdraw and/or settle any claim or proceeding
against any person to enforce this Scheme;

(ii) to appoint an agent to carry out or to assist them in carrying out any of their duties
or functions which the Scheme Managers are unable to perform;

(iii) to delegate the performance of their duties and the exercise of any of their
powers to any suitably qualified person;

(iv) to, at the Company’s costs and expense, engage lawyers, financial or other
professional advisers and consultants to advise and assist the Scheme
Managers in the exercise of its rights and the performance or discharge of their
duties as the Scheme Managers;

(V) to enforce for the benefit of the Scheme Creditors any and all the undertakings
and obligations of the Company under this Scheme and to commence
proceedings against the Company in their capacity as Scheme Managers to
enforce such undertakings and obligations, and in this connection, no Scheme
Creditor shall commence any action against the Company to enforce any
undertaking or obligation of the Company under this Scheme or to recover any
loss arising from any breach by the Company of any such undertaking or
obligation;

(vi) to enforce for the benefit of the Company any and all the undertakings and
obligations of the Scheme Creditors (in whole or in part) under this Scheme and
to commence proceedings against any one or more of the Scheme Creditors in
their capacity as Scheme Managers to enforce such undertakings and
obligations; and

(vii) to do everything reasonable or necessary to implement the provisions of this
Scheme.
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(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

To the extent that, in the Scheme Managers’ reasonable opinion, there is any doubt as
to whether the Scheme Managers may execute, perform or do any act, matter or thing
under the powers conferred upon him under this Scheme then that act, matter or thing
may be executed, performed or done with the Ordinary Resolution of the Scheme
Creditors.

Subject to Clause 10.3(d) below, the Scheme Managers shall comply with any resolution
duly passed at a General Meeting unless and to the extent varied or rescinded by an
order of the Court.

The Scheme Managers may at any time apply to the Court:

® for any order or direction in relation to any particular matter arising in
connection with the carrying out of his powers, duties or functions under this
Scheme or the construction or interpretation of any specific provision of this
Scheme and shall do all such things as the Court may order or sanction; and/or

(i) for any order or direction in connection with any allegations raised by any
Scheme Creditor against the Scheme Managers or in respect of or arising from
any resolution passed at a General Meeting.

The Scheme Managers may rely on any representation, notice or document believed by
it to be genuine, correct and appropriately authorised and any statement made by any
person regarding any matters which may reasonably be assumed to be within its
knowledge or within its power to verify.

The Scheme Managers shall not be obliged to make or commence or continue any
Scheme Manager Claim or Scheme Manager Proceedings or take any action if the
Scheme Managers is satisfied that the monies for the time being provided or made
available to him by the Company and/or the Scheme Creditors for that purpose are
insufficient to pay, defray, reimburse or meet all fees, expenses and liabilities which have
been incurred or may otherwise be incurred.

The Scheme Managers may settle or discontinue or withdraw any Scheme Manager
Claim or Scheme Manager Proceedings on such terms as the Scheme Manager
considers appropriate (i) if the Scheme Managers are satisfied that the monies for the
time being provided or made available to him by the Company and/or the Scheme
Creditors for that purpose are insufficient to pay, defray, reimburse or meet all fees,
expenses and liabilities which have been incurred or may otherwise be incurred; or (ii) if
the Scheme Managers is advised to do so by any legal advisor engaged by the Scheme
Managers.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Scheme:
0] The Scheme Managers shall not be obliged to do or omit to do anything if it
would or might in its reasonable opinion constitute a breach of any law or

regulation or a breach of a fiduciary duty or duty of confidentiality; and

(i) The Scheme Managers shall act in accordance with any direction or order of
the Court and shall not be liable to any person whatsoever for doing so.

10.4 Appointment, Resignation and Removal of the Scheme Managers

(@)

A Scheme Manager shall cease to hold office as the Scheme Manager upon the
occurrence of any of the following events:

0] the Scheme Manager may resign at any time by giving at least thirty (30) days’

notice to the Company save that the resignation of the Scheme Manager shall not
take effect unless and until a new Scheme Manager is appointed. In connection
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10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

herewith, the resigning Scheme Manager or the Company may appoint the
successor Scheme Manager, who shall have the capacity and experience to
undertake the duties of the Scheme Manager;

(ii) the passing of a resolution at a General Meeting convened for the purpose of
appointing any person or persons to replace the Scheme Manager;

(iii) upon the making of an order of the Court, upon an application by the Company or
the Scheme Manager, for the removal or replacement of the Scheme Manager;
and/or

(iv) the death or bankruptcy of the Scheme Manager.

(b)  The Court may, upon an application by the Company or the Scheme Manager, by order
appoint any person or persons as Scheme Manager whether in substitution of, or in
addition to, the person then holding appointment as the Scheme Manager or to fill any
vacancy resulting from death or bankruptcy.

(c) Every person who ceases to be a Scheme Manager shall make available to its successor
such documents and records in its possession and provide such assistance as the
successor Scheme Manager may reasonably request for the purposes of performing any
functions or duties as Scheme Manager under the Scheme.

The Scheme Managers disclaim all personal liability under any contract, agreement or other
arrangement entered into on behalf of the Company, or with regard to any other act or omission
to act, in connection with this Scheme.

The Scheme Managers shall not be responsible

€) for the adequacy, accuracy and/or completeness of any information (whether oral or
written) supplied by the Scheme Managers, the Company or any other person given in
or in connection with this Scheme; or

(b) for the legality, validity, effectiveness, adequacy or enforceability of this Scheme or any
other agreement, arrangement or document entered into, made or executed in
anticipation of or in connection with this Scheme.

The Scheme Managers shall not be liable to any Scheme Creditor for any and all losses,
damages, charges, costs and expenses of whatsoever nature which such Scheme Creditor may
sustain, incur or suffer in connection with or arising from any act or omission on its part in relation
to any Scheme Manager Claim or Scheme Manager Proceedings, unless directly caused by
fraud, dishonesty or wilful misconduct on their part.

The Scheme Managers will not be responsible for any delay (or any related consequences) in
crediting an account with any amount required to be paid to any Scheme Creditor under this
Scheme if the Scheme Managers has taken all necessary steps as soon as reasonably
practicable to comply with the regulations or operating procedures of any bank used by the
Scheme Managers for that purpose.

The Scheme Managers and their delegates appointed under Clause 10.4 shall not be liable for
any and all losses, damages, charges, costs and expenses of whatsoever nature which the
Company may at any time and from time to time sustain, incur or suffer at any time, whether
before or after the Termination Date, in connection with the exercise of their powers in the
performance of their duties under this Scheme, unless such losses, damages, charges, costs or
expenses arise out of the gross negligence, fraud or wilful default of the Scheme Managers.

10.10 In exercising his powers and carrying out his functions under this Scheme, the Scheme Manager

shall be deemed at all times to act as agent for and on behalf of the Company. Nothing in this
Scheme shall constitute the Scheme Manager as an agent of any Scheme Creditor.
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11.2

11.3

114

11.5

11.6

12,

121

12.2

12.3

ASSIGNMENT OF APPROVED CLAIM

No Scheme Creditor shall assign or transfer any of its rights, title, interests and/or benefits under
the Scheme except as expressly provided hereunder.

A Scheme Creditor (the “Transferor”) may at any time absolutely assign and transfer to any
person (the “Transferee”) its rights, title, interest and benefits under and arising from the
Scheme, by delivering to the Scheme Manager a Transfer Instrument executed by both the
Transferor and Transferee. Such Transferee shall, by delivery of such Transfer Instrument to the
Scheme Manager, be deemed to have agreed to be bound by and subject to the terms of the
Scheme.

Notwithstanding service or delivery of a Transfer Instrument to the Scheme Managers, the
Scheme Managers shall have no obligation or duty to accept or act upon the Transfer Instrument
and may at its absolute discretion withhold making any payment or distribution under the Scheme
to the Transferee and the Transferor identified in the Transfer Instrument until:

(&) the Scheme Managers are satisfied that the Transfer Instrument had been duly, validly
and effectively executed by the Transferor and the Transferee (in the form and substance
satisfactory to the Scheme Managers) and/or by any person duly and lawfully empowered
to do so on behalf of the Transferor and/or the Transferee; and

(b)  the identities of the Transferor and/or the Transferee have been verified to the satisfaction
of the Scheme Managers,

and the Scheme Managers may for the foregoing purpose require the Transferor and/or
Transferee to furnish to the Scheme Managers such information, evidence and/or legal opinion
as the Scheme Managers may consider appropriate at the expense of the Transferor or
Transferee.

A Transferee shall become a Scheme Creditor in place of the Transferor (and such Transferor
shall cease to be a Scheme Creditor) for the purpose of the Scheme on the date that confirmation
in writing of the transfer is given by the Scheme Managers to the Transferee. Upon completion
of the transfer, the Company and the Transferor shall be released from further obligations
towards one another under this Scheme.

No Transferee shall be entitled to receive under this Scheme payment of any amount of any
distribution greater than that which the Transferor would have been entitled.

All costs, fees and expenses incurred in relation to any assignment or transfer carried out
pursuant to this Clause (including but not limited to any such costs, fees and expenses incurred
by the Company) shall be wholly borne by the Transferor.

TAXES AND WITHHOLDINGS

All sums payable by the Company under the terms of the Scheme shall be paid:

(&) Free of any restriction or condition; and

(b)  Without deduction or withholding (except to the extent required by law) on account of any
other amount, whether by way of set-off, counterclaim or otherwise.

If the Company or any other person on its behalf (whether or not a party to this Scheme) must at
any time deduct or withhold any tax or other amount from any sum paid or payable by, or received
or receivable from, the Company under this Scheme or the other documents contemplated
hereby, the Company shall be entitled to deduct an amount equivalent to the tax or other amount
withheld, from the amount payable to the Scheme Creditor to which that sum is due.

If the Company or any other person on its behalf (whether or not a party to this Scheme) must at
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12.4

13.

131

13.2

13.3

13.4

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

any time pay any tax or other amount on, or calculated by reference to, any sum received or
receivable by any Scheme Creditor under this Scheme or the other documents contemplated
hereby (except for a payment by any Scheme Creditor of tax on its own overall net income
imposed by the jurisdiction of its incorporation, or, in the case of a Scheme Creditor, where its
facility office is located), the Company shall pay or procure the payment of that tax or other
amount before any interest or penalty becomes payable.

Within thirty (30) days after paying such sum from which it is required by law to make any
deduction or withholding, and within thirty (30) days after the due date of payment of any tax or
other amount which it is required by Clause 12.3 to pay, the Company shall deliver to the relevant
Scheme Creditor receipts or other evidence satisfactory to the relevant Scheme Creditor showing
that deduction, withholding or payment and (where remittance is required) the remittance thereof
to the relevant taxing or other authority.

MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

All procedural amendments, including any extension or abridgment of time in connection with
anything to be done under the Scheme (save in respect of any Scheme Condition or payment or
distribution obligations of the Company under the Scheme), shall be approved by Ordinary
Resolution passed at a General Meeting.

All substantive modifications and/or amendments to and decisions to be taken regarding the
Scheme shall be approved by Special Resolution passed at a General Meeting. Any proposed
modification, amendment and/or decision to be taken with respect to any payment or distribution
obligations of the Company under the Scheme shall be regarded as a substantive modification
and/or amendment to the Scheme.

Save as provided for under Clauses 13.1 and 13.2 above, any modifications and/or amendments
to the terms of the Scheme and any decisions to be taken regarding the Scheme shall be
approved by Ordinary Resolution passed at a General Meeting.

Subject to Clauses 13.1 and 13.2 above, the Scheme Manager shall determine whether a
proposed modification, amendment and/or decision to be taken regarding the Scheme is
procedural or substantive in nature or otherwise and any such determination by the Scheme
Manager shall be conclusive and binding on all parties to the Scheme.

MEETINGS OF SCHEME CREDITORS

After the Effective Date, the Company or the Scheme Manager may, whenever it thinks fit or
appropriate, convene a General Meeting of any or all classes of Participating Scheme Creditors
to propose an Ordinary Resolution or (if required by this Scheme) a Special Resolution as the
Company or the Scheme Manager may in its sole discretion deem fit, in respect of any matters
arising in connection with the terms and/or implementation of the Scheme.

After the Effective Date, the Company shall convene a General Meeting of all classes of Scheme
Creditors upon the submission of a written request from any two or more Participating Scheme
Creditors in any class whose Approved Claims subsisting at the relevant time in aggregate
constitute not less than thirty percent (30%) of the total Approved Claims of all Participating
Scheme Creditors subsisting at such relevant time. In the event the Company fails to convene
and hold a General Meeting within thirty (30) days after the date of any request of such
Participating Scheme Creditors, then those requesting Participating Scheme Creditors may
convene a General Meeting. The costs and expenses of convening any such General Meeting
shall be borne by the requisitioning Participating Scheme Creditor(s), if so requested in writing
by the Company.

The following provisions shall apply to any General Meeting:

(&) Any accidental omission to give notice of meeting or the non-receipt of notice by any
Participating Scheme Creditor shall not invalidate any meeting or the proceedings thereat.
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(b)
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(d)

(e)
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(9)

(h)

0

Any notice of meeting shall be accompanied by a Proxy Form to be issued by the Company
(in such form as may be determined by the Company) and each Participating Scheme
Creditor shall, at least forty-eight (48) hours before the General Meeting, lodge the Proxy
Form with the Company at the Specified Address. If a Participating Scheme Creditor fails
to lodge a Proxy Form at least forty-eight (48) hours before the General Meeting, that
Participating Scheme Creditor shall not be entitled to vote at the General Meeting unless
so admitted to vote at the discretion of the chairman of the General Meeting.

Any Participating Scheme Creditor which is not a natural person must appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on its behalf at all General Meetings and any Participating Scheme
Creditor may appoint any natural person to be its proxy or attorney to attend and vote on
its behalf at any or all General Meetings. No Participating Scheme Creditor shall be entitled
to appoint more than one (1) proxy or attorney to attend and vote at any General Meeting
and the proxy or attorney shall not be allowed to attend and vote at any General Meeting
except in the absence of its appointor. A Participating Scheme Creditor may revoke the
appointment of any person as its proxy or attorney by giving written notice thereof to the
Company.

At any such meeting, two (2) Participating Scheme Creditors present in person or by proxy
shall form a quorum for the transaction of business and no business shall be transacted at
any meeting unless the requisite quorum is present at the commencement of business
(unless there is only one (1) Participating Scheme Creditor in a class, in which case that
one (1) Participating Scheme Creditor present shall form a quorum and may transact any
business which a General Meeting is competent to transact).

The Company shall be entitled to nominate the chairman of the meeting, but if no
representative of the Company is present within thirty (30) minutes of the time appointed
for the holding of the meeting, the Participating Scheme Creditors present in person or by
proxy shall choose one of their number to be chairman.

If within half an hour from the time appointed for any meeting, a quorum of Participating
Scheme Creditors is not present, the meeting shall stand adjourned to such place and time
at the discretion of the chairman, and if at such adjourned meeting, a quorum is still not
present, any one (1) Participating Scheme Creditor present shall form a quorum and may
transact any business which a General Meeting is competent to transact.

The chairman may with consent of the meeting adjourn the meeting from time to time and
from place to place, to a place and time determined by the Company.

Any meeting at which it is proposed to: (i) pass an Ordinary Resolution shall be called by
giving at least fourteen (14) Business Days’ notice in writing to the Participating Scheme
Creditors; and/or (ii) pass a Special Resolution shall be called by giving at least twenty-
one (21) Business Days' notice in writing to the Participating Scheme Creditors.

Any Scheme Creditor with a Disputed Claim shall be entitled to have notice of and attend
a General Meeting, but shall only be entitled to vote at a General Meeting to the extent
that any part of the Scheme Creditor’s Claim has been admitted as an Approved Claim.

For the avoidance of doubt, it shall not be necessary for the Company to hold separate
meetings for the Lenders (to the extent that they hold an Approved Claim) and the
Unsecured Creditors, if the Scheme Manager in his sole and absolute discretion deem
appropriate. However, if a joint meeting of the Lenders (to the extent that they hold an
Approved Claim) and the Unsecured Creditors is held, any and all votes cast by the
Scheme Creditors present and voting (in person or by proxy) at such meeting will
nonetheless be calculated based on their respective classes.

NOTICES

B-29



APPENDIX B — SCHEME

151

15.2

15.3

16.

17.

17.1

17.2

18.

18.1

18.2

19.

The sending of notices and other documents by the Scheme Manager to Scheme Creditors under
this Scheme shall be in accordance with Regulation 9 of the Companies (Proofs of Debt in
Schemes of Arrangement) Regulations 2017, which shall be deemed incorporated by reference
herein mutatis mutandis. For the purposes of this Clause 15, the Scheme Creditors shall be taken
to have previously agreed in writing within the meaning of Regulation 9 to receive notices,
requests or other information by way of their electronic mail address or facsimile transmission
number (as the case may be) provided in their Proof of Debt or Voting Instruction Form, or last
known electronic mail address or facsimile transmission number (as the case may be) given to
the Scheme Manager.

Any notice or communication to the Company or the Scheme Manager under this Scheme may
be served by posting it by prepaid registered post to the address of the Company or Scheme
Manager notified to the Scheme Creditors, and if so posted shall be deemed to have been
received by the Company or Scheme Manager respectively, upon actual receipt thereof. Any
notice to the Scheme Manager or the Company not in compliance with this Clause 15.2 shall be
deemed of no effect for all purposes of the Scheme, save as otherwise permitted by the Scheme
Manager in their absolute discretion.

The non-receipt of any notice or other communication sent in accordance with Clause 15.1 above
shall not affect any part or provision of this Scheme.

CONFLICT AND INCONSISTENCY

In the case of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Scheme and the terms of the
Explanatory Statement, the terms of this Scheme shall prevail.

SEVERABILITY

If any provision in this Scheme shall be, or at any time shall become invalid, illegal or unenforceable
in any respect under any law, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not in any way
affect or impair any other provisions of this Scheme but this Scheme shall be construed as if such
invalid or illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

To the extent it is not possible to delete or modify the provision in whole or in part, under Clause
17.1, then such provision or part of it shall, to the extent that it is invalid, illegal or unenforceable,
be deemed not to form part of this Scheme and the validity, legality and enforceability of the
remainder of this Scheme shall, subject to any deletion or modification made under Clause 17.1,
not be affected.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

This Scheme shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, by the laws of the Republic
of Singapore.

The Company and the Scheme Creditors hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the courts of the Republic of Singapore in relation to any dispute arising out of or in connection
with this Scheme or its implementation or out of any action taken or omitted to be taken under
this Scheme or in connection with the administration of this Scheme.

CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT, CHAPTER 53B OF SINGAPORE
Save as expressly provided in this Scheme, a person who is not a party to this Scheme has no

right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act, Chapter 53B of Singapore, to enforce any
term of this Scheme.
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SCHEDULE A

Form of Transfer Instrument

This Transfer is made on the [@] day of [@] between:

1)
(@)

[Insert name] (Registration No. [@]) of [insert address] (the “Transferor”); and

[Insert name] (Registration No. [@]) of [insert address] (the “Transferee”).

(each a “Party” and both collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”)

Whereas:

(A)

(B)

By a scheme of arrangement dated 10 February 2021 proposed by Falcon Energy Group Limited
under section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50) in HC/OS 32/2021 and approved by the
General Division of the High Court of the Republic of Singapore on [@] (the “Scheme”), the
Transferor is a Participating Scheme Creditor of the transferee or successor in title of a
Participating Scheme Creditor.

The Transferor has agreed to assign and transfer to the Transferee all of the Transferor’s rights,
title, interest and benefits under and arising from the Scheme subject to the terms of the Scheme.

Now it is hereby agreed as follows:

1.

Unless otherwise defined, the capitalised terms used throughout this document shall bear the
same meanings as defined in the Scheme.

The Transferor hereby assigns and transfers absolutely to the Transferee all the Transferor's
rights, title, interests and/or benefits under the Scheme except as expressly provided hereunder
under and arising from the Scheme and the full benefit and advantage thereof to hold the same
unto the Transferee absolutely with effect from the date hereof.

The Transferee hereby absolutely, unconditionally and irrevocably agrees to be bound by and
subject to the terms of the Scheme.

For purposes of the Scheme:
(8 the Transferee hereby requests that all payments and distributions under the Scheme to
the Transferee be effected by cheque or by bank transfer to the Transferee’s bank account

specified hereunder:

[insert Transferee’s bank account number and address of bank at which the account
is established]

The Transferee agrees that the fees and expenses incurred in connection with such bank
transfer shall be borne by the Transferee and may be deducted from any sum payable to
the Transferee under the Scheme.

(b)  the details of the Transferee for the purposes of Clause 11 of the Scheme are as follows:

Address:[@]
E-mail: [@]
Fax: [@]
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5. This Transfer Instrument shall be exclusively governed by the laws of the Republic of Singapore
and the Parties irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of the Republic of
Singapore.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Transfer Instrument as a deed on the date
first above written.

THE TRANSFEROR

Signed, sealed and delivered)
By [insert name])

For and on behalf of )

[insert name])

In the presence of:

THE TRANSFEREE

Signed, sealed and delivered)
By [insert name])

For and on behalf of )

[insert name])

In the presence of:
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SCHEDULE B

List of the Company’s relevant subsidiaries and associates
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Name of Subsidiaries / Associates

Asetanian Marine Pte

Ltd

Bayu Maritime International Pte. Ltd.

Century Marine S.A.
Energian Pte. Ltd.
Excel Marine S.A.

Falcon Resources Management Pte Ltd
Motley Trio Offshore Pte Ltd

Morrision Marine S.A.

QOilfield Services Company Limited
PT Bayu Maritim Berkah
PT Bayu Maritim Makmur

Trio Victory Inc.

SCHEDULE C

List of Lender’s Facilities/Liabilities subject to the Scheme

Outstanding as

Security

Owner of Asset

No. Lender of 31 March 2020
(USD)
1 AmBank 23,070,137.21 Support Station 3 Morrison Marine S.A.
Falcon Warrior Century Marine S.A.
Bayu Cakrawala Excel Marine S.A.
2 CIMB 54,162,829.64 K300 Trio Victory Inc.
Bayu Laut PT Bayu Maritim
Makmur
CHO Shares Energian Pte. Ltd.
(194,380,175 shares
as at 8 July 2020)
Berani Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd
3 Maybank 14,788,549.30 Bayu Constructor PT Bayu Maritim Bekah
Garuda Emas PT Bayu Maritim Bekah
4 OCBC 35,143,645.00 Falcon Chief Motley Trio Offshore Pte

Ltd

Tirta Samundera

PT Bayu Maritim Bekah

Tirta Rajawali

PT Bayu Maritim Bekah

Falcon Force

PT Bayu Maritim Bekah

Bayu Rajawali

PT Bayu Maritim Bekah

Tirta Elang

PT Bayu Maritim Bekah

Tirta Makmur

PT Bayu Maritim Bekah

Total

127,165,161.20
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List of sundry creditors identified in the Scheme who provide essential services to the
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SCHEDULE D

Company as at 31 March 2020

Descriptions
AlA Singapore Pte Ltd

Auto System Pte Ltd

Cultural & Entertainment Holidays Pte Ltd
Candid Water Cooler Pte Ltd

Deloitte & Touche LLP

DHL Express (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Elite Trading & Investment Pte Ltd

KPMG Services Pte. Ltd. (to add provision)
Keppel Electric Pte Ltd

NTC Integration (Pte) Ltd

Parkway Shenton Pte Ltd

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited

Shell Eastern Petroleum (Pte) Limited
Socio Vitae Pte Ltd

The Central Depository Pte Ltd

TTS Copier International Pte Ltd

TNT Express Worldwide (Singapore) Pte Ltd
IRAS

Rajah & Tann Singapore LLP

Expenses payables - outstanding payroll
from Aprl9 to Mar'20
Provision for unutilised leave

Provision for bonus & CPF

Salemlaw Office Management Services Pte.
Ltd.
Pareto SG Pte Ltd

Accrued CPF

Lien Kait Long

Mak Yue-Chen Andrew
Tan Tee Beng

Total

B-34

Total (USD)
11,172.39

638.69
24,974.58
56.80
101,439.61
2.32
39,012.18
146,509.41
408.03
2,254.21
287.04
26,299.16

238.90
125.00
7,061.80
75.63
10.29
188,182.90
325,406.78
449,339.19

67,869.33
62,450.84
31,784.42

19,926.96
16,602.52
102,703.65
79,002.81
43,890.44
1,747,725.88
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SCHEDULE E
List of Related Creditors as of 31 March 2020

Descriptions

Century Marine S.A.

Qilfield Services Company Ltd
Trio Victory Inc.

Excel Marine S.A.

Imperial Marine S.A.

Innovest Resources Ltd
Falcon Energy Projects Pte Ltd
Morrison Marine S.A.

CGL Resources Ltd

Bayu Maritim International Pte Ltd

Total
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Total (USD

16,427,173.51
10,803,333.36
9,330,711.98
14,986,120.34
8,351,645.25
21,794,223.44
16,579,541.11
25,779,714.79
476,000.00
908,039.79

125,436,503.57



APPENDIX C — VOTING INSTRUCTION FORM

VOTING INSTRUCTION FORM
IN RESPECT OF THE

The Series 001 SGD50 million Notes pursuant to a
Multicurrency Medium Term Note programme
(THE “NOTES”)

Issued by

FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(UEN/Company Registration No. 200403817G)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(the “Company”)

For use by the Noteholders
in connection with the Scheme Meeting convened pursuant to
the Order of Court dated 3 February 2021 made in HC/OS 32/2021
and the Scheme

IMPORTANT NOTICES

This Voting Instruction Form must be duly completed by the Account Holder and returned to the
Company at 10 Raeburn Park #01-33B Singapore 088702 or via e-mail to scheme@feg.com.sg before
5:00PM on 24 February 2021 (the “Voting Instruction Form Submission Date”) in order for the
relevant Noteholders to be eligible to participate in the Scheme Meeting to be held on 30 April 2021,
at 10.30AM (Singapore time) via Video-Conference (unless informed otherwise by the Company)
and the Scheme proposed in HC/OS 32/2021.

All Noteholders, Account Holders (who are Noteholders) and Intermediaries are strongly
advised to read the Scheme Document and the instructions to Noteholders, Account Holders
and Intermediaries included in this Voting Instruction Form, before the Account Holder
completes the Voting Instruction Form. If you are in doubt about this document or as to the action
which you should take, you should consult your financial or investment adviser, stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor or other professional adviser immediately. You should note that the Scheme
Document is not intended to constitute professional advice and that you should seek your own
professional advice in relation to the Scheme.

Account Holders are to ensure that they provide all the information requested in this Voting Instruction
Form. If the Account Holder completing this form is not a Noteholder, the Account Holder is to ensure
that it identifies the Noteholder on whose behalf it is submitting this Voting Instruction Form. If such
Noteholder does not wish to provide details of its identity, please identify a person authorised by the
Noteholder to act as its representative.

Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the meanings given to them in the Scheme

Document dated 10 February 2021. If Noteholder is an individual, please submit copies of his passport
or identity card to the Chairman together with this Voting Instruction Form.
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APPENDIX C — VOTING INSTRUCTION FORM

To: Falcon Energy Group Limited
10 Raeburn Park
#01-33B
Singapore 088702
(Attention: Ms Tan Sooh Whye / Ms Christina Peh)

[, [name]

of [company/firm where applicable]

of [address]

NRIC/Passport No. , do solemnly and sincerely declare that:

1. 1/We, the undersigned, being the Account Holder of the Notes of the principal amount and credited
to the Direct Securities Account Number(s) or Securities Sub-Account Number(s) specified below,
hereby certify that *[| am the holder of the Notes / | am/we are holding the Notes for and on behalf
of the Noteholder] specified below. (*Please delete as appropriate.)

2. l/we hereby instruct you and/or the Chairman in respect of the Notes as follows:
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APPENDIX C = VOTING INSTRUCTION FORM

Attendance by Noteholder at the Scheme Meeting in person [see note (1) below]

@

that *[I / the following Noteholders] wish(es) to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting personally (*Please delete as appropriate):

Details of

Section to be filled

Particulars of Noteholder

Contact Details of
Noteholder

Principal amount of
Notes held as at the
Ascertainment Date

Principal Amount

Noteholder’s
Securities Account
Number (or
Securities Sub-
Account Number)
*Direct Securities

in if the Account
Holder is not the
Noteholder

Name of Account

No.

Name of Individual / Name of
Company

NRIC / Passport No. of
Individual / NRIC /
Passport No. of
authorised employee of
Company

Contact details of
Individual / Contact
details of authorised
employee of Company

1) Address
2) Contact No.
3) E-mail address

(S$)

Account Number(s) /
*Securities Sub-
Account Number(s)
of the Noteholders

Holder or CDP
Depository Agent
(applicable where

Securities Sub-
Account Number is

specified)
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Attendance by Noteholder at the Scheme Meeting by proxy [see note (1) and (4) below]

(b) that *[I / the following Noteholders] wish(es) to appoint the following proxy to a vote for me / us / the Noteholders and on my / our / the Noteholders’ behalf
at the Scheme Meeting or at any adjournment of the said meeting, for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving the matters set out in the
notice convening the Scheme Meeting, and at such meeting to vote in respect of the Scheme (with or without modification) as indicated in the table below
proposed to be made pursuant to section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50) between the Company and the Scheme Creditors cast the vote(s) (*Please
delete as appropriate):

Particulars of Noteholder Contact Details Principal Details of Section to be Particulars of Proxy Voting Instructions to Proxy
of Noteholder amount of Noteholder’s filled in if the [see note (2) below] [see note (3) below]
Notes held as Securities Account
at the Account Holder is not
Ascertainment Number (or the
Date Securities Sub- Noteholder
Account
Number)
No. Name of NRIC / Contact details / Principal *Direct Name of Name and NRIC / Voting in respect of
Individual / Passport (Contact details Amount (S$) Securities Direct Passport No. of the Scheme
Name of No. / of authorised Account Account Individual & Email
Company (NRIC/ employee) Number(s) / Holder or address (PLEASE REFER TO
Passport *Securities CDP NOTE BELOW)
No. of 1) Address Sub-Account Depository
authorised 2) Contact Number(s) of Agent
employee) No. the (applicable
¥ aadress NSO seturtes FORTHE | AGAINST THE
Sub-Account
Number is
specified)
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Notes to paragraphs 2(a) and 2(b) above:

1)

@)

®)

(4)

The Account Holder should, on behalf of a Noteholder, fill in the table under either paragraph 2(a) above
where the Noteholder wishes to attend the Scheme Meeting in person or paragraph 2(b) above where
the Noteholder wishes to attend the Scheme Meeting by proxy.

Insert full name of person to be appointed as proxy and a valid e-mail address of the person to
be appointed as proxy. A Scheme Creditor may appoint only a natural person as a proxy (including the
Chairman of the Scheme Meeting), and may appoint only one such person as proxy. If no person is
named as proxy, the Chairman of the Scheme Meeting shall, by default, be appointed proxy for the
purposes of this proxy form. The person who is appointed as a proxy need not be a Scheme Creditor
but must attend the Scheme Meeting in person to represent the appointor.

If you wish your proxy (including any alternate proxy) to approve the Scheme, please check the box
under the column “FOR THE SCHEME”. If you do not wish your proxy (including any alternate proxy) to
approve the Scheme, please check the box under the column “AGAINST THE SCHEME”. If neither the
column “FOR THE SCHEME” nor the column “AGAINST THE SCHEME?” is checked, your proxy shall
be deemed to be duly authorised to vote either “for” or “against” the Scheme at his/her discretion at the
Scheme Meeting.

The Chairman of the Scheme Meeting shall be entitled to reject any instrument appointing a proxy if it is
incomplete, illegible, fails to comply with these notes or where the true intentions of the appointor are
not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy.

The Account Holder is requested to specify below only one CDP Direct Securities Account
belonging to the Account Holder to which the Scheme Shares would be credited into pursuant to
the Scheme (notwithstanding that the Account Holder is holding the Notes on behalf of one or
more Noteholders) and the Account Holder shall distribute the relevant number of Scheme
Shares to each Noteholder pursuant to the terms of the Scheme.

Name of Securities Account:

Securities Account Number:

The Account Holder is requested to specify below only one bank account belonging to the
Account Holder to which the monies should be credited into pursuant to the Scheme
(notwithstanding that the Account Holder is holding the Notes on behalf of one or more
Noteholders) and the Account Holder shall distribute the relevant amount of monies to the
Noteholder pursuant to the terms of the Scheme.

Bank Name:

Bank Swift Code:

Account Number:

Account Name:

The Account Holder hereby confirms and declares that the aggregate principal amount of Note(s)
which is/are the subject of this Voting Instruction Form is S$
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6.

If required by the Scheme Manager and/or the Chairman, I/we/the Noteholder to which this Voting
Instruction Form relates shall provide any supplemental documents requested by the Scheme
Manager or the Chairman.

Confirmations:

The Account Holder named below confirms to the Company, the Scheme Manager and the Chairman

that:

(A)

(B)

In relation to the Notes, the Account Holder has authority to give voting instructions set out in
Paragraph 2 of this Voting Instruction Form. Every obligation of the Account Holder under this
Voting Instruction Form shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, heirs, executors,
administrators and legal representatives of the Account Holder and shall not be affected by, and
shall survive, the death or incapacity of the Account Holder and that all of the information is this
Voting Instruction Form is complete and accurate.

That any personal data of any individual provided has been obtained with such individual's
consent and hereby consents on behalf of such individual to the collection, use and disclosure of
his personal data by the Company, the Scheme Manager, the Scheme Trustee and the Chairman
(and any of their respective officers), in each case, in accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Personal Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26 of 2012) and any consent given hereunder
in relation to personal data shall survive death, incapacity, bankruptcy or insolvency of any such
individual and the termination or expiration of the Scheme. For the purposes hereunder, “personal
data” has the meaning ascribed to it in the Singapore Personal Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26
of 2012).

And | make this solemn declaration by virtue of the provisions of the Oaths and Statutory Declarations
Act 2000 and subiject to the penalties provided in that Act for the making of false statements in statutory
declarations, conscientiously believing the statements contained in this declaration to be true in every

particular.

Declared at )
this day of 2021 )
Name:

Telephone No:
E-mail address:
Designation:
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APPENDIX TO VOTING INSTRUCTION FORM: INSTRUCTIONS TO NOTEHOLDERS, ACCOUNT

HOLDERS (WHO ARE NOT NOTEHOLDERS) AND INTERMEDIARIES

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Noteholder

You are a Noteholder if you hold an economic or beneficial interest as principal in the Notes as
at the Ascertainment Date.

Each Noteholder will need to give instructions to its Account Holder as to voting. If you are a
Noteholder, please read the Scheme Document carefully and follow the instructions set out
therein.

A Noteholder should immediately contact their Account Holder (through any Intermediaries, if
appropriate) to ensure that a valid Voting Instruction Form is submitted through the Account
Holder to the Company at 10 Raeburn Park #01-33B Singapore 088702 or via e-mail to
scheme@feg.com.sg by the Voting Instruction Form Submission Date in respect of their
interests in the Notes.

Account Holder

You are an Account Holder in respect of an interest in the Notes held through the CDP if you
are recorded as holding a book-entry interest in the Notes in an account with the CDP or, as
the context requires, are or were recorded as holding such an interest in such account at the
Ascertainment Date. Account Holders consist of those persons holding securities account with
the CDP.

If you are an Account Holder who is holding the Notes as a nominee to a Noteholder, you should
promptly forward a copy of this Scheme Document to all Noteholders on whose behalf you hold
an interest in the Notes.

An Account Holder (who is not a Noteholder) shall not be entitled to vote at the Scheme
Meetings in respect of any interest in the Notes.

Intermediary

You are an Intermediary if you hold an interest in the Notes on behalf of another person or, as
the context requires, if you hold or held such an interest at the Ascertainment Date, and in either
case you are not or (as appropriate) were not an Account Holder in respect of that interest.
Examples of Intermediaries are stockbrokers, investment managers and nominee companies.

If you are an Intermediary, you should promptly forward a copy of this Scheme Document to all
persons on whose behalf you hold an interest in the Notes.

An Intermediary shall not be entitled to vote at the Scheme Meetings in respect of any interest
in the Notes.

Notes Trustee and CDP

The Notes Trustee and the CDP shall not be entitled to vote at the Scheme Meetings in respect
of any interest in the Notes.

What should Noteholders do?

Each Noteholder will need to give instructions to his Account Holder as to voting by way of the Voting
Instruction Form.

A Noteholder wishing to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting in person will need to instruct his
Account Holder to record in the Voting Instruction Form that he wishes to attend and vote at the Scheme
Meeting in person.
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A Noteholder who wishes to appoint a proxy to vote at the Scheme Meeting will need to instruct his
Account Holder to record in the Voting Instruction Form that the Noteholder wishes to appoint a proxy
identified in the Voting Instruction Form to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting in accordance with
his voting instructions recorded in the Voting Instruction Form.

What should Account Holders do?

It will be the responsibility of the Account Holders to obtain from Intermediaries and/or Noteholders on
whose behalf they hold interests in the Notes, whatever information or instructions they may require to
submit a duly completed Voting Instruction Form in respect of such Notes to the Chairman. To assist
this process, Noteholders (through Intermediaries, if appropriate) are strongly encouraged to contact
the Account Holder through which they hold their interest in the Notes to enable that Account Holder to
complete a Voting Instruction Form and submit such Voting Instruction Form to the Scheme Manager
prior to the Voting Instruction Form Submission Date.

The Voting Instruction Form should be submitted to the Company by no later than the Voting Instruction
Form Submission Date. A Voting Instruction Form will be deemed submitted when actually received by
the Company, provided that if the Company/Chairman subsequently identifies any error in the Voting
Instruction Form or determines that a Voting Instruction Form is not valid, such Voting Instruction Form
will not be deemed submitted until all such errors have been rectified or the Voting Instruction Form has
been completed to the satisfaction of the Chairman (which may, if reasonably necessary, request that
a new Voting Instruction Form be submitted).

If the Company receives a Voting Instruction Form after the Voting Instruction Form Submission Date
or a notice of revocation or amendment after the Voting Instruction Form Submission Date, the
Company/Chairman will disregard such form or notice and notify the relevant Account Holder that such
form or notice is ineffective and the Noteholder or its proxy will not be entitled to vote at the Scheme
Meeting unless so admitted to vote at the discretion of the Chairman/Scheme Manager.

Confirmations

By submitting a Voting Instruction Form to the Company, a Noteholder and/or an Account Holder as the

case may be is deemed to represent, warrant and undertake to the Company, the Chairman and the

proposed Scheme Manager as at the Voting Instruction Form Submission Date, as the case may be,

that:

€) it has received and reviewed the Scheme Document and all other information as it deems
necessary or appropriate in order to make its decision and has undertaken an appropriate
analysis of the implications of the Scheme, without reliance on the Company and/or the
Chairman;

(b) it accepts the terms, conditions, risks and other conditions of the Scheme, and the offer and
distribution restrictions, all as described in the Scheme Document;

(c) the Notes are, at the time of the submission of the Voting Instruction Form, and will continue to
be held by it through the CDP, until the terms of the Scheme which are applicable to the
Noteholders are completed;

(d) in respect of interest in the Notes held through CDP, the relevant Notes have been blocked in
the securities account to which such Notes are credited in CDP with effect from the submission
of the Voting Instruction Form until the terms of the Scheme which are applicable to the
Noteholders are completed;

(e) the submission of the Voting Instruction Form is made in compliance with all laws and
regulations of its jurisdiction of incorporation or residence; it has obtained all requisite
governmental, exchange control or other required consents; complied with all requisite
formalities; and paid any issue, transfer or other taxes or requisite payments due from it in each
respect in connection with any offer or acceptance in any jurisdiction and that it has not taken
or omitted to take any action in breach of the terms of the Scheme or which will or may result
in the Company, the Scheme Manager, the Chairman, or any other person acting in breach of
the legal or regulatory requirements of any jurisdiction in connection with the Scheme;
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® any personal data of any individual provided has been obtained with such individual's consent
and hereby consents on behalf of such individual to the collection, use and disclosure of his
personal data by the Company, the Scheme Manager, Chairman and the Account Holders (who
are not Noteholders) and any of their respective officers, in each case, in accordance with the
provisions of the Singapore Personal Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26 of 2012) and any
consent given hereunder in relation to personal data shall survive death, incapacity, bankruptcy
or insolvency of any such individual and the termination or expiration of the Scheme. For the
purposes hereunder, “personal data” has the meaning ascribed to it in the Singapore Personal
Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26 of 2012);

(9) upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Scheme, upon the completion of the terms
of the Scheme applicable to it, it renounces all right, title and interest in and to all such Notes
and waives and releases any rights or claims it may have against the Company, the Scheme
Manager and the Noteholders’ Meeting Agent with respect to any such Notes and the Scheme;

(h) upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Scheme, it agrees to ratify and confirm each
and every act or thing that may be done or effected by the Company, or by any person
nominated by the Company in the proper exercise of his or her powers and/or authority
hereunder;

0] upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Scheme, upon the completion of the terms
of the Scheme applicable to it, it agrees to do all such acts and things as shall be necessary
and execute any additional documents deemed by the Company to be desirable, to cancel the
relevant Notes;

)] all authority conferred or agreed to be conferred pursuant to its acknowledgements,
agreements, representations, warranties and undertakings, and all of its obligations shall be
binding upon its successors, assigns, heirs, executors, trustees in bankruptcy and legal
representatives, and shall not be affected by, and shall survive, its death or incapacity;

(k) no information has been provided to it by the Company, the Scheme Manager and the
Chairman, or any of their respective directors or employees as applicable, with regard to the
tax consequences for Noteholders pursuant to the Scheme and it acknowledges that it is solely
liable for any taxes and similar or related payments imposed on it under the laws of any
applicable jurisdiction as a result of the Scheme and agrees that it will not and does not have
any right of recourse (whether by way of reimbursement, indemnity or otherwise) against the
Company, the Scheme Manger, the Chairman, or any of their respective directors or
employees, as applicable, or any other person in respect of such taxes and payments; and

() it is not a person to whom it is unlawful to make an invitation pursuant to the Scheme under
applicable securities laws and it has (before submitting, or arranging for the submission on its
behalf, as the case may be, the Voting Instruction Form with respect to its Notes) complied with
all laws and regulations applicable to it for the purposes of its participation in the Scheme.

By submitting a Voting Instruction Form to the Company, a Noteholder acknowledges that all authority
conferred or agreed to be conferred pursuant to these representations, warranties and undertakings
and every obligation of such Noteholder and the tenders given by such Noteholder and shall not be
affected by, and shall survive, the death or incapacity of such Noteholder.

Failure to submit a Voting Instruction Form

Save as the Chairman or the Scheme Manager (as may be applicable) may otherwise permit in his
absolute discretion, any Noteholder who fails to submit a Voting Instruction Form in accordance with
the directions set herein: (a) will not be entitled to vote at the Scheme Meeting or receive distributions,
payments or benefits or vote at any General Meeting under the Scheme; and (b) will, nonetheless, have
its claim waived, released, discharged and extinguished and will no longer have any rights, interests
and claims whatsoever against the Company in respect of such Claim in the event that the Scheme
becomes effective.

Failure to specify a valid e-mail address in the Voting Instruction Form
Given that the Scheme Meeting is to be held via Video-Conference, save as the Chairman may
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otherwise permit in his absolute discretion, any Noteholder who fails to provide a valid e-mail
address (be it for the Noteholder or the proxy, where applicable) in Voting Instruction Form will
not be entitled to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting.

Irregularities
All questions as to the validity, form and eligibility (including the time of receipt) of any Voting Instruction

Form or revocation or revision thereof or submission of any Voting Instruction Form will be determined
by the Company in its sole discretion, which determination shall be final and binding. The Company
reserves the absolute right to reject any and all Voting Instruction Form not in a form which that is, in
the opinion of the Company, acceptable. The Company also reserves the absolute right to waive defects
in any Voting Instruction Form with regard to any Notes. None of the Company, the Scheme Manager,
the Chairman, any of their respective affiliates, directors or employees or any other person shall be
under any duty to give notification of any defects or irregularities in such Voting Instruction Form, nor
shall any of such entities or persons incur any liability in connection with such irregularities or for failure
to give such notification.
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FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)
(the “Company”)

OTHER CREDITORS’ PROOF OF DEBT
For the Scheme Meeting convened pursuant to
the Order of Court dated 3 February 2021 made in HC/OS 32/2021
and the Scheme

1 Case Number 2 Name of Company

| HC/OS 32/2021 | FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

3 Particulars Of Scheme Creditor Claiming Debt

Name of

IC/Passport No/Company/Business Registration No.:

Postal Address (please see note a):

Scheme Creditor:

Fax No.:

Contact Nos. (Tel/HP):
E-mail Address (please see note k):
Bank Name (please see note b):
Bank Account No. (please see note b):

Name of Account Holder (please see note b):

Name of Securities Account (please see note c¢):

Securities Account No. (please see note c):

4 Particulars Of Claim as at the Ascertainment Date

Date
Debt
Incurred

Details of Debt (Please see notes Currency Amount ($)
d, e &f)
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Total Amount Of Debt Claimed (in Figures):

Total Amount Of Debt Claimed (in Words):

5 Security Held (Please see note g)

Brief Description & Value of Securities as at the Ascertainment Date:

6 Particulars Of Person Authorised To Complete This Proof Of Debt Form
(If same as in box 3 above, please indicate "see box 3 above")

Name:

Fax No.:

NRIC No./Passport No.:

Relationship to Scheme Creditor:
(State whether director | employee | solicitors | accountant, etc)

Name of Company/Firm:
(Where applicable)

Contact Nos. (Tel/HP):

E-mail address:

7 Signature of Scheme Creditor/Person Authorised To Complete This Proof Of Debt Form

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.3

7.1 1do solemnly and sincerely declare that:

to the best of my knowledge and belief, the Company owes the Scheme Creditor
the amount claimed in box 4 above;

neither the Scheme Creditor, nor any person by the order and for the use of the
Scheme Creditor, has to my knowledge and belief received any manner of
satisfaction or security for the amount or any part of the amount referred to in box
4, save and except as set out in box 5 to this Proof of Debt;

the Scheme Creditor that submits this Proof of Debt represents, warrants and
undertakes to the Company, the Chairman and the Scheme Manager that any
personal data of any individual provided has been obtained with such individual’s
consent and hereby consents on behalf of such individual to the collection, use and
disclosure of his/her personal data by the Company, the Chairman and the Scheme
Manager (or their agents), in each case, in accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Personal Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26 of 2012). Any consent given
hereunder in relation to personal data shall survive death, incapacity, bankruptcy
or insolvency of any such individual and the termination or expiration of the
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Scheme. For the purposes hereunder, “personal data” has the meaning ascribed
to it in the Singapore Personal Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26 of 2012);

7.1.4 | am duly authorised by the Scheme Creditor to make this statutory declaration, that
it is within my own knowledge that the debt declared in this statutory declaration
was incurred for the consideration stated, and that the debt, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, still remains unpaid and unsatisfied (Please see note h).

7.2 And | make this solemn declaration by virtue of the provisions of the Oaths and Declarations
Act (Cap. 211), and subject to the penalties provided by that Act for the making of false
statements in statutory declarations, conscientiously believing the statements contained in
this declaration to be true in every particular.

Declared at .........ccccvveiieiei i )
this coi e day of ) SIgNAtUIe: ..ovvveeeee e,
............................................. 2021 )

a Please inform the Company in the event of any change in address.

b. If a Scheme Creditor wishes to receive any distributions to be made under the Scheme by way of bank
transfer, please provide the relevant bank account details to which payment should be made.

c. Please provide details of a valid Securities Account maintained by a Depositor with the CDP for the
purpose of receiving distribution of the Scheme Shares pursuant to the Scheme. If a Scheme Creditor
does not have a Securities Account maintained by a Depositor with the CDP as at the Proof of Debt
Submission Date, the Scheme Creditor may provide the Company with details of a valid Securities
Account within 3 Business Days of the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme) of the Scheme.

d. Examples of Debts are:
- Goods Supplied - Services Rendered -GST - Others (please specify)
- Wages and Salaries - Personal Loan - Overdratft facilities
- Income Tax - Property Tax - CPF
e. Please attach copies of documents substantiating the debt. The onus is upon the Scheme Creditor to

prove the debt.

f. For claims made by an authorised person on behalf of a group of workmen and others employed by
the company, please provide a schedule reflecting the name, identification/passport no., address, debt
description, period for which wages are due and the amount due, for each individual
workman/employee.

g. This section is intended to apply to the Lenders. Scheme Creditors who are not Lenders may indicate “Nil”
under this section if that Scheme Creditor does not hold any security (including any third party security) in
respect of its Claim. A Lender is required to provide details of all securities held by the Lender, including
third party securities. If a Lender wishes to assert a different security value than that based on the Valuation
Report on the Vessels of the Group, and the market value of the CHO shares as at Ascertainment Date,
the Lender shall annex all relevant supporting documents to this Proof of Debt.

h. If this proof is made by a Scheme Creditor in his/her individual capacity, delete paragraph 7.1.4 in box
7 above.

i The Scheme Creditor that submits this Proof of Debt represents, warrants and undertakes to the

Company, the Chairman and the Scheme Manager that any personal data of any individual provided has
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been obtained with such individual's consent and hereby consents on behalf of such individual to the
collection, use and disclosure of his personal data by the Company, the Chairman and the Scheme
Manager (and any of their respective officers), in each case, in accordance with the provisions of the
Personal Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26 of 2012). Any consent given hereunder in relation to personal
data shall survive death, incapacity, bankruptcy or insolvency of any such individual and the termination
or expiration of the Scheme. For the purposes hereunder, “personal data” has the meaning ascribed to it
by the Personal Data Protection Act 2012 (No. 26 of 2012).

Unless expressly stated otherwise, all capitalised terms used herein shall bear the same meanings as
ascribed under the Scheme proposed by the Company pursuant to HC/OS 32/2021.

Given that the Scheme Meeting is to be held via Video-Conference, save as the Chairman may
otherwise permitin his absolute discretion, a Scheme Creditor will not be entitled to attend and
vote at the Scheme Meeting personally if any Scheme Creditor fails to provide a valid e-mail

address.



APPENDIX E = PROXY FORM

FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Singapore UEN No. 200403817G)

OTHER CREDITORS’ PROXY FORM
For the Scheme Meeting convened pursuant to
the Order of Court dated 3 February 2021 made in HC/OS 32/2021

I/We, [see note 1], of

[see note 2]

being a Scheme Creditor (as defined in the Scheme) of Falcon Energy Group Limited (Singapore UEN
No. 200403817G) (the “Company”), HEREBY APPOINT
[see note 3] holder of identity

card/passport  number and whose e-mail address is

[see note 4] or failing him/her,

[see note 5] holder of identity

card/passport  number and whose e-mail address is

[see note 6], as my/our proxy to vote

for me/ us and on my/our behalf at the Lenders’ Scheme Meeting / Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme
Meeting / Associated Creditors' Scheme Meeting [see note 7] (as defined in the Scheme referred to
below) of the Company which will be held on 30 April 2021 at 9.30AM (Singapore time) (the “Lenders'
Scheme Meeting”) / 30 April 2021 at 10.30AM (Singapore time) (the “Unsecured Creditors’
Scheme Meeting”) / 30 April 2021 at 12.00PM (Singapore time) (the “Associated Creditors’
Scheme Meeting”) via Video-Conference (unless otherwise notified by the Company) or at any
adjournment of the said meeting, for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving the matters
set out in the notice convening the Scheme Meeting, and at such meeting to vote for/against [see note
8] (with or without modification) the Scheme of Arrangement dated 10 February 2021 (the “Scheme”)
proposed to be made pursuant to section 210 of the Companies Act (Cap. 50) between the Company

and the Scheme Creditors.

Dated this day of 2021.

Authorised signature of Scheme Creditor:

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ THE NOTES BELOW CAREFULLY BEFORE COMPLETING THE
PROXY FORM

Notes:
1. Insert full name of Scheme Creditor.
2. Insert postal address of Scheme Creditor.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Insert full name of person to be appointed as proxy. A Scheme Creditor may appoint only a natural person
(including the Chairman of the Scheme Meeting) as a proxy, and may appoint only one such person as
proxy. If no person is named as proxy, the Chairman of the Scheme Meeting shall, by default, be appointed
proxy for the purposes of this proxy form.

Insert a valid e-mail address of the person to be appointed as proxy. Given that the Scheme
Meeting is to be held via Video-Conference, save as the Chairman may otherwise permit in his
absolute discretion, the nominated proxy (who is not the Chairman) will not be entitled to attend
and vote at the Scheme Meeting if any Scheme Creditor fails to provide a valid e-mail address for
the nominated proxy.

A Scheme Creditor may nominate one natural person (including the Chairman of the Scheme Meeting)
as an alternate proxy. Any Scheme Creditor who wishes to appoint the Chairman of the Scheme as
alternate proxy should insert the words “the Chairman”.

Insert a valid e-mail address of the person to be appointed as alternate proxy. Given that the
Scheme Meeting is to be held via Video-Conference, save as the Chairman may otherwise permit
in his absolute discretion, the nominated alternate proxy (who is not the Chairman) will not be
entitled to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting if any Scheme Creditor fails to provide a valid
e-mail address for the nominated proxy.

A Lender who is also an Unsecured Creditor may appoint different proxies for the Lenders’ Scheme
Meeting and the Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme Meeting by submitting separate Proxy Forms for each
meeting and deleting the reference above to the inapplicable Scheme Meeting (the “Deleted Scheme
Meeting”). If a Lender only submits one Proxy Form without deleting the reference to either the Lenders’
Scheme Meeting or the Unsecured Creditors’ Scheme Meeting, the Lender shall be deemed to have
appointed the same proxy for both meetings. If a Lender who is also an Unsecured Creditor only submits
one Proxy Form and deletes the reference to either the Lenders’ Scheme Meeting or the Unsecured
Creditors’ Scheme Meeting without providing a separate Proxy Form for the Deleted Scheme Meeting,
the Lender shall be deemed to have not appointed a proxy for the Deleted Scheme Meeting.

If you wish your proxy (including any alternate proxy) to approve the Scheme, please strike out the word
“against” from this proxy form. If you do not wish your proxy (including any alternate proxy) to approve the
Scheme, please strike out the word “for” from this proxy form. If neither the word “for” nor the word
“against” is struck out from this proxy form, your proxy shall be deemed to be duly authorised to vote either
“for” or “against” the Scheme at his/her discretion at the Scheme Meeting.

The person who is appointed as a proxy (or alternate proxy) need not be a Scheme Creditor but must
attend the Scheme Meeting in person to represent the appointor.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the office of the Company at 10 Raeburn Park
#01-33B Singapore 088702 (Attention: Ms Tan Sooh Whye / Ms Christina Peh) or submitted via e-mail to
scheme@feg.com.sg by no later than 10:00AM on 27 April 2021.

Where the Scheme Creditor is a natural person, the instrument appointing a proxy must be under the
hand of the appointor or under the hand of his duly authorised attorney. Where the Scheme Creditor is a
corporation, the instrument appointing a proxy must have the common seal of the corporation affixed
thereto or be executed under the hand of the corporation’s duly authorised signatory. If the corporation
does not have a common seal, the instrument appointing a proxy must be executed in the manner set out
in the corporation’s constitution for the execution of documents as a deed. In the case of a proxy executed
by a Scheme Creditor’s duly authorised signatory, sufficient evidence of the signatory's due authority must
accompany the proxy form and be deposited together therewith before the time stipulated above.

A Scheme Creditor which is a corporation may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing
organ such persons as it thinks fit to act as its representative in accordance with its corporate constitution.

Any alteration made to this proxy form must be initialed by the person who signs it.
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14.

15.

The Chairman of the Scheme Meeting shall be entitled to reject any instrument appointing a proxy if it is
incomplete, illegible, fails to comply with these notes or where the true intentions of the appointor are not
ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy.

The Scheme Creditor that submits this Proof of Debt represents, warrants and undertakes to the Company,
the Chairman and the Scheme Manager that any personal data of any individual provided has been obtained
with such individual's consent and hereby consents on behalf of such individual to the collection, use and
disclosure of his personal data by the Company, the Chairman and the Scheme Manager (and any of their
respective officers), in each case, in accordance with the provisions of the Personal Data Protection Act 2012
(No. 26 of 2012). Any consent given hereunder in relation to personal data shall survive death, incapacity,
bankruptcy or insolvency of any such individual and the termination or expiration of the Scheme. For the
purposes hereunder, “personal data” has the meaning ascribed to it by the Personal Data Protection Act 2012
(No. 26 of 2012).
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'OUR OBJECTIVE

To be“a renowned international provider:
hore oli & gas products and services,
ind o ‘enhance sharéhoider value in afi our
usiness activities in the energy industry.

-;Fatcon Energy Group Limited: (FEG) |s an'
'_estabhshed player in the ozl and gas mdusmj
providing a spectrum of services o global
oil: companies ‘and * contractors, from - the
:Iﬂltlal exploration stage to productidn and
'.Zpostproductlon stage, The Marine Division
"operates a fleet of offshore support vessels
and . ccommodatlon ‘work barges, mainly
.for. the production phase of oif and gas
‘projects. The Oilfield and Drilling Services
Bivision complements the Marine Division by .
providing -agencies, logistics, procurement,
- general support and drilling services to a wide
) customer base. The Ollfi&%d Projects Division
executes various projects for oil- compames.

Resources. Dmsaon taps into the energy
‘resource ; sector to carry out coal mining and




CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE AND BUSINESS REVIEW

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

b am pleased to present o you, the Annual Report
of Falcon Energy Group Limited (“the Group”, “the
Company”, or “FEG") for the financial year ended june 30,
2018 {*FY2018").

The operating environment for the offshore support
vessels and oilfield services business will continue to
be challenging. The offshore support vessel (“OSV")
market continues to suffer from low rates due to intense
competition and low margins, The oilfield services market
remains lacklustre due to reductions in CAPEX and
OPEX by the oll and gas companies. This new normal is
expected to persist for the near term, despite crude oil
prices having risen above 2014 lows. However, the Group
continues to work towards its abjective to he a leaner,
nimbler, and more resilient entity that will be able to
respond and adapt o fast-changing market conditions in
the protracted ail and gas industry downturn,

During  FY2018, there were several corporate
developments which, in the opinion of the Board, will help
to strengthen the financial position of the Company and
enhance its resifience. The corporate developments are
detailed under "Corporate Developments” section in the
latter part of my Chairman’s Message. In the meanwhile,
the Group continues to work with its principal lenders in
refation to the restructuring of its debt obligations and
expects Lo complete the restructuring exercise in the
near future,

i é The operating environment for the offshore support
vessels and oilfield services business will continue to
be challenging. The offshore support vessel (“OSV”)
market continues 1o suffer from low rates due to intense
competition and low margins. The oilfield services.

markel remains lacklustre due to reductaons in CAPEX

The Group will continue to exercise strict financial
discipline and seek additional ways to maximize the
operational efficiency of Hs fleet and increase the
utilization rate. Business development activities wifl be
focused on geographical areas and niches in the Q5V and
oilfield services markets which have shown increased
activities, and i which the Group has competitive
advantage,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE AND INCOME

The Group recorded a decrease in revenue of US$62.28
million or 58.3% from US$106.82 million in FY2017
to US$44.54 million in FY2018, The Marine Bivision's
revenue decreased by US$14.62 million to US$29.86
million in FY2018, mainly as a result of lower deployment
rate of the vessels as well as decrease in charter rates,
Qilfield & Drilling Services Division's revenue decreased
by US$45.47 million to US5$8,67 millien in FY2018, due
to a lower volume of works, The Group's average gross
profit margin reduced from 10.4% in FY2017 to & gross
loss margin of 21.4% in FY2018 mainly due to low vessel
deployment rate in Marine Division during the financial
year.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

INCOME STATEMENT

V20160 . FY20150
303,293 342,441 350,788
60,1997 51,308 117,015
{Loss)y/Profit Before Tax 59,305 30,860 108,241
- LossyProfit AfterTax . ,681) 1552007 10242
(Loss)/Profit After Tax o (76.437) (121,838 39,821 22687 60,768

{after Non- comrollmg mterests)

Revenue

Gross {Loss}}Proﬁt

Gross (Loss)/Profit Margin’ - __ @14% U 199% n 15.0% .
(Loss)Profit Before Tax Margin (209.8)% (162, 7)% 19.7% 3.0% 30.9%
- (LossyPrafit After Tax Margin C Tz SR 182 I g 29.19%"
(Loss)/Profit After Tax Margin 171.6%  (114.1)% 13.1% 6.6% 17.3%

fafter Non-controlling interests)
(LPSY/EPS Basic {US cents). (9.18) (15,10} 0 527 7:45:
(LPSY/EPS Diluted (US cents) (15.10) 4.92 2.77 7.45

(BUGSSH  B09460 - 820248 815SB1
806,854 809,460 820248 815581

Welghted Average Number of Shar
Weighted Average Number of Shares for LPS {'000)

Motes:
(1) FY2018, FY2017, FY2015 and Fy2014: 12 months audited
{2) F¥2016: 15 months audited {1 April 2015 to June 30 2016)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

195,308 112,383
171,201 348325
366,509

Currernt A%ets

Non- Current Assets
Total Assets

MNon- Current Llabliitzes

62, 790
Total Llabmt:es

269,495

Net Current {L|ab|E|tzes}!A<‘.sets {11,397) (116,121} 14,392 35,293

Net Assets _ b SN 97014 188912 33847 0. 310128 25972
Equary attributalile to owners of the Compaﬁy 55,460 130,374 282122 252,365 241,765
 NAV P Share (US Cents): REEN 33 646 3495 71 3125 2957
Total Debt - 167474 172,608 206215 380,116 178170
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents < 4576 10.848° - 26484 134047 . 46928
Total Number of Shares (000) 876,631 806631 807,442 809497 817596
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SEGMENTAL REVENUE

Marine

Oilfield and Drilling Services : indonesia L ona

Oilfield Projects Singapore 15.34

Resources - Middle a5t L 24

Total Mexico 0.67
‘Restof theWorld - 582 . - 768
Total ' 4454  106.82

BY BUSINESS (US$'M)

0.91

867 N 54.14

Bl Marine 8 Oilfiald and Drilling Services Oiifield Projects Resources

i BY GEOGRAPHICAL (USS'M}

5,82 1.08 7.68

0.67 . 8.43
1.24 '

11.82

FY2017

15.34

28,28

4 89 China # Indonesia B Mexico

¥4 Singapore Middle East B Rest of the World
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TAN PONG TYEA
Chairman and Chief Execurive Officer

Mr Tan Pong Tysa became the
Chairman and CEO of Falcon Energy
Group Limited in May 2006 after
Ruben Capital Ventures Limited
bought over the majority stake in
the company, He was last re-elected
on December 29, 72017, C_urrently,
he is_ also the Managing:Director
of Oiifield Services Company Ltd
[OSCL) His focus now is to explore

c&s industry, parii
s of owning, man

LIEN KAIT LORNG
MNon-Executive and Lead independent Director

Mr Lien Kait Long was appointed as
an Independent Director of Falcon
Energy Group timited in October
2004 and was last re-elected on
October 27, 2016, He has exiensive
experience in accounting and finance,

- corporate management and business

investments. He __a'é' held a number
of senior managerment positions and
executlve dlrectorshlps in wvarious
vivate | corporations
Hong Kong arad'-

MAK YEN-CHEN ANDREW
Non-Executive and indepeitdent Director

Mr Mak Yen-Chen Andrew was
appointed 3  Non-Exequtive  and
independent Director of Falcon
Energy Group timited in March
2014 and was last re-elected on
Qctober 27, 2016. He is a practising
lawyer with ‘more ‘than 22 years

“experience in ‘legal practice. He is
" currently a° consultant with  Fortis

CMr Mak is an
or of Leader
t hnelogies Limited
1 sted on the Main Board
1), Far East Group Limited
; ||sted ‘on the Catalist
SGX 5Ty and China Jishan
injted. {a ‘company -listed
Board of the SGX-ST). He
d the Public Service Medal
e Premdent of Slngapme




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CAI WENXING
Exectrtive Director

Mr Cai Wenxing was appointed
as  Executive Director In July
2006 and was last re-elected on
December 29, 2017, He s
responsible  for overseeing the
business operations of the Qilfield
Services, Qilfield Projects and Drilling
" Services Divisions for Falcon Energy

Group Uimited. 'His role includes

the “exploration of -pew business
[ErE s :

TAN SOOH WHYE
Afternate Director

Ms Tan Scoh Whye was appeinted
as Alternate Director to Mr Tan Pong
Tyea in july 2006, She is currently
a director of Energlan Pte ttd and
Ruben Capital Verture Ltd. She
is responsible for the treasury,

administative and hurnan’ resource-
for FEG group of Companiés and
has been with the Group for:over 10.

CAL WENTING
Afterrate Director

Ms Cai Wenting was appointed as
Alterpate Director to Mr Cal Wenxing
in July 2006, She is currently a diractor
of Terasa-Star International Shipping
Pte Ltd and Longzhu Oilfield Services
{5} Pte Lid, where she is responsibie
for "the "business operations and

profitability. She graduated with 2
Master of Business Administration

he University of South Australia,
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BOARD GF DIRECTORS

TAN PONG TYEA

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
CAI WENXING

Executive Direclor

LIEN KAFT LONG
Mon-Executive and Lead
independent Director

MAK YEN-CHEN ANDREW
Non-Executive and Independent Director

TAN SOOH WHYE
Afternate to Tan Pong Tyea

CAI WENTING
Alternate to Cai Wenxing

AUDIT COMMITTEE

‘LIEN KAIT LONG
Chairman

MAK YEN-CHEN ANDREW

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
LIEN KAIT LONG
TAN PONG TYEA

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
MAK YEN-CHEN ANDREW
Chairman

LIEN KAIT LONG

COMPANY SECRETARIES
LEM MEE FUN
PEH LE] ENG

REGISTERED OFFICE

10 Anson Road

#33-15 International Plaza
Singapore 079903

Tek (A5) G538 7177

Fax: (65) 6538 7188

Email: admin@feg.com.sg

Website: www. falconenergy,com.sg
Company Registration Number;
200403817G

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SHARE REGISTRAR

RHT Corporate Adwisory Pte. Lid,
9 Raffles Place #29-01

Republic Plaza Tower 1
Singapore 048619

AUDITORS

DELOITYE & TOUCHE LLP

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

6 Shenton Way

#33-00 OUE Downtown Two
Singapore 068809
Partner-in-charge: Chua How Kiat
{Appointed with effect from financial
year ended March 31, 2014)

INVESTOR RELATIONS
WONG SIEW LU

Tel: {65) 6538 7177

Email; stwong@feg.com sg

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

OVERSEA-CHENESE BANKING
CORPORATION LIMITED

63 Chulia Street

#02-00 OCBC Centre East
Singapore 049514

CIMB BANK

50 Raffles Place

#09-01 Singapore Land Tower
Singapore 048623
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REPORT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Falcon Energy Group Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) recognise the importance of,
and are committed Lo, maintaining good standards of corporate governance so as to enhance corporate transparency
and accourtability and protect the interests of shareholders,

As the Company's shares sre listed on the Main Board of the Singapare Exchange Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-5T"},
the Company seeks to comply with the listing ruies of the SGX-5T as prescribed in the Listing Manual of the SGX-5T
(“Listing Rules™ and is guided in its corporate governance practices by the revised Code of Corporate Governance issued
in 2012 ("Code").

The Board of Directors ("Board™ is pleased to outline the main corporate governance framework and practices of the
Company in this report, with specific reference made to each of the principles set out in the Code. This report describes
the Company's corporate governance practices that were in place throughout the financial year ended 30 june 2018.
Other than deviations which are explained in this report, the Company has generally adhered to the principles and
guidelines set out in the Code.

(A) BOARD MATTERS
Principle 1: The Board’s Conduct of Affairs
Role of the Board of Directors

The Company is headed by an effective Board to lead and control the Company. The Board comprises
experienced individuals from varied backgrounds with the refevant skills and core competencies to enable them
to collectively and effectively contribute to the Company. A batanced mix of executive and non-executive, and
independent and non-independent, directors forms the Board, Each member of the Board is expected to act in
good faith and has a fiduciary duty to discharge his or her duties and responsibilities in the best interes{s of the
Comparny at all times.

The Board's primary role is to protect and enhance fong-term shareholder value, it sets the overali strategy for
the Group and supervises the management. To fulfil this role, the Board is responsible for the overall corporate
governance, strategic direction, formulation of polices and overseeing the investment and business of the Group.
This includes the Company's compliance with laws and regulatiens that are relevant to the business, establishing
goals and monitoring the managernent's performance in achieving these goats.,

The Company has established financial autherisation and approval limits for operating and capital expenditure,
the procurement of goods and services, and the acquisition and disposal of investments. Apart from its
fiduciary duties and statutory responsibilities, the Board evaluates and approves important matters such
as material acquisitions and disposal of assets, financial plans, capital expenditures, and major funding and
investments proposals, It also reviews and approves the financial statements and annual reports and authorises
announcements of financial results to be issued.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and running of the Company to the management headed
by the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ™), Mr Tan Pong Tyea, who is involved in the supervision of the management
of the Group's eperations.

Board Processes

To assist in the execution of its respensibilities, the Board has established a number of Board committees
including an Audit Committee ("AC"), a Nominating Cammittee ("NC*) and a Remuneration Committee ("RC").
These committees function within clearly defined terms of reference and operating procedures, which are
reviewed on a regular basis, The effectiveness of each committee is also constantly monitored. The Board
accepts that white these Board committees have the autharity to examine particular issues and will report back
to the Board with their decisions and/for recommendations, the ultimate responsibility on all matters lies with the
Board.
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The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the financial year ended 30 june 2018 and
the attendance of each director where relevant are as follows:

Audit Nominating Remuneration
Types of Meetings Beard Committee Committee Committee
Me.of | No.of | No.of | No.of | Ne.of | No.of | No. of | No. of

Meetings | Meetings| Meetings | Meetings | Meetings { Meetings | Meetings|Meetings
Names of Directors Held |Attended| Heid [Attended| Held |Attended| Held |Attended
Tan Pong Tyea 5 4 - - 1 1 - -
(Alternate : Tan Sooh Whye)
Cai Wenxing 5 2 - - - - - -
{(Alternate : Cai Wenting)
Lien Kait Long : 5 5 4 4 1 1 1 1
Mak Yen-Chen Andrew 5 5 4 4 - - 1 1
Limn Kuan Meng® 1 1 1 1 1 t 1 1

MNotes:-

& Refers Lo meetings held/atiended white each Director was in office.

@ Mr Lim Kuan Meang resigned on 1 Nov 2017,
Directors’ Meetings Held During the Financial Year

The Board reets at least four times in a year and holds spedial meetings at such other times as may be
necessary to address any ad hoc significant matters. Matters before the Board are diligently deliberated by the
Board to ensure that the interests of the Company are protected. Meetings via telephone or videoconference
are permitted under the Company's Constitution. In between Board meetings, important matters are discussed
in person or via telephone and are tabled for Board decision via circulating resolutions in writing, Supporting
memorandum or papers are circulated to the directors where relevant.

Training

The Company recognises the importance of appropriate training for its directors. Newly-appointed directors will
be given briefings and orientation on the business activities of the Group and its strategic directions, as well as
their duties and responsibilities as divectors. The current directors have been made aware of and are familiar
with their duties and obligations. The current directors will also be briefed from time to time gn industry trends/
issues, regulatory changes which have an important bearing on the Company and the directors’ obligations
towards the Company, and financial reporting standards. The Company does not provide any formal letter to
directars outlining their duties and obligations,

Principle 2: Board Composition and Guidance

The present Board cornprises four directors. Of the four board members, two are Independent Directors. Each of
the two Executive Directors on the Board has also appoinied an alternate director, The directors of the Company
as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors :
Tan Pong Tyea {Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Cai Weanxing {Executive Direclon)

Non-Executive Directors :

Lien Kait Long Head Independent Director)
Mak Yen-Chen Andrew {independent Director)
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Alternote Directors .
Tan Sooh Whye {Alternate Director to Tan Pong Tyea)
Cai Wenting {Alternate Director to Cai Wenxing)

The NC is satisfied that the Board and the Board committees comprised directors who as a group provide an
appropriate balance and diversity of skills, experience, gender, and knowledge of the Group. The Board currently
includes two female Alternate Directars. Beard members have the core competencies, such as accounting of
finance, business or management experience, human resource, legal and industry knowledge experience,
required for the Board and the Board committees to be effective. With Independent Directors making up half of
the Board composition, the Company has adhered to the Code.

The Board is aware of the requirement of the Code for Board committees to consist of at least three members
where (i} all of them must be Non-Executive Directors; and (i) a majority of them must be Independent Directors.
The Board currently has two Independent Directors, namely, Mr Lien Kait Long and Mr Mak Yen-Chen Andrew.
The Company has been looking for a suitable candidate to be appointed as the third independent Director.
However, given the challenges faced by marine, cil and gas industry, in addition to the ongoing restructuring
exercise undertaken by the Group, the Board is of the view that it requires more time to consider the choice of a
suitabe candidate,

The independent Directors have participated actively in the decision-making process during Board deliberations.
Accordingly, there is a strong and independent element on the Board to enable the Board to exercise objective
judgement on corporate affairs independently frem the management.

The Board examines its size with a view towards determining the impact of s effectiveness. The compaosition
of the Board is also reviewed on an annual basis by the NC to ensure that the Board has the appropriate mix of
expertise and experiance.

For the year under review, the NC is of the view that the current Board size is appropriate and effective, taking
into account the nature and scope of the Company's operations. The NC is mindful of the requirement of the
Code to appeint a suitable candidate as the third Independent Director,

independent Members of the Board of Directors

A director who has no relationship with the Group, its related corporations, officers or its shareholders with
shareholdings of 10% or more in the voting shares of the Company that could interfere, or be reasohably
perceived to interfere, with the exercise of his independent business judgrment with a view to the best interests
of the Company, is considered to be independent.

The NC reviews the independence of each director on an annual hasis, and as and when circumstances reguire,
hased on the Code's definiticn of what constitutes an independent Director,

My Lien Kait Long has served as an Independent Director of the Company for more than eleven years since his
initial appointment in 2004, The Board has subjected his independence to a particularly rigorous review.

Taking into the account the views of the NC, the Board concurs that Mr Lien Kait Long has continued to
demonstrate his strong independence in character and judgment in the discharge of his responsibilities as a
director of the Company. He has continued to express his individual viewpoints and sought clarifications as he
deemed required, including through direct access to the employees.

Based on declaration of independence received from Mr Lien Kait Long that he has no association with the
management that could compromise his independence 2nd after taking into account these factors, the Board has
concluded that Mr Lien Kait Long continues (o be considered as an Independent Director notwithstanding that he
has served for more than nine years from his first appointment.

The NC is of the view that the tws independent Directors (who represent half of the Board) are independent and
no individual or smali group of individuals dominates the Board's decision-making process. Nevertheless, the NC
is mindful of the requirement of the Code to appoint a suitable candidate as the third Independent Director as
highlighted above.
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Principle 3: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Group's Chairman and CEO is Mr Tan Pong Tyea. He has in-depth knowledge of the business and aperations
of the Group. The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to adopt a single leadership
structure {.e. where the CEQ and chairman of the Board is the same person), so as to ensure that the decision-
making process of the Graup would not be unnecessarily hindered. Mareover, the scale of the business does
not warrant a meaningful separation of the roles. in addition, in view of Mr Tan's past performance, integrity
and ohjectivity in discharging his responsibilities, the Board fully supports the retention of his role as Executive
Chairman and CEC. In connection therewith, Mr Lien Kait Loeng is the Lead Independent Director and is available
to shareholders where they have concerns which cantact through the normal channets of the Chairman, the CEO
or the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"} has failed to resolve or for which such contact is inappropriate.

As the Chairman and CEQ, Mr Tan Pong Tyea is responsible for, inter ofia, the day-to-day running of the Group
and the exercise of control over the quality, quantity and fimeliness of information flow hetween the Board and
the management. He also schedules Board meetings, oversees the preparation of the agenda for Board meetings
and assists in ensuring compliance with the Group's guidelines on corporate governance. My Tan has played
an instrumental role in develaping the business of the Group and has also provided the Group with strong
leadership and vision.

Although the roles and responsibilities for both the Chairman and CEO are wested in Mr Tan, the Board believes
that there are adequate measures in place against an uneven concentration of power and authority in one
individual, for examgple, alt major decisions made by Mr Tan will he reviewed by the Board. Mr Tan's performance
and appointment to the Board will be reviewed periodically by the NC.

The tndependent Directors led by the tead Independent Director, discuss and/or meet amongst themselves

without the presence of the other Directors where necessary. The Lead Independent Director will also provide
feedback to the Executive Chairman after such discussions/meetings.

Principle 4 ;: Board Membership

Nominating Committee

The NC currently comprises two members, namely, Mr Lien Kait Long and Mr Tan Pong Tyea. Mr Lien Kait
Long, as the Lead Independent Director, currently acts as chairman during NC discussions. The Company is of
the view that it requires more time to consider the choice of a suitable candidate to be appointed as the third
Independent Director, and assume the role of the NC Chairman, given the challenges faced by marine, oil and gas
industry, in addition to the ongoing restructuring exercise undertaken by the Group.

The NC's primary functions are to evaluate and to review nominations for appointment and re-appointment to
the Baard and the various commitiees, to assess the effectiveness of the Board, to nominate any director for re-
election at the AGM, having regard to the director’s contribution and performance, and to determine whether or
not the director s independent.

The NC also determines annually whether a director with multiple board representations and other principal
comrmitments is able to and has adeguately discharge his duties as a director of the Company,

The NC is of the view that it would not be appropriate to set a maximum number of directorships that a director
may hold as the contribution of each director would depend on his individual circumstances, induding whether
he has other principal commitments, full time position and other additional responsibilities. The Board shares
this view.

Under the Company's existing Constitution, at each annuat general meeting ("AGM" of the Company, at least
ane-third of the directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multipte of three, the number nearest to
but not lesser than one-third} shalt retire from office by rotation and subject themselves for re-nomination and
re-election at regular intervals and at least once every three years,
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Newly appointed director(s) shalt hoid office anly until the next AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election
but shall not be taken into account in determining the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at such
meeling,

In the event that the appointment of a new director is required, the NC will seek to identify the competence
required for the Board to fulfil its responsibilities and may engage recruitment consultants or other independent
experts to undertake research on, or assess potential candidates for new positions on the Board.

Each member of the NC shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in respect of the assessment of his
performance or re-nomination as director.

The NC has recommended to the Board the nomination of Mr Lien Kait Long and Mr Mak Yen-Chen Andrew for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board has accepted the NCs recommendation,

Principle 5: Board Performance

The Board believes that Board performance is ultimately reflected in the long-term performance of the Group.
The Board has implemented a process carried out by the NC, for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a
whole, effectiveness of its Beard Cornmittees and the contribution by each individual director to the effectiveness
of the Board on an annual basis. The perfermance evaluation process covers a range of issues including size and
cemposition of the Board and Board Committees, information management, decision-making, processes, risk
and crisis management, communication with Senior Management and stakeholder management. The evaluation
and feedback are then consolidated and presented to the Board for discussion on strengths and weaknesses (0
improve the effectiveness of the Board and its Committees.

For the year under review, a formal assesament of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole was undertaken by
the NC. The NC was of the view that the performance of the Board as a whole was satisfactory,

Principle §: Access to {nformation

Directors are from time to time furnished with detaited information concerning the Group to enable them to be
fully cognizant of the decisions and actions of the Group's executive management. All directors have unrestricted
access to the Company's records and information to enable them to constantly keep track of the Group's
financial position. Detailed Board papers are prepared for each meeting of the Board and are normally circulated
before each meeting. The Board papers include sufficient information from the management on financial,
business and corporate issues to enable the directors to be properly briefed on issues to be considered at Board
meetings. All directors have separate and independent access to all levels of senior executives in the Group and
the Company Secretaries, and are encouraged to speak to other employees to seek additional information if they
S0 reguire.

At least one of the Company Secretaries attends all Board meetings and is responsible for ensuring that
established procedures and all relevant statutes and regulations which are applicable to the Company are
complied with. The appointment and the removal of the Company Secretaries rest with the Board as a whole.

Each director has the right to seek independent legal ard other professional advice, at the Company's expense,

concerning any aspect of the Group's operations or undertakings in order to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
as directors.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS

Remuneration Committee

The RC currently comprises two members, namely, Mr Lien Kait Long and Mr Mak Yen-Chen Andrew. The
Chairman of the RC is Mr Mak Yen-Chen Andrew. The Company is of the view that it reguires more time to
cansider the choice of a suitable candidate to be appointed as the third Independent Director, and assume
the role of the thir¢ RC member, given the challenges faced by marine, oil and gas industry, in addition to the
ongoing restructuring exercise undertaken by the Group.

The primary functions of the RC are to review and recormmend the remuneration packages for the directors, CEQ
and key management personnel, to cover alt aspects of remuneration, inchuding but not mited to director’s fees,
salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-kind, and te implement and administer the Fatcon Energy
Group Employee Share Option Scheme ("Scheme”).

The Scheme was adopted on 28 October 2004 and had lapsed on 27 October 2014, As the Scheme had been
discontinued, no further share options may be offered by the Company. The discontinuance of the Scheme
however does hot affect share options which have heen granted and accepted. Such outstanding share options
remain exercisable until they lapse and become null and void.

In discharging its functions, the RC may, at the Company's expense, obtain such independent legal and other
professional advice as it deems necessary.

No director is involved in determining his own remuneration.

Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration

In setting remuneration packages, the Company takes into account pay and employment conditions within the
same industry and in comparable companies, as well as the Group’s relative performance and the performance
of individual directors.

The RC adopted a director's fee framework in which the non-executive and independent directors will receive
director's fees in accordance with their contributions, taking into account factors such as effort and time spent,
responsibilities of the directors and the need to pay competitive fees to attract, retain and motivate the directors.
Director's fees are recommended by the Board for the approval of the shareholders at the Company's AGM.

The Executive Directors co not receive director's fees, The remuneration for the key management personnel
comprises a basic salary, a henefit component, and a variable component which is the anaual bonus, based on
the performance of the Group as a whole and their individual performance.

The RC reviews the remuneration of executive directors and key management personnel on an annual basis to
ensure that it commensurate with their performance, giving due regard to the financial and commercial health
and business needs of the Group. Their performance is reviewed periodically by the RC and the Board.

The RC is of the view that it is currently not necessary to use contractual provisions to allow the Company to
reclaim incentive companents of remuneration from the Executive Directors and key management personnet in
exceptional circumstances of misstatement of financial statements, or of misconduct resulting in financial loss to
the Company and the Group. Executive Directors owe a fiduciary duty to the Company. The Company should be
able to avail itself 1o remedies against the Executive Directors in the event of such breach of fiduciary duties. The
RC would review such contractual provisions as and when necessary.
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Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration

A breakdown, showng the level and mix of each individual director's remuneration paid for the financial year
ended 30 june 2018 is as follows:

Profit Other Share
Fees Salary™ Bonus Sharing | Benefits®™ | Options Total
% % % % % % %

$$500,000 to 5$750,000
Tan Pong Tyea - g1 - - 9 - 100
Cai Wenxing - 95 5 - - - 100
Below 5%$250,000
Tan Sooh Whye! - 30 & - 14 - 100
Cai Wenting? - 93 7 - - - 100
Lien Kait Long 106G - - - - - 100
Mak Yen-Chen Andrew 100 - - - - - 160
Lim Kuan Meng® 100 - - - - - 100

i Alternate Lo Tan Pong Tyea

h Alternate to Ca Wenxing

i Resigned on 1 Nov 2017

" Salary is inclusive of CPF contribution

w0 Other benefits refer to benefits-in-kind such as car, allowances, club membership, etc. made available to directors as

appropriate.

The rernuneration of each individual executive director and key management personnel (who is not a director
or the CEO) is not disclosed in dollar terms as the remuneration of the executive directors and key management
personnel is a commercially sensitive matter, given that the Company operates in a highly competitive
environment where potential poaching of ernployees by competitors is fairly common.

The remuneration of independent directors comprises only director’s fees.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group for the financial year ended 30 fune 2018 is a5

fallows:
Profit Other Share
Fees Salary® Bonus Sharing | Benefits® | Options Total
% % % % % % %
Below 53250,000
Lam May Yih - 92 7 - - - 100
.| Tang Nee Chiang - 93 7 - - - 100

" safary is inglusive of CPF contribution;

pther benefits refer to allowances, ¢<lub membership, etc. made avallable to Key management personnel as
appropriate.
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As at the date of this Corporate Governarnice Report, there were two key management personnel in the Company.

There were no termination, retirement and post-employment benefits granted to any director or key
management personnel for the financial year ended 30 June 2018,

Remuneration of employee who are immediate family members of a Director or the CEQ

Details of employees whose remuneration exceeds S$50,000 and are immediate faimily members of a director or
the CEC are set out betow:

Remuneration Band Relationship with director or the CEQ
$$150,000 - 53200,000 Wong Cheung Chai
Spouse of Ms Tan Soch Whye, the Alternate Director (o My Tan Pong Tyea

Brother-in-law of Mr Tan Pong Tyea, Chairman and CEQ of the Company

The remuneration paid to the above mentioned employee is determined on the same basis as the rermuneration
of other unrelated employees,

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Principle 10: Accountability

As stated above, the Beard's primary role is to protect and enhance long-term value and returns for the
shareholders. In the discharge of its duties to the shareholders, the Board, when presenting annual financial
statements and guarterly results announcements, seeks to provide the shareholdets with a detailed analysis,
explanation and assessment of the Group's financial position and prospects. The management will provide the
Board with appropriately detalled management accounts of the Group's performance, position and prospects on
a regular basis.

Pringiple 11: Risk Managem ternal Contr:

The Company does not have a risk management committee. However, the Board and the management regularly
review the Group’s businesses and operations to identify areas of business risks and the appropriate measures
to control and mitigate thase risks. The management is accountable to the Board for ensuring the effectiveness
of risk management and adherence to risk appetite limits, The management reviews all significant controf poficies
and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the directors and the AC.

The Board recognizes its respensibilities in ensuring a sound system of internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Company's assets, The Board notes that no system of internal control and
risk rranagement could provide absolute assurance that the Group will not adversely affected by any event that
can be reasonably foreseen. Furthermore, the Board also acknowledges that no system of internal control and
risk management can provide absolute assurance in this regard, or absolute assurance against the occurrence of
material errors, poor judgment in decision-making, human error, losses, fraud or other irregularities.

Fhe AC will:

] satisfy itself that adequate measures are in place to identify and mitigate any material business risks
associated with the Group;

(i)  ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s material conlrols including financial, operating and

compliance controls and risk management, is conducted at least annually. Such reviews can be carried out
by the internal auditors and/or the external auditors; and
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{ii)  ensure that the internal control recommendations made by the internal and external auditors have been
implemented by the management.

Assurance from CEQ and CFO

The Board has received written assurance from the CEQ and the CFG that:

t1) the Group's financial records have been properly maintaired and the financial statements in respect of
financial year ended 30 June 2018 give a true and fair view of the Group’s operations and finances; and

(2} the Group’s risk management and internal control systems {including financial, operational, compliance
and information technology controls) are adequate and effective to address all the risks which may occur
from time to time

Based on the findings by the external and internal auditors and the various management controls put in place

as well as the assurance from the CEQ and the CFO, the Board with the concurrence of the AC is of the opinion

that there are adequate and effective controls in place within the Group addressing financial, operational, and
information technology controls, and risk management policies and systems to meet the needs of the Group,
and provide reasonable {though not absolute} assurance against material financial misstatements and loss,

and safeguard the Group's assets. The management continues to focus on improving the standard of Internal
controls and corporate governance.

Principle 12: Audit Committee

The AC currently comprises two members, namely, Mr Lien Kait Long and Mr Mak Yen-Chen Andrew. The
Chairman of the AC is Mr Lien Kait Long.

The Board is aware of the requirement of the Code for the AC to consist of at least three members where (i) ail of
themn must be Non-Executive Directors; and (i} a majority of them must be Independent Directors. The Company
is of the view that it requires more time to consider the choice of a suitable candidate to be appointed as the
third Independent Director and assume the role of the third AC member, given the challenges faced by marine,
oit and gas industry, in addition to the ongoing restructuring exercise undertaken by the Group.

The Board is of the view that the AC members are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibllities.

The primary functions of the AC are:

i) To review the audit plans of the external and internal auditors;

(i To review the external and internal auditors’ reports;

(i) To review the co-operation given by the Company's officers to the external and internal auditors;

(ivi  To review the finandial statements of the Company and the Group before their submission to the Board;

{) To nominate the external auditors for appointment or re-appointment and approve the terms of
engagement of the external auditors;

fvi}  To review nor-audit services provided by the external auditors to satisfy itself that the nature and extent
of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

(vii)  To review the adeguacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function;
(viliy To evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls, including financial,

operatioral and compliance controls, and risk management, by reviewing written reports from the internal
and external auditors, and the management’s responses and actions to correct any defidiencies;
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(ix}  Ta review the Group's compliance with such functions and duties as may be required under the relevant
statutes or the Listing Manual issued by SGX-ST, and by such amendments made thereto from time to
time; and

(¥ To review interested person transactions as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the 5GX-5T,
Apart from the duties listed above the AC may commission and review the findings of internal investigations
into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of nternal controls or infringement of
any Singapore or other applicable faw, rule or regulation, which has or is likely to have material impact on the
Company's or Group’s operating results and/or financial position.

The AC has been given full access to and has obtained the co-operation of the management. The AC has
reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly.

None of the AC members is a former partner or director of the Company's existing auditing firm within a period
of 12 months nor has any finandial interest in the auditing firm,

Summary of the AC's activities

The AC met four times during the year under review. The CEO, CFO, Company Seeretaries, external and internal
auditors are invited to the meetings, The AC meets annually with the external and internal auditors separately,
without the presence of the management. These meetings enable the external auditors and internal audiors to
raise issues encountered in the course of their work directly to the AC.

The AC reviews the quarterly and full year results announcements before submission to the Board for approval,
The AC also reviews the audit plan and audit findings presented by the external auditors. The external auditors
provide regular updates and briefing to the AC on the changes or amendments to the accounting standards to
enable the members of the AC to keep abreast of such changes and its corresponding impact on the financiai
statements, if any.

The AC has undertaken a review of ali the non-audit setvices provided by the external auditors during the
year under review and is satisfied that such services would not, in the AC's opinion, affect the independence
and ohiectivity of the external auditors, Having satisfied as to the foregoing and that Listing Rule 712 has been
complied with, the AC has recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as external auditors at the
forthcoming AGM.

Both the AC and Board have reviewed the appointment of different auditors for its subsidiaries and significant
associated companies and are satisfied that the appointment of different auditors would not compromise the
standard and effectiveness of the audit of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has complied with Listing
Rule 716,

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Company has adopted a policy and procedure on whistle-blowing as part of the Company's system of
internal contrals. This Is to ensure that arrangements are in place in order to detect and deter any fraud or
deliberate error in the preparation, evaluation, review or audit of any financial statement, financial reports and
records of the Company. The Group provides an avenue for employees ta bring their complaints responsibly, or
1o report any possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters that they may encounter,
to the AC without fear of reprisal,
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Principle 13: Internal Audit

The Group has outsourced its internal audit function to Ernst & Young Advisory Pte Lid ("EY"}. The AC has
reviewed and confirmed that EY is a suitable professional service firm to meet the Company's internal audit
obligations, having regard to the adequacy of resources and experience of the firmm and the assigned engagement
director, nurmber and experience of supervisory and professional staff assigned to internal audits. The internal
auditors are guided by the international Standards for the Professional Practice of internal Auditing issued by the
institute of Internal Auditors.

The aim of the internal audit function is to promote internat control in the Group and to monitor the
performance and effective application of internal audit procedures. The internal auditors plan their internal audit
schedules in consultation with, but independent of, the management and the internal audit plan is submitted to
the AC for approval prior to the commencement of the internal audit. The internal auditors report primarily to
the Chairman of the AC. The AC has reviewed the internal audit report prepared by £Y and will follow up with the
management on the implementation of the recommendations by the internal auditor,

The AC has reviewed and discussed internal audit reports in the course of the financial year ended 30 June
2018, internal audits are conducted based on a rotational internal audit plan that is approved by the AC prior
to the commencement of the outsourced internal audits. The AC will be following up with management on the
implementation of the internal audit recommendations by the internal auditors.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Principles 14; Shareholders rights

The Company is committed to treat all shareholders fairly and equitably to facilitate the exercise of their
ownership rights by providing them with adequate, timely and sufficient information pertaining to the changes of
Group's business which could have a material impact on the Company's share price.

Shareholders are informed of shareholders’ meetings through notices published in the newspapers and
reports or circulars sent to all shareholders. Each item of special business included in the notice of meeting
is accompanted, where appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed resolution. Separate resolutions are
proposed for substantiatly separate issues at the meeting.

Principles 15: Communicatipn with Sharcholders

The Company ensures that shareholders have the opportunity to participate effectively and vote at general
meetings. The Company also ensures that all shareholders, besides exercising their voting rights at the general
meetings convened by the Company, are encouraged to participate actively and also voice their concerns
on any matters relating to the Group. Shareholders are advised to attend the AGM to ensure a high level of
accountabllity and to stay informed of the Group's development.

Disclosure of information

The Company does not practise selective disclosure. In line with continuing disclosure obligations of the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Companies Act {Chapter 50) of Singapore ("Act”), the Board's
policy is that all shareholders should be equally and timely informed of all major developments that impact the
Group.
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Information is communicated to shareholders on a timely basis through:

- annual reports that are prepared and issued to all shareholders. The Board makes every effort (o ensure
that the annual repert incudes all relevant information about the Group, including future developments
and other disclosures required by the Act and Singapere Financial Reporting Standards;

- quarterly financial statements containing a sumrmary of the financial information and affairs of the Group
for the year that are published through the SGXNET and news releases;

- notices and explanatory memaranda for general meetings;

- press and analyst briefings for the Group’s quarterly and full year results as well as other briefings, as
appropriate;

- press releases on major developments of the Group; and

disclosures ta the SGX-5T.
To further enhance its communication with shareholders and the public, the Company's website
hit:/fwwwe falconenergy.com.sg allows the public to access information on the Group directly. In addition, the

Company also has investor relations email addresses available on the Company's website to attend to emails and
requests from shareholders and the public. :

The Group believes in encouraging shareholders’ participation at general meetings. A shareholder who is entitled
to attend and vote may either vote in person through the appointment of one or more proxies (who can either
be named individuals nominated by the shareholder to attend the meeting or the Chairman of the meeting as
the shareholder may select). To facilitate participation by the shareholders, the Company's Constitution allows
a shareholder to appeint not more than two proxies to attend and vote at general meetings. On 3 January 2016,
the legislation was amended, among other things, to ailow certain members, defined as "relevant intermediary”
to attend and participate in general meetings without being constrained by the two-proxy requirement. Relevant
intermediary includes corporations holding licences in providing nominee and custodial services and CPF Board
which purchases shares on behalf of CPF investars. Allowing muitiple proxies for such members will facilitate
indirect investors attending and voting at shareholder meetings and encourage mare active shareholder
participation. Voting in absentia by mail, facsimile or email is currently not permitted to ensure proper
authentication of the identity of shareholders and their voting intent,

Principles 16: Conduct of shareholder meetings

The Board welcomes the views of shareholders an matters affecting the Company, whether at shareholders’
meetings or on an ad hoc basis. The Board believes that general meetings serve as an opportune forum for
shareholders te meet ail the Board members and to interact with therm. The Chairmen of the AC, the RC, and
the NC are available at the meetings to answer those questions relating to the work of these committees. The
external auditors are also present to assist the directors in addressing any relevant queries by the shareholders.

To have greater transparency in the voting process, the Company has adepted the voting of all its resolutions
by elactronic poil at its general meetings. The detailed vating results of each of the resoiutions tabled will be
announced immediately at the meeting. The total numbers of votes cast for or against the resolutions will be afso
announced after the meeting via SGXNet,

The Comnpany Secretary prepares mihutes of general meetings that include substantial and relevant comments

or queries from shareholders relating to the agenda of the meeting, and responses from the Board and
management, and such minutes are available to shareholders upon their request.
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DEALING IN SECURITIES

In line with Listing Rute 1207(19) on Dealings in Securities issued by the SGX-5T. the Group has procedures
in place prohibiting dealings in the Company's shares by its officers while in possession of price sensitive
information and during the period commencing two weeks prior to the announcemery of the Company's
quarterly results and one month prior to the announcement of the Company's full year results. Directors and
executives are also expected to cbserve insider trading laws at all times even when dealing in securities within
permitted trading periods. Employees who attend management committee meetings have to observe the “closed
window” periods.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no material contracts of the Company or its subsidiaries involving the interests of the CEG, directors
or controlling sharehalders during the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Cornpany has established review and approval procedures o ensure that all transactions with interested
persons entered into by the Group are reported in a timely manner to the AC and those transactions are
conducted on an arm's length basis and are not prejudiciat to the interest of the Group and its shareholders.
save for the following interested person transactions as disclosed below, there were no interested person
transactions entered into by the Company for the financial year under review:

Aggregate value of
all interested persen
transactions during the
financial year under Aggregate value of
review (excluding all interested person
transactions less than transactions conducted
$%100,000 and transactions under shareholders’
conducted under mandate pursuant to
shareholders’ mandate | Listing Rule 920 (excluding
pursuant to Listing Rule transactions less than
Name of interested person 920} $$100,000)
Us$'000 US$'000
Cai Wenxing"
Rental of premises 259 -
CDS International Forwarding (Tian}in} Co. Ltd®
Sale of services 176 -
Purchase of services 15 -

Notes :

i Mr Cai Wenxing is a director of the Company.

it Mr Cai Wenxing is a director of the Cormnpany, He holds 70% of the equity interests in CD5 International Forwarding
{Tianjin} Co. Ltd.
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Disclosure on Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance 2012

Guideline

Questions-

‘| How has the Ccnmpanycomplied

General

(a)

(b}

Has the Company compiied with
all the principles and guidelines
of the Code? If not, please state
the specific deviations and the
alternative corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company
in liey of the recommendations in
the Code,

In what respect do these alternative
corporate governance practices
achieve the objectives of the
principles and conform to the
guidelines in the Code?

ta)  The Company has complied with all the principles
and guidelines of the Code, save for the following:

@ Chairman and CEQ

The Chairman and CEQ is Mr Tan Pong
Tyea, whorm has in-depth knowledge of the
business and operations of the Group. The
Board is of the view that it is in the best
interests of the Group to adopt a single
leadership structurg) i.e. where the CEO and
chairman of the Board is the same person), 50
to ensure the decision-making process of the
Group would not be unnecessarily hindered.

» Disclosure of the remuneration of directors
and key management personnel

The Company has not disclosed the exact
details of the remuneration of each individual
directors and key management personnel due
to sensitive pature of such information and a
disclosure of such would be prejudicial 1o the
Company's interests.

——

b} ° Chairman and CED

In connection therewith, the Board
appointed Mr Lien Kait Leong as the lead
independent director, who is available to
the shareholders where they have concerns
which contact through the normal channels
of the Chairman, the CEQ or the CFO has
failed to resolve or for which such contact is
inappropriate.

» Disclosure of the remuneration of directors
and key managernent personnel

The RC review and recommend the
remuneration packages for the directors,
CEO and key management personnel. |t is
to ensure that the remuneration structure is
competitive and sufficient to attract, retain
and rnotivate directors and key management
personnel to run the Company successfully in
order to maximize shareholders' value. The
rmembers of the RC do not participate in any
decisions concerning their own remuneration.

30  Falcon Energy Group Limited | Annuai Report 2018




REPORT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Guideline Ql._l_'._e'_éft'__Ipn_s ‘_H:bw'has the Company complied?

Board Responsibility

Guideline What are the types of material transactions } {a} Please refer to Principle 1 of the Corporate

1.5 which require approval from the Board? Governance Report.

Members of the Board

Guideline [{a) What is the Board's policy with|{a@)  The Board believes in having an appropriate balance

2.6 regard to diversity in identifying and diversity of skills, experience, gender, and
director nominees? knowledge.

b Please state whether the current|(b)  The NC is of the view that the current Board
compositien of the Board provides comprises directors with accounting aor finance,
diversity on each of the following business or management experience, human
- skills, experience, gender and resource, legal and industry knowledge experience.
knowledge of the Company, and The board comprises four directors, two of whom
elaborate with numerical data are independent directors. The Board also ¢onsists
where appropriate. of two fernale Alternate Director.

fs)] What steps has the Board taken |(c) The NC examines the Board size with a view towards
to achieve the balance and determining the impact of its effectiveness. The
diversity necessary to maximize its composition of the Board Is also reviewed on an
effectiveness? annual basis to ensure the Board has appropriate

mix of expertise and experience.
Guideline E} What is the maximum number|(a) The NC and the Board share the view that it would
4.4 of listed company Dboard not be appropriate to set a maximurn number of
representations that the Company directorships that a director may hold.
has prescribed for its directors?
What are the reasons for this
number?

(b} If & maximum number has not been | (b} The reason that a maximum number has not

determined, what are the reasons? been determined is because the contribution
of each director would depend on his individual
circumstances, including whether he has other
principal commitments, full time positions and other
additional responsibilities,

(s} what are the specific considerations | (¢} tn considering the re-appointment of directors,
in deciding on the capacity of the NC determines annually whether a director
directors? with multiple board representations and other

principle commitments is able to and has adeguately
discharge his duties as a director of the Company.
Board Evaluation
Guideline | (a) What was the process upon which | {a} Please refer to the board evaluation process
5.1 the Board reached the conclusion described under the section entitled "Board
on as its performance for the Performance” in the Corporate Governance Report.
financial year?

{b) Has the Board met its performance [ (b}  Yes. The NC has assessed the current Board's

obiectives? performance to-date and is of the wview that
the performance of the Board as a whole was
satisfactory.
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Guideline l Q_qé_ﬁ;tions

! How has the Company complied?

Independence of Directors

the date of his first appointment? i so,
please identify the director and set cut
the Board's reasons for considering him
independent,

Guideline |Doaes the Company comply with|Yes. As the Executive Chairman and the CEO is the same
2.1 the guideline on the proportion of | person, the requirement of the Code that at east half the
independent directors on the Board? If not, | Board comprises independent directors is satisfied as there
please state the reasons for the deviation | are two independent directors on the Board.
and the remedial action taken by the
Company.
Guideline {a) Is there any director who is deemed | (a) MNo
23 to be Independent by the Board,
notwithstanding the existence of a
relationship as stated in the Code
that would otherwise deem him
not to be independent? IF so, please
identify the director and specify the
rature of such refationship,
th) what are the Board's reasons for| (b} Not applicable
considering him independent?
Please provide a detaiied
explanation.
Guideline | Has any independent director served on | Yes. Mr Lien Kait Long has served as an independent
2.4 the Board for more than nine years from | divector of the Company for more than 11 years since his

inittal appointment in 2004,

The Board has subjected his independence to a particularly
rigorous reviewy, Taking into the account the view of the NC,
the Board concurs that Mr Lien Kait Long has continued
to demonstrate his strong independence in ¢haracter
and judgement in the discharge of his responsibilities as
a director of the Company. He has continued to express
his individual viewpoints and sought clarifications as he
deemed required, including through direct access to the
employees.

Based on the declaration of independence received from
Mr Lien Kait Long that he has no association with the
management that could compromise his independence
and after taking into account these factors, the Board
has concluded thai Mr Lien Kait Long continues to be
considered as independent director.

Disclosure on Remuneration

Guideline | Has the Campany disclosed each director’s | The Company has disclosed a breakdown of each director's

9.2 and the CED's ramuneration as well as [ and the CEO's remuneration {in percentage terms) info
2 breakdown (in percentage or dollar | fees, salary, bonus, profit sharing, other benefits, share
termis) into base/fixed salary, variable or | options, but did not disclose the exact details of their
performance- related income/bonuses, | remuneration as it is not the best interest of the Company
benefits in kind, stock options granted, | as such details as sensitive in nature.
share-based incentives and awards, and
other long-term incentives? If not, what are
the reasons for not disclosing so?
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Guideline .| Questions _ " - |'How has the Company complied? .. _ o
Guideline | {a) Has the Company disclosed each [{a) The Company has disclosed a breakdown key
93 key management personnel’s managemeni personnel’'s remuneration (in
remuneration, in  bands of percentage terms) into fees, salary, bonus, profit
S$250,000 or In more detail, as well sharing, other benefits, share options, but did
as a breakdown (in percentage or not disclose in delfar terms as the remuneration
doHar terms) into baseffixed salary, of the execuiive directors and key management
variable or performance-related personnel is a commerdally sensitive matter, glven
income/bonuses, benefits in kind, that the Company operates in a highly competitive
stock options granted, share-based environment where potential poaching of employees
incentives and awards, and other by competitors is fairly common.
long-term incentives? i not, what
are the reasons for not disclosing
507
(%)} Please disclose the aggregate|(b} The Company is of the view not to disclose the
remuneration paid to the top five aggregate remuneration paid to the top two key
key management personnel (who management personnel (who are not directors or
are not directors or the CEO), the CEQY due to sensitive nature of such information.
It is not in the best interest of the Company as
the Industry which the Company operates is in
highly competitive in respect of the recruitment of
experienced executive.
Guideline lis there any employee who is an|Yes. Please refer to the "Remuneration of employees who
9.4 immediate family member of a director | are immediate family members of a Director or the CEO”
or the CEC, and whose remuneration | section in Corporate Governance report.
exceeds 5$50,000 during the year? If so,
please identify the employee and specify
the relationship with the relevant direcior
or the CEQ.
Guideline (a) Please describe how thel{a) Please refer to the section entitled “Level and Mix of
9.6 remuneration received by executive Remuneration” in the Corporate Governance Report.

(b)

(c)

directors and key management
personnel has been determined by
the performance criteria.

What were the performance
conditions used to determine their
entitlement under the short-term
and long-term incentive schemes?

Were all of these perfarmance
conditions met? If not, what were
the reasons?

(b}

Please refer to the section entitled “Level and Mix of
Remuneration” in the Corporate Governance Report.

Please refer ta the section entitled "Leve! and Mix of
Remuneration” in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Guideline |-Que'sti;ons'_:'_' |How has the Company complied? '
Risk Management and Internal Controls
Guideline | What types of information does the|Please refer to the seciion entitled "Access to Information”
6.1 Company provide to independent directors | in the Corporate Governance report.
to enable them to understand its business,
the business and financial environment as
well as the risks faced by the Company?
How freguently is the information
provided?
Guideline | Does the Company have an internal audit |[No. Please refer to the explanation set out under
13.1 function? If not, please explain why. the section entitled "Internal Audit" in the Corporate
Governance report,
Guideline | {a) In relation to the major risks|{a} Please refer o the section entitled “Risk
11.3 faced by the Company, including Management and internal Control” in the Corporate
financial, gperational, compliance, Governance Report.
information technology and
sustainability, please state the
bases for the Board's view on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's internal controls and risk
management systems.
{b) n respect of the past 12 months, [(b)  Yes. Please refer to the section entitled "Risk
: has the Board received assurance Management and Internal Control” in the Corporate
ﬁ from the CEO and the CFO as Governance Report,
well as the internal auditor that
: {t}y the financial records have
: heen properly maintained and
the financial staternents give true
and fair view of the Company's
operations and finances; and (ii)
the Company's risk management
and internal contrel systems are
effective? If not, how does the Board
assure itself of points (i} and {ii}
above?
Guideline | (a) Please provide a breakdown of the|(a)  The fees paid to external auditors for audit and non-
12.6 fees paid in total to the external audit services for the financial period ended 30 june
auditors for audit and non-audit 2018 were US5$231,000 and US$29,000 respectively.
services for the financial year,
tb) If the external auditors havei{b) The AC has undertaken a review of all the non-audit
supplied a substantial volume of services provided by external auditors during the
i rioi-audit services to the Company, year is satisfied that such services would not, in the
i please state the bases for the AC's opinion, affect the independence and objectivity
i Audit Cominittee's view on the of the external auditors.
independence of the external
auditors,
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Guideline | Questions

| How has the Company complied?

Audit Committee

Guideline | The AC should comprise at least three[The AC currently comprises two members, namely,
12 directors, the majority of whom, including | Mr Lien Kait Long and Mr Mak Yen-Chen Andrew. The
the AC Chairman, should be independent. [ Chairman of the AC Is Mr Lien Kalt Long. The Company

All of the members of the AC should |is of the view that it reguires maore time to consider the

be non-executive directors. The Board | choice of a suitable candidate to be appointed as the third

should disclose in the campany's annual | independent Director and assume the role of the third AC
report the names of the members of the [ member, given the challenges faced by marine, oil and gas

AC and the key terms aof reference of the | industry, in addition to the ongoing restructuring exercise

AC, explaining its role and the authority [ undertaken by the Group

delegated to it by the Board,

Communication with Shareholders
Guideline [({a) Does the Company regularlyj(a@)  Please refer to the section entitled "Communications
15.4 communicate with shareholders with Shareholders” in the Corporate Governance
and attend to their questions? How Report.
often does the Company meet with
institutional and retail investors?

(b} s this done by a dedicated investor |{b)  The Group has specifically entrusted an investor
relations team {or equivalent}? If relations team comprising the Chairman and €EOQ,
not, who performs this role? the CFO, the investor relations manager, and an

external investor relation firm with the responsibility
of facilitating communications with shareholders and
analysts and attending to their gqueries and concerns,

() How does the Company keep|({d) Please refer to the section entitled "Communications
shareholders informed of corporate with Shareholders” in the Corporate Governance
developments, apart from SGXNET Report.
announcements and the annual
report?

Guideline | if the Company is not paying any dividends | For the financial year ended 30 june 2018, no dividend was
15.5 for the financial year, piease explain why, | peid. The Company does not have a fixed dividend policy.

The form, frequency and amount of dividends will depend
on the Group's earnings, general financial condition, resuits
of operations, capital requirement, cash flow, general
business condition, development plans and other factors as
the directors may deem appropriate.
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The direclors present their statement together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and
staternent of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended June 30,
2018.

In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated finandial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity of the Company as set out on pages 45 to 125 are drawn up so as to give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at June 30, 2018 and the financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Cornpany for the financial
year then ended june 30, 2018,

At the date of this staternent, with the continuous financial support from key shareholders and on the basis of the
successful negotiation and completion of matters as described in Note 1 to the finandial statements, there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due.

1 DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Tan Pong Tyea

Cai Wenxing

Lien Kait Long

Mak Yen-Chen Andrew

Tan Sooh Whye {Alternate Director ta Tan Pong Tyea)
Cai Wenting {(Alternate Director to Cal Wenxing)

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Meither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate, except for the options
raentionad in paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of the directors’ statement.

3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES
The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the finandat year had no interests in the share capital,

share options and debentures of the Cormpany and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’
shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows:

Direct interest Indirect interest
Name of directors and companies in At beginning At end At beginning At end
which interest are held of year year of year of year
The Company
{Ordinary shares)
Tan Pong Tyea 417,960,700 417,960,700 88,393,051 88,393,051
Cai Wenxing - - 70,833,592 70,933,592
Lien Kait Long 75,000 75,000 - -
Tan Sooh Whye 10,600,000 10,000,000 4,209,500 4,203,500
Cal Wenting 23,716,216 23,716,216 - -
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (cont'd)

Direct interest Indirect interest
Name of directors and companies in At beginning At end At beginning At end
which interest are heid of year of year of year of year
The Cornpany
{Shares options)
Cai Wenxing 250,000 250,000 - -
Tan Soon Whye - - 150,000 150,000
Cai Wenting 150,000 150,000 - -

*

R

Tan Pong Tvea and Tan Sooft Whye are siblings.

Cai Wenxing and Caf Wenting are siblings.

By virtue of Section 7 of the Singapore Companies Act. Tan Pong Tyea is deemed to have an interest in alf the
related corporations of the Company.

The directors’ interest in the shares and options of the Company as at july 21, 2018 were the same at June 30,

2018,

SHARE OPTIONS

{a)

(b)

Options to take up unissited shares

The Falcon Energy Group Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme®} is administered by the
Remuneration Committee ("Committee”) comprising:

Mak Yen-Chen Andrew - Independent non-executive (Chairman)
Lien Kait Long - independent hon-executive

The Scheme was adopted on Ociober 28, 2004 and has lapsed on October 27, 2014. As the Scheme has
heen discontinued, no further share options may be offered by the Company. The discontinuance of the
Scherme however does not affect share options which have been granted and accepted, Such outstanding
share options remain exercisable until they lapse and becorne null and void,

Unissued shares under aption and options exercised

At the end of the financial period, details of the options granted under the Scheme on unissued ordinary
shares of the Company, are as follows:

Balance at Cancelled/  Balance at Exercise price  Exercisable
Date of grant  july 1, 2017 Exercised Lapsed  June 30, 2018 per share period
June B, 2009 1,090,000 - - 1,090,000 5%0.40 june 5, 2011 to
June 5, 2019

In respect of options granted in 2005, 800,000 options were granted ta Executive Directors, 606,000
options were granted to non-executive directors and 3,200,000 options were granted to employees.
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SHARE OPTIONS (cont’d)

[{a)] Unissued shares under option and options exercised {cont'd)
Holders of the above share options have no right to participate in any share issues of any other Company,
No employees or employee of related corporations has received 5% or more of the total options available

under this stheme except as disclosed below.

There are no options granted to any of the Company's controliing sharehelders or their associates {(as
defined in the Singapare Exchange Securities Trading Listing Manual).

The information on directors and key executive officers of the Company participating in the Scheme Is as follows:

Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
options options options Aggregate
granted since  exercised since lapsed since options
Options commencement commencement commencement outstanding
granted of the Scheme  of the Scheme  of the Scheme as at

during the tothe end of  to the end of the  to the end of the end of
Name of directors  financial year financial year financial year financial year  financial year

Cai Wenxing - 250,000 - - 250,000
Cai Wenting - 150,000 - - 150,600

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Lien Kait Long - independent non-executive {Chairman}
Mak Yen-Chen Andrew - Independent non-axecutive

The Audit Committee has met 5 times since the last Annual General Meeting ("AGM") and has reviewed the
foliowing, where relevant, with the executive directors and external and internal auditors of the Company:

a) the audit plan of the external auditors, their audit report, their management letter and the management's
response;

b the Group's financial and operating results and accounting policies;

) the financial statement of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group before
their submission to the directors of the Company and external auditors’ report on those financial
statements;

d} the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press releases on the results
and financial position of the Company and the Group;

€) internal control and procedures, including the internal auditor's internal audit plan and internal audit
findings;
f) the co-ordination between the external auditors and management, the assistance given by management

to the auditors and addressing any issues and matters arising from the audits;
ro consider and make recommendation on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

h} Interested Person Transactions falling within the scaope of the Audit Committee’s term of reference,
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5 AUDIT COMMITTEE (cont'd)

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of the management and has been given the
resources required for it to discharge its function properly. it also has full discretion ta invite any director and
executive officer to attend its meetings. The external and imternal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit
Committee,

The Audit Committee has reviewed the independence of Deloitte & Touche LLP including the volume of non-audit
services supplied by Deloitte & Touche LEP and is satisfied of Deloitte & Touche LLP's position as an independent
external auditor., The nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of
the external auditors.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the directors the nomination of Dejoitte & Touche LLP for re-
appointment as external auditors of the Group and of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

6 AUDITORS

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment,

O BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Tan Pong Tyea

Cai Wenxing

October 9, 2618
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To the Members of Falcon Energy Group Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Falcon Energy Group Limited {the "Company”} and is
subsidiaries (the "Group"}, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and the
staternent of financial position of the Company as at June 30, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or foss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 45 to 125,

In our opinien, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Quadified Opinion section of
our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position
and statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50 {the "Act™ and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore ("FRSs") s0 as to give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at june 30,
2018 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Group and of the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As disclosed in Note 7{a) to the financial statements, as of june 30, 2018, the Group has an outstanding trade receivable
balance from a debior amounting to US$63,382,000 (2017 : US$62,884,000) before altfowance of U5$23,382,000 (2017
- US$22,884,000). We were nat provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the basis of the allowance for
doubtful debts. As there were no other practicable alternative audit procedures that we could perform, we were not
able to conclude on the recoverability of the remaining balance of the trade receivable from the debtor and whether
the allowance for doubtfut debt is adequate and not excessive, Consequently, we were unable to determine whether
any adjustments might be necessary in respect of the trade receivable in the accompanying financial statements for the
financial year ended June 30, 2017 and 2018,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("S5As"). Our responsibifities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiol Statements section of our
report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority
{"ACRA"} Code of Professional Conduct ond Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilied
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualifled opinion.

Material Uncertainties Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which indicates that as at June 30, 2018, the Group reported a
net current liabilities position of US$11,397,000 {2017 : US$116,121,000) and incurred loss before tax of US$93,453,000
{2017 ; US$173,788,000). The Company reported a netl capital deficiency of US$172,981,000 (2017 ; US$100,498,000).

The Group ang Company are exposed {o an increased liquidity risk in relation to their ability to successfully negotiate
with principal and other lenders of the Group and finalise the debt restructuring plan which wilt determine the Group’s
and the Company's ability to service their borrowings when they fall due (Note 23), to resolve with a secured lender on
the ongoing writ of summens and statements of claims i respect of the outstanding amount due to the lender (Note
23), exposure to the performance guarantee given by the Company in relation to the purchase of five rigs contracted by
an associate (Notes 37 and 38} and the resolution of the on-going legal claim in relation to the reconstruction of a vessel
{Note 38) in favour of the Group,

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of material uncertainties exists

which may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company's ability to cortinue as a going concern. Qur opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.
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To the Members of Falcon Energy Group Limited

Information QOther than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Other than the directors’
staterment which we obtained prior to the date of this auditer's report, the remaining other information is expected to
be made avaitable to us after the date of this auditor's report,

Out opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial staterments or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material misstaternent of this other information,
we are required to report that fact, As described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion section above, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude on the recoverability of the remaining balance of the trade
receivable from the debtor and whether the allowance for doubtful debt is adeguate and not excessive. Accordingly, we
are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matter described in Basis far Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

‘How ‘the scope of our audit
-audit matters .

Our audit procedures focused on evaluating and
challenging the key assumptions used by management in
conducting the impairment review,

Appropriateness of carrying amounts of vessels

(Refer to Notes 3{a)iil), 3th)ii} and 11 of the accompanying
financial statements)

We performed the following procedures;
The Group has significant property, plant and equipment

comprises mainly vessels and its related capitafised
expenditures, which collectively represents 60.2% {2017 .
58.7%) of the Group's total assets as at june 30, 2018,

As the challenging market conditions continue, the
charter and utilisation rates remain depressed in the
current year which are impairment indicators relevant to
the Group's vessels.

Management determined the recoverable amount of
the Group's vessels by computing the value-in-use of
the respective cash-generating units {"CGU"} which
involves significant judgement and estimates, including
determination of CGUs, the estimation of the future
charter rate, discount rate applied to the cash flow and
econormic life of the vessels.

{including those presented as assets held for sale) which | »

challenged the key assumptions used in the
value-in-use which include the future charter rate,
discount rate and the economic life of vessels of
the Group by comparing to available industry and
historical data applicable to the Group;

. challenged management's assessment of CGU;

. engaged our internal specialist to assess the
reasonableness of the discount rate used by the
group;

. performed sensitivity analysis in regard to the

discount rate and charter rates as these are the
two significant key assumptions in the impairment
maodel; and
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Key Audit Matters {cont’d)

idit. matters -

“[:How the’scope of our audit responded to
Jiaudit matters .

Appropriateness of carrying amounts of vessels
{cont'd}

As a result of the impairment review, the Group
recognised an impairment foss of U5%$23,719,000 (2017 :
US$85,0132,000) during the financial year ended june 30,
2018,

The key sources of estimation uncertainty made in the
assessment of recaverable amounts of vessels have been
appropriately disclosed in Note 3{b)(ii).

. reviewed the adequacy of disclosures on the key
spurces of estimation used in determining the
recoverable amount of vessels in the consolidated
financial staternent,

Based on our procedures, we noted management’s key
assumptions to be within a reasonable range of our
expectations.

Contract for purchase of rigs entered by FTS Derricks
Pte Ltd ("FTS")

{Refer to Notes 37 and 38 of the accompanying financia
staternents)

in prior years, an associate of the Group, FTS had
entered into. contract agreements {0 acquire 5 rigs.
performance guarantees for the five rigs were given by
the Group and the Company as disclosed in Note 38,

During the year, the contract for a rig with a third
party shipyard has been terminated and the rig was
subsequently disposed by the third party shipyard. The
external legal counse! engaged by the Company is of
the view that the performance guarantee provided is
not legally binding on the Group and the Company, and
the exposure is limited to the difference between the
amount owed under the contract and the price in which
the rig is sold. As the shipyard has not informed FTS the
price of the rig sold, management is of the view that
no provision is required to be made in respect of the
performance guarantee on the basis that the amount is
currently not measurabie.

In addition, the contracts for the remaining four rigs with
another third party shipyard was terminated in prior
years. Last year, FTS engaged an external legal counsel
to cispute the basis of the termination by the shipyard.
Consaquently, FTS had exercised their right to terminate
the contracts and the directors and management
belleved that the four performance guarantees issued
by the Company for the due and punctual payment by
FTS of the final instalment of the contract price payable
by FTS wupen delivery of the four rigs were no longer
in effect. in September 2018, the Company engaged
another external legal counsel to reaffirm the position
taken by the Company on this maltter.

In accordance with FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabifities
and Contingent Assefs, the directors and management are
of the opinian that the performance guaranice given
for contracts for the purchase of rigs is not probable
and not remote. Accordingly, the Group and Company
have disclosed contingent liabilities amounting to
US$1,002,278,000 (Notes 37 and 38) as at the end of the
reporting period.

Our audit procedures focused on evaluating and
chalienging the key assumptions used by management in
conducting the review on the obligations under FRS 37.

We have performed the following:

8 We obtained an understanding of the progress of
the rig construction and reviewed the terms of the
contract,

. We have aiso obtained management’s updates

in the current year on the contracts for purchase
of rigse and reviewed their assessment of such
resolution in accordance with FRS 37;

a We have held discussions with management and
the externat legal counsels surrocunding the legal
implications arising from the termination. We have
also assessed the competance and objectivity of
the legal counsels; and

. We have also assessed the adeguacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures made in the
finandial statements.
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Falcon Energy Group Limited

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient
to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded a3 necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial staterments and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management gither intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reaseonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaternent, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemeants.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professionat judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

{a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for onhe resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

{b} Cbtain an understanding of intermal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company's internal control.

{c Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(d}  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s Use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disciosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the
group to cease to cortinue as a going concern.

{el Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cortent of the financial staternents, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

N Ohtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Falcon Energy Group Limited

Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont'd)

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and ta communicate with them all refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought te
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters commusnicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the carrent year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, except for the possible affects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Gpinion section, the
accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the subsidiary corporations
incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of

the Act.

The engagement partaer on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Chua How Kiat.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accourtants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

October 9, 2018
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STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018

Group Company
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

USs$000 US$'000 us$'000 US-’?'OOD
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and bank balances & A576 10,848 37 28
Trade receivables 7 48,859 54,359 - -
Other receivables 3 26,745 35,252 272 199
inventories 10 282 1,012 - -

80,462 106,471 309 227

Assets held for sale 9 114,846 5912 - 5,912
Total eurrent assels 195,308 112,383 309 5,129
Non-current assets
Other receivables g 1,193 12,578 - 11,355
Property, plant and equipment 11 151,168 290,068 63 171
Subsidiaries 12 - - 42,140 02,223
Associates 13 4,683 33,901 * *
{pint venturas 14 3,751 11,996 * *
Available-for-sale investments 15 2,098 2,008 2,098 2,098
Other intangible assets 16 186 186 - -
beferred tax assets 17 541 498 - -
Goodwill 18 - - - -

163,620 348,325 44,301 105,857
Assets held for sale g 7.581 - - -~
Total non-current assets 171,201 348,325 44,301 105,857
Total assets 366,509 460,708 44,610 111,996
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Tracde payables 19 13,342 18,538 - -
Other payables 20 44,678 34,068 141,469 136,852
Current portion of finance feases 21 106 156 11 17
Bank horrowings 23 114,192 132,417 38,454 35,769
Notes payable 22 - 36,355 - 36,355
Income tax payable 3,366 3,505 - 25

175,684 225,039 120,934 200,018
Liahilities associated with assets held for sale 9 31,021 3,465 - 3,465
Total current liabilities 206,705 228,504 180,934 212,483

See accompanying notes ta financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018

Group Company
Note 2018 2017 2018 207
US$'000 US$'000 USs'000 US$000
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 17 5,100 3,934 - -
Other payables 20 14,011 24,143 - -
Finance teases 2% 191 215 - 11
Notes payable 22 36,657 - 36,657 -
55,959 43,292 36,657 1
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 9 6,231 - - -
Tatal non-current liabilities 62,790 43,292 36,657 11
Capital, reserves and non-controlling
interests
Share capital 24 231,009 229,528 231,009 229,528
Treasury shares 25 {4,114 {4,114) (4,114) {4,114}
Capital reserve 26 {19,608) {16,608) 11,824 11,824
Share-hased payments 27 639 639 639 639
Merger reserve 23 {151,692} {151,692) - -
Foreign cusrency translation reserve (362) {404) - -
Accumulated {losses) profits {(412) 76,025 {412,339 {338,375}
Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 55,460 130,374 {172,981) {100,498)
MNon-controlling interests 41,554 58,538 - -
Total equity (Net capital deficiency) 97,014 188,912 {172,981) (100,498)
Total liabilities and equity 266,509 460,708 44,610 111,996

* Ameunt less than US$1,000

See accompanying notes (o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Financial year ended June 30, 2018

Group
Note 2018 2017

USs000 uss'coo
Revenue 29 44 537 106,824
Cost of sales {24,572) {70,653
Gross profit before direct depreciation 19,965 36,171
Direct depreciation {29,501} {25,085)
Gross (loss) profit (9,536) 11,086
Other gperating income 30 2,209 5,920
Administrative expenses (19,213) {23,899
Other expenses 33(h) {52,629} {154,058)
finance costs 31 {10.050) {9,908)
Share of net loss of associates and joint ventures 13,14 {4,234} {2,929)
Loss before income tax 33 {93,453} {173,788)
income tax credit 32 a9 16,107
Loss for the year (93,444) {163,681}
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profif or loss

Foreign currency {ransiation of foreign entities 65 23

Total comprehensive loss for the year (93,379) (163,658)
Loss for the year attributable to;
Owners of the Company (76,437) {121,338}
Non-controlling interesis (17.007) {41,843)
Total (93,444) {163,681)
Total comprehepsive loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company {76,395) {121,870}
Non-controlling interests {16,984) {41,788}
Total {93,379) (163,658}
Loss per share (US cents)
- Basic 34 {3.18) {15,10}
- Diluted 34 {9.18} {15.10}

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

Financial year ended June 30, 2018

Equity
Foreign attributable
Share currenty Accumulated toequity  Non-

Share Treasury Capital option Merger translation  profits heolders of controlling
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve {losses)  the parent interests Total

US$'G60  USS'000 US$'000 US$'G00 USSDO0  US$000 Us$'a00 USS000  USSD00  US$000

Group

Balance at July 1, 2016 229528 (4017 R 639 {15169 (372 197,863 282122 56,305 338,427
Total comprehensive income

for the year:

Lass for the year - - - - - - (121,838)  (121,838)  (41,843) (163.681)
Other comprehensive income

far the year - - - - - (33 - {32} 55 23
Total - - - - - {32) (121,828) (121,879} {41,788} [163,658)

Transactions with gwners,
recognised directly in equity:

Repurchase of shares 23 - {97 - - - - - {97 - {97}
Difution of interests in
subsidiaries 26 - - (29,781) - - - - (29,781) 44021 14,240
Total - 97 (29.78%) - - - - (29,878} 44021 14,143
Balance at June 30, 2017 229528 {41140 (19.608) 639 {151,692  (404) 76,025 130,274 58538 188912
Balance at June 30, 2017 2295728 (4,114) (19,608) 639 {151,682}  (404) 76,025 130,374 58,538 188912
Total comprehensive incorme
for the year:
Loss for the year - - - - - - {76437} {76,437) (17,007} (33.444)
: Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 42 - 42 23 55
Total - - - - - 42 (76,437 (76,395)  {16,984) (93379

Transactions with owners,
¢ecognised directly in equity:

issuance of share capital 24 1481 - - - - - - 1481 - 1,481
Total : 1481 - - - - - - 1,431 - 1481
: Balance at June 30, 2018 231,009 (4114} {39,508) 639 {151,692}  (362) 412} 55,460 41554 97014

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

Financial year ended june 30, 2018

Share
Share Treasury Capital option Accumuiated
Note  capital shares reserve reserve  profits {losses} Total
US$'000 Usso00 US$'000 LIS$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Company
Ralance at July 1, 2016 229,528 {4,017 11,824 630 5,223 242,197
Loss for the year, representing

total comprehensive loss for

the year - - - - {347,598) {347,598}
Transactions with owners,

recognised directly in equity:

Repurchase of shares 25 - (97} - . - {97}
Balance at June 30, 2017 229,528 (4.114) 11,824 639 (338,375) {100,498)
Loss for the year, representing

total compretiensive less for

the year - - - - {73,964) {73,964}
Transactions with owners,

recoghised directly in equity:

issuance of share capital 24 1,481 - - - - 1,481
Balance at June 30, 2018 231,008 4.114) 11,824 639 {412,339} (172,981)

See accompanying notes Lo financial staternents.
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Financial year ended lune 30, 2018

Group
2018 2017
Us$'000 US%000
Operating activities
Loss before income tax {93,453} (173,788
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 30,442 26,248
Interest expense 10,050 59,908
Allowance for impairment of goodwill - 5,050
Interest income {196) {291}
Altowance for doubtful trade recefvables 2,904 25702
Allowance for other receivables 7,252 25,941
Write off of other receivables 11,355 7,804
Allowance for impairment in associated companies 239 -
Trade receivables written back (261} {583}
Share of nei loss of associates and joint ventures 4,234 2,029
Allowance for impairment of property, plant and equipment 24,636 86,813
Property. plant and equipment written off 6 -
Allowance of impairment in joint venture 6,243 -
Write off of intangible assets - 2,748
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 11 12
Net foreign exchange losses [gains) 2,343 {1,032)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capitai 5,805 17,461
inventories 5480 (619)
Trade recelvabies 87 509
Other receivables {291) {5,724}
Trade payables {1,797 (10,637}
Other payables 774 13,838
Cash generated from operations 5,168 14,828
income tax refund - 35
Net cash from operating activities 5168 14,867
Investing activities
interest recelved 196 291
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note A} {4,156} (2,162)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equiprment 310 59
Fixed deposits and bank balances pledged 1,140 538
Proceeds from assels held for sale 5,449 -
Net cash inflow from dilution of interest in subsidiary (Note 12) - 14,295
Net cash from investing activities 2,539 13,021

See geeompanying notes to financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Finaricial year ended tune 30, 2018

Group
2018 2017
Us$000 Us$'000
Financing activities
Interest paid (5,375) {9,908}
Share buy-back - (97)
Praceed from issuance of shares 1,481 -
Advance from related parties 2,500 -
Froceeds of borrowings 2,951 15,020
Repayment of borrowings {6,974) (47,004)
Repayment of liabilities associated with assets held for sale {3,465) -
Repayrient to finance leases obligations {191) {845)
Net cash used in financing activities (9,073) {42,834)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {966) {14,946)
Cash and cash equivalents a2t beginning of year 9,518 24,361
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies 33 103
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of year 8,635 9,518
Cash and hank balances (Note 6) 4,386 9,518
Cash and bank balances included in assets held for sales [Note 2 {a)} 4,249 -
Cash and cash equivalents as per above 8,635 8,518

Notes to staternent of gash flows:

A) in 2017, the Group's purchase of property, plant and eguipment included a purchase of US$206,000 made under
finance lease arrangement,

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

52

GENERAL

The Company {Registration No. 200403817G) is incorporated in Republic of Singapore with its principal place of
business and registered office at 10 Anson Road, #33-15 International Plaza, Singapore 079903, The Company Is
listed on mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Secutities Trading Limited ("SGX-5T") from September 8, 2009,
The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding, The principal activities of the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are disclosed in Notes 12, 13 and 14 to the financial statemenis respectively.

The conselidated financial statements of the Group and statement of financial position and statement of changes
in egquity of the Company for the financiat year then ended June 30, 2018 were authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors an October 9, 2018.

As at June 30, 2018, the Group reported a net current liabilities position of US5$11,357,000 {2017 :
LS$116,121,000) and incurred loss before tax of U5$93,453,000 (2017 : US$173,788,000). The Company reported
a net capital deficiency of US$172,981,000 {US5$100,498,000).

The Group and Company are exposed to an increased liquidity risk in relation to their ability to successfully
negotiate with principal and other lenders of the Group and finalise the debt restructuring plan which will
determine the Group's and the Company's ability to service their borrowings when they fall due (Mote 23),
to resalve with a secured lender on the ongeing writ of summons and staterments of claims in respect of the
outstanding amount due to the lender {Note 23), exposure to the performance guarantee given by the Company
in relation to the purchase of five rigs contracted by an associate {Notes 37 and 38} and the resolution of the on-
going legal claim in refation to the reconstruction of a vessel {Note 38} in favour of the Group.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth below, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Management has explored the options avallable with respect to their financial affairs, In prior year, the Group
appointed financial advisors and legal counsels to assist in a debi restructuring exercise {"Debt Restructuring”, to
review the financial position of the Group and to assist the Group in developing alternative options and solutions
with a view to formulating a debt restructuring plan. Whilst the Debt Restructuring has achieved an advance
stage, the negotiation with principal lenders of the Group remains in progress and the Debt Restructuring has yet
to be finalised at the date of these financial statements. Successful negotiation with principal and other lenders
of the Group and finalise the Debt Restructuring plan which will determine the Group's and the Company's ability
to service their borrowings when they fall due.

th August 2017, the Group received writs of summons and statement of claims filed by one of its secured
lenders, which is also a participant of the Debt Restructuring, claimed against the Group for the outstanding loan
including interest cost amounting to US$19,945,000 in High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia,

On Novemnber 9, 20017 and May 23, 2018, respectively, the Group received two statutory demands from the
lender in Singapore, one of which had been subsequently withdrawn in January 2018,

On Aprit 12, 2018, the High Court of Malaya in Kuala Lumpur has ruled in favour of the secured lender in its
application of summary of judgement in the civil suits commenced against the Group, The Group filed notices of
appeal with the Court of Appeal in Kuala Lumpur against the decision by High Court of Malaya, which were later
put on hearing on October 3, 2018, The Court of Appeal did not dismiss the case and order for another hearing
on Decemnber 12, 2018, Upon consuiting the legal counsel, the Company's management is of the view that the
statutory demand issued on May 23, 2018 should not have been issued amid the upcoming appeal hearing and
accordingly does not change the Group's legal position.

The Group remains commitied fo the restructuring and will continue to engage in discussions with all its secured

lenders and any other key stakeholders in relation to the Debt Restructuring. The directors and management
believe that there is reasonable likelihood that a Debt Restructuring can be successfully achieved,
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

GENERAL (cont'd)

Since 2017, FTS was in discussion with a third party shipyard to further defer the delivery of a completed rig to a
date beyond 12 months. During the year, the contract for a rig with 3 third paity shipyard has beern terminated
and the rig was subsequently disposed by the third party shipyard, The external legal counsel engaged by the
Company is of the view that the performance guarantee provided is not legally binding on the Group and the
Company, and the exposure is limited to the difference between the amount owed under the contract and the
price in which the rig is sold. As the shipyard has not informed FTS the price of the rig sold, management is of
the view that no provision is required to be made in respect of the performance guarantee an the basis that the
amount is currently not measurable.

In addition, FTS and another third party shipyard have each exercised its rights to terminate the remaining four
rigs contracts. Consequently, the directors and management believes that the four performance guaraniees
issued by the Company for the due and punctual payment by FTS of the final instalment of the contract price
payable by FTS upon delivery of the four rigs are no longer in effect (Notes 37 and 38},

As disctosed in Note 38, a subsidiary of the Group is involved in a tegal dispute in indonesia relating to the
reconstruction of a vessel. A demand letter was received by the subsidiary in prior year to daim for the damages
of $$3,503,000 (equivalent to approximately US$2,531.000). During the year, police investigation was commenced
against the plaintiff and the outcome remains unknown as of the date of the financialt statements. Management
believes that the demand is without legal merit.

The asbove matters represent a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the
Company's ability to coniinue as a going concern, and therefore, the Group and the Company's rmay not be
able 1o realise its assets and discharge its ltabilities in the normal course of business. The management and
the directors believe that a successful conclusion of the Debt Restructuring negotiation, the ability to resolve
with a secured lender on the ongoing writ of summons and statement of claims, the non-enforceability of
performance guarantees provided by the Company to third party shipyards and the positive outcorne on legal
dispute in Indonesia, will improve the financial position of the Group and enable it to continue operations for
the foreseeable future. Having considered the Group's cash flows projection approved by the board of directors
[Note 4 thiv)], management are of the view that the Group is able to continue as a going concern,

Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the realisation
and classification of asset and liability amounts that may be necessary i the Group is unable to continue as a
going concern. Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made to
(i) reflect the situation that assets may need to be reailsed other than at their carrying amounts; (i) provide for
further Hahilities that may arise; and (iif) reclassify non-current assets and non-current liahilities as curreni. No
adjustments have been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements in respect of these matters,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
basis, except as disciosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Singapore Companies Act and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore ("FRS").

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or Kability which market participants would take
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of FRS 102 Share-bused Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of FRS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in FRS 2 inventories or value in use in FRS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

th addition, for financial reperting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair vatue measurement in its entirety, which are described as foitows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

) Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - On July 1, 2017, the Group adopted all the new and revised
FRSs and interpretations of FRS {*INT FRS"} that are effective from that date and are relevant to its operations,
The adoption of these new/ravised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes ta the Group's and Company's
accounting policies and has ne material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior years, except
for certain presentation improvements arising from Amendments to FRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure
Initiative disclosed in Note 23.

Adoption of a new financial reporting framework in 2018 - In December 2017, the Accounting
and Standards Council (“ASC™) has issued a new financial reporting framework - Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards {International} (“SFRS(1}"), which is to be adopted by Singapore incorporated
Companies listed on the Singapore Exchange ("SGX"), for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. SFRS{) is identical to the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (ISAB™. The Group and the Company will be adopting the new
frammework for the first time for financial year ending June 30, 2015 and SFRS() 1 First-time Adoption of Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (International) will be applied in the first set of SFRS(I) financial statements.

SFRS()) 1 First-time Adoption of Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International)

As a first-time adopter, the Group and the Company are to apply retrospectively, accounting policies based
an each SFRS{) effecttve as at the end of the first SFRS(I) reporting period {June 30, 2019), except for areas
of exceptions and opticnal exemptions set out in SERS5{) 1. in the firs{ set of SFRS() financial statements for
the financial year ending june 30, 2019, an additicnal opening statement of financial position as at the date of
transition (July1, 2017} will be presented, together with related notes. Recondiliation statements from previously
reported FRS amounts and explanatory notes on transition adjustments are required for Capital and reserves as
at the date of transition (uly 1, 2017) and as at the end of last financial period under FRS {June 30, 2018), and for
total comprehensive incorme and cash flows reported for the last financial period under FRS (for the year ended
June 30, 2018). Additional disclosures may also be required for specific transition adjustrments if applicable.

Management does not expect any changes o the Group's accounting policies or significant adjustments on
transition to the new framework.

As SERSID 1 requires a first-time adopter to apply accounting policies based on each SFRS(I) effective as at end
of the first SFRS{1) reporting period June 30, 2019), it is not possible to know all possible effects as at date of
authorisation of current year's financial staternents. If there are any subsequent pronouncements on SFRS{) that
are effective as at june 30, 2019, they may impact the disclosures of estimated effects described below.
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

New SFRS(I) that may have impact

The following SFRS{I) pronouncements are expected to have an impact to the Group and the Company in the
periods of their initial application under the new SFRS(I} framework:

-]

n

SFRS( 9 Finandciof thstruments™
SFRS(I) 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
SFRS(Y 16 Leases®

Apples to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,
Applies to annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early application permitted.

SERS(I) 9 Financial instruments

SERS(H) 9 introduced new requirements for () the classification and measurement of financial assets and financiat
liabilities (i) general hedge accounting and {iii) kmpairment requirements for financial assets,

Key requirements of SFRS(I} 9

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of SFR5(1) 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amoriised cost or fair value, Specifically, debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal cutstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose ojective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FYTOQ)). All other debt instruments and equity investments are
measured at FVTPL at the end of suhsequent accounting periods. in addition, under SFR5()) 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election, at initial recognition, to measure an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) at FVTOCI, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or foss. With some
exceptions, financial liahilities are generally subsequently measured at amaortised cost, With regard to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, SFRS(I) 9 requires that the amount of change
in fatr value of such financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk be presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liabllity's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enfarge an accounting mismatch to profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to the financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,

In relation to the impairment of finandal assets, SFRS(1) 9 requires an expected credit loss maodel to be
applied. The expected credit loss model reguires an entity to account for expected credit josses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms,
Under SFRS{} 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and
the types of risk componenis of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘econamic relationship’.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
reguirernents about an entity’s risk rnanagement activities have alse been introduced.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
SFRS{N} © Finonciol instruments (cont'd)

Management anticipates that the initial application of the new SFRS() @ will result in changes to the accounting
policies refating to the impalrment provisions of financial assets. The Group will consider whether a lifetime or
12-ronth expected credit losses on financial assets should be recognised, which is dependent on whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk of the assets and liabilities from initial recognition to the date
of initial application of SFRS{1) 9. Additional disclosures will also be made. It is currently impracticable to disclose
any further information on the known or reasonably estimable impact to the Group's financial statements in the
period of initial application as the Group is currently finalising their transition adjustments.

SFRS(H) 15 Revenue from Controcts with Customers

SFRS{) 15 estahtishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers.

The core principte of SFRS(H) 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services ta customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitied in exchange for those goods or services, Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

. Step 2: Identify the performance cbiigations in the contract,

° Step 3: Determine the fransaction price.

® Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
® Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under SFR5(I} 15, an entity recognises revenue when {or as} a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e, when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in SFR5(1} 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclasures are required by SFR5{I) 15.

Management anticipates that the Initial application of the new SFRS(1) 15 may result in changes to the accounting
policies relating to revenue recognition for certain revenue sireams. Additional disclosures will also be made. It
is currently impracticable to disclose any further information on the known or reasonably estimated impact to
the financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application as the Group is currently finalising their
transition adjustrents.

SFRS(I) 16 Leases

The Standard provides a comprehensive rmodel for the identification of lease arrangements and their treatraent
in the financial statements of both lessees and lessors. The identification of leases, distinguishing between leases
and service contracts, are determined on the basis of whether there is an identified asset controlled by the
customer.

Significant changes to lessee accounting are introduced, with the distinction between operating and finance
leases removed and assets and liabilities recognised in respect of all leases (subject to fimited exemptians for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets). The Standard maintains substantialy the lessor accounting
approach under the existing framework,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)}
SFRS{) 16 Leases {cont'd)

SFRS(I 16 will take effect from financial years beginning on or after July 1, 2019. Management expects the
adoption of the above SFRS(1) to have impact on the finandial statements of the Group in the period of their initial
adoption, in particular on property, plant and equipment, finance lease liabilities and deprediation expenses. 1t
is currently impracticable to disclose any further information on the known or reasonably estimated impact to
the financial statements of the Group in the pericd of initial adoption as the management has yet to complete its
detailed assessment, The Group does not plan to early adopt SFR5(1} 16 for financial year ending june 306, 2079.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financial statements incorperate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlied by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the invesieg;
° is exposed, or has rights, ta variable returns from its involvernant with the investee; and
* has the ability to use ifs power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee If facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the veting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Cormpany’s hotding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
ather vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
. any additional facts and circurnstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current

ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decislons need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
frorn the date the Company gains control untif the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or Tass and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive incorme of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustrnents are made o the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accouniing policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Changes in the Groyp's.ownershin interssts in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions, The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly In equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the differance between (i} the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the falr value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets {including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and non-controlling interests, Alf amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive incorne
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
Habilities of the subsidiary the. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable FRSs), The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when contral is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under FRS
38, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an assodiate or a joint venture.

in the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
carried at cost less any impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in profit or loss.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition date fair values
of assets given, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred,

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liahility resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values
are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they qualify as measurement period adjustments (see below).
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not gualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingant
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is dassifled as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value, with changes In fair value recognized in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held interests in the acquired entity
are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the Group attains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is yecognised in profit or 10ss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
toss, where such reatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

The acquiree’s tdentifiable assets, liabilities and contingent fabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under the FRS are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

» deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with FRS 12 Income Toxes and FRS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

S liahilities or equity instruments refated to share-based payments transaction of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment awards transactions with share-based payment award
transactions of the acquirer in accordance with FRS 102 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with FRS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sate and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(cont'd)

Non-controfling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured gither at fair value or at the non-
controling interests’ propoftionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identiflable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a fransaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another FRS,

If the initiat accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports pravisional amaounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete,
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period {see below), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete
information about facts and dreumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and is subject to a maximum of
one year from acquisition date.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial
pasition when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a rnethod of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and
of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees on polnts paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. Income and expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recoghised and de-recognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an
investrnent is under a contract whose terrms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are injtially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss which are inttially measured at fair value.

Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or deterrinable payments that are not quoted in an aclive market
are classified as "loans and receivables”. Loans and receivables {including trade and other receivables, cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Interast
is recognised by applying the effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

Available-for-sate financiagf assets

Certain shares held by the Group are classified as being available for sale and are stated at cost less impairment
in recoverable value as the cost approximates the fair value. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or foss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised In profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

impairment of financial assets

Einancial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at end of each reporting period. Financlal assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one ar more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.

For available-for-sale equity instrurnents, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered 1o be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, ohjective evidence of impairment could include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. Default or delinguency in interest or principal payments; or
. it becoming probabile that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolic of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolic past the average credit period of 90 days, as well as observable
changes in national or locat ecanomic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the
assel’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade and other receivable is uncollectibie, it is written off against the allowance
account, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account,
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
lass decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised tmpairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date the fmpairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

when an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previcusly
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value after an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserves.
in respect of available-for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
toss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment l0ss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

Derecognition of finarcial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially aif the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated Hability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as deblor equity

financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial fiability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrurments

AR equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recarded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Qther financial liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an
effective yield basis.

Interest-bearing bank overdrafts, bank toans and notes payable are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Any difference between the
proceeds {net of transaction ¢osts) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term
of the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs {see below).

Derecognition.of financiat Habilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, -
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting arrangements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when the Company and the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. A right to set-
off must be available today rather than being contingent on a future event and must be exercisable by any of the
counterparties, both in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS - Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue
and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion,
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can be
measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable. :
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

Where the ocutcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable, Contract casts are recoghised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred,

When it is probable that total contract costs wilt exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts
due to customers for contract work, Amounts received before the refated work is performed are included in the
consolidated statement of financal position, as a fiability, as amounts due to construction contracts customers.
Amounts billed for warle performed but nat yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under trade receivables.

LEASES - Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
uniess another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis
as the lease income.

The Group as lgssee

Assets held under finance lease are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The carresponding liability to the lessor
is inctuded in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group's general policy
on borrowing costs {see below). Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease unless ancther systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which econamic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period In which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating ieases, such incentives are recognised as a
fiability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the feased asset are consumed,

NON-CURRENT ASSETS MELD FOR SALE - Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highiy probable and the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. For transactions which the
sale is expected to complete after one year from the date of classification, rnanagement must demonstrate that
the events or circumstances that cause the delay are beyond the Group's control and there is suffident evidence
that the Group remains committed to its plan to sell the asset {or disposal group).
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When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, alt of the assets and
fiabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardiess of
whether the Group will retain a hon-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous tarrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

INVENTORIES - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs comprise direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present tocation and condition, Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Met realisable value represents the estimated selling price less alf estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impalrment losses,

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets less residual value, other than freehold land and
construction work-in-progress, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line methed, on the following
bases:

Buildings - 20 vyears

Leasehold office premises - Over the remaining lease period of 53 years
Vessels - 12to25years

Dry-docking - 3toSyears

Plant and machinery - 3to10years

Furniture and fittings - 3to 10 years

Renovation - 3years

Motor vehicies - 4to 10 years

Depreciation is not provided on construction work-in-progress and freehold land.

Dry-docking expenditure for major averhauls of flosting equipment is deferred when incurred and amortised
over a period from the current dry-docking date to the next estimated dry-docking date {normally takes place
every three to five years).

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for orn a prospective basis,

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets of, if there is no certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by end of the lease term, the asset shall be
fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its usefu life.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised In the profit
or loss.

Fully depreciaied assets still in use are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

GOODWILL - Goodwilll arising in & business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is
acquired {the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest (if any) in the entity over net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
angd the liahilities assumed. :

Falcon Energy Group Limited | Annuat Report 2018 63



NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fune 3G, 2018

64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

If, afrer reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-tontrolling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer's previously hetd equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or joss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwilt is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill is allorated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies
of the cambination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than is carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated ta the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary or the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation {where they have finite
useful Hves) and accurnulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on
a straight-fine basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised. Each period, the
useful lives of such assets are reviewed to determine whether events and circumstances continue o support
an indefinite usefu! life assessment for the asset. Such assets are tested for impairment in accordance with the
policy below,

Club membership

Ciub membership with indefinite useful life is not amortised and is reasured at cost less any accumulated
impairment loss.

Mining concession
Mining concession are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses and

are amortised on a unit-of-production method from the date of commencement of commercial production which
approximates the date from which they are available for use,

Pre-mining expenses

Pre-mining expenses, consisting of cost incurred in connection with the mining activittes, are expensed in the

current period, except that such costs may be deferred when permit to conduct exploration and mining activities

in the area of interest is still valid and provided that one of the following conditions is met:

. Exploration and evaluation activities in the area of interest have not at reporting date, reached a stage
which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable
reserves, and active and significant operations in or in relation to the area are continuting: or

. Such costs are expected to be recovered through successful development and exploration of the area of
interest or through iis sale.
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The ultimate racovery of such pre-mining expenses carried forward is dependent upon successful development
and commercial exploitation, or alternatively, sale of the respective areas. Each area of interest is reviewed
at the end of each accounting period. Pre-mining expenses in respect of an area of interest, which has been
abandoned, or for which a decision has beent made by the Group against the commercial visibility of the area of
interest are written-off in the year the decision is made.

Pre-mining expenses represent the accumulated costs relating to general investigation, administration and
licensing, geology and geophysics expenditures and costs incurred to develop a mine before the camimencement
of the cormrercial operations, Pre-mining expenses is amortised using the unit-of-production metheod, which is
calculatad from the date of commercial production of the respective area of interest,

The net carrying value is reviewed regularly and, to the extent this value exceeds its recoverable value, that
excess is provided for or written-off in the period that the excess is determined.

One consequence of coal mining is land subsidence caused by the resettlement of the land above the
underground mining sites. Depending on the circumstances, the Group may relocate inhabitants from the land
above the underground mining sites prior to mining those sites or the Group may compensate the inhabitants
for losses or damages from land subsidence after the underground sites have been mined. The Group may also
be required to make payments for restaration, rehabilitation or environmental protection of the land after the
underground sites have been mined. An estimate of such costs is recognised in the period ih which the obligation
is identified and is charged as an expense in proportion to the coal extracted.

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS EXCLUDING GOODWILL - At the end of each reporting
period, the Group reviews the carrying armounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where 3 reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to Individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be ldentified.

recoverable amount is the higher of fair vatue less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted,

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than s carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating unit) Is reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss
is recognised immediately in proflt or foss,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating unit} is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES - An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the pariies that have joint controf have rights to the net assets,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control Is a contractually agreed shating of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidared financial
staternents using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is dassified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for under FRS 105, Under the equity method, investment ir an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafier
to recognise the Group's share of the profit or foss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate or joint venture {which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investrnent in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal oF constiuciive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

AR investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which
the investee becomes an associate or a jeint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investrnent. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessiment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of FRS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investrnent in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entira carrying
amount of the investment {including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with FRS 36 impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cost
to sell) with Hs carrying amount, any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with FRS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture, or when the investiment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financiai asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
in accordance with FRS 29, The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
the disposal of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain and
foss on disposal of the associate of joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts of all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that assotiate or joint venture on the same basts as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directdy disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets and liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from the equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in joint

venture or an nvestment in a joint venture becomes an iwestment in an associate. There Is no rermeasurerment
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a jaint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the galn or loss that had previously
been recogrised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest i that gain or
foss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a Group entity transacts with [ts associate or joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate of joint venture that are not related to the Group.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - The Group has an employee share option scheme under which it can Issue equity-
settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settied share-hased payments are measured
at fair value texcluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The falr value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effact of non-market-based vesting conditions,

Fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estirnate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amourt recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking inte account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where 2 provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

REVENMUE RECOGMITION - Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Rendering of services

Charter hire income is recognised on straight-fine basis over the term of the relevant lease,
Revenue from rendering of marine services is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered,

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy on
construction contracts.

Revenue from agency fee income is recognised by reference to the quantity of coal sold under the agency
agreerment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Sale of goads

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvernent to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control aver the goods sold;

® the arnount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probabie that the economic henefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity: and
) the costs incurred or to be incusred in respect of the transaction can he measured reliably.

Management fee income

Marnagement fee income is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

Interest income is accrued on & tme basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable,

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. The benefit of 2 government foan at a below market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the difference between proceeds received and the
fair value of the lcan based on prevailing market interest rates. Government grants whose primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the staterment of financial posttion and transferred to profit or 1055 on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Other government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs
for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving imimediate finandal support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which they become
receivable.

BORROWING COSTS - Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale, hvestment income earned on the temperary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All ather horrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirerent benefit plans are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered the services entitling thern to the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefit schemnes, such as the Singapore Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as
payments to defined contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to those
arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlernents to annuat leave are recognised when they accrue to
ernployees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable
or tax deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted in countries where the Company and subsidiaries operate by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
staterments and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Sueh assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of ather assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to conirol the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the ternporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at end of each reporting pericd and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to aliow all or part of the asset
to be recovered,

Defarred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or setile
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax fiabilities and when they relate (o income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit o 1oss, except when they relate to
items credited or debited cutside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in
which case the tax is also recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity), or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business
combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or determining the excess of the
acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES {cont'd)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The individual financial statements of each Group
entity are measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency). The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position of the Company are presented in United States dollars, which is the funciional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are
included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carrled at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
ratranslation of nen-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, Eor such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or 10ss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Exciange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive
use are ncluded in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those
faraign currency borrowings.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations (including comparatives) are expressed in United States dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, Income and expense ftems (including comparatives) are translated at the average
exchange rates for the perlnd, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used, Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the header of foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. 2 disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over
a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have previously been
attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit or toss.

In the case of a partial disposal {i.e. no loss of control} of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumuliated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals {i.e. of associates or jointly controlled entities
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint controf), the proporticnate share of the
accurmutated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss,

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
{(including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment in foreign entities), and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the header of foreign
currency translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and transiated at the closing rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont’d)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Cash and cash equivalents in the staternent
of cash flows comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments tess
bank overdrafts that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

SEGMENT REPORTING - An operating segment is & component of the Group that engages in business activities
from which it may earn reventie and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group's other components.

The Group determines and presents operating segments based on information that is internally provided to the
Group's chief operating decision maker and the Board. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Group's chief operating decision maker and the Board to make decisions about resources to be
allocated (o the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is avaitable.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described In Note 2, management is required
to make judgements, astimates and assurnptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to actounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that period, of in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

{a) Critical judgerpents in applying the Group's accounting. policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that
management has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements.

{i) Going copncern

As disciosed in Note 4(b)iv), management has exercised significan{ judgement in preparation of
projected net cash flows for the next financial year ending June 30, 2013 {Note 3{a){i]. The areas of
judgement include key assumptions and estimates in the preparation of the projected cash flows,
¢changes in working capital and repayment schedule of its other unsecured debts, as well as the
fund expected to be received from a major shareholder and future placement of shares.

In addition, management has also taken into consideration the ability to successfully negotiate
with principal and other lenders of the Group and finalise the debt restructuring plan which will
determine the Group's and the Company's ability to service their borrowings when they fali due
(Note 23), to resolve with a secured lender on the ongeing writ of summons and statements of
claims in respect of the outstanding amount due to the lender (Note 23), exposure to the
performance guaraniee given by the Company in relation to the purchase of five rigs contracted
by an associate {Notes 37 and 38) and the resolution of the on-going legal claim in relation to the
reconstruction of a vessel (Note 38) inn favour of the Group.

The Group is confident that the successful conclusion of the above events would enable the Group

to continue operations for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group considers that the use of
going concern basis of preparing financial statements remains appropriate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

(a) Critical judgements in applying the Groug! nting policies {cont'd)

{in Clzims_and litigations

As disclosed i Note 37, FTS had entered info contract agreements with two third party shipyards
to acquire five rigs. As at date of the financial statements, the construction contracts in relation to
all five rigs have been terminated and FTS is exposed to the risk of claims and litigations. The scepe,
enforceability and validity of any claim, litigation or review may be highly uncertakn. In making its
judgement as to whether it is probable that any such claim and litigation will result in a liability and
whether any such liability can be measured reliably, management relies on past experience and the
opintan of legal expertise from the external tegal counsels.

(it} Classificarion of vessels into Cash-Generating Units (COUY)

The recoverable amounts of vessels of similar classification are aggregated as one cash-generating
unit for comparison with the aggregate carrying amounts of the vessels in contrast with the
comparison on an individual marine vessel basis, In adopting this basis, management took into
account the interchangeability of the pool of vessels of similar classification when deploying vessels,
Judgement is involved in determining the practicality and likelihood of interchangeability of vessels
which are within a reasonable range of vessels capacity. The pool of vessels of similar classification
is determined by management as the cash-generating Units ("CGU"} as defined in FRS 30 impairment
of Assets.

(%) Key.sources of estimation uncerfainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and {iabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

{i) Allowances for, nd doubtf]

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivabies. Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
trade and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements respectively.

{i) Impairment of vessels

The Group assesses annually whether vessels have any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. In view of the continuing depressed market conditions which has adversely
impacted the charter rates, management has estimated the recoverable amount of the vessels to
determine whether there is any impairment loss. For this purpoese, the recaverable amounts of the
vessels are the discounted present values of estimated future net cash flows over the expected
economic life.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

. Discount rate

. Forecasted charter rate
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

() Key sources of estimation uncertainty {(cont'd)

{i

giiy

Impairmeant o 5

The future cash fiows are discounted to the value in used based on the discount rates ranging from
8% 1o 9.5% (2017 : 7.1% to 9.0%) which reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the assel.

Based on the above assessment of value in use of vessels, management has determined that
the respective aggregale carrying amounts at June 30, 2018 exceed the estimated aggregate
recoverable amounts of the pool of vessels of similar classification Is determined by managerment
as the cash-generating Units {"CGU"} as defined in FRS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Accordingly, an impairment armounting to US$23,719,000 (2017 : US$85,013,000) is charged to profit
or loss for the Group in the current financial year, The carrying amounts of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial staterments,

Based on the value in use calculations for vessels as determined by management, possible increase
or decrease to the following estimates used in management’s assessment will affect the impairment
loss to increasef{decrease) as follows:

Discount rate Forecasted charter rate
80 basis 50 basis
peint point 5% 5%
increase decrease increase decrease
US$'000 Us$000 uUs$000 Us3000
June 30, 2018 2,509 {2,981} (7,312} 8,292
June 30, 2017 4,232 {2,790} (8,487} 11,014

Determining whether investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of these investments based on the higher of
value in use and fair value less cost to sell. The value in use calculation requires the Group and
the Company ta estimate the future cash-flows expected from the cash-generating units and an
appropriate discount rate in order to caiculate the present value of the future cash flows. The fair
value less costs 1o sell is determined by reference to the estimated realisable values of the net
tangible assets of the investments,

For investment in subsidiaries, management has evaluated the recoverability of thase investments
based on value in use, The discount rate applied to the cash flows projection 1s 8.0% (2017 : 8.0%).
This assessment has led to a recognition of allowance for impairment of investrent in subsidiaries
of LS$50,799,000 (2017 : US$65,385,000) {Note 12).

For investiment in associates and joint ventures, management has evaluated the recoverability of
the investments based on fair value less cosi to sell. The assessment has led o a recognition of
allowance for impairment loss of U$$239,000 (Mote 13) and U5$6,243,000 {Note 14) respactively.

The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are disclosed
in Notes 12, 13 and 14 to the financial statements respectively.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)
fb)  Key seurces of estimation uncertainty {cont'd)

{iv)

The Group is subject to income taxes arising mainly in Singapore, indonesia and Mexico. In
determining the incorne tax liabilities, management is required to estimate the amount of capital
allowances and deductibility of certain expense {"uncertain tax positions”) at each jurisdiction.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recogrised, such differances will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made. The carrying amounts of the Group's and Company's current
tax and deferred tax provision are disclosed in the statement of financial position and Note 17
respactively.

) Useful life and residual value of property. plant and equipment

As described in Note 2, the Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each reporting period so as to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

The Group reviews the residual values of vessels periodically to ensure that the amount is
consistent with the future economic benefits embodied in these vessels at the point of disposal,
Significant judgment is required in determining the residual values of its vessels.

in determining the residual values of its vessels, the Group considers the net proceeds that would
be obtained from disposal of the assets in the resale or scrap markets and industry practices.
During the year, management conducted a review of the residual value of the group's vessels which
resulted in a change in the residual value of the Group's vessels. The effects of these changes on
residual value has resuited in an additional depreciaton expenses of U5$9,414,000 million, and is
included i ‘direct depreciation expense’.

The depreciation expense and carrying vaiue of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
MNote 11 to the financial statements.

{vi)  Deferred taxation

No Singapore income tax is payable on the taxable profits if the group's income is derived from
shipping operations from Singapore registered vessels under Section 13A of the Singapore income
Tax Act, Cap. 134. During the financial year ended June 30, 2012, a vessel held by one of the
subsidiaries changed its flag from Singapore to a foreign flag. During the financial year ended June
30, 2014, 3 other vessels held by the company, also changed their flags from Singapore to foreign
flags. Consequently, income derived from shipping operations from such vessels is no longer
exempted from tax under Section 13A, Accordingly, the group will be subject to beth current and
deferred taxes.

In deriving at the deferred tax exposure as at June 30, 2018, management has considered the future

periods in which these vessels will remain foreign flagged and continue to derive charter income
that is not exempted under Section 13A through the usage of these vessels. Accordingly, a provision
5 far deferred tax liabilities of L15$3,952,000 {2017 ; US$3,833,000) was recognised by the group at the
end of the year.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax liabifities are disclosed in the statement of financial
position and Note 17 respectively.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

{a)

(b

]

Categories of financial instruments

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the year:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
us$000 1J5$'000 Uss$000 US$' 000

Financial assets
Loans and receivables {including cash

and cash egubvalents) 78,569 115,221 260 11,515
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,098 2,008 2,098 2098
Financial liahilities
Borrowings and payables at

amortised cost 208,081 228,219 217,591 208,004

Financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement and similar agreement

The Group and Company does not have any financial instruments which are subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements or similar netting agreements,

Financial risk management policies and objectives

The management of the Group monitors and rmanages the financial risks relating to the operations of the
Group o ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner. The Group's
overall financial risk management seeks to minbmise potential adverse effects of financial performance of
the Group. These risks include market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk,
(i) Morket risk
The Group's activities expose primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates. Managemnent monitors risks associated with changes in foreign currency

exchange rates and interest rates and will consider appropriate measures should the need arises.

There has been no significant change to the Group's exposure to market risk or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.

{iiy Foreign currency risk management

The Group transacts bushiesses significantly in Singapore Dollars {"5%"), Indonesian Rupiah {("IDR")
and Eure Dollars {"Euro”}. Transactions in other currencies are limited and such exposures to
foreign exchange risk are minimal.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {cont'd)

()

Financial risk management policies and objectives (cont'd)

(i)

Fareign currency risk manggement (cont'd}

The carrying amounts of monetary assefs and monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the respective Group entities’ functionat currencies at the reporting date are as foliows:

Group 2018 2017
{US$'300) 53 IDR Euro  Others S5 IDR Euro  Others
Cash and cash equivalents 353 1,920 21 374 2,530 773 132 718
Trade receivables 65 622 29,180 45 186 102 28579 1,644
Other receivables G629 2949 - 8 504 2,428 - 20
Trade payables (3,828) {924} (18) £155) {4,903} {406) (1263 {186}
Other payables {11,710)  (3.284) (904) {812) (5,590) (1.014) - {737
Finance leases {254) {43) - - {293) {78) - -
Notes payable {36,657) - - - [36,355) - - -
Bank borrowings {45919) {634} - - (54,631 {(457) - -
2018 2017
Company (US$°000) 5% 5%
Cash and cash equivalents 37 20
Other receivables 272 199
Cther payables {6,540} (4,667
Finance lease {11} {283
Notes payable (26,657) {36,355}
Bank overdraft and borrowings {33,128) {32,099}

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table detaills the sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the relevant currencies
against the functional currency of each Group entity. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity anatysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary iterns and adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.

if the refevant foreign currency strengthens by 10% against the functional currency of each Group
entity, lost will increasef{decrease):

5% Impact IDR Impact Eura Impact Others Impact
Profit or loss {U5$'000) 2018 2017 2018 2017 . 2017 2017 2018 2097
Group 9,732 10,202 641 (135) (2827 {(2,859) i54) {2821
Company 7,603 7,293 - - - - - -

£ Amount fess thon US$1,000

i the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against the funclional currency of each Group
entity, the reverse of the abave amount will be the impact to the profit or loss.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {cont'd)

{c) Einanciat risk managemenpt policies and objectives {cont'd)

i}

(iv)

interest rote risk management

Sumwnary quantitative data of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instrument can be found in
section (v) of this note. The Group is exposed to interest rate risks as the Group borrows funds
at hoth fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an
appropriate mix between fixed and fioating rate borrowings. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, management rmonitors interest rate exposure and will
consider restructuring the Group's credit facilities should the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-dertvative instruments at the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in
the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decresse is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were hetld
constant, the Group's loss for the financial year would decrease/increase by US$570,000 (20617
US$656,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure fo interest rates on is variable
rate borrowings.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Company's loss for the financial year would increase/decrease by US$197,000 (2017
US$179,000). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings.

Credit risk manogement

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors/counterparties will default on their obligations to repay
the amount owing to the Group, resuiting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted
a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

A substantial portion of the Group's revenue is on credit terms. These credit terms are normally
contractual. The Group adopts stringent procedures on extending credit terms to custarners and
on the monitoring of credit risk. The credit policy spells out clearly the guidelines on extending
credit terms Lo customers, including monkitoring the process and using related industry's practices
as reference. This includes assessment and valuation of customers' credit refiability and periodic
review of their financial status to determine the credit limits to be granted, Customers are also
assessed based on their historical payment records. Where necessary, customers ray also be
requested to provide security or advance payment before services are rendered.

Credit axposure is controlled by the counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
rnanagement.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

() Financial risk management policies and objectives {cont'd}

{iv) Credit risk_manogement (cont'd)

The table betow is an analysis of rade receivables, which are not secured by any collateral or credit
enhancement, as at the end of the year:

Group
20618 2017
Us$000 Uss$'000
Not past due and not impaired 6,491 11,766
Past due but not impaired

91 days to 180 days 1,169 1,998

= 180 days to 1 year 25 3,627

= 1 year and < 2 years 243 1,388

> 2 years and < 3 years 331 580
8,859 19,359

Impaired receivables - individually assessed 78,859 80,481
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {38,859 {40,481)
Total trade receivables, net 48,859 59,359

{i} Financial assets that are not past due and not impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are substantially companies with
good callection track record with the Group.

{in Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

The Group has not made any aliowance for remaining balances past due at the reporting
date as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable,

The rmaximum amount the Group could be forced to settle under the financial guarantee contract
in Note 38, if the full guaranteed amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee is
US$2,297,000 (2017 : US$2,297,000). Based on expediations at the end of the year, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject fo change depending on the probability of the counterparty
tlaiming under the guaraniee which is a function of the Iikelihoad that the finandal receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

in 2017, approximately 47% of the Group’s revenue are derived from customers in China which
represent concentration risk within this geographical location. There are no concentration risk
within this geographical location in 2018.

There is concentration of credit risk as 82% (2017 : 65%) of the Group's trade receivables at the end
of the year relate to one {2017 : ong) customer.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {(cont'd)

() financial risk management policies and objectives {cont'd)

v} Liguidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group maonitors and maintains a level of cash and bank
balances deamed adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctzations in cash flows. The management manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserve and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities, and monitoring the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure compliance with
lcan covenants. Management's going concern assessment is disclosed in Note 1 to the financial
statements,

Management has exercised significant judgement in preparation of projected net cash flows for
the mext financial year ending june 30, 2019 {Note 3{a){iil. The areas of judgement include key
assumptions and estimates in the preparation of the projected cash flows, changes In working
capital and repayment schedule of its other unsecured debts, as well as the fund expected to be
received from a major shareholder and future placement of shares.

in addition, management has also taken into consideration the ability to successfully negotiate
with principal and other lenders of the Group and finalise the debt restructuring plan which will
determine the Group's and the Company's ability to service their borrowings when they fall due
(Note 23), to resolve with a secured lender on the ongoing writ of summons and statements of
claims in respect of the outstanding amount due to the lender {Note 23}, exposure to the
performance guarantee given by the Company in relation to the purchase of five rigs contracted
by an associate (Notes 37 and 38) and the resolution of the on-going legal claim in relation to the
reconsiruction of a vesse! {Note 38) in favour of the Group.

Management is confident that a successful conclusion of the above events will improve the financial
position of the Group and enable it to continue operations for the foreseeable future.

Liguidity and interest risk anafyses

Non-derivative financial assets

The following table details the expected maturity for non-derivative financial assets. The inclusion
of information on non-derivative finandal assets is necessary in order to understand the Group's
liquidity risk ranagement as the Group's liquidity risk is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the
financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets except where the Group and
the Company anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period. The adjustment column
represents the possible future cash flows attributable to the instrument included in the maturity
analysis which are not included in the carrying amount of the financial assets on the statement of
financial position.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

(<) financial risk management policies and objectives {cont’d)

vy Liguidity risk manggement (cont'd)

Welghted

average On demand

effective or within Within

interest rate 1 year 1to5years  Adjustments Total
% US$600 Us$'o000 US$000 Us$'000

Group
2018
Mon-interest bearing - EFRYE 1,223 - 78,356
Variable interest rate 0,38 174 - {1} 173
Total 77,347 1,223 (1) 78,569
2017
Non-interest bearing - 102,140 12,578 - 114,718
Variable interest rate 1.14 1,217 - {14) 1,203
Totat 103,357 12,578 {14} 115,921
Company
2018
Mon-interest bearing - 260 - - 260
2017
Non-interest bearing - 160 11,355 - 11,515

Non-derivative finangial liabilities

The following tabte details the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up hased on the undiscounted cash flows of financial labilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group and the Company can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. The adjustiment column represents the possible
future cash flows attributable to the instrument included in the maturity analysis which is not

included in the carrying amount of the financial liabilities on the statement of financial position,
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{

NOTES TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financiat risk management policies and objiectives {cont'd)

(v}

Liguidity risk manggement (cont'd)

June 20, 2018

Weighted
average On demand
effective or within Within After
interest rate 1 year 1to5years Syear Adjustments  Total

% Us3'000 us$’o00 US5$'000 us$000 USs'000
Group
2018
Non-interest bearing - 57,153 782 - - 57,835
Fixed interest rate 5.49 114 38,889 - {2,049) 36,954
Variable interest rate 3.94 119,019 - - {4,827} 114,182
Total 176,286 39,67t - {6,876} 209,081
2017
MNon-interest bearing - 58,076 - - - 59,076
Fixed interest rate 6.43 38,522 243 - {2,0349) 36,726
Variable interest rate 3.59 137,855 - - {5,438 132417
Totat 235,453 243 - {7,477% 228,219
Company
2018
Non-interest bearing - 137,369 - - - 137,369
Fixed interest rate 462 4,288 38,490 - {2,010} 40,768
Variable interest rate 3.59 41,020 - - {1,566) 39,454
Total 182,677 38,490 - {3,578) 217,591
2017
Non-interest bearing - 132,762 - - - 132,762
Fixed interest rate 4.87 42,639 12 - (2,178 40,473
Variable interest rate 359 37,431 - - (1,662} 35,769
Total 212,832 12 - {3,840) 209,004
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
)  Fipancial risk management policies and obiectives (cont'd}
(viy  Fairvalue of finandal assets and fingneial lfabilities

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair values are obtained from discounted cash flow models and
option models as appropriate.

The fair values of the current financial assets and financial llabilities carried at amortised cost as
reported on the statement of financial position approximate their carrying amounts due to their
relative short-term maturity.

The Group classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

There were no sighificant transfers between the levels of the falr value hierarchy in
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 20138,

Management consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements and approximate their fair vajues.

{ch Capital management policies and objeclives

The Group and the Company manage their capital to ensure that the Group and the Company will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity batance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes the bank borrowings (Note 23), finance
leases (Note 21} and notes payable {Note 22), and equity attributable to owners of the Company, which
comprises issued capital, reserves and accumulated profits as disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes the bank overdraft and borrowings
(Note 23), finance leases {Note 21) and notes payable {Note 22), and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, which comprises issued capital, reserves and net of accumulated losses as disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Management regularly monitors compliance with the financial covenants imposed by finandial institutions

for the facilities granted to the Group. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has breached

certain foan covenants and triggered cross default on other banking fadilities of the Group as disclosed

in Note 23. At the date of this report, whilst the Group remains actively engaged in negotiations with the
i principal lenders in relation to the Debt Restructuring, the Group had received writs of summons and
statement of claims filed by one of its secured lenders. The Group remains committed to the restructuring

and will continue to engage in discussions with all its secured lenders and any other key stakeholders
; in relation to the Debt Restructuring. The directors and management believe that there is reasonable
; likelihood that a Debt Restructuring can be successfully achieved.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

{dy  Capital management policies and objectives (cont'd}

The Group's net debt to equity ratio as at the end of the year are as follows:

Group
28 2017

US$'000 Uss$'000
Total debt 151,146 169,143
Cash and hank balances {4,576} {10,848}
Net debt 146,570 158,255
Total equity 97,014 188,912
Net debt to equity ratio 1.51 0,34

The Group's and Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

RELATED COMPANY TRANSACTIONS
Related companies in these financial statements refer to members of the Company’s group of companies.

Transactiohs between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related companies of the Company, have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Some of the Company’s transactions and
arrangements are between members of the Group and the effect of these on the basis determined between the
parties is reflected in these financial statements. The intercompany balances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand untess otherwise stated.

During the financial year, the Group entities entered into the following transactions with related companies:

Group
2018 2017

uss$000 Us$000
Associates
Management fee income {3943 {648}
Rendering of services {o0) {1,320}
Interest income {1799 -
loint-venttres
Management fee income - (6500}
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5B  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
some of the transactions and arrangements are with related parties and the effect of these on the basis
determined between the parties are reflected in these finandial statements, The balances are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand unless stated otherwise.

Details of transactions between the Group and related parties are disclosed below:

Group
2018 2017

Us3000 Us$000
Entities controlled by common directors and shareholders of the Company:
Rendering of services {17} {254)
Purchase of services 138 251
Directors and shareholders of the Company:
Rental expense 259 269

Compensation of directors and key management personnel

The remuneration of the Cornpany's directors and other members of key management during the financial year
were as follows:

Group
2018 2017
Us$oco Us$'000
Short-term benefits 1,471 1,806
Post-employment benefits ' 51 45
Total _ 1,522 1,851

The remuneration of directors and key management is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

6 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Us$’0o0 Us$'000 USs'000 US$'000
Cash on hand and bank balances 4,403 3,645 37 28
Fixed deposits 173 1,203 - -
Total 4,576 10,848 37 28
Less: Fixed deposits and bank balances pledged {198) (1,330
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash
flows 4,386 9,518
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June 30, 2018

Fixed deposits bear interesis at effective interest rates ranging from 0.50% to 2.03% (2017 : 0.50% to 2.03% per
anrum and for a tenure of 10 days to a year (2017 : 10 days to a year). The following are pledged to financial
institution in respect of banking facilities provided to the Group and the Company (Note 23}

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Us$000 USs$000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Pladged flixed deposits 173 1,177 - -
Bank balances 17 153 - -
Total 190 1,330 - -
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Group
2018 2017
US$'000 Us$'000

Qutside parties 87,335 99,457
lLess: Altowance for doubtful debts @ (38,4706) {40,412}
Net 48,859 59,045
Related parties {Note 5B) 383 383
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts @ {383) (69}
Total 48,859 59,359
Movement in the above alfowance:
Balance at beginning of the year 40,481 15,601
Increase in allowance recegnised in profit or loss [Note 33 (b)) 2,904 25,702
Written-off {614) (2329
Written back {Note 30) (261) (583)
Transfer to assets heid for sale (Note 9) (3,651) -
Balance at end of the year 38,859 40,481

The average credit period on sales of goods is 90 days (2017 : 90 days). No interest is charged on the outstanding

trade receivable balance.

The allowance for doubtful receivables has been determined by reference to past default experience and the
review of the trade receivables listing by management. In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted
up to the reporting date. Management is of opinion that no further credit alowance is required in excess of the

allowrance for doubtful debts.
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7 TRADE RECEIVABLES {cont'd)

{3} Included in trade receivables due from outside parties above are contracts with a third party debior as follows:

Group
2018 2017
USs$000 US$'000
Cosis incurred to date plus recognised profits 506,050 506,050
Accumulated hbillings {442,668) {443,166)
Net amount due from contract customaers inciuded in trade receivables
due from outside parties 63,382 62,884

As at june 30, 2018, management is in discussion with the third party debtor to recover the sutstanding amounts of
US363,382,000 {2017 : USE62,884,000% As at date of these financial statements, the negoliations are still on-going and
subject to the finalisation on various precedent conditions and the approvals of bath parties. As of Jupe 30, 2018, the
Group made an allowance for doubtful debt of U5$23,382,000 (2017 : U5$22,884,000) due to the uncertainty of amounts
recoverable from the third party debtor. Management is of the view that the allowance amount is adequate and nat
excessive based on their best estimates.

8 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Us$000 U53'000 USS000 uss$000
sundry receivables 5,335 5,560 30 23
Due from subsidiaries {Note 54 and 12) - - 261,453 259,814
Due from associates (Note 5A and 13) 23,287 39,361 11,334 25,431
Due from joint ventures {Note 5A and 14) 19,045 25,894 - -
Due from related parties {Note 5B} 1,570 646 - -
Less: Allowance for other receivables
recognised in profit or loss (Note 33) (24,385} (25,341) (272,787) (273,890)
Net 24,852 45,520 30 11,378
Prepayments 2,804 2,116 49 67
Sundry deposits 282 194 193 109
Total 27,938 47,830 272 11,554
Less: Non-Current portion {1,193} (12,578) - {11,355}
Current portion 26,745 35,252 272 199
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OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
USss$'000 ussooo Uss000 Us$'000
Non-current portion |s made up of;
Bue from associate - 11,355 - 11,355
Prepayments 1,193 1,223 - -
Total 1,193 12,578 - 11,355
Movement in the above allowance:
Balance at beginning of the year 25,941 - 273,890 -
Increase in allowance recognised in profit or loss
[Note 33 (b]] 7,252 25,941 1,645 273,890
Written-off {2,748} - (2.748) -
Transfer to assets held for sale {6,060} - - -
Balance at end of the year 24,385 25,941 272,787 273.890

The amounts due from subsidiaries, assodates, joint ventures and related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand except for an amount due from associate which is due more than one year after the
reporting period.

In determining the recoverability of receivables from joint ventures, associates, related parties and third parties,
the Group considers the financial strength and performance of the joint ventures, associates related parties and
third parties, Accordingly, management believes that the Group’'s allowance for doubtful debts of U5$24,385,000
(2017 : US$25,941,000} is adequate,

In determining the recoverability of receivables from subsidiaries and associates, the Company caonsiders the
financial strength and performance of the subsidiaries and associates. Accordingly, management believes that
the Company's allowance for doubtful debts of US$272,787,000 (2017 : US$273,890,000) is adequate.

During the year, the Group and the Company wrote off an amount due from an associate of US$11,355,000
(2017 - USSNI [Note 33(b)] as result of the termination of a rig contract between the assodiate and a third party
shipyard {Note 37}

In determining the recoverability of other receivables from third parties, the Group and the Company consider
any changes in the credit quality of the third parties from the date credit was initially granted up to end of the
reporting period. The Group’s and Company's sundry recetvables from third parties are neither past due nor
impaired and have been assessed to be creditworthy, based on the credit evaluation process performed by
managernent,
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9 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE / LIABLITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
uss'000 Us$'000 Uss'000 US$'000
Assets held for sale;
A clisposal group ® 103,761 - - -
A joint venture 9,081 - - -
teasehold office premises © 9,585 5,912 - 5,912
122,427 5012 - 5,912
Presented as non-current assets {7,581) - - -
114,846 5912 - 5912
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale:
A disposal group - 24,157 - - -
A joint venture 6,831 - - -
teasehold office premises 6,864 3.465 - 3,465
37852 3,465 - 3465
Presented as non-current liabilities {6,831 - - -
31,021 3,465 - 3,465

(a)  Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary

On July 26, 2018, the Group entered Into a sale and purchase agreement with a third party in relation
to the sale of 217,800,000 shares representing 20.90% of equity interest in CH Offshore Ltd ("CHO"} for
a total consideration of $$25,047,000 {equivalent to approximately US$18,362,000) based on a price of
$$0.115 per share. Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group’s interast in CHO reduced from 64.91%
to 34.01%, and accordingly CHO ceased to be a subsidiary and wili be accounted as an assodiate of the

Group.
The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal group classified as held for sale are as
follows:
2018
us$'000

Property, plant and equipment {Note 11) 176,351
Accumulated impairment {Note 11) {98,326)
Net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 78,025
Cash and cash equivalents 4,249
inventories 140
Trade and other receivables, net of impairment 11,156
Prepayments 122
Associated companies (Note 13) 10,069
Total assets classified as held for sale 103,761
Trade and other payabies, and total for abilittes associated with assets

classified as held for sale {24,157)
Net assets of disposal group 79,604
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ASSETS HELD FOR SALE / LIABLITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE {cont'd)

{a)

(b}

()

Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary {cont’d)

The fair value less costs to sell is lower than the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities
immediately before the disposal and accordingly, an impairment loss of US$10,964,000 has been
recognised during the year ended Junie 30, 2018. As of june 30, 2018, the fair value of the retained interest
in CHO upon the completion of the disposal is approximately US$32,288,000.

Planned disposal of the entire interest in a joint venture

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group is in discussion with the joint venture partner of
Dictamismo S DE R.L. DE.C.V (“Dictarnismeo”) to dispose its entire interest in Dictamismo being 50% equity
interest at a total consideration of US$2,250,000. The disposal is expected to be completed one year after
the end of the reporting period.

The fair value less costs to sell is expected to be lower than the net carrying amount of the refevant assets
and Habilities and accordingly, an impainment loss of US$6,243,000 has been recognised during the year
ended june 30, 2018.

Disposal of leasehold office premises

On August 16, 2018, the Group entered into various sales and purchase agreement 1o dispose the
leasehold office premises (Mote 11) for an aggregate consideration of $$13,205,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$3,585,000).

The proceeds on disposal are expected to be lower than the net carrying amount of the leasehold office
premises immediately before the disposal and, accordingly, an impairment loss of US$917,000 has been
recognised to write down the carrying amount of the assets to the fair value less cost to sell during the
year ended June 30, 2018. Subsequent {0 the end of the reporting period, the Group repaid 6,864,006 out
of the safe proceeds from disposal of a leasehold office premises,

The disposal of the Group’s and the Company's leasehold office premises classified as assets held for
sate as of June 30, 2017 with the carrying amount of US5$5,912,000 was completed during the year.
Consequently, the Group repaid the outstanding loans secured by the related praperties amounted to
US5$3,465,000 during the year.

INVENTORIES

Group
2018 2017

Us$'000 US$'000

Equipment components, at cost 282 1.012
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NOTES TO
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June 30, 2018

1" PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Plant  Furniture Construction
Freghold  office Dry- and and Motor  work-in
Buildings land  premises Vessels docking machinery fittings Renovation vehicles progress  Total

USFO00  USS'000  USEO00  US$000 USS'E00 USSR USS000  USH000 US¥000  UsHO00  USK000

Group
Cost:
ALy 1,2006 1,286 40 M 472735 N B850 945 293 1,750 2105 1,087 526,344
Transiation adjestmant 67 2 - - {&8) i4 5 11 303 - 3R
Additions 800 104 - 308 33 50 b 4 i16 67 2368
Transfer to assets hefd
for salz - - {6,574} - - - - - - - {6,579
fisposal - - - - - {25) {7 - {98) - {1401
Af June 30, 2017 2,153 146 17,622 473043 22083 1,034 287 1,765 2,426 1,754 522313
Transtation adjustment {75} {5) - - - - 3 4 (13} - 186)
Additions - - - a8 15855 20 16 - 12 1,095 4156
Transfer from construction
work-in progress - - - - 76 - - - - (176} -
Transfer to assets held
for sale - - (13537 {239.809) (i731%) - {290 - - {98 {271,535
Wite-off - - - - - (h - {52) - - {53)
Disposal - - - {5,048} - (A - (200 (4381 - {5,523)
At fune 30, 2018 2078 141 4026 229044 7500 5,035 i6 1,697 2187 1,086 48872
Accunsblated depreciation:
A July 1, 2616 459 - 1,481 96,779 1663 EL| 145 1,244 1,135 - 162857
Trznstation adjustment 63 2 - - - {n - {4 LX) - i%3
Depraciation 92 2 429 536 3489 04 54 159 317 - 25,248
Transfer to assets held
for sale - - f667) - - - - - - - {667)
Reclassification - - - {3,788} 3788 - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - {25 & - (361 - (691
Atjune 30, 2017 il 4 1243 N4587 14940 319 191 1,399 1,504 - 135322
Trznskation adjLstinent 140 - - - - - 3 4 {12} - £45)
Depreciation % 2 2 708 2383 i3 74 100 M - 30442
Transfer (o assets held
for sale - - (1.3 (65,309 {13471 - {268) - - - (83,282}
Write-off - - - - - {1} - {45) - - {47]
Bisposal - - - {1,556) - {0 - {200 {524 - {1,908)
AL June 30, 2018 636 6 200 N8I 38n 386 - 1,437 | 475 - R0,482
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd)

NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fune 20, 2018

Leasehold Plant  Furniture Construction
Frechold  office bry- ang and Motor  work-in
Buildings land  premises Vessels docking machinery fittings Renovation vehicles progress  Total
US$O00  USH000  USHDOC  USYODD USS000  USHO00  USK000  USEOUD  USSD00  USHGO0  USHORG
Grou {eoni'd}
impairment 055,
Athay 1, 2016 - - - 16,110 - - - - - - G110
Additions {Note 33) - - 1800 &pi3 - - - - - - 86,813
At june 30, 2017 - - 1800 95123 - - - - - - 66,023
Transler to assels held
for sale - - 217 (98328} - - - - - - {167,643)
Disposal (Note 33) - - - {3.294) - - - - - {3.254]
Additiens {Hote 33) - - 917 3719 - - - - - - 24,636
At June 30,2018 - - - 112 - - - - - - 17222
Carrying amount:
At Jure 30, 2007 1,523 142 1457 763333 7143 5 56 366 917 1,754 290,068
Al june 30, 2018 1,392 i35 379 139852 3679 14l I 260 i12 1,086 151,163
Leasehold Furniture Plant
office and and Motor
Company premises fittings  machinery Renovation vehicles Total
US$000 Uss$'000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
ost:
At July 1, 2076 6,579 g6 281 577 359 7,892
Disposals - - {1} - - {1
Transferred to assets
held for sale (6,579} - - - - {6,579
At june 30, 2017 and 2018 - 96 280 577 359 1,312
Accumulated depreciation:
At July 1, 2016 554 84 237 542 159 1,576
Depreciation 113 9 23 16 72 233
Disposals - - (n - - (1)
Transferred to assets
held for sate 667) - - - - {667)
At June 30, 20017 - 93 259 558 23 1,14
Depreciation - 1 19 16 72 103
At june 30, 2018 - 54 278 574 303 1,249
Carrying amount:
At june 30, 2017 - 3 21 19 128 171
Af june 30, 2018 - 2 2 3 56 63
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

" PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's properties, plant and equipment includes an amount
of US$586,000 (2017 : US$721,000) and US$25,000 (2017 1 US$61,000) secured in respect of assets held under
finance leases (Note 21),

The Group and the Company have the following pledges to secure banking facilities {(Note 23) granted to the
Group and the Company.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Us$'000 uss$'eoo Us5'000 Us$000
Leasehold office premises 3,785 22,531 - 5912
Vessels and dry-docking 126,011 158,116 - -
Total 129,806 180,647 - 5912

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of its vessels far chartering segment
due to the deterioration in operating results following the market downturn. The review of impairment of
property, plant and equipment involved key estimates as disclosed in Note 3(b)ii) led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of US$23,712,000 (2017 : US$85,013,000} that has been recognised in profit or loss and included
in other expenses. The recoverable amount of the vessels of U5$270,476,000 has been determined on the basis
of their value in use,

12 SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2018 2017
UsS4$000 Us3'000

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 166,684 166,684
Less: Allowance for impairment (124,544) (74,457}

42,140 92,233
Deemed investment in subsidiaries 14,739 14,033
Less: Allowance for impairment {14,739) {14,023)
Total 42,140 $2,233

The deemed investment in subsidiaries relates to the amount due from subsidiaries which is unsecured, interest-
free and not expected to be repaid in the foreseeable fuiure.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related companies of the Company, have
heen eliminated on conselidation and are not disciosed in the finandial statements.

Company
2018 2017
Us$'000 US$'000
Movemaent in the above allowance:
Balance at beginning of the year 88,484 23,089
Increase in allowance recognised in profit or [oss 50,799 65,395
Balance at end of the year 139,283 88,484
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at the end of the year are as follows:

Effective equity Place of
interest and voting  incorporation/

Name of entity power held operation Principal activities
2018 2017
% %

Held by the Comaany:

Capital Guardian Limited * 100 100 Hong Kong Investment holding
Energian Pte Lid ™ 108 100 Singapore Investment holding
Falcon Energy Projects Pte Ltd @ 100 - 100 Singapore Investment holding
Falcon Qilfield Services Pte Lid @ 160 100 Singapore Investment holding
FEG Offshore Pte Ltd @ 100 100 Singapore Investrnant holding
Petro Asset Pte Ltd & 100 100 Singapore Providing services to

cilfield companies

Oilfield Services Company Limited &1 100 100 Hong Kong Investment holding
Radford Holdings timited ¥ 100 100 Hong Kong Investment holding

Held by Capital Guardian Limited:

CGL Respurces Limited ™ 100 100 tabuan Coal trading and related
activities
FLZ Qil & Gas Limnited © 65 65 Labuan Crude oil trading and

related activities

Held by Energian Pte Ltd.

CH Offshore Lid & 64,91 64.91 Singapore Vessel owner and charterer
Held by CH Offshore Jid:

CHO Ship Management Pte Ltd ¥ 64,91 64.91 Singapore Ship manager

Delaware Marine Pte Lid 2 64.91 64.91 Singapore Dormant

Garo Pte Ltd & 64,91 64.91 Singapore Dormant

QOffshore Gold Shipping Pte Ltd & 64.91 64.91 Singapore Vessel owner and.charterer
Pemhbrocke Marine Pte Ltd ¥ 64.91 64.91 Singapore Vessel ewner and charterer
Sea Glory Private Limited @ 654.91 64.91 Singapore Vessel gwner and charterer
Venture Gffshore Pie Ltd & 64.91 64.91 Singapore nvestment holding
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12  SUBS!DIARIES {cont'd)

Effective equity Place of
interest and voting  incorporation/

Mame of entity power held operation Principal activities

2018 2017

% %
Held by CHO Shiy Management Pte Lid:
High Majestic Stn Bhd @ 64.91 64,91 Malaysia Vessel owner and charterer
Held by Delaware Marine Pte Lid:
Pearl Marine Pte Ltd = 64.91 64,91 Mataysia Vessel owner and charterer
Held by Falcon Energy Projects Pte Eid:
Falcon Oilfield Projects inc. 113 100 166 British Virgin Project management
Islands "BV}

Passifiora Capital Limited 1 100 160 BVl Bareboat charterer
Otira Corporation 100 100 BVI Bareboat charterer

Held by Falcon Dilfield Services Pte Ltd:

Astanient S.A de CV. & 65 85 Republic of Providing services to oil
Mexico field companies

CDS Gilfield Service (S) Pte Ltd @ 86.67 86.67 Singapore Shipping agent

CDS Gilfield Service (Tianjin Co., Ltd &9 65 65 People's Republic International trade logistics
of China and oilfield services of
{"PRC") engineering technical and

consuliation

Falcon Oilfield Services (USA) Ing, © 100 100 United States of  Providing services to
America oilfield companies

Longzhu Oilfield Services (S) Pte Ltd & 65 65 Singapore Shipping agencies for

offshore oilfields,
explorations,
construction and rmarine
transportations

Petrolink FZC 65 65 United Arab import, export and trading
Emirates in
ofl and gas field equipment
and marine equipment
related accessories

Terasa-Star International Shipping 65 65 Singapore Provision of shipping and

Pte Ltd % transportation services and
sales of demulsifies
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SUBSIDIARIES {cont’d)

Effective equity

interest and voting

Place of

incorporation/

NOTES TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 20718

Name of entity power held operation Principal activities
2018 2017
% Y%

Held by FEG Offshore Ple Lid:

PDE International Lid = 100 100 Labuan Vessel awner and charterer

PT Bayu Maritim Makmur @ a0 90 indonesia Vessel owner and charterar

PT Bayu Maritim Berkah & 50 a0 indonesia Vessel owner and charterer

£T Bayu Maridm Group © 90 50 indonesia Ihvestment holding

Sears Marine 5.A, 18 100 100 Republic Vessel owner and charterer

of Panama
{"Panama”)

Held by Qilfield Services Company Limited:

Asetanian Marine Pte Lid @2 100 100 Singapore Ship manager

Atlantic Marine 5.4, (4 100 100 Republic of Vessel owner and charterer

Panama

Century Marine 5.A, (W@ 100 100 Panama Vessel owner and charterer

Excel Marine S.A, 1© 100 100 Panama Vessel owner and charterer

imperial Maring 5.A, (NE 160 100 Panama Vessel owner and charteret

Innovest Resources Ltd 1 100 100 BVt Vessel owner and charterer

Held by Oiifield Services Company Fimited:

Morrison Marine Services S.A M® 160 100 Panama Vessel owner and charterer

Motley Trio Offshore Ple Ltd 100 100 Bvi Vessel owner and charterer

Aset Marine Pte Ltd 17 100 100 Singapore Ship manager

Trio Victory inc & 166 100 Bvi Vessel owner and charterer

Held by Radford Holdings Limited:

Falcon Resource Management Pte Lid @ 160 100 Singapore Mining management and
other refated services; and
investrment holding

Krameria Limited ™ 100 160 Hong Kong tvestment holding

PT Ganindo Sentosa Makmur ™ 169 180 tndonesia Dormant
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June 30, 2018

12 SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Effective equity Place of
interest and voting  incorporation/
Name of entity power held operation Principal activities
2018 2017
% %
Held by Radford Holdings Lirpited: {cont'd)
PT Falindo Sukses Abadi 100 100 Indanesia Dormant
PT Majujasa Sumber # 100 160 Indonesia Coal trading and mining
activities
PT Majujasa Tenaga ® 160 100 Indonesia Coal trading and mining
activities
Guick Link Holdings Limited # 100 100 Hong Kong Investiment holding

Motes:

i Not required to be audited by law in the country of incorporation.

@ Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore.

i Audited by other firms of auditors.

“h Audited by overseas practices of Deloit{e Touche Tohmatsu Limited.

5 Not cansidered to be a material subsidiary of the Group.

o Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore for consolidation purposes.

o A public listed Company on SGX with June 30 financial year end and audited by Geloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore. As
at fjune 30, 2018, the market value of the quoted equity shares held by the Group was approximately U5£43,6756,000
{equivalent to $$59,483,000)[2017 : US$84,733,000 {equivalent to 54116,678,6003}. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, the Group entered into a sale and purchase transaction to dispose 30.8% of the interest in CHO [Note 9 (a)].

In 2017, the Group disposed 153,846,150 shares in CHO for rash consideration of approximately Us$14,295,000. The

difference between the amount in which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the proceed
received of U5$29,781,000 was recognised directly in equity,
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

The table below shows datails of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that have matertat non-controtling
irterests:

Proportion of
ownership interests
Place of and voting rights held Profit allocated
incorporation/ by non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary operation interests interests controlling interests
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
% % US$000  USS'000  USE000  USE000
CH Cffshore Ltd Singapore 35.09 35.09 {3.226) (27,739 33,310 42,536
Longzhu Oilfield
Services (5) Pte Ltd Singapore 35.00 35.00 {3.364) (12,709) 7,543 10,967

Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (4,394} {(1,290) 701 5.095

{16,984} {41,788) 41,654 58,538

summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

Statement of financial position

Longzhu Oilfieid

CH Offshore Ltd Services (5) Pte Ltd
2018 2017 2018 2017
1)S%'000 USs$'000 us%$'000 us$ 000
Current assets 16,208 22,919 54,409 52,770
Non-current assets 102,875 123,646 9,477 20,863
Current Hahilities {12,540) {3,829 (44,641} (44,788)
Non-current liahilities {11,217 {15,507 (179} {167}
Equity atiributable to owners of the Company 61,616 78,683 11,523 17,771
Non-controlling interests 33,310 42,536 7,543 10,907
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Longzhu Qilfield

CH Offshore Ltd Services {S) Pte Ltd

2018 2017 2018 2017
US$000 Uss0o0 Uss$'000 Uus$000
Revenue 9,806 16,405 6,779 53,375
Expenses {36,675) 156,829 {17,649} {93,761}
Other income 476 344 1,258 1,555
Loss for the year {26,293} {40,080} {9,612) {38,831}
Loss attributable to owners of the Company (17,067} {12,291) {6,248) {26,122}
Laoss attributable to non-controlling interests (9,226} {(27,789) {3,364} {12,709}

Loss for the year, representing total

comprehensive income for the year (26,293) {40,080} (9,612} (33,831)

Dividends dectared to non-controlling interests - - - -

Cash Flow Statement
Longzhu Oilfield
CH Offshore Ltd Services (5) Pte Ltd
Cash flows infermation 2018 2017 2018 2017
LS$'000 Uss'o00 Us$'000 Us$000
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 109 {6,087) {1,913) {3,666}
Net cash outflow from investing activities {539 {653) {415) {383}
Net cash inflow {outflow) from financing activities - 1,680 949 (717}
Net cash outflow {430) {5,060} {1,383) {4,166)

There were no significant restrictions on the Company and its subsidiaries’ ability to access or use the assets and
settie the liahilities of the Group.
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June 20, 2018

13 ASSOCIATES

Group Company
2818 2017 2018 2017
Us$000 UsS$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000
Unquoted equity shares, at cost : 8,998 8,958 * *
Amount receivables - non-trade 3,879 12,677 - -
Charge to profit or loss during the year
[Note 33 (b} (239} - - -
Share of post-acquisition profit, net of dividend
received and amortisation of deferred gain 2,114 9,226 - -
tess: Transfer to assets held for sale [Note 9 (b)) {10,069) - - -
Total 4,683 30,901 * *

* Amaunt fess chan US$T,000

o The amount receivables are unsecured, inferest-free and repayable upon digposal of the assodiates. The arnounts
receivable from the associates, in substance, form part of the Group's net investrment in the associates.

Details of the Group's associates as at the end of the financiat year are as follows:

Effective equity Place of
interest and voting  incorporation/

Name of entity power held operation Principal activities
2018 2017
% %
Held by company.
FTS Darricks Pte Ltd™ 50 56 Singapore Investment hoiding, rigs
owner and operators
Heid by Fajcon Energy Projects Pte Ltd:
Federal Offshore Services Pte Ltd @ 40 40 Singapore Vessel owner and charterer
Held by Ci4 Offshore Ltd:
Gemird Sprint Sdn Bhd 9& 31.81 31.81 Malaysiza Vessel chartering
Marineco Limited & 31.81 21.81 Malaysia Vessel owner and charterer

Held by Venture Offshore Pte, Lid;

PT Bahtera Nusantara Indonesia ¥ 31.81 31.81 indanesia Vessel owner and chartgrer
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13 ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated finandcial staternents.

Motes:

in Audited by Deloitte and Touche LLP, Singapore.

@& Audited by Emst & Young LLP, Singapore,

& The audited firancial staternents of the assoctates held by the company are for the financial year ended March 31, 2018,
Accordingly, unaudited management accounts for the finandial period from july 1, 2018 to june 30, 2018 were used for
determining the full financlal period's profit far the purpose of equity accounting for Marineco Limited and Gemini Sprint

Sdn. Bhd.

“ Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore {or consolidation purpose.

The following amounts are inciuded in the Group’s financial statements as a result of the equity accounting of the

associates:
2018 2017

UsS$000 Us$'000
PT Bahtera Nusantara Indonesia 10,069 21,255
FTS Derricks Pte Ltd ™ - -
Other associates 4,683 3 h46
Less: Transferred to assets held for sale (Note 9} {10,069) -
Total 4,683 30,901

i The accumulated losses of associated companies in excess of the Group's interest which is not included in these financial
statements using equity method of accounting amounted to US$57,452,000 (2017 ; US$30,688,000;.

summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s material associate s set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements:

PT Bahtera Nusantara

Indonesia FTS Derrick Pte Ltd
2018 2017 2018 2017
US$000 Us$000 US$'000 us$'000
Current assefs 3,054 4,291 3,261 3,256
Non-current assets 34,024 41,277 - 52,112
Current liabilities {1,440} (2,189) (28,499) {28,074)
; Nort-current liabilities (15,130} (16,264) (89,663) {39,663)
Mon-controlling interests - - 3) {6)
: Net assets of the associate 20,548 27,115 {114,904} (61,375)
Group's share of net assets i the associate 10,069 13,286 {57.452) {30,588)
Share of losses not taken up by the Group - - 57,452 30,5688
Amount receivables - non-trade - 7,969 - -
Carrying amount of the Group’s in the associate 10,065 21,255 - -
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ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

NOTES TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PT Bahtera Nusantara

June 30, 2018

indonesia ETS Derrick Pte Ltd
2018 2017 2018 2017
Uss'000 Uss$'000 USss$000 Us$'000
Revenue 5,379 6,241 - -
Loss for the year representing total
comprehensive loss for the year {6,567) {8,089} {53,528) {63,998)
Group's share of tofal comprehensive loss
for the year (3.217) {3,364} - {1,280)

There were no significant restrictions on the associates’ ability to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash

dividends.

Aggregate inforration of associates that are not individually material:

2018 2017
Us3$'000 Us$’000
The Group's share of loss for tha year from continuing operations, representing
the Group's share of total comprehensive loss {2,925) {3,334}
Deferred gain charged to profit or loss during the year 390 403
Group's share of assodiates’ loss for the year {2,535) {2,431)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in these associates 4,683 9,646
JOINT VENTURES
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Us$'000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$'000
tinquoted equity shares, at cost 57 57 * *
Share of post-acquisition profit, net of dividend
received and amartisation of deferred gain 12,152 11,939 - -
Charge to profit or loss during the year
[Note 33 {bii {6,243) - - -
Less: Transfer to assets held for sale {Note 3 {b)] {2,215} - - -
Total 3,751 11,996 * *

* Amaunt less than US$1,000
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14 JOINT VENTURES (cont'd)

Place of interest

Effective equity and voting power incorporation/
Name of entity held operation Principal activities

2018 2017

% %

Held by the Company:
FISG Co. Limited (19 50 50 =3 Investment holding
Held by FT5G.Co Limited:
TS Drilling Holdings Limited ™ 25 25 Bvi tnvestment holding
TS Coral Limited 28 25 BVI Rig owner and operator
TS Opal Limited @ 25 25 Bvi Rig owner and operator
TS5 Emerald Limited #% 25 25 BVI Rig owner and operator
TS Jade Limited ™ 25 25 BvI Rig owner and operator
TS Topaz Limited 3 25 25 vl Rig owner and operator
Held by Qilfield Services Company timited:
Dictamismo S De R.L. De Cv, @@ 50 50 Mexico Vessel owner and charterer
Held by FEG Offshore Pte Ltd:
Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd ©& 50 50 Brunei Vessel owner and charterer
Notes:

M Notrequired to be audited by law in the country of incorporation.
o Mot considered to be a materlal joint venture of the Group.

® Audited by other firms of auditors.

w Subsequent to June 30, 2018, the Group is in discussion with joint venture partner to dispose its entire fnterest in

Dictamismo fMote 9 (b))

There were no significant restrictions on the joint ventures’ ability to transfer funds to the Group in the form of

cash dividends.

The following amounts are included in the Group's financial statements as a result of the equity accounting of the

joint ventures.

2018 2017
Us$'000 Us$'000
Dictamismo 2,215 8,144
tdaritim Indah Sdn Bhd ("Maritim indah") 3,751 3,852
Other joint ventures * *
l.ess: Transfer 1o assels held for sale [Note 9 ()] {2,215) -
Total 2,751 11,996

* Amaunt less than USH1060.
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14  JOINT VENTURES {cont'd)

surnmarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's material joint ventures is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amaunts shown in the joint ventures’ finandial staterments:

Dictamismo Maritim Indah
2018 2017 2018 2017
Uss$'0co uss'000 US3$'000 Us3'000

Current assets 20,983 15,860 1.3 1,792
Non-current asseis 31,333 33,333 49,497 51,759
Current liabilities (6,159) (4,692) {20,826) {21.212)
Non-curreng liabilities {31,835) {27,140) {23,028) {25,412)
Net assets of the joint ventures 14,322 17,361 7,374 £,827
Group's share of net assets in the joint ventures 7.161 8,681 3,687 3,464
Other adjustrments {4,946} (537 64 388
Carrying smount of the Group's interest in the

joint ventures 2,215 8,144 3.751 3,852
Revenue 5,041 7,924 9,347 10,622
Profit {Loss) for the year, representing total

comprehensive income {loss) for the year 627 5,696 {202) 2,438
Group's share of totat comprehensive income

{loss) for the year 314 2,848 (101 1,219
Cther adjustmen(s - - - {15)
Deferred gain charged to profit or loss

during the year 433 423 867 B67
Group's share of joint ventures’ profit for the year 747 3.271 766 2,071

15  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

Group and Company

2038 2017
; us3'900 us$000
! Unguoted equity shares, at cost 2,098 2,098

! The investment in unquoted shares represents an nvestment in an entity that invests, owns and charters oil rigs

5 and provides drilling and associated services. Management is of the view that there are no reliable measures
of the fair walues of the investment and that the share of net assets approximates the recoverable amount.
Accordingly, the investment in unguoted shares is stated at cost less impairment in recoverable value,
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16 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Club Mining Pre-mining
Group membership  concession expenses Total
Us$000 USs$'000 Uss'000 Us$000
Atjuly 1, 2014 186 633 2,115 2,934
Written off during the year to profit or loss
[Note 33(bj] - (633) (2,115) {2,748)
Al Jume 30, 2017 and 2018 186 - - 186

The intangible assets included above, except club membership, have finite useful lives, over which the assets are
amortised.

Club membership has an indefinite useful life and is assessed for impairment based on indicative market prices,

Mining concession will be amortised over 5 years ar shorter period based on the total proven and probable
reserves of the coal mine starting fram the date of commercial operation.

Pre-rining expenses will be armnortised upon commencement of the mining operations.
In 2017, management evaluated the recoverabllity of the mining concession and pre-mining expenses and

determined that the Group was unable to achieve an economically visible extraction operation. This assessment
led to full write off of mining concession and pre-mining of US$2,748,000.

17 DEFERRED TAXATION

Group
2018 2017
LS$'000 UsS$000
Deferred tax assets 541 498
Deferred tax liabilities {5,100} {8,934)
Total {4,559) {8,436)

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and the movement during

the financial year:

Deferred tax assets (liabtlities)

: Accelerated  Unutifised Other

tax capital Fair value Unabsorbed temporary

Group depreciation allowance adjustments tax losses  differences Total

Us$q00 Us$'000 US$'000 us$'o00 Us$'000 us$000

Balance at july 1, 2016 {6,255} 1,666 {9,102} 354 {5,100} {18,437)

: Credited {Chargad) to profit or loss

: {Note 32} 849 (93) 9,102 144 {1} 10,0601

: Balance at june 30, 2017 {5,406} 1,273 - 498 {5.101) {8,436)

i Transfer to liabilities associated

with asstes hetd for sale 4,817 (865) - - - 3,952

| Credited (Charged) (o profit or loss

i {Note 32} 589 {708) - 43 i {75)
Balance at june 34, 2018 - - - 541 {5,100 {4,559)
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DEFERRED TAXATION (cont'd)

An allowance is made to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax losses carry forwards can be utilised by certain subsidiaries. The realisation of the future income tax
benefits from tax losses carry forwards and temporary differences are available for an unlimited future period
subject to the conditions imposed by law including the retention of majority shareholders as defined. Where
provision for deferred tax arising from temporary differences has been offset against the above tax |osses carry
forwards, such provision for deferred tax will be required to be set up when the tax tosses are utilised in the
future.

At the end of the year, deferred tax liabilities amounting to US$2,250,000 (2017 @ U5$2,393,000) have not been
recognised on the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries. No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a position
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are insignificant.

Subject to agreement with the Comptroller of Income Tax and tax authorities in the relevant foreign tax
jurisdictions in which the Group operates and conditions imposed by law, the Group has tax loss carry forwards
available for offsetting against fuiure taxabie income amounting to U5$6,896,000 (2017 © US5%6,643,000).

Subject to the agreement by the tax authorities, at the end of the year, the group has unuiilised capital
aliowances of US$NIl (2017 : US$9,252,000) available for offset against future profits.

Future tax benefits fram the foreign tax loss carry forwards from a subsidiary in indonesia are not recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profits and have limited life up to 2020 to offset against future profits after
which any unutilised amount will be foregone.

GOODWILL
Group
2018 2017
Us$000 US$'C00
Cost:
At beginning of year 7.577 7.577
Transferred to assets held for sate {Note 9{a}] (6,376) -
Al end of year 1,201 7,577
trnpairment:
At beginning of year {7,577 {2,527}
impairment loss recognised during the year [Note 33{b}] - (5,050}
Transferred to assets held for sate [Note 9(a}} 6,376 -
Balance at end of year {1,201} {7.577)

Carrying amount at end of year - -
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GCODWILL (cont'd)

Goadwill acquired in a business combination allocated o the cash-generating units ("CGUs") that are expected te
benefit from that business combination:

Carrying amount of goodwill
before recognition of

Name of subsidiary CGU impairment [oss
2018 2017
LIS$'000 ussaoo
CHO Marine - 6,376
Otira Corporation ("Olira") Marine 1,201 1,201

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or rmore frequently if there are indications that goodwill might
be impaired.

Goodwill allocated to CHO and Otira amounted to US$6,376,000 (2017 : US$6,376,000) and US$1,201,000
(2017 : US$1,201,000) respectively. The recoverable amount is determined based on the value-in-use calculations.
The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rates and forecasted
charter rate. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating units. Order book secured and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

In 2017, management had fully impaired the goodwill allocated to CHO and Otira. During the year, the carrying

amount of goodwill allocated to CHO was transferred to assets need for sale in conjunction with the proposed
sale of partial interests in CHO [Note 9{a)l.

TRADE PAYABLES

Group
2018 2017
Us$'000 us%'000
Outside parties 13,342 18,538

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 20 to 90 days (2017 : 30 to 30 days). The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit time frame,
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20 OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

LUS$'000 Uss$000 US$'000 us$'000
Deferred gain 14,096 27,673 - -
Due to directors of the Company (Note 5B) 1,123 3,202 1,122 3,201
Accrued expenses 3,502 2,505 1,152 1,126
Sundry payables 28304 26,794 4,508 1,359
Due to associates (Motes S5A and 13) 6,788 6,792 849 852
Due to related parties (Note 58) 4,876 1,245 - -
Due to subsidiaries (Notes 5A and 12} - - 133,838 130,314
Total 58,639 63,211 141,469 136,852
Less: Non-current portion {12,011 {34,143} - -
Current portion 44,678 34,068 141,469 136,852

The amounts due to directors of the Company, associates, related parties and subsidiaries pare unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand except for an amount of US$4,100,000 {2017 : US$4,090,000) which
bears effective interest at 4,.30% (2017 : 4.30%) per annum due to a subsidiary.

Deferred gain relates to the Group's share of the gain from the sale of vessels to joint ventures and associates.
The deferred gain will be amortised over the remaining useful ife of the vessel and net against the share
of results of the joint ventures and associates in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Movement in the above deferred gain:

Group
2018 2017
Us$'060 US$'000
Balance at beginning of the year 27,673 28,634
Adjustment - 732
Transfer to liabilities associated with assets held for sale {10,304} -
Unwinding of unrealised profit from repurchase of vessels

from associated company (983) -

Amartisation during the year, net against the share of results of:
- associates (Note 13} {330) {403)
f - joint venitures (Note 143 _ {1,300 {1,290)
Balance at end of the year 14,066 27,673
Less: Non-current portion (13,229) (25,970)
Total 867 1,703
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21 FINANCE LEASES

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

Group 2018 2017 2018 2017

Uss'000 uss$'o00 Us$000 Us$'000
Within one year 121 174 106 156
In the second to fifth years inclusive 209 229 191 215
Total 330 403 297 371
Less: Future finance charges (33) {32} NA NA
Present value of lease obligations 297 371 297 37
Less: Due within 12 months {106) {156)
Due after 12 months 191 215

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

Company 2018 2017 2018 2017

Us$'000 Us3'000 LS$°000 Us$'000
Within one year 12 19 11 17
in the second to fifth years inclusive - 13 - 11
Total 12 32 1 28
less: Future finance charges {1} {4) NA NA
Present value of lease obligations 11 28 1 28

Less: Due within 12 months (113 {17)
Due zfter 12 months - 11

It is the Group's and Company's policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under finance leases. The
remaining lease terms as at the end of the financial year were for approximately 3 years (2017 : 4 years}. The
effective borrowing rate was 4.48% to 10.49% (2017 : 4.48% to 10.23%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the
contract date and thus expoese the Group and the Company te fair value interest rate risk. All leases are on fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The fair value of the Group's and Company's lease obligations approximate their carrying amount.

The Group's and Company's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' title to the leased assets
{(Note 11).
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NOTES PAYABLE

The notes payable of $$50,000,000 fequivalent 1o approximately US$40,064,000) was issued under the
$$500,000,000 Multicurrency Medium Term Note Programme first established in September 2014, which carried
fixed interest of 5.5% per annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrear) and matured in September 2017,

On September 18, 2017, the Company and the holders of the notes payable entered into a supplemental
trust deed to extend the maturity date of the notes payable from September 19, 2017 to Septernber 19, 2020
(“Extended Maturity Date") as welf as to amend certain terms of the notes payable including:

a} redeern the notes payable outstanding on the Extended Maturity Date at 105% of the outstanding
principal amount of the notes payable, together with interest accrued, bui unpaid, thereon on the
Exiended Maturity Date;

(¥} amend the interest rate to 2.5% per annum from September 19, 2017 to September 18, 2018; 4.5% per
annum from September 19, 2018 to Septemnber 18, 2019; and 6.5% per annum from September 19, 2019
to Septamber 18, 2020;

c} interest is payable on November 19, January 19, March 19, July 19 and September 19 each year
commencing from September 19, 2017,

d) introduce a calt aption to allow the Cornpany to redeem all or part of the notes payable;

el the notes payable is secured by pledge of receivables from the scrap of 3 vessels of the Group, as
applicable, One vessel was scrapped during the financial year, while the carrying amount of the remaining
2 vessels as of June 30, 2018 was US%2 million;

f) remove certain financial covenants applicable to the notes payable due September 2017: and
g} waive any non-compliance with the provisions of the notes payable.
The notes payable is unsecured and listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-5T7).

The notes payable due September 2017 was recorded at amortised cost, net of transaction costs of 5$742,500
(equivalent to US$595,000) at initial issuance. Such expenses were amortised over the term of the notes payable
by charging the expenses to profit or loss and increasing the net carrying amount of the notes payable with
the corresponding amounts, As at the date of the postponernent of the notes payable, the transactions costs
had been fully amortised, As the result of the modifications of the terms underlying the notes payable, the
liabilities have been extinguished during the current financiat year and the notes payable due September 2020 is
recogrised as a new liability. A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the notes payable is as follows:

Group and Company

2018 2017

U5$'000 us$'000
Nominal value of notes payable issued 40,064 40,064
Less: Transaction costs {595) {595}
At date of issue 39,469 39,469
Cumudative amortisation of transaction costs 595 590
Exchange difference 2,953} {3,704)
Perecognition of notes payable due September 2017 {37,111) -
Al end of year - 36,355
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22  MNOTES PAYABLE (cont'd)

Group and Company

2018 2017
LiS$'000 US$000
Recognition of notes payable due September 2020 371 -
Exchange difference (454) _
At end of year 36,657 -

Management has estimated the fair value of the notes payable at June 30, 2018 (o be approximately
US$36,719,000 (2617 : US$35,518,000). The fair value is based on the hid price extracted from Bioomberg as at
june 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively and management determined the notes payable to be under tevel 2 fair

value hierarchy.

There are ne transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the financial year.

23 BANK BORROWINGS

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Us$'000 Us$'000 Us35000 Us$000

Secured by:
Vessels (Nofe i) 68,178 73,660 - -
Leasehold office premises (Note ii) 2,894 9,191 - -
Shares of a subsidiary {Note iii) 29,462 28,468 29,462 28,468
100,534 111,319 29,462 28,468
Unsecured (Note iv) 13,658 21,098 9,992 7,301
114,192 132,417 39,454 35,769

Repayable;
Within cne year 114,192 132,417 39,454 35,769

As at the end of the reporting period, details of the bank borrowings are as follows:

()] The Group's bank borrowings of U5$68,178,600 (2017 : U5$77,329,000) comprise of 15 {2017 : 15) bank
foans, which are secured over the Group's vessels and dry-docking with an aggregate carrying amounts of
US$126,433,000 (2017 * US$158,116,000), The bank borrowings bear effective interest rate ranging from
2.97% to 5.58% (2017 ; 3.35% to 4.682%) per annum.

Bank loans with carrying armount of US$51,067,000 (2017 : US$55,363,000) had original repayment tertns
ranging from 19 to 60 (2017 : 15 to 60) monthly instalments,

A revolving credit loan with carrying amount of US$15,950,000 {2617 : U5516,000,000) was volled an a
monthly hasis and is repayable on demand.

A bank loan with carrying arnount of US$1,161,000 (2017 : US$2,297,000) was repayable in 4 quarteriy
instalments.
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23 BANK BORROWINGS {cont'd)

{ii) The Group's bank borrowings of US$2,854,000 (2017 : US$9,191,000) comprise of 2 {2017 : 3} bank lpans,
which are secured over the Group's leasehold office premises with an aggregate carrying amounts of
US$3,795,000 (2017 : US$16,619,000). The bank borrowings bear effective interest rate ranging from 3.93%
to 12.25% (2017 ; 1.68% 1o 12.25%) per annum,

The bank loans had original repayrent terms ranging from 84 to 180 (2017 : 60 to 180) monthly
instalments.

(i) The Group's bank borrowings of U53$29,462,000 (2017 : 1S$28,468,000} is secured over the shares of
a subsidiary of the Group is secured over the shares of a subsidiary of the Group out of which 15% is
repayable after 6, 12, 18 and 24 months from the drawdown date and 20% is repayable after 30 and 38
months from the drawdown date.

The net carrying amount of the loan was stated net of issue expenses totalling US$ Nil (2017 :
US$716,000). Such expenses were amortised over the life of the loan by charging the expenses to profit
or loss and increasing the net carrying amount of the loan with the corresponding amount. As of June 30,
2018, accumulated amortisation armounted to US$3,577,000 (2017 : US$2,861,000) (Note 31}, As at June 30,
2018, the affective interest rate for the loan is 4.88% (2017 : 4.88%) per annum,

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group repaid US$17,085,000 out of the sale proceeds
from disposal of partial interest in the subsidiary (Note ).

(v} The Group's bank borrowings of U5$13,658,000 (2017 US$21,098,000} comprise of 3 (2017 : 6} bank loans,
which are unsecured and rolled on a monthly basis, The bank borrowings bear effective Interest rate
ranging from 3.14% to 4.75% (2017 ; 3.24% to 5.50%) per annum.

The Company's bank borrowings of U$$9,992,000 (2017: US$7,301,000) comprised 2 (2017:2) loans, which
are unsecured and rolied on monthly basis. The bank borrowings bear effective interest rate ranging from
3.14% to 4.75% (2017 3.24% to 5,50%) per annum,

Bank loans with carrying amount of US$6,326,000 {2017 : US$4,759,000) are repayable on demand.

Bank loans with carrying amount of US$7,322,000 {2017 : U$$10,893,000) have tenures ranging from 47
te 72 (2017 : 42 to 72) months and is provided by a bank under an initiative under SPRING Singapore,
an agency under the Ministry of Trade and Industry, for working capital assistance for companies in the
offshore industry. Based on the terms of the loan arrangements, the repayment of the principal amount of
the lean will commence 25 months from the inception of the foans,

In 2017, a bank loan with carrying amount of US$5,446,600 had tenure of & months.

Management estimates that the fair value of the Group's and Company's bank loans approximates thieir carrying
valua as the borrowings bear interests at floating rates or approximate floating rates.

Since last financial year, the Group has breached certain loan covenants and triggered cross default on other
banking facilities of the Group. Ali the loans have been classified to current liability. Management has explored
the options available with respect to their financial affairs. In 2017, the Group appointed financial advisors and
legal counsels to assist in the Debt Restructuring, review the financial position of the Group and to assist the
Group In developing alternative options and solutions with a view to formulating s debt restructuring plan.
whiist the Debt Restructuring has achieved an advance stage. the negotiation with principal lenders of the Group
remained in progress and the Debt Restructuring has yet been finalised at the date of these financial statements.
Successful negotiation with grincipal and other lenders of the Group and finalise the Debt Restructuring plan
which will detemine the Group’s and the Company’s ability to service their borrowings when they fall due.
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BANK BORROWINGS (cont'd)

In August 2017, the Group received writs of surnmons and statement of dlaims filed by one of its secured lenders,
which is also a participants of the Debt Restructuring, in respect of the outstanding loan of US$19,326,000 (2017 :
US$19,846,000]) in the High Court of Malaya at Kuata Lumpur, Malaysia. The lender claimed against the Group for
the cutstanding loan including interest cost allegedly due to the lender in an amount of U$$19,949,000,

On November 9, 2017, the Company received another statutory demand from the same lender in relation to the
elaim, This claim had beer subsequently withdravm in January 2613,

On April 12, 2018, the High Court of Malaya in Kuala Lumpur has ruled in favour of the lender in its application
of summary of judgement in the civil suits commenced against the Group. The Group filed notices of appeal
with the Couwrt of Appeal in Kuala Lumpur against the decisien by High Court of Malaya, which were later put
on hearing on October 3, 2018. The Court of Appeal did not dismiss the case and order for ancther hearing on
December 12, 20615,

The Company is seeking legal advice with respect to the statutory demand, The legal counsel of the Group is of
the view that the statutory demand should not have been issued amid the upcoming appeat which hearing has
been fixed, accordingly does not change the Group's legal paosition.

The Group remains committed o the restructuring and will continue to engage in discussions with all its secured
lenders and any other key stakeholders in relation to the Debt Restructuring. The directors and management
believe that there is reasonable likelihood that a Debt Restructuring can be successfully achieved.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes In the group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, dassified in the group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities,

MNon cash changes

Transfer to
liahilities
associated
with assets Foreign
July 1, Financing  held for sale  exchange Other June 30,
2017 activity {(Note 9) movement changes 2018
Us$o00 Us$000 us$'000 Us$'000 uUss'ono US$000
Finance leases 371 (191) - 117 - 297
MNoies payable 36,355 - - 297 5 36,657
Bank borrowings 132,417 {4,023 (16,028} 1,110 716 114,192
169,143 (4,214) (16,028} 1,524 2 151,146

@ The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds from borrowings and repayments of borrowings in the statement of
cash flows.

= Other changes include amortisation of fransaction costs relating (o notes payabte and tenm loan issuing cost (Note 31}
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SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
Number of ordinary shares Us$'000 Us55°000
Issied and paid up:
AL beginning of year 823,442,375 823,442,375 229528 229,5_28
lssue during the year 70,600,000 - 1,481 -
At end of year 893,442,375 823,442,375 231,009 229,528

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which have no par value, carry one vote per share and a right to
dividends as and when declared by the Company,

On May 16, 2018, the Company issued 70,000,000 new Shares for approximately U5$1,481,000. The rew shares
ranked pari passt in all aspects with the existing ordinary shares,

TREASURY SHARES
Group and Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Number of ordinary shares uss'00d Us$'000
At beginning of year 16,810,900 16,000,800 4,114 4,017
Repurchased during the year - 810,100 - 97
At end of year 16,810,900 16,810,900 4,114 4,114

In 2017, the Company repurchased 810,100 shares in connection with a share buy-back exercise. The total
amount paid to acquire the shares amounted to US$97,000 and has been deducted from shareholders’ equity.
The shares are held as ‘treasury shares’,

CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve represents:

)] The reserves of unexercised warrants of US$10,173,000 which have expired in November 2012.

iy Effects of changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries when there is no change in control of
U5%$29,781,000 (Note 12).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company has a share option scherme for all directors and employees of the Company except the Controlling

Shareholders. The scheme is administered by the Remuneration Committee, Options are exercisable at a price

that is equivalent to the Market Price; or a price that is set at a discount to the Market Price, provided always that

the maximum discount shall not exceed 20% of the Market Price; and the prior approval of Shareholders shall

have been obtained in a separate resolution, The vesting period is 2 years. if the options remain unexercised

after a period of 3 years for Non-executive Director and 8 years for Executive Directors and Employees from June
5, 2011, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest,
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS {cont'd)
Equity-settied share option scheme (cont'd}

Details of the share options outstanding as at the end of the year are as follows:

Group and Company

2018 2017
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options exercise price share options exercise price
L3 S%
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,088,000 .40 2,280,000 0.40
lLapsed during the year - {1,190,000)
Outstanding at end of year 1,090,000 1,050,000
Exercisable at end of year 1,090,066 1,050,000

In 2009, the weighted average exercise price at the date of grant for share options granted was 5$0.46. The
aptions outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of approximately 1
year (2017 : 2 years),

The options were granted on june 5, 2008. The estimated fair value of the options granted on that date was
U5%635,000. '

MERGER RESERVE

The merger raserve comptrises the difference between the nominal value of shares issuzed by the Company and
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiarias acquired under common control and accounted for under the
pooling of interest method of consolidation.

Under merger accounting, the assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and cash flows of all the entities within the
Group are combined after making such adjustments as are necessary to achieve consistency of accounting
policies. This manner of presentation reflects the economic substance of combining companies, which were
under common control throughout the relevant period, as a single economic enterprise. -
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REVENUE
Group
2018 2017

Us$'000 Us$000
Revenue from construction contracis - 39,485
Charter hire incorne 36,140 51.336
Sales of goods 1,576 8,792
Sales of goods to related compary 107 -
Services rendered 5316 5.866
Management fee fraom associate (Note 5A) 394 648
Managemernt fee from joint ventures {Note 5A) - 600
Managernent fee from third party 96 97
Agency fee : 908 -
Total 44,537 106,824
OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2018 2017

Uss'06o tJss'000
Net foreign exchange gains - 3,252
Other vessel operation income 1,073 1,701
Gain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 39 -
Interest income 196 291
Government grant - jobs credit scheme 27 -
Trade receivables written back {Note 7} 261 583
Sundry income 613 93
Total 2,209 5.920

Falcon Energy Group Limited | Annual Report 2018 115



NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

31 FINANCE CO5TS

Group
2018 2017
uss$'000 USs$'000
Amortisation of notes payable transaction costs 5 179
Arortisation of term loan issuing costs 716 1,145
Interest expenses to non-related companies:
- Bank loans 7,346 6,444
- Notes payable 1.945 2,097
- Finance leases 25 23
- Bank overdraft 13 20
Total 10,050 9,908
32 INCOME TAX CREDIT
Group
2018 2017
US$'000 US$°000
Current income tax {61} 36
Under (Qver) provision of income tax in prior years {23) {142)
Deferred tax (Note 17} 75 {10,001)
Net 9} {10,107)

Domestic income tax is calculated at 17% (2017 : 17%) of the estimated assessable loss for the finandial year.
Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

Total charge for the financial year can be reconciled to the accounting loss as follows:

Group
2018 2017

Uss'000 US$'000
Loss before income tax {93,453) {173,738)
Income tax expenses at Singapore's statutory tax rate of 17% {15,887} [29,544)
Exempt income - {13)
Tax effect of non-taxable income - {9,883)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 15,440 28,261
Tax effect of share of results of associates 977 1,174
Over provision of current tax in prior years {23} {142}
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other tax jurisdiction (894) (634
Effect of deferred tax assets not recognised 177 855
Others 20 {181}
income tax credit (9 {10,107}
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR

(a)

®)

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging {crediting):

NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

Group
20138 2017
Us$'000 Uss$’000
Property, plant and equipment written off & -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 50 12
Audit fees:
- ayditors of the Company 158 160
- auditors of the subsidiaries 98 895
Nan-audit fees:
- auditors of the Company 42 44
- auditors of the subsidiaries 6 6
Cost of defined contribution plans included in employee benefits expense 444 531
Cost of inventories recoghised as an expense 324 46,521
Directors’ remuneration:
- of the Company 695 672
- of the subsidiaries 1,296 1,724
Directors’ fee 143 162
Depreciation of preperty, plant and equipment (Note 11) 30,442 26,248
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ remuneration) 11,536 15,760
Net foreign exchange loss/{gain 1,365 (3,253
Other expenses include:
Group
2018 2017
Us$000 1)54$°000
Allowance for doubtful trade receivabies (Note 7} 2,504 25,702
Allowance for other receivables {Note 8) 7,252 25,941
Write off of other receivabies (Note 8) 11,355 7.804
Allowance for impairmeant of goodwill {Note 18} - 5,050
Allowance for impairment of property, plant and equipment
[Note 11 and 9 {a}} 24,636 86,813
Allowance for impairment in joint venture (Note 14) 6,243 -
Allowance for impairment in associate companies {Note 13) 239 -
¥rite off of intangible asset {Note 16) - 2748
52,629 154,058
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34  EARNINGS PER SHARE

Group
2018 2017
Us$000 Us$'000
Earnings:
Loss attributable to owners of the Company (76,437} {121,838)
Number of shares:
Welighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share © 832,289 806,854
Earnings per share (US cents):
Basic (9.18) {15.10}
Difuted {9.18) {15.10)
@ axelugling treasury shares
35  OPERATING LEASES
Group
2018 2017
Lis$’000 Us$'000
The Group as lessee
Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases recognised as
expense in the financial year 654 4,488

At the end of the year, the Group has outstanding commitrments under non-cancellable operating leases, which
fall due as follows:

Group
2018 2m7
us$000 Us$'000
Within one year 162 3,224
in the second to fifth year inclusive - 94
Totat 162 3,218

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable to the Group for certain of its office properties and vessel,
Leases are negotiated for term for 1 to 2 years {2017 : 1 to 2 years) and rentals are fixed,
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NOTES TO
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June 30, 2018

OPERATING LEASES (cont'd)

The Groyp as fessor

The Group rents out vessels under operating leases.

As at the end of the year, the Group has coniracted with customers for the following minimum lease payments:

Group
2018 2017
Uuss$'000 Us$'0600
Charter hire income 36,140 51,336
Within one year 17,9600 12,112
Within two 1o five years 11,242 16,821
Total 29,142 22,833

Certain vessels held have committed custormers for 1 to 2 years (2017 : 1 to 2 years),

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their products and services, which information is prepared
and reported to the Group's chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance.

The Group is principally engaged in four reportable segments, namely {1) Marine - vesse! owner and charterer,
(2 Oilfield and drilling services - sourcing spare parts and machineries, providing services to cilfield companies,
trading, owning and operating of oil rigs and (3) Gilfield Projects - services to cilfield companies providing
shipping and transportation services, sales of demuisifiers and international trade, logistics and oflfield services
of engineering, technical and consultation and shipping agencies for offshore oilfleld explorations, construction
and marine transportation, {(4) Resources - coal mining and trading activities,

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described
in Note 2 to the financial statements. Segment results represent the profits earned by each segment without
allocation of centrat administration costs, directors’ remuneration, share of results of associates, joint ventures,
interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, finance costs at corporate levet,

Inter-segment transfers: Segment revenue and expenses include transfers between business segments. Inter-
segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation.
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120

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)

Segment information about the Group's operations is presented below.

Oilfield and
drilling Oilfield
Maring services  projects Resources Corporate Elimination  Total
Uss 000 uss'000 Uss'ooo Us$'000 Us$'000 USs$000 Uss'000

2018
Revenue
External sales 29,855 3,670 5,104 908 - - 44,537
Inter-segment sakes 199 - - - - {199) -
Total revenue 30,054 8,670 5,104 908 - (199} 44,537
Result
Segment result {59,688) {5,580) 1,988 {942} {15,143} - {79,365)
Share of netloss of

associates and joint

ventures {4,234)
Interest incorme 190 £ - - - - 196
Finance costs {3,825} 21 £122) - {5,892} - {10,050}
Loss before income tax {93,453}
Income tax expense _ 9
Loss for the year {93,444}
2017
Revenue
External sales 44,477 54,144 8,202 - - - 106,824
Inter-segment sales 730 - - - - (730} -
Total revenue 45,207 54,144 8,203 - - {730} 106,824
Result
Segment result {90,780) {40,836) {2,669) {6,362) {20,595) - {161,242}
Share of net loss of

associates and joint

ventures {2,929
Interast income 265 7 - - 19 291
Finance costs {3,773} (233} (114) - (5,788} (9,908)
Loss before income tax {173,788}
Income fax expense 10,167
Loss for the year (163,681}

Segment assets represent cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other recelvables, assets held for sale,
inventories, property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets which are atiributable to each

operating segments.

Segment liabilities represent trade payables, other payables, finance leases, bank borrowings, liabilities
assoeiated with assets held for sale, derivative financial liahility and income tax payables, which are attributable
te each operating segments.

Corporate assets mainly reprasent cash and bank balances, other receivables and property, plant and equipment

at corporate level,

Corporate liabilities represent other payables, bank overdraft and borrowings and notes payable at corporate

level.
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36  SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)

Corporate liabilities represent other payables, bank overdraft and borrowings and notes payable at corporate

tevel.
Qilfield and
drilling Qilfield
Marine services projects Resources Corporate Total

uss$ 000 Uus$'000 uss'000 Us5'000 Us$000 US3'000

Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets 289,498 66,720 7,281 538 2,472 366,509
Segrnent liabilities 130,347 40,833 10,746 128 87,441 269,485
june 39, 2017

Segment assels 357,261 72,525 9,375 1,534 20,013 460,708 -
Segment liabilities 128,736 40,374 11,622 124 90,940 271,796

Other information

2018
Allowance for doubtful trade
receivables 1419 1,485 - - - 2,904
Allowance of other receivables 6,060 118 - 1,068 G 7,252
Write off of other receivables - - - - 11,355 11,355
Capital additions 3,945 211 - - - 4,156
Allowance for impairment in
associated companies 239 - - - - 239
_ Depreciation 27,308 1,096 1,921 g 108 30,422
. Loss/(Gain) on disposal of
: property, plant and equipment 33 (39} 17 - - 11
Amortisation of term loan
issuing costs - - - - Fais 716
Property, plant and equipment
written off & - - - - &
Allowance for impairment in
joint venture 6,243 - - - - 6,243
Allowance for impairment of
property, plant and equipment 23,719 917 - - - 24,636
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SEGMENT INFCRMATION (cont’d}

Oilfield and
drilling Qilfield
Marine services projects  Resources Corporate Total
UsS$'000 Uss'000 UsS$000 uss'000 Us$ 000 Uss'000

Other information
2017
Allowance for doubtful trade

receivables 1,798 23,504 - - - 25,702
Aliowance of other receivables - 11,865 - - 14,076 25,941
write off of other receivables - - 1,923 2,823 3,058 7,804
Capital additions 2,345 19 - 4 - 2,368
Depreciation 21,480 1,240 3,285 10 233 26,248
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and eguipment 12 - - - - 12
Amortisation of notes payable '

transaction costs - - - - 179 179
Amaortisation of term loan

issuing costs - - - - 1,145 1,145
Altowance for impairment of

goodwill - - 1,201 - 3,849 5050
Allowance for impairment of

property, plant and equipment 85,013 1,800 - - - 86,813
Write off of intangible assets - - - 2,748 - 2,748
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)
Geographical information
The Group's operalions are iocated in Americas, Asia and Middle £ast. The following table provides an analysis

of the Group's sales by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services and assets by their
respective locations,

Non-current

Revenue assets *
US$'600 uss$'000
2018 2018
Ching 1,083 A0
America 5,704 -
Indonesia 20,355 84,721
fMexicoe 669 326
Singapore 15,343 67,480
United Arab Emirates 1,239 4
India 545 -
Marshall istand 159 -
Total 44,537 152,577
Non-current
Revenue assets *
Us$'000 uss000
2017 2017

Malaysia 568 -
China 49910 o4
indonesia 23,230 89,616
America 4924 -
Mexico 701 430
United Arab Emirates 8,432 6
Singapore 11,822 212,726
Vietnarm 1,546 -
South Africa 564 -
Marshall Island 20 -
Total 106,824 302,832

# exclude assets held for sofe, associates, foint ventures, available-for-sole investments and deferred tax assets.

information about major customers

The Group’s revenue derived from customers who individuatly account for 10% or more of the Group's revenue is
detailed below:

Oiifield and Qilfield
Marine drilling services projects Resources
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Us$000  USE00D USS000 US$000 US$O000 USHD00 USS000  USS'000

Customer 1 - - - 30,442 - _ N _
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COMMITMENTS
Al the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following commitments not provided for in the financial
staternents:
Group
2018 2017
US5'000 US$000

Contracted but not provided for &
- purchase of a rig {completed) ® - 26,939
- purchase of four rigs "¢ - -

m

b

- 86,939

The balance represented the Group's share of the future cormmitment of its assaciate, FTS, for the purchase of five rigs
from two third party shipyards.

Since 2017, FTS was in discussion with a third party shipyard to defer the delivery of a completed rig te a date beyond
12 months. On May 16, 2018, FTS received an official notice of termination from the third party shipyard stating the
outstanding amount owed under the contract to purchase the rig to be US$208.5 million. it is understood that the said rig
was subsequently disposed to a third party. Accordingly, FTS management is of the view that the purchase contract s o
longer valid, and hence no further commitment to purchase is required.

TS management is of the opinion that FTS is not liable to the whole contract sum under the rig contract because FT5 had
not taken any delivery of the completed rig, FTS reserves its rights under the purchase contract and is seeking to resolve
the matier amicably with the shipyard.

On consultation with ETS's legal counsel, the legal counsel is of view that the Company's exposure from the performance
guarantee issued to the shipyard is not legally binding on the Group and the Campany, and the exposure is limited to the
difference between the amount owed under the contract and the price in which the rig is sold. As the shipyard has not
informed FTS the price of the rig sold, management is of the view that no provision Is required to be made in respect of
the perfarmance guarantee on the basis that the amount is currently not measurable,

In 2017, the contracts for the four jack-up rigs with a third party shipyard was terminated. The shipyard launched the
four rigs and has served the letter of demand for the second instalment. FTS disputed the second instalment on grounds
that certain milestones were nol satisfactorily met prior to launch of the said rigs. The shipyard then terminated the
contracts based on events of default of FIS on the second instalment and to enforce the performance guarantee from
the Company.

Last year, on consuitation with FTS's legal counsel, FTS management is of the opindon that certain milestones with regards
to the consiruction progress of the four rigs were not satisfactorily met and is of view that there is no obligation to pay
for the second instalment. FTS believes that it has a strong hasis io defend its position and that the termination notices
from the shipyard have been served unlawfully and in repudiatory breach of the contracts.

th addition, management is of view the performance guarantee issued by the Cormpany can only be effective for the
final payments and delivery of completed rigs. Accordingly, management beliaves that the four perforrmance gusraniees
for the due and punctual payment by FTS for the instalment payable by FTS upon delivery of the four rigs are no longer
in effect. Hence, no provisions relating to the performance guarantee were made. in September 2018, the Company
engaged another external legal counsel ta reaffirm the position taken by the Company on this matter,

As at the date of these financial statements, no formal legal proceedings between FTS and the shipyards has
taken place. The scope, enforceability and validity of any claim, litigation or review may be highly uncertain as
disclosed in Note 3{a)iii). Accordingly, management is of view that the unfavourable outcome, while not probable,
is not remote. The effects of the performance guarantee, should it be enforced, is disclosed as contingent
liabilities in Note 38.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Us53000 US4$'000 UsS$000 US$000

Guarantees given to bank in respect of bank
facilities granted te an assodiate @ - - -
Performance guarantee® 1,002,278 1,002,278 1,002,278 1,002,278
Litigation and claim® 253 2,531 - -
Banker guarantees 31 a1 - -

{ap

]

i)

The financial effects of FRS 39 relating to the financizl guaranteg contracts issued by the Group and the Company are nol
material to the financial statements of the Group and the Company and therefore not recognised.

This represents the performance guarantee given by tie Group and the Company in relation (o the contracts for the
purchase of the five rigs contracted by FTS {Nate 37). The performance guarantee for the purchase of a rig {completed)
and purchase of four rigs amounts to US$173,878,000 [Note 37 (il)] and U5$828,400,000 [Note 37 (iH)] respectively. As at
the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company cbtained a personal guarantee from the other shargholder
of FT5, who is also a director of the Company, amounting to 5% US$501,138,000 (2017 @ USH501,135,000). Had the
persohal guarantee from the related parcy been taken into consideration, the Group's and Cornpany's net financlal
exposure ta the performance guarantees would be reduced {o US$ US$501,139,000 (2617 : US$501,139,000)

In prior year, a subsidiary of the Group was involved in a legal dispute in Indonesia relating to the reconstruction of
2 vessel. A demand iatter was received by the subsidiary to claim for the damages of 543,503,000 {equivalent to
135$2,531,000). During the year, police investigation was commenced against the plaintiff and the outcome remains
unknown as of the date of the finandal statements. Management believes that the demand is without legal merit..

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following events occurred after the end of the reporting period:

(a)

{15)

]

On July 26, 2018, the Group entered Into & sale and purchase agreement with a third party in relation to
the sale of 217,800,000 shares representing 30.90% of equity interest in CHO for a total consideration
of 5$25,047,000 {equivalent to approximately US$18,362,000) based on a price of 5$0.115 per share.
Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group's interest in CHO reduced from 64.91% to 34.01%, and
accordingly CHO ceased to be a subsidiary and will be accounted as an assodate of the Group.

On August 16, 2018, the Group entered into various sales and purchase agreement to dispose the
leasehold office premises (Mote 11) for an aggregate consideration of 5$13,205,000 {equivalent to
approximately U5$9,585,000).

On September 5, 2018, the Group incorporated a new subsidiary, Bayu Maritime International Pte Ltd with
an effective shareholding of 76%.
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SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

Substantial Shareholders of the Company (3s recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders} as at 24 September

2018:-
Direct Interest Deemed Interest
No. of Shares Y Mo. of Shares %

Ruben Capital Ventures Lid™ 48,338,997 5.51 - -
Tan Pong Tyea'® 417,960,700 47,68 88,393,051 10.08
Cai Wenxing - - 70,933,592 8.0%
Wong Fong Fui 70,000,000 7.99 - -
Motes :

m

Ruben Capitat Ventures Ltd's direct interest fn the 48,338,997 ordinary shares are held in the name of KGl Securities (Singapare)
Pre Lid.

{2) Tan Pong Tyea's deemed interest in the 38,393,051 ordinary shares in the capital of Falcon Energy Group Limited ("shares”)
comprises;
{i} his deemed interest in the 48,338,997 shares held by KGI Securities (Sihgapore} Ple. Ltd. by virtue of his 79.21% equity
interest in Ruben Capital Ventures Lirnited;
(i) hiz deemed interest in the 22,594,585 shares held by Longzhu Oilfield Services Eimited by virtue of his 100% equity interest
in Real Trek Pacific Limited which holds 50% equity interest in Longzhu Qilfield Services Limkted; and
(i) his deemed interest in the 17,456,459 shares held by Camelot Capital Consultants Ltd by virtue of his 100% shareholding
interest in Camelot Capital Consultants Ltd,
(3} Cal Wenxing's deemed interest in the 70,933,592 ordinary shares in the capital of Falcon Energy Group Limited ("shares”)
comprises:
i his deemed interest in the 22,584,595 shares held by Longzhu Qilfield Services Limited by virtue of his 50% equity interest
in Longzhu Qiffield Services Limited; and
(i his deemed interest in the 48,338,997 Shares held by KGI Securities (Singapore) Pte, {4, by virtue of his 20.79% equity
interest in Ruben Capital Ventures Limited.
Free Float

Based on the information available to the Caompany as at 24 September 2018 and to the best knowledge of the
Directors and the substantial shareholders of the Company, approximately 29.06% of the issued ordinary shares of the
Company texcluding treasury shares) was held by the public. Accordingly, the Company has cormplied with Rule 723 of
the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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STATISTICS OF
SHAREHOLDINGS

As at 24 September 2018

Number of issued shares - 893,442,375
Number of issued shares {excluding treasury shares) - 876,631,475

Class of shares - ordinary shares
Voting rights (excluding treasury shares) . one vote per share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

NO. OF NO. OF
$IZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
1-99 182 6.16 2,648 0.00
100 - 1,000 82 277 57,261 0.01
1,001 - 10,000 787 26.61 5,934,284 0,68
10,001 - 1,000,000 1,849 62,53 204,039,991 2327
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 57 1.93 666,597,291 76.04
TOTAL 2,957 100.00 876,631,475 100.00
TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
NO. OF
NO. NAME SHARES %
1 RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE} LIMITED 125,270,200 14.29
2 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 111,401,018 12,71
3 KGI SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 103,405,000 11.80
4 WONG AH WAH @ WONG FONG FUI 70,000,000 7.99
5 HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD 36,200,000 413
6  CAIWENTING 23,716,216 271
7 LONGZHU OILFIELD SERVICES LIMITED 22,594,595 2.58
8  CAMELOT CAPITAL CONSULTANTS LTD 17,459,459 1.99
9 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE} LIMITED 14,206,835 1.62
10 MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD 13,288,390 1.52
11 LIM & TAN SECURITIES PTE LTD 12,281,800 1.40
12 TAN SOOH WHYE 10,600,000 1.14
13 UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 8,428,010 0.97
14 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 6,873,020 0.78
15 OCBC NOMINEES SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED 5,065,210 0.58
16 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 4,818,244 0.55
: 17 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PRIVATE} LIMITED 4,781,600 0,55
18 PEH KWEE CHIM 4,700,000 0.54
19 YEONG SAN LEE 4,400,000 0.50
20 SUAM CHEE KIT 3,868,300 0.44
TOTAL 602,817,897 68.79

Falcon Energy Group Limited | Annual Report 2018 127



NOTICE OF THE
FOURTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Registration No. 2004038176}
{incarporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at TRN Centre, 10
Anson Road #19-14, International Plaza, Singapare (79903 on Tuesday, 3G October 2018 at 9.30 am. for the fallowing
purposes:

As Ordinary Business

1.

To receive and adopt the Directors' Staternent and Audited Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 30 June 2018, together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of up to 5$165,000 for the financial year ending 30
June 2019, to be paid half yearly in arrears.

To re-elect Mr. Lien Kait Long, being a Director who retires by rotation pursuant to Article 115
of the Constitution of the Company.

To re-elect Mr. Mak Yen-Chen Andrew, being a Director who retires by rotation pursuant {o
Article 115 of the Constitution of the Company.

To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's Auditors and to authorise the
Directors to fix their remuneration.

To transact any other business that may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting,

As Special Business:

{Resolution 1)

{Resolution 2}

{Resolution 3}

{Resalution 4)

{Resolution 5)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without modifications:

7.

128

“Share Isstie Mandate

That pursuant to the Company's Constitution and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, authority be given to the Directors of the
Company to issue shares ("Shares") whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise, and/or
make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “instruments”) that might or would
require Shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of {as well
as adjustments to} warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into Shares at any
time and upon such terms and conditions and to such persons as the Directors may, in their
absolute discretion, deem fit provided that

{a) the aggregate number of Shares (including Shares to be issued in pursuance of
instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed fifty per
centum (509 of the total number of issued shares (excluding ireasury shares and
subsidiary holdings) in the capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this
Resolution, of which the asggregate number of Shares and convertible securities to
be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to ali shareholders of the Company shall
not exceed twenty per centum (20%) of the total number of issued shares {excluding
treasury shares and subsidiary holdings} in the share capital of the Company;
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() for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of Shares that may be issued
under sub-paragraph (a) above, the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury
shares and subsidiary holdings) shall be based on the total number of issued shares
{excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) of the Company as at the date of
the passing of this Resolution, after adjusting for;

{i) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities;

£} new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of Share awards
outstanding or subsisting at the time this Resolution is passed; and

(i) any subseguent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares;

(<) And that such authority shall, uniess revoked or varied by the Company in general
meeting, continue in force (i) until the condusion of the Company’s next Annual General
Meeting or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held, whichever is earlier or (i} in the case of shares to be
issued i accordariee with the ierms of convertible securities issued, made or granted
pursuant to this Resolution, until the issuance of such shares in accordance with the
terms of such convertible securities.”

8. “Falcon Energy Group Employee Share Option Scheme {Resolution 7)

That the Direciors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to allot and issue from time
to time such number of shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of the options previously granted under the Falcon Energy Group
Share Option Scheme {“Schemne”) provided always that the aggregate humber of shares to be
issued pursuant to the Scheme shall not exceed fifteen per cent {15%) of the totel number of
shares of the Company {excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) from time to time.”

By Qrder of the Board

Peh Lei Eng
Company Secretary
Singapore

13 October 2018

Explanatory Notes

Resolution 2 - The Ordinary Resoluilion 2 proposed in item 2, if passed, will facilitate the payment of Directors’ fees during the
financial year 30 June 2019, This amount caters for the appointment of additional Independent Director.

Resolution 3 - Mr. Lien Kait Long, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, wHl remain as the Chairman of Audit Committee
and member of Nominating and Remuneration Committees. He will be considered independent for the purposes of Rule 704(3) of the
Listing ianual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited,

Resolution 4 - Mr. Mak Yen-Chen Andrew, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as the Chairman of
Remuneration Commiltee and member of Audit Cornmittee, He will be considered independent for the purposes of fute 704(8) of the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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Resolution & - The Ordinary Resolution 6 proposed in item 7, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the above
Meeting until the daie ¢f the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue Shares and convertible securities in the Company up
to an amount not exceeding fifty per centurn (50%) of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary
holdings) in the capital of the Company, of which up to twenty per centum {20%) may be issued other than on a pro-rata basis. For
the purpose of this resolution, the total hurnber of issued shares {excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) is based on
the Company's total nitmber of issued shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) at the time this proposed Ordinary
Resolution is passed after adjusting for new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities, the exercise of
share options o the vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time when this proposed Ordinary Resolution is passed
and any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares.

Resclution 7 - The Crdinary Resolution 7 proposed under item § is to allof and issue shares in the capital of the Company pursuant 1o
the exercise of outstanding share oplions previously granted under the scheme. Mo further share options will be granted under the
Seheme since the Scheme had expired oh 27 October 2014,

Motes :-

1, A member of the Company entitted to attend and vole at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies
to attend and vote in his stead. A member of the Company, which is a corporation, is entitled to appoint its authorised
representative or proxy to vote on its behalf, A proxy need not be 2 member of the Company.

2. Wherz a member (other than a Relevant Intermediary®) appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportien of hig shareholding
to be represented by each proxy in the Proxy Form, failing which, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the
proportion of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be representad by each proxy.

3 A Relevant intermediary may appoint more than 2 proxies, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to 3
different share or shares held by him (which number and class of shates shall be spacified).

4, The Proxy Form is attached and must be deposited at the registerad office of the Company at 10 Anson Road #33-15,
International Plaza, Singapore 079903 not tess than 48 hours before the time fixad for holding the Annual General Meeting in
order for the proxy to be entitied to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,

5. A Depositor's name must appear on the Depository Register maintained by the Central Depository (Pte} Limited 72 hours before
the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting in order for the Depositor to be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting.

* A Relevant intermediary is:

{a)  a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act {Chapter 19} of Singapore or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a banking
corporation, whose business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in that capacity; or

(b}  a person helding a capital markets services licence to provide custodial services for securities under the Securities and Futures
Act {Chapter 289 of Singapore and who holds shares in that capacity; or

{c}  the Central Provident Fund Board established by the Central Provident Fund Act [Chapter 36) of Singapore, In respect of shares
nurchased under the subsidiary tegistation made under that Act providing for the making of investments from the contributions
and interest standing o the credit of mermbers of the Central Provident Fund, i the Board holds thase shares in the capacity of
an intermediary pursuamt (o or in accordance with that subsidiary legisiation.

Personal Data Privacy.

By submiiting an instrument appointing a proxylies) andfor representative{s) {c attend, speak and vote at the Annual General
Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the
mermber's personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company {or
its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General Meeting {including any adjournment thereof) and the
preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting {including
any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, Histing rules, regulations
andfor guidelines (collectively, the "Purposes™), (i) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member's
proxylies) and/ or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/
of representativels) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the parsonal data of such proxy(ies) andsor
representative(s} for the Purpsses, and (i) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalues, liabilities,
clairng, demands, losses and damages as a resuit of the member's breach of warranty.
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PROXY FO RM IMPORTANT:

1. Fer investods whi Tave used dhsen CRF s [ERF Brevessors™) andfor thieir SR3 manies C5R% dnvesrorey
to buy the Crmpanys shaees, this Aanual Reperl 2018 .= sent u them ot the vequess of ther CPF sndicr
SRS Apprived Nominees (s (he case may bed seleiy FOR TNTCRMATION Gy,

2. This 2oy Form is not vaiid 202 use by CPF wwvostars and SRS Investors and shali be dneiiective for al
insERks and plapeses it Led o pLIpoeted e s used By eene

FO U RTE E NTH AN N UA L G E N E RAL M E ETI N G 3 CPF bwgstors 3md SRS Inveslors may sUent and rast their «oes o the AGR i pessen CFF fmeestors snc

S5 Investors whe e anaife to stloraf the AGM byt wouid o towle, ray infoses thair C8F sodfos SRS

FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED spproved Mominees a5 Be case iay be) To appoint the Chainman of the AG3 te 5o 38 Hgis prosy, o
; R ] chich case szeciie TR |mepstors 1 SRS [mvostars <l gloded feans arterduzg the AGK.
gﬁegist!ation Na. 200403817G) . which case, the resective £PF Inweators andfor SRS Investors shatl be prochaded fans snteniug the AGH

Brreangd dala privasy

By submitting a3 ingirenient apoeiniing o proxyfies] andfcr rep 1¢), 2 mamiet ascepts and Jgrees
to lhe personst dats getezcy terms set oul in the Mote o Anrusl Gener 3t Maetrn dated 13 Qetober 2015,

ifWe, {Name)

{NRIC No. /Passport No./ Company Reg No.)

af {Address)
being a member/members of the Falcon Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) hereby appoint:
Name NRIC/ Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares %
Address

and/or (delete as appropriarte)
Name MNRIC/ Passpert No. Proportion of Shareholdings

Mo, of Shares %

Address

or failing the person, or either or both of the persons, referred to the above, the Chairman of the Fourteenth Annual
General Meeting of the Company ("AGM”), as *my/our proxy/proxies te attend and to vote for *me/us and on *my/our
behalf at the AGM to be held at TRN Centre, 10 Anson Road #19-14, International Plaza, Singapore 079303 on Tuesday,
30 Qctober 2018 at 9.30 a.m, and at any adjournment thereof,

*/We direct *my/our *proxy/proxies to vote for or against the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM as indicated

hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given or in the event of any other matter arising at the AGM and at any
adjournment thereof, the *proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting at *his/her discretion,

(If you wish to exercise all your votes "For” or "Against”, please indicate with an “X* within the box provided,
Alternatively, please indicate the number of votes as appropriate.)

No. | Resolutions For Against
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To adopt Financial Statements and Direcfors Statement.

2. To approve Directors’ Fees of up to 5$165,000 for the financial year ending

30 june 20195,

To re-glect Mr, Lien Kait Long as Director,

To re-elect Mr. Mak Yen-Chen Andrew as Director.

5. To re-appoint Messis Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors and to authorise the
Directors to fix their remuneration,

SPECIAL BUSINESS

o

o

6. To approve the Share Issue Mandate,

7. To authorise the Directors to fssue shares pursuant to the exercise of the options
previously granted under the Falcon Energy Group Employee Share Option
Scheme.

Dated this e dayof . 2018

Total Number of Ordinary Shares Held
CDP Registers
Register of Members

Signature{s) of *member{s) or Commaon Seal of
Corporaie Shareholder{s)
* Please delete accordingly



Motes :-

1.

Please sert in Lhe box at the botiom right hand corner of this form, the number of Shares registered in your name in the
Register of Members in respect of share certificates held by you and the number of Shares entered against your namne in
the Depository Register maintained by The Central Depository {Pte) Limited ("CDP"). If no number is inserted, the instruoment
appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to refate to all the Shiares heid by you,

A meraber of the Company (other than a Relevant Intermediary*) entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company is entitled (o appoint one or two proxdes to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member,

Where 2 member (other than a Relevant intermediary*} appoints two (2) proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he
specifies the proportion of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

A Relevant Itermediary may appoint more than 2 proxies, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a
different share or shares held by him (which number and class of shares shall be specified).

Subject 1o note 9, completion and return of this instrument appointing a proxy shall net preciude a mamber from attending
and voting at the Annual General Meeting. Any appointment of a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to be revolked if a2 member
attends the meeting in person, and in such event, the Company reserves the right to refuse to admit any person of persons
appointed under Lhe instrurent of proxy to the Annual Generat Meeting.

The instrurnent appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 10 Anson Road #33-
15, International Plaza, Singapore 079903 not [ater than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting.

This instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in
writing. Where the instrument appoinling a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, i must be executed either under
its seal or under the hand of any officer or attorney duly autherised. Where the ihstrument sppointing a proxy or proxies is
executed by an attorney on behalf of the appointer, the letter or power of attorney or a duly certified copy thereof raust be
todgad with the instrument,

& corporation which is a member may also authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such person as
it thinks fit ro act as its representative at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act
(Chapter 50) of Singapore, and the person so authorised shall upon production of a copy of such resolution certified by a director
of the corporation 10 be a true copy, be entitled to exercise the powers on behalf of the corporation 50 represented as the
corporation coutd exercise in persen if it were an individual.

An investor who holds shares under the Central Provident Fund investenent Scherne {"CPF investor”) shdfor the Supplementary
Retirement Scheme ("SRS Investors™ {as may be applicable) may attend and cast his vote(s) at the Annual Gernieral Meeting In
person. CPF and SRS Investors who are unable to attend the Annual General Meeting but would like to vote, may inform their
CPF and/or SRS Approved Nominees to appoint the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting to act as their proxy, in which case,
the CPF and SRS Investors shall be precluded from attending the Annual General Meeting,

The Cormpany shall be entitled to reject this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, not properly completed
or illegible or where the {rue intentions of the appointer are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointer specified in
this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, In addition, in the case of members whose Shares are entered against their names
in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such member is not
shown to have Shaves entered against his name [n the Depository Register as af 72 houwrs before the time fixed for holding the
Annual General Meeting as certified by the COP to the Company.

* A Retevant Intermediary is:

(a)

()

{<)

@ banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act {Chapter 19) of Singapore or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a banking
corporation, whose business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in that capacity; or

a person holding a capital markels services licence to provide tustedial services for securities under the Securities and Futures
Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore and who holds shares in that <apatity; or

the Central Provident Fund Board established by the Central Provident Fund Act (Chapler 36) of Singapore, in respect of shares
purchased under the subsidiary legisiation made under that Act providing for the making of investments from the conttibutions
angd interest standing to the credit of rmembers of the Central Provident Fund, if the Board holds those shares m the capac;ty of
an intermediary pursuant to or in accordance with that subsidisry legislation.

PERSOMNAL DATA PRIVACY:

By submitting an instrument sppeinting a proxylies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personat data
privagy terms set out in the Motice of Annual Genearal Meeting dated 13 Getober 2018,
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FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 June 2019

ABSSETS

Current Assats

Nen-current assets held for sate

Stocks - Finished goods

Slocks - Work In Progress

Trade receivables

Provision for bad debis

Amount dus from subsidiary - FOS (non-rade)

Less : Impalrment on doubtful recelvablas: FOS (non-trade)
Amount due (rom subsidiary - FEG Offshore (non-trade)

Lass : Impairment on doubtful receivables: FEG Offshore (non-trada)
Amount due from subsidiary - Energian {non-lrada)

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: Energlan (non-trads)
Amount due lrom subsidiary - Radford Hoings (neon-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - Capital Guardian Lid

Less : impairment on doubtful receivables: Caplial Guardian Lid
Amount due from subsiidary - Allantic Marine

Lass : Impairment on doubtiul recefvables: Atlaniic Marine
Amount due from subsildary - Motley Trio

Less ; impairment an doubtful receivables: Motlay Tro
Amount due from related sompany - Asetanian Marine

Less : Impairment on doubtful racaivables: Aselanian Maring Pte Ltd {DFRC)

Amounl due from related company - Petrol Assets

Less : Impairment an doubtiul recelvables: Peirol Assats
Amaunt due lrom relaled panty - PT LPS (lrade)

Less : Impairment on doubtiul receivables: PT LPS
Amount due from relaled parly - Aselanlan Offshore Ply Lid

Less : Impairment on doubiful receivables: Asatanian
Amount due from related parly - CDS Intl forwarding
Amount due fram associate - FTS Derricks Pte Lid

Less : Impairment on doutiful receivables: FTS Damicks
Amouni due from associales « TS Drilling Ple Lid

Less : Impairmenl on doubliul recelvables
Amounl dus from JV company - Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd
Amount due from associate - TS Drilling Holding
Impairment on TS Drilling Holding
Amaunt due from CHO
Impalrment on relatad company receivables{1}
Amounl due related party from Gresnland Petraleum Operation
Hycatech Sdn Bhd
QOther receivables

Allowance for doubtiul recaivables

Tax recaverable
VAT recoverables
Staff loan
Advance to staf{
Deposits
Prepayment
Withholding tax receivable
GST receivable
Fixed deposit
Petty cash
Cash at hank
Cash in hand

Tatal Current Assety

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
9,081,332
238,314
- 134,759
- 86,992,601
(37.774.011)
9,534,666
[9.530,435)
16,380,442
(18,832,754)
104,543,645
{122,451 ,360)
15,045,245
670
(670]
4,911,802
(4,911,802}
12,528,411
(12.628.411)
91,896,518
{91.876.936)
1,221,022
(1,220,708}
383,360
- (3834600
30,000
{30,000)
184,011
25,442,721 36,079,148
{25,437 .506) {36,073,933)
(145,578} {7.733)
- {125.490)
19,043,339
- 1,190,985
(1.190.985)
- 741,542
: 20,060
285,000
1,326
313.21 7,309,669
(9.240)
203,028
448,082
: 207,966
= 14 B58
229,782.94 366,500
26,364.84 1,184,027
4.260
19,773.08 32,345
174,330
808.58 BOD
9,291.43 2118073
5,580
(4,749,685) 92,880,551 ¢




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

GCONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 Juna 2019

MNon-Currant Assels

Plant, properly & equipments

Intangible assets

tnvesiment ln subsidlary - FOS

Investment In subsidlary - FEG Offshore
Invesimenl in subsidiary - FEP

Investment in subsidiary - OSCL

(nvesiment in subsidlary - Energkan

Invesimant In subgidlary - Petro Asset Pla Lid
Impairment on investment [subsidiaries)
Investment in associates -Faderal Offshore
tnvesimani In associates -CHO

Investmenl in assaclates - FTS Dericks Ple Lid
Investment in assotiates - FTSG Co Limited
Investment In JV - Maritm Indah Sden Bhd
Available-for-sale imvesiments

Deferred lax assels

Othar raceaivable - Land use right+keppel deposit

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
774 130,724,018
- 185,866
67,842 -
1 -
715,820
142,802,904
7,123
802
{116,194,115)
- 4,668,487
- 29,560,468
¥ a) =
S00 500
- 3,750,576
2,098,050 2,098,050
- 555,760
1,192,900
29,510,222 172,736,623
2476553 26561717




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 20 June 2019

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Curvent Liabdlities

Non-cuireni Habilities beld for sale

Trade payables

Amount due to subsidiary - FEP

Amount dua 1o subsidiary - Excel Marine

Amount due 1o subsidiary - Imperial Mavine 5.4,
Amount dug lo related company - Longzhu Oilfield
Amound dug to related company - Morrison Marine S.A.
Ampunt dua 1o related tomparny - Innovesi Resources Lid
Amount due 10 related company - Century Maring 8.4,
Amound due o relaled company - OSCL

Amounl dua to relaled company - Trio Viclory
Amount due lo related company - BMI

Amoun! due 1o related company - CH Offshora
Amaunl due to relaled company - Chuan Hup Agencies (Ple} Ltd
Amaunt dua 1o relsted company - CGL Resources Lid
Amount due 1o assoclates - Federal Offshore Services Ple Lid
Amount due to associate - TS Amber

Amount due to associatla - TS Pearl

Amount due 1o related pany - PT LPS (irade)

Amount due Lo related parly - CDS Int'l Forwarding
Amound due (o directors

Advance received

Deposil received

Other payables

Other gredilors

Interest payables

Deferred gain

Tax fee payables

Accruals & other provision

Provislon for audit fee

Provision for bonug & cpf - directors

Provision for bonus & cpf - staff

Provision for unuldised leave

Provision for direclors lee

VAT payable

Witholding 1ax payabla

Finance lease cbligations

Pravision for 1axation

Tarm lpan - Am lnvesiment Bank

Tarm loan - Caterpillar Finance

Term loan

Mediuvm Term Notes

Term loan - CIMB

Term loan - May Bank

Progerty Loan - OB

Term lean - QCBC

Jamsosiek payables

Total Current LiabMities

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
- 6,830,589
. 14.38% 948
16,593,327
14,986,120
8,351,645
5,751,603
25,779,715
21,794,223 2
16,427,174 -
10,803,333
9,330,712
569,023
4,736,649 4,772,137
- 4,325,119
476,000
- 4,640,400
250,000 1,549,280
450,000 450,000
248.039
- 1,170,962
1,245,910.94 1,250,986
10,476.76 20,398,562
54,671.58 3,883,143
191,718.20 930,040
1,381,046.92 2,337,364
4,032,146,92 7.708.899
666,765
36,308
473,775.23 227652
92,455.62 211,424
65,776.63 66,640
105,932
67.069.33 67.869
146,079.87 146,080
- 317,806
11.014
- 80,503
3.548,087
19,326,575
- 737,697
- 15,126,613
36,982,248.52 36,982,249
12,364,889.53 12,364,890
13,200,000
1,913,580
6,306,130.00 32,852,402
52,634
199,718,722 212,927,020




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AY 30 June 2019

Non-Current Llabilities
Obfigation under finance leass
Term loan - OCBC - NCL

Post Employmeni ObMgation
Dthar payables - Daferred galn

Total Nen-Current Liabiltdes

Capital and Reservas
Share capital
Traasury shares
Revalyation resemnve
Merger reserve

Accumulated profitiloss)

Beginning
Currem

Capital reserve
Share option reserve

Foreign currency translation rasarves

Equlty Astrivutabla to Owners of the Compony

Non-Controlling Interest: BS

Tatal Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
- 179472
3,312,991.86 -

778,002

12,868,247

i6yispil

231,008,906 231,008,908
(4.114,045) {4,114,045)

- 3,261,768
- (154,953,530}
{412,338,477) {412,000)
{5.265,569) {27.521,764)
(417.624,046) {27.933.,784)
11,824,207 {19.607.851)

538,801 £38.801
{684,724)
iredegay "37,615,560

- 5,158,783

$3,7173340

s




FALCDN ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2019

Management faes income
Charter hire received
Sales of goods

Senvices rendered

Tolal Revenue

Opening stocks

Purchase

Cost of sales for services renderad

Other vessel operating income cost of sales

Purchase from related parly - CDS Intemational Forwarding
Freight & transportation (imward)

Lass closing stock

VESSEL OPERATING COSTS

QPERATING - CREW MATTERS
Opt - Crew Wages

Opt - Travel & Accomodation

Cpl - Food & Provision

Opt - Taxes/Permit & Others

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED-

CONSOLIDATED. .

30,060
20,778,963
865,613
4,051,745

25,726,321

62,338
1,859,863
2,037,803
3.285,256

222,709
144,183

7,612,153
{153,073)

7,459,079

2,489,577
148,779
1,147,046
76,013

3,861,415




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

OPERATING - HSE

Qpt - Crew Training & Safety Courses
Opt - Medical Check Up

Opt - Safely & PPE

OPERATING - TECHNICAL

Opt - R&M - Main Englnes

Opt - R&M - Mech & Deck Machinery

Opi - R&M - Navigation & Communication Equipment
Opt - R&M - Envirenmental Protection

Opt - R&M - Eleclrical System

Opl - R&M - Aircondilioning f Refrigeration Plant
Opl - R&M - Accomodation / Hotel System

Opt - R&W - Crane & Litting Gears

Opt - R&M - Waler Maker

Opt - R&M - Gaar Box / Prapulsian / Steering / Thrusler
Opt » R&M - Bulk Material Handling Equipment
Opt - R&M - Workshop Equipment { Tools

Opt « R&M - Hull / Helideck

Opt - R&M - Control System & Instrumentation
Opt - R&M - Auxiliary Engines

Opt - R&M - Pumps, Pipes & Valves

Opt - R&M - External Fire Fighting Equipment
Opt - R&M - Others

Opt - Dasign & Consultation

Opt - Dry Docking

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

8,977
82,308
2721

94,003

42,943
162,505
56,646
824
356,637
101,747
143,561
225,454
59,773
81,243
2,986
26,835
80,782
14,466
325,683
117,812
27175
154,940
20,378
190,384

2,182,785




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AMD ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

OPERATING - CLASSIFICATION & FLAG

Opt - Intermeadiate / Annual Survey
Opl - Special survey

Qpt - Classificalion Fees

Opt - Classification Others

OPERATING - OPERATIONS
Opt - Insurance (HUlIMCSAVWar)
Op! - Insurance (PiNIiLiability)

Opt - Equipment Rental

Opt - Tug Hire Or Towing Cast
Opl - Logistics Expenses

Opt - Safety Equipmenis

Opl - Consumables Stores Supply
Qpt - Traval

Opt - Fuel

Opt - Lube Qil/Water

Opt - Port Expenses

Opl - Vsl Communicatian

Opt - Entertainment { PR

Opt - Flag Expenses

Qpt - Operating Cost Others

Opt - Agency Fee

Opt - Branch office

Opt - Depreciation of Dry Docking {New)

Qpt - Dapreciation Of Vesse!

OPERATING - MARKETING
Opt - Agency Fee

Opt - Marketing / Managament Travel

Opt - Bank Charges

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

103,064
1,784
10,625
18,330

133,804

282,827
322,960
19,750
283,682
279,465
222,860
550,948
6,478
471,072
265,896
291,194
214,474
79,245
97,324
332,752
45,918
2,442
643,498
14,994,458

g41T54

1,286
2,313
2,654

6,254




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SURSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

DPERATING - ADMINISTRATION
Opt - Management Fee

Opl - Operalions Travel

Opt - Revenus Tax/Vat

Opt - Bank Charges

Opi - Bidf Performancs Bond

Opt - ISM Audit (New)

Opt - Flag Expenses (New)

Opt - Othars

Total Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Other vessel aperaling income

Inferest income

Sale of equipmeant

Fixed deposit Interest

Gaind(loss) on dispasal of fixedxcsset
Government granks - job credit scheme
Doubtful Debta/Bad Debt recovered
Olher sundry incoms

Total Other Operating Income

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

30,000
8,427
228,203
405,162
101,104
10,404

601

783,993

33,928,408

{8,212,167}

143

257,852

£88,030
26,909
114,850
142

661
22,365
962,576
1,829,988

258,003

3,874,619




FALCON ENERGY GROUF LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Staff expenses

Directors’ remuneration
Dlrectors’ transport allowance
Direclors' CPF

Salary & allowances

Stafi CPF

Bonus & cpf - directors
Borwus & cpf - slaff

Skill development fund lavy
Staff transport allowance
Slaff accomadation
Economic compensation
Staff welfare

Recruifment

Medical fee

H&S insurance

Unutitised leave
Jamsoslek

Total Staff Expenses

Motor vehicle expenses
Petrol

Parking

Repair & maintenance - moltor vehicles

Others - upkeep of molor vehicles

Total Moter Vehicle Expenses

FALCON ENERGY

. CONSOLIDATED

GROUP LIMITED

494,806 1,519,585
68,613 92,008
10,820 42,487
492,806 4,453,014
51,718 319,841

- 3.856

- 162.883

929 5.040

440 440

- 10,476

- 126,799

11,599 109,944

- 14,608

4,287 70,787
5,377 5373
(3,545) (3,545)

" 224,025
1,137,849 7,157,784
3,281 58,520
7,292 43,628
3,089 15673
6,606 31,670

¥ 20,2887 144,501




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Office expenses

Accountancy fee

Amortisation of nlangible assets
Allowance for doubtiul debts
Audit fes

Bank charges

Casual wages

Consuilation fee

Contract and manpower charges
Carporale cornmunication expense
Depreciation on fixed assets
Directors' fee

Exchange difference
Impairment loss an related company receivables
Penalty

General expenses

General insurance

Gift & donalion

IT & computer cost

Lease rental - Land

Legal & professional fee
Licence fee

Listing fee

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Postage & courder charges
Printing & stationery

Rental of office premises
Repair & malnlenance

Retainer fee - CDP

Retainer fee - sacretarial
Retainar fae - share regisirar
Subscription & membership
Storage casts

Tax fee & GST

Taxes & rights

Talephone charges

Transport

Travelling expense - office
Upkeep of office

Ulilities

Waobsite expenses

Withholding tax

Olhers

Total Offica Expenses

FALCON ENERGY ) TN
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
- 27,530
- 30,200
- 9.240
87,965 186,511
2,244 51,102
5 1173
- 23,668
. 172,112
709 700
64,761 532.783
102,697 146,680
554,436 1,687,951
- 88,029
83,586 83,566
64,084 125,902
22,010 525,408
0,560
. 11.862
: 69,826
258,376 556,574
6.466
25,660 25,660
: 181,067
720 5,898
48,293 71,226
716,981 979,125
15,279 44,929
5,499 5.499
8,795 18,586
2423 2423
1,832 28,821
3,580 5.078
3,712 34,733
70,533
9,558 81,851
132 12,823
219 174,276
5,017 179,940
5,363 24,246
192 5,974
- 38,157
2 1,153
2,004,238 6,129,878




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
Marketing expenses
Travefing expense 7,252 46,605
Entertainment & refreshment 6,632 243,718
Total Marketing Expenses 13,884 200410
Total Administrative Expensas 3,368,238 13727573
Bank ovardraft interest 25 25
MTN interest {411,978) {411,978)
Loan intarest - UOB - 109,583
Loan interest - Caterpillar - 76,000
Loan interast - CIMB (TL) 1,986,189 1,966,188
Loan interast - QCBC Spring Ioan - 180,505
Loan intaresl 523,549 3,562,183
Hire purchase inlaresi 1,478 75,951
Intarast expenses 178,071 178,071
Total Flnance Costs 2,277,334 5,758,530
Share of loss of asssociates - {2,733,168)
Share of loss of JV - Dictamismo 5 De R.L. Da CV {net of lax) - {2.356,956)

Total Share of loss of Associates and Joint Ventures

Loss bofore Income Tax

{5,0963420)

5§,285,569)

: (28,994,774Y




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

FALCONENERGY | . - . .
GROUP LIMITED © GONSOLIDATED

Income kax - Current - .
Income 1ax - Deferred - -
Total Income Tax - -
Loss for the vear (5.285.569) 28%11,771)
Loas for the year atiributable to:
Crwners of he Company (5,285,569) {27.451,763)
Non-gconirolling interests - {1,460,008)
Loss for the year {5,285,569) {28,911,771)
Lozs for the year {5,285,569) (28,911,771)
Other Comprehensive income:
Foraign cutrency translation of foreign entities - -
Foreign cumency translation of foreign eniities: NCI - -
Total Comprahensive Loss for the year '(5,285,869) (28,971:77)
Total Comprehensive Loss attributable to!
Owners of the Company (5,285,669) (27,451,763}
Non-cantrolling interests . {1.460,008})

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year ! (5.285.559) (15.911.771)




APPENDIX H—- THE COMPANY’S UNAUDITED MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2019

H-1



FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

ASSETS

Gurrant Assets

Non-current assets held for sale

Stacks - Finished goods

Trade receivables

Provision for had debls

Amount due from subsidlary - FOS {non-trade}

Less ; Impairment on doubtful recsivables: FOS (non-lrade)
Amount due frarm subsidiary - FEG Offshora {non-trada)

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: FEG Offshore (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - OSCL {non-irads)

Amount dus from subsidiary - Enargian (nor-trade)

Less ; impairment on doubiful receivables: Energian (non-trade}
Amount due from subsldiary - Radferd Holdings (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - Capital Guardian Lid

Less : Impairment on doubtiul receivables: Capilal Guardian Ltd
Amount due from subsiidary - Atlantic Marine

Less ; Impairment on doubtul receivables: Atlantic Marine
Amouni due from subsiidary - Molley Trio

Less | Impalrment on doubtful receivables: Motley Trio
Arnounl due from relaled company - Asetardan Marina

Less | Impairment on doubtful recaivables: Asetanian Marine Pte Ltd {DFRC}

Amount due from retated company - Petral Assels
Less : impairment on doublful recelvables: Petrol Assels

Amount due from associale - FTS Darricks Pte Lid
Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: FTS Demicks

Amount due from associales - TS Drilling Ple Ltd

Amount due from JV company - Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd

Amount due from associate - TS Drilling Holding

Impairment on TS Drilling Holding

Amount due irom CHC

Impalrment on retated company recelvables(1)

Hycotech Sdn Bhd

Other receivables

Tax recoverabls

VAT recoverahles

Staff loan

Advance lo slaff

Deaposits

Prepayment

Withholding tax receivable

GST receivable

Fixed deposit

Petty cash

Cash at bank

Cash in hand

Total Current Assets

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

- 9,081,332

- 220,000

- 22,854,335
- (12,957,396}

3,683,975 -
{9,530,436) -
15,780,682 -
(18.932,754) -
104,815,455 -
(122,451,360 -
15,113,535 -
670 -

(670} .
4,911,902 -
(4,911,802) -
12,528,411 -
(12,528,411} -
91,896,016 -
(91,876,836) -
1,221,022 )
{1,220,709) .
25,442,721 25,442,721
(25,437,506) {25,437.506)
(144,263) (144,253)

- 19,043,339

8 1,178,425
- (1,190,985)

- 981,244

. 20,060

- 1,326

103 8,047,281

s 47,815

- 290,570

- 19,937

- 16,068

233,801 313,226
16,207 476,552
- (425)

10,043 10,069

- 17,231

4 4M

24,704 1,583,510

- 6,389
(11,345,328) 51,031,404



FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Hon-Current Assets

Plant, property & equipmants

Investment in subsidiary - FOS

Investment in subsidiary - FEG Offshora
Investment in subsidiary - FEP

tnvesiment in subsidiary - OSCL

Investment in subsidiary - Enargian

lnvestment in subsidlary - Radford Holdings Limited
Invesiment in subsidiary - Capital Guardian Lid
Investment in subsidiary - Petro Asset Pte Ltd
Impairment an investment (subsidiaries)
Investmant in associates -Federal Offshore
Investment in associates -CHO

Investment in associates - FTS Derricks Pte Lid
Investment in associates - FTSG Co Limited
Invesimeant in JV - Maritim Indah Sden Bhd
Available-for-sale invastmenis

Deferred lax assets

Other racaivabla - Land use right+keppet deposit

Total Non-Current Aszets

TOTAL ASSETS

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

8,510 118,256,426
67.843 -

k| -

715,820 .
142,802,904 2
7,123 3
0 (0)

Q "

802 i
(116,194,1185) (U]
- 4,666,683

- 29,560,468

521 2

500 500

. 3,750,576

2,008,050 2,008,050

4 337,450

- 1.177.800
29,507,958 159,347,951
18,162,630 211,779,368




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Non-cumrent liabilities held for sale

Trade payables

Amoun{ due lo subsidiary - FEP

Amguni due to subsidiary - Excel Marine

Amount due to subsidiary - Imperial Marine S.A.
Amount due fo related company - Morrison Marine S.4.
Amounl due to related company - Innovesl Resources Lid
Amount dus to related company - Century Marine S.A,
Amount due to related company - OSCL

Amaount due to related company - Trio Victory
Amount due to related company - BMI

Amount due 1o related company - CH Offshore
Amount due to related company - Chuan Hup Agencies {Pie) Lid
Amount dus 1o refated company - CGL Resources Lid
Amount due o associales - Federal Offshors Services Pie Ltd
Amount due to assoclate - TS Amber

Amount dus to associate - TS Pearl

Amount due 1o direclors

Advanced billings

Advance recaived

Deposit receivad

Other payablas

Other creditors

Interest payables

Defarred gain

Tax fea payables

Accruals & other praviston

Provision for audil fee

Pravision for bonus & cpf - directors

Proviston for bonus & cpf - staff

Provision for unutilised leave

Provisian for directors fee

VAT payable

Witholding tax payable

Finance lease obligations

Provision for laxation

Term loan - Am Invastment Bank

Tarm loan

Medium Temm Moles

Term loan - CIMB

Term loan - May Bank

Term loan - CCBC

Jamsostek payablas

Total Current Liabifities

FALCON ENERGY _

GROUP LIMITED. CONSOLIDATED
: 6,330,580

- 12,534,936
16.584.226 .
14,986,120 -
8,351,645 -
25,779,715 :
21,794,223 -
16,427,174 -
10,803,333 .
9,330,712 .
909,527 .
4,826,282 4,861,810
< 4,325,119

476,000 s

- 4,640,400

250,000 250,000
450,000 450,000
1,080,486 1,086,541
3,351

10,516 34,616
54,875 3,574,465
323,817 783,014
1,387,004 (3,022,058}
5,307,196 9,044,073
= 866,765

. 23,073
485,121 1,708,514
137,342 263,797
66,021 66,887

= 14,562

67,869 57,869
207,869 207,869

. 223,028

E 59,579

N 4,383
L (568)

. 19,326,575

= 14,874,202
37,119,525 37,119,525
12,410,787 12,410,787
- 13,173,316
6,286,130 32,133,674
: 24,606
105,913,516 177,966,009




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A% AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Nen-Currant Liabllities
Deferred tax labilities

Terrn lpan - QCBC - NCL

Post Employment Qbligation
Other payables - Deferred gain

Total Non-Current Lisbilities

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Traasury shares
Revalualion resarve
Merger reserve

Accumulated profit/{loss}
Beginning
Current

Capital reserve
Share option reserva

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company

Won-Controlling interest: BS

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED' | CONSOLIDATED

5,100,000

3,003,202 ;

. 926,442

" 12,803,089

3,093,202 19,829,542
231,008,906 231,008,905
{4.114,045) (4,114,045)

- 3,261,768
5 (164,963,530}
{417,624,046) (27.933.764)
(2,578.001) (13,988,693)
(420,202,047) (41,922,457
11,824,207 (19,607851)
638,801 638,801
{180,844,178) 14,341,591
- 672,123
{180,844,178) 14,983,714
18,162,630 211,779,355




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND (TS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Charter hire received
Sales of gonds
Services renderad

Total Revenue

Opaning slocks

Purchase

Cost of salas for services rendered

Other vessel operating Income cost of sales
Freight & iransportation (inward)

Less closing slock

OPERATING « CREW MATTERS
Opt - Crew Wages

Opt - Travel & Accomodation

Opt - Food & Provision

Opt - Taxes/Permit & Othars

OPERATING - HSE

Opt - Crew Training & Safety Courses
Opt - Medieal Check Up

Opt - Safety & PPE

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

14,252,066
19,497
189,936

14,461:409

163,073
(51.506)
2,219
1,638,863
123,159

1,865,808
{76.9856)

ot 14,788,980

1,054,021
64,175
940,596
8,170

2,341,820

1,734
39,331
1,222




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 CECEMBER 2019

Charter hire recelvad
Sales of goods
Services renderad

Total Revenue

Opening stocks

Purchase

Cost of sales for services rendered

Cther vessel operating income cost of sales
Freight & transportatlon (inward)

Less closing stock

OPERATING - CREW MATTERS
Opt - Crew Wages

Opt - Travel & Accomadation

Opt - Food & Provision

Opl - Taxes/Permit & Others

OPERATING - HSE

Opt - Crew Training & Safety Courses
Opt - Medical Chack Up

Opt « Safety & PPE

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

14,262,086
19,487
189,936

14,461,499

153,073
{51,506)
2219
1,638,863
123,159

1,865,808
{76,856)

e/ T

1,054,021
64,175
940,596
9,170

2,341,820

1.734
38,331
1,222

49,579




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERICD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

OPERATING - TECHNICAL

Opt - R&M - Medn Engines

Opt - R&M - Mech & Dack Machinery

Opt - R&M - Navigation & Communication Equipment
Opt - R&M - Environmental Protection

Opt - R&M - Electrical System

Opt - R&M - Airconditioning / Refrigeration Plant
Opt - R&M - Accomodatian / Hotel System

Opt - R&M - Crane & Lifling Gears

Opt - R&M - Water Maker

Opt - R&M - Gear Box / Prapulsion / Steering { Thruster
Opt - R&M - Bulk Material Handling Equipment
Opt - R&M - Workshop Equipment { Tools

Opt - R&M - Hull / Helideck

Opt - R&M - Control System & Insirumentation
Opt - R&M - Auxiliary Engines

Opt - R&M - Pumps, Pipes & Valves

Opt - R&M - External Fire Fighting Equipment
Opt - REM - Others

Opt - Deslgn & Consuliation

Opt - Dry Docking

OPERATING - CLASSIFICATION & FLAG
Opt - Intermediale / Annual Survey
Opt - Classification Qthers

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

23,010
97,303
35,885

979

222,634
55,960
85,038

192,797
25,654

1,622
7.547
50,182
42,969
3,403

234,489

73,440

3,091

90,160

6,345
(28,057)

1,366,349

22,065
11,856

121,026




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

OPERATING - OPERATIONS

Opt - Insurance (Hull/MCS/IViNar)
Opt - Insurance (PNI/Liabilily}

Opt - Tug Hira Or Towing Cosl
Opt - Logistics Expenses

Opt - Safety Equipments

Opt - Consumables Storas Supply
Opt - Fue}

Opt - Lube Oil/Water

Opt - Port Expenses

Opi - Vel Communicalion

Opt - Flag Expenses

Opt - Oparating Cost Others

Opt - Branch office

Opt - Depreciation of Dry Docking (New}
Opt - Deprecialion Of Vessel

OPERATING - MARKETING
Opt - Agency Fee

OPERATING - AUMINISTRATION
Opl - Management Fee

Opl - Operations Travel

Opt - Revenue Tax/Vat

Opt - Bank Charges

Op! - Bid/ Performance Bond

Total Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

51,453
153,696
123,310
149,597

54,208
266,670
217,495

18,336

61,544

51,008

55,320

17,434

31,799
246,048

5,869.896

8,678,849

1,508

1,451
186,477
163,233

§2.613

405,220

14,754/203

(292,704)




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Chiner vesset operating income

Interest income

Sale of equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidlaries

Fixed deposit inlerest

Government grants - job credit scheme
Qther sundry income

Total Other Operating Incoma

Staff expenses

Directors' remuneration
Directors’ transport allowanca
Directors’ CPF

Salary & allowances

Staff CPF

Baonus & cpf - directors
Banus & cpf - staff

Skill development fund levy
Staff transport allowance
Staff accomodalion
Economic compansation
Staff welfare

Racruilment

Medical fea

H&S Insurance

Jamsosiek

Training

Total Staff Expenses

Motor vehicle expenses

Petrol

Parking

Repair & malntenance - motor vehiclas
Road tax, insurance

Others - upkeep of molor vehicles

Total Motor Vehicle Expenses

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED | CONSOLIDATED
- 554,676
49 8,606
9,765
- 18,127,495
- 47
- 7
933 249,018
w2 Anabts
246,400 563,888
34,167 38.548
5,388 10,017
193,925 1,227,036
20,554 46,342
- 2,281
13,319
356 816
219 219
6,620
" 47,074
- 6,025
- 1,296
1,453 55,984
5,450 5,450
- 120,381
59 308

14,767
10,900
3,246
3,174
2,643

729




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

ARD ITS SUBSIMARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED | CONSOLIDATED

Office expenses
Accountancy fee 2,850
Amonrtisation of intangible assets - 15,100
Allowance for doubtful debis - 40,875,965
Audit fee 43,804 83,840
Write off of other receivables - 233,31
Bank charges 775 13,655
{Casual wages - 9,129
Consultalicn fee - 722
Contract and manpawer charges - 6,059
Depreciation on fixed assets 2,264 84,819
Directors' fee 60,231 64,137
Exchange difference 231,715 313377
Impairment lass on relaled company raceivables - 70,796
General expenses 19,924 96,119
General insurance 4,411 62,858
Gift & donation 2,002
IT & computer cost - 2,080
Lease rental - Land - 5,819
Legal & professional fee 120,745 167.470
Liconce fee - $00
Listing fee 12,944 13,342
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 3.402
Poslage & courier charges 151 1,375
Primling & stalionery 14,062 18,299
Rental of office premises 118,370 148,048
Repair & mainlenance 3,741 15,259
Retainer fee - CDP 3,328 3,328
Retainer fee - secretarial 4,387 5,396
Retainer fee - share regisirar 1,207 1,207
Subscription & membership 1,636 8,724
Storage cosls 2,317 2,457
Taxfee & GST - 4,725
Taxes & rights - 21,394
Telephone charges 4,947 13,484
Transport 460 742
Travelling expense - office - 50,963
Upkeep of office 1,293 13,212
Utflities 1.677 7.890
Websita expenses - 2,525
Withholding tax - 8,749
Total Office Expenses | 654,388 : - 42/455,6071




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Marketing expenses
Travelling expense
Enteriainment & refreshment

Total Marketing Expensas

Total Administrative Expensas

Bank overdrafi inlerest

Lean interest - VOB

Loan interest - CIMB (TL)

Loan interest - OCBC Spring loan
Loan Interest

Hire purchase interest

Interest expenses

Total Finance Costs

Share of {loss¥profit of asssoclates

Share of profit of JV - Dictamismo S De R.L. De CV (net of fax)

Total Share of Profit of Assoclates and Joint Ventures

Profit / (Loss) before Incorme Tax

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED | CONSOLIDATED
125 22,990
3,914 28,682

T PR

6,3 44,684,

34 34

. 4,335
994,889 994 889
81,290

218,059 1,755,273
. 27,793
29,632 89,632
402,614 i1 - 2,953,248
- {1 .305)

- 720,329
LB sy a748/524 ¢

(28,262,414)




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Income tax -~ Cuerent
Income tax - Deferred

Total Income Tax

Profit / {Loss) after tax

Transfer of reserves - ceased as subsidianes

Profit / {Loss) for the period

Profit / {Loss) for the period attributabls to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling intarests

Profit f {Loss) for the period

Profit / (Loss) for the period

Other Comprehensive Income:

Foratgn currency translation of foreign entities
Foraign currency transtation of foreign antitles: NCI

Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Total Comprehansive Income attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total Comprahensiva Income for the period

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED | CONSOLIDATED
37
- a7
28,262,452)
’ 14,489,870

(@sT8001)-

{2.578,001) {13,888,693)
= 216,112

{2,578,001) (13,772,581)

L1828

(2,578,001) {13.988,683)
- 216,112

.

13,772,581)




APPENDIX | = THE COMPANY’S UNAUDITED MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS AS AT 31 MARCH
2020




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

ASSETS

Current Assets

Non-current assets held for sale

Stocks - Finished goods

Trade raceivables

Provision for bad debts

Amaunt due from subsidiary - FOS {non-trade)

Less : impafment on doubtful receivables: FOS (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - FEG Offghore (non-trade)

Less : Impaiment on doubtiul raceivables. FEG Cffshare {non-trade)
Amount dus from subsidiary - Energian {non-trade}

Less ; Impaimmaent on doubtful recelvables: Energian (non-trade}
Amount due from subsidiary - Radford Haldings (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - Capital Guardian Ltd

Lass : Impairment an doubtiut receivables: Capital Guardian Lid
Amount due from subsiidary - Allantic Marine

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivablas: Aflantic Marine
Amount due fram subsiidary - Matley Trio

Less : Impairment on daublful receivables: Motley Trio
Amaunt due from relaled company - Asatanian Marine

Less ! Impairment on doubifu! jeceivables: Asstanian Marine Pie Ltd
Amount due from related company - Patrol Assels

Less : Impaiment on daubtful receivables: Petrol Assels
Amount due from associale - FTS Dearsicks Ple Lid

Less : Impairmani on doubtful receivables: FTS Derricks
Amaunt due from asgociates - TS Drilling Ple Lid
Amount due fram JY company - Marilim Indah Sdn Bhd
Amount due from assotiate - T8 Drilling Holding
Impairment on 75 Drilling Holding
Amount due from CHO
Hycotech Sdn Bhd
Other recelvables
Tax recoverable
VAT recoverables
Siaff loan
Advance 1o staff
Deposits
Prepayment
Wilhhalding tax receivable
GST receivable
Fixed deposit
Petty cash
Cash al bank
Cash in hand

Total Current Assets

FALGON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

2 9,081,332

- 220,000

= 23,649,867
- {12,682,008)

1,683,975 -
{6,530,436) s
15,445,307 -
(18,032,754) .
104,854,220 .
(122,451,360} -
15,142,801 -
516 -

(670) =
4,912,002 "
{4,811,802) .
12,528,411 -

(12,528,411)

91,896,916 .
(91,876,936) -
1,221,022 .
(1,220,709} 8
25,442,721 25,442,721
(25,437,506) (25437 ,506)
{213.409) {213,499)

- 19,043,339

. 1.178,425
- (1,190,985)

> 1,030,537

. 1.326

5 8,231,506

. 72.761

= 348,685

21,650

= 13,669

251,870 326,047
16,384 606,629

- {425}

19,596 19,821

. 117,385

299 299

4,699 2,161,272

- 7,482
(11,683,340) 52,249,410




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Mon-Current Assets

Plant, properly & equipments

investmant in subsidiary - FOS

Investment in subsidiary - FEG Ofishore
Investment in subsidiary - FEP

investment in subsidlary - OSCL

investment in subsidiary - Enargian

Investment in subsidiary - Petro Assat Ple Ld
Impairment on investment {subsidiaries)
tnvastment in associatas -Federal Offshore
Investment in aseociates -CHO

Invesiment In assocliates - FTS Demicks Ple Lid
Investment in associates - FTSG Co Limited
Investment in JV - Maritim Indah Sden Bhd
Available-for-sale investmants

Defarrad {ax assels

Other recgivable - Land use right+keppel depaosit

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

FALGON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
7,286 116,069,347
87,843 )
1 -
715,820 s
142,802,904 :
7123 ;
802 &
(116,184,115) -
. 4,675,595
; 29,560,468
521 a
500 500
; 3,750,576
2,098,050 2,098,050
. 287,872
. 1,170,250
29,506,335 158,512,657
17,823,494 210,762,067




FALGON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities held for sale

Trade payables

Amount due to subsidiary « FEFP

Amount due to subsidiary - Excel Marine

Araount dua to gubsidiary - Imparial hMarine S.A.
Amount due to related company - Morrison Marine S.A.
Amount due to refated compary - Innovesl Rasources Lid
Arnount due to refated company - Century Marine $.A.
Amount dua Lo related company - OSCL

Amount dus 0 related company - Trie Viclory
Ampunt due ta related campany - BMI

Arount due 1o related company - CH Offshore
Amount due to ralated company ~ Chuan Hup Agencies {Ple)Lid
Amount due to rekaled company - CGL Resources Ltd
Amount due to associates - Federal Offshore Servicas Pte Lig
Armount due lo associate - TS Amber

Amount due 10 associate - TS Pearl

Amount due to directors

Advanced billings

Advance recaived

Deposil received

Qiher payablas

Other creditors

Inlerast payables

Defarrad galn

Tax fee payables

Accruals & other provision

Provision for audit fee

Provision for bonus & cpf - direciors

Provision for banus & cpf - stalf

Proviston for unuillised keave

Provision for directors fee

VAT payable

Witholding tax payable

Finance lease obligations

Provision for taxation

Term loan - Am nvestment Bank

Term loan

Medium Term Notes

Term loan - CIMB

Term loan - May Bank

Term loan - OCBC

Jamsostek payables

Total Current Liabilitles

FALGON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

| 5,830,589

- 12,264,673
16,579,541 -
14,986,120 "

8,351,645

25,779,715 ;
21,794,223 -
16,427,174 :
10,803,333 >
9,330,712 .
908,040 .
4,870,638 4,906,168
. 4,325,119

476,000 .
4,640,400

250,000 250,000
450,000 450,000
1,080,486 1,086,541
3,361

5,947 30,431
51,711 3,571,302
404,983 854,595
1,522,128 (2.509,1:3:3)
5,652,083 9,701,835
- 866.765

- 24,330

458,165 1,988,002
150,983 275,245
62,451 63,270

3 13,749

67,869 67,869
225,597 225,597

- 206,695

- 51,249

2,816

. (338)
19,326,575

s 14,899,546
35,112,360 35,112,360
11,739,698 11,730,698
13,173,316

6,286,130 31,790,684
. 24,023

7193,831,733.59'

475,913,211



FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND 1TS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Mon-Current Liabilities
Deferred tax liablilies

Tarm loan - OCBC - NCL

Post Employment Ohligation
Other payables - Deferred gain

Total Non-Current Liabliities

Capltal and Reserves
Shara capilal

Troasury sharas
Revaluatian reserve

Merger reserve
Accumulated profitiloss)

Beginning

Cument

Capital resarve
Shara oplion reserne
Frrrign cumency translalion reserves

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Non-Conéroliing Interest: BS

Total Equity

FOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
: 5,100,000
2,926,028
- 922,367
« 12,582,824
2,026,028 18,605,191
231,008,906 231,008,906
{4,114,045) {4,114,046)
: 3,261,768
. (154,953,530
(417,624,048) (27.933,764)
(668,090} (12.788,857)
(418,292,187) (40,722,621}
11,824,207 (19,607,851)
638,801 638,801
(178,834,267) 16,511,427
: 732,239
(178,934,267) 16,243,666
$ 17,825,494 310,762,067




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND T8 SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Charter hire received
Sales of goods

Servicas rendered

Taotal Ravenue

Opening stocka

Purchase

Cost of sales lor services rendsred

Olher vesse! operating income cosl of sales
Freight & transportation (inward)

Less closing slock

VESSEL OPERATING COSTS

OPERATING - CREW MATTERS
Opt - Craw Wages

Opt - Travel & Accomadalion

Opt - Food & Provision

Opl - TaxasiPemmit & Others

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

21,170,611
19,497
189,936

31:380,044

163,073
(51,506}
2,218
2,535,488
123,159

2,762,433
{76,856)

'2,685:577

1,922,403
668,879
1,308,326
23,107

" 3,922,714,




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

OPERATING - HSE

Opt - Crew Training & Safely Courses
Opt - Medical Check Up

Opt - Safety & PPE

Opt - ISPC

OPERATING - TECHNICAL

Opt - R&M - Main Engines

Opt - REM - Mech & Deck Machinary

Opt - R&M - Navigation & Gommunication Equipment
Opl - R&M - Environmentat Prolection

Opt - R&M - Elecirical Sysiem

Opt - R&M - Airconditioning / Refrigeration Plant
Opl - R&M - Accomadalion / Hotel System

Op! - R&M - Crane & Lifling Gears

Opt - R&M - Waler Maker

Qpt - R&M - Gear Box / Propulsion / Steering { Thruster
Opt - R&M - Butk Material Handling Equipment
Opt - R&M - Workshop Equipment / Tools

Opt - R&M - Hull / Hefideck

Opt - R&M - Conlrol System & Instrumentation
Opt - R&M - Auxliary Engines

Opt - R&M - Pumps, Pipes & Valves

Opt - R&M - Exiernal Fire Fighting Equipment
QOpi - R&M - Others

Opl - Dasign & Consuitation

Opt - Dry Docking

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

12,624
45,485
1.804
7.246

66,930

§0,271
167,767
47.8641
2.808
368,099
98,140
100,105
238,189
77,098
1,802
12,064
55,303
93,374
3,659
301,885
144,113
18,578
131,303
9,735
{12,656)

1,996,446




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

FALCON ENERGY £ :
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

OPERATING - CLASSIFICATION & FLAG
Opt - Intermediate § Annual Survey - 86,507
Opt - Special survey - 14,655
Opt - Classification Fees - 33,786
Opt - Classification Olhers - 15,149
Opt - Flag Expenses - 6,286

. 156484
OPERATING - OPERATIONS
Opt - Ingurance (HullMCS/IVtar) - 94,921
Opt - [nsurance (PNI/Liability) - 260,640
Opt - Bareboat Charter 359,818
Opt - Equipment Rental - 35041
Opl - Tug Hire Or Tawing Cost B 230,542
Opt - Logistics Expenses - 226,137
Opt - Safety Equipments - 107.13%
Opt - Consumables Stores Supply - 371,602
Qpt - Fuel - 559,243
Opt - Lube OiWalter - 77.437
Opt - Port Expenses - 606,661
Opt - Vgl Communication - 88,276
Opt - Flag Expenses - 72,679
Opt - Operating Cost Olhers . 80,375
Opt - Branch office - 19,643
Opt - Depreciation of Dry Docking (New) - 324,566
Opt - Depreciation Of Vessel - 8,313,942
Opt - Impaimenl expenses - Vessel - 736,908

OPERATING - MARKETING
Opt - Agency Fee - 8,520
Opl - Bank Charges - 1,044

o : 10,463



FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

OPERATING - ADMINISTRATION
Op! - Management Fee

Opt - Operations Travel

Opt - Revenua Tax/Vat

QOpt - Bank Charges

Opt - Bid! Parformancs Bond

Opt - Olhers

Total Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Other vassel operating incoms

Interest [ncome

Sale of equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidiarias

Fixed deposil Interest

Government grants - fob credit schems
Other sundry incoma

Total Othar Operating Income

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

20,618
267457
265,943
66,804
(14,549

606,273

22/089/556

(709,512

§1

1,860

1,606,817
12,545
9,765
18,127,495
47

7

249,946

1,811




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Staff expenses

Directors' remunaration
Direclors' transport allowance
Direclors’ CPF

Salary & allowances

Staff CPF

Bonus & cpf - directors
Bonus & cpf - staff

Skill development fund levy
Slaff transport allowance
Economic compansation
Slaff welfare

Recruitment

Medical fee

H&S insurance

Jamsosiek

Tealning

Total $taff Expanses

Motor vehicle gxpenses
Patrol
Parking

Repair & maintenance - molor vehicles
Road tax, insurance
Olhers - upkeep of motor vehicles

Total Mator Vehicle Expanses

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

369,694 830,219

51,264 57,837

8,084 13,898

271,083 1,713,185

28,015 57,438

- 2,281

- 13,319

512 1,040

500 500

- 47,071

= 19,175

- 1,296

1,770 69,354

5450 5,450

- 176,682

59 960
746432

2,625 15,480

5,384 14,508

1,882 4,305

2,964 4,485

1,458 32

14,300 41,899




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Office expenses

Accauntancy fee

Amortisation of intangible assets
Allowance for doubtful debts
Audit fee

Write off of olher recaivables
Bank charges

Casual wagas

Consultalion fee

Cantract and manpower charges
Deprecialion on fixed assels
Directors’ fee

Exchange difference

Impairment loss on related company receivables

General expenges

General insurance

Gift & donation

IT & computer cost

Lease rental - Land

Legal & professional fee
Licencs fee

Listing fea

Loss on disposal of fited assels
Postage & courier chargas
Prinling & stationery

Rental of office premises
Repalr & maintenance
Retainer fes - CDP
Retalner fee - sacretarial
Retainer fee - share ragistrar
Subscription & meambership
Storage costs

Tax fae & GST

Taxes & rights

Telephane charges
Transport

Travelling expense - oflice
Upkeep of oifica

Utllides

Waebsite expenses
Wilhholdling tax

Total Office Expenses

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

: 2,850

22,650

: 40,875,965

65.723 113,758

: 233371

1,100 19,248

. 13,350

: 722

6,059

3.387 112,254

£0.370 94,276
{2.955,105) (2.815,208)

; 70,796

25,319 113,979

7,568 94,929

. 2,245

. 3,180

5,819

325,152 375,606

) 1,209

18,440 19,440

; 3.402

190 2,042

21,968 29,981

174,793 205,014

4.642 19,069

4,993 4,993

5,855 7,302

1,820 1,820

1,636 20.802

3,505 3,645

6,478

33,237

8,820 17,334

593 a7s

- 66,096

1,649 16,083

2,849 14,690

] 3,554

c 8,749

" (2,185,735) 39,827,670




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Marketing expenses

Travelling expense
Transport

Entertainment & refreshment
Others

Total Marketing Expenses

Total Administrative Expenses

Bank overdraft imerest

Loan interas! - LIOB

Loan intarest - GiMB (TL)

Loan interest - QCBC Spring loan
Loan Interast

Hira purchase inlarest

Interasl expenses

Total Finance Costs

Share of (loss)profil of asssociates
Share of profit of JV - Dictamismo S De R.L. De CV (net of tax)

Totat Share of Profit of Associates and Joint Ventures

Profit ! (Loss) before income Tax

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
125 19,479
119 5,757
4,436 37,787
- 13,294
4679 76,318
{1:430,324) 42,085:560
34 41
: 4,335
1,494,138 1,494,138
- 123,084
472,164 2,601,340
- 39,760
133,980 133,980
2,100,325 4:156,687
e 7,108
% 1,045,498

052,605

(668,090)

(27,002,463)




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

FALCON ENERGY % g il
GROUP LIMITED GONSOLIDATED
Income lax - Current - kY
Income tax - Deferrad s 5
Total Incoms Tax - 37
Profit | (Loss) after tax {668;000)- (2,702,500)
Transler of resarves - ceased as subsidiaries
- 14,409,870
Profit / {Loss) for the perlod {660,090) (12,512,630}
Profit f {Loss) for tho period attributable to:
Owners of tha Company {668,090) (12,788,857)
Non-conlroling intarests - 276,228
Profit / {Loss) for the pericd 2 (668,000) " (12,512,630)
Profit / {Loss) for the period (668,030) {12,512,630)
Other Comprahensive ncome.
Foreign currency transtation of foreign entities - -
Forelgn cuivency translation of foreign entities: NC) - -
Total Comprehansive Incoma for the perlod (sss,qgo) T N 75
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of ihe Company {668,080) {12,788,857)
tNon-controfling inleresis - 276,228

Total Comprehensive Income for the period *(668,090) (12,512,630)




APPENDIX J - THE COMPANY’S UNAUDITED MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS AS AT 30 JUNE
2020
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FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

ASSETS

Current Assets

Non-current assets held for sale

Stocks - Finished goods

Trade receivables

Provision for bad debts

Amount due from subsidiary - FOS (non-trade)

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: FOS (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - FEG Offshore (non-trade)

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: FEG Offshore (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - Energian (non-trade)

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: Energian (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - Radford Holdings (non-trade)
Amount due from subsidiary - Capital Guardian Ltd

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: Capital Guardian Ltd
Amount due from subsiidary - Atlantic Marine

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: Atlantic Marine
Amount due from subsiidary - Motley Trio

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: Motley Trio
Amount due from related company - Asetanian Marine

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: Asetanian Marine Pte Ltd (DFRC)
Amount due from related company - Petro Assets

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: Petrol Assets
Amount due from associate - FTS Derricks Pte Ltd

Less : Impairment on doubtful receivables: FTS Derricks
Amount due from JV company - Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd
Amount due from associate - TS Drilling Holding
Impairment on TS Drilling Holding
Amount due from CHO
Hycotech Sdn Bhd
Other receivables
Tax recoverable
Advance to staff
Deposits
Prepayment
Withholding tax receivable
GST receivables
Fixed deposit
Petty cash
Cash at bank

Cash in hand

Total Current Assets

Page 1 of 1

FEG

Consolidated

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED |  CONSOLIDATED
- 9,081,331.95
B 220,000.00
- 23,305,810.43
- (12,131,376.55)
3,683,974.78 -
(9,530,435.86) -

15,129,948.59
(18,932,753.62)
104,879,821.64
(122,451,360.20)
15,146,660.78
515.91
(669.59)
4,912,001.68
(4,911,801.68)
12,528,410.97
(12,528,410.97)
91,896,916.23
(91,876,935.64)

1,221,022.28 -

(1,220,708.69) -
25,442,720.74 25,442,720.74
(25,437,505.75) (25,437,505.75)
- 19,043,338.95
- 1,178,425.00
- (1,190,985.46)
- 1,030,536.99
- 1,325.73
0.10 9,662,980.77
- 118,242.06
- 15,622.35
256,922.00 265,374.71
11,371.95 525,720.39
- (424.66)
8,069.50 8,095.07
B 117,529.59
60.88 60.88
55,080.26 2,191,709.90
- 8,166.53
(11,717,083.71) 53,456,699.62

FEG_BS 30Jun20



FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Non-Current Assets

Plant, property & equipments
Investment in subsidiary - FOS
Investment in subsidiary - FEG Offshore
Investment in subsidiary - FEP
Investment in subsidiary - OSCL

Investment in subsidiary - Energian

Investment in subsidiary - Radford Holdings Limited

Investment in subsidiary - Capital Guardian Ltd
Investment in subsidiary - Petro Asset Pte Ltd
Impairment on investment (subsidiaries)
Investment in associates -Federal Offshore
Investment in associates -CHO

Investment in associates - FTS Derricks Pte Ltd
Investment in associates - FTSG Co Limited
Investment in JV - Maritim Indah Sden Bhd
Available-for-sale investments

Deferred tax assets

Other receivable - Land use right+keppel deposit

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Page 1 of 1

FEG

Consolidated

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

5,190.29
67,842.59

0.67
715,819.67
142,802,903.97
7,122.51

0.13

0.13

801.92

(116,194,114.69)

114,124,984.28

4,668,711.00
29,560,468.06

521.25 -
500.00 500.00
3,750,575.98
2,098,050.00 2,098,050.00
321,286.73
1,162,699.58
29,504,638.44 155,687,275.63
17,787,554.73 209,143,975.25

FEG_BS 30Jun20




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Non-current liabilities held for sale

Trade payables

Amount due to subsidiary - FEP

Amount due to subsidiary - Excel Marine

Amount due to subsidiary - Imperial Marine S.A.
Amount due to related company - Morrison Marine S.A.
Amount due to related company - Innovest Resources Ltd
Amount due to related company - Century Marine S.A.
Amount due to related company - OSCL

Amount due to related company - Trio Victory
Amount due to related company - BMI

Amount due to related company - CH Offshore
Amount due to related company - Chuan Hup Agencies (Pte) Ltd
Amount due to related company - CGL Resources Ltd
Amount due to associates - Federal Offshore Services Pte Ltd
Amount due to associates - TS Drilling Pte Ltd
Amount due to associate - TS Amber

Amount due to associate - TS Pearl

Amount due to directors

Advanced billings

Advance received

Deposit received

Other payables

Other creditors

Interest payables

Deferred gain

Tax fee payables

Accruals & other provision

Provision for audit fee

Provision for bonus & cpf - staff

Provision for unutilised leave

Provision for directors fee

VAT payable

Witholding tax payable

Finance lease obligations

Provision for taxation

Term loan - Am Investment Bank

Term loan

Medium Term Notes

Term loan - CIMB

Term loan - May Bank

Term loan - OCBC

Jamsostek payables

Total Current Liabilities

FEG Consolidated
FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
- 6,830,589.30

16,578,194.76
14,986,120.34
8,351,645.25
25,779,714.79
21,792,396.60
16,427,173.51
10,803,333.36
9,330,711.98
908,039.79
4,914,605.31

476,000.00
156,749.21
250,000.00
450,000.00
997,359.97
10,146.55
52,748.57
514,044.97
1,633,276.17
6,316,839.38
492,216.33
175,501.43
63,703.44
59,801.87

259,670.47

35,816,618.91

11,975,165.22

13,119,229.33

4,950,133.22
4,325,119.34
4,640,400.00
156,749.21
250,000.00
450,000.00
1,003,414.33
3,351.00
33,583.24
3,572,339.24
1,088,570.62
878,725.85
10,647,308.83
866,764.78
25,306.17
2,546,800.26
311,179.11
78,592.12
59,801.87
259,670.47
81,107.95
1,998.33
11,370.61
(548.42)
19,326,575.23
8,502,803.24
35,816,618.91
11,975,165.22

13,173,316.16

6,270,930.00 38,069,186.20
- 25,059.42
195,842,708.18 183,080,281.14

Page 1 of 1

FEG_BS 30Jun20



FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Non-Current Liabilities
Obligation under finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities

Term loan - OCBC - NCL
Post Employment Obligation

Other payables - Deferred gain

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Share capital
Treasury shares
Revaluation reserve

Merger reserve

Beginning

Current

Capital reserve

Share option reserve

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company

Non-Controlling Interest: BS

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Page 1 of 1

FEG

Consolidated

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

- 17,269.88

- 5,112,955.37
2,977,677.82 -

- 26,414.00

- 13,410,743.79
2,977,677.82 18,567,383.04

231,008,906.12
(4,114,045.44)

(417,624,046.49)
(2,766,653.93)

231,008,904.77
(4,114,045.44)
3,261,768.00

(154,953,529.54)

(27,933,763.68)
(21,459,420.03)

(420,390,700.42)

11,824,207.47

(49,393,183.71)

(19,607,850.77)

638,801.00 638,801.00
(181,032,831.27) 6,840,864.31
- 655,446.75
(181,032,831.27) 7,496,311.06

17,787,554.73

209,143,975.24

FEG_BS 30Jun20




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Charter hire received
Sales of goods

Services rendered

Total Revenue

Opening stocks

Purchase

Cost of sales for services rendered

Other vessel operating income cost of sales

Freight & transportation (inward)

Less closing stock

VESSEL OPERATING COSTS

OPERATING - CREW MATTERS
Opt - Crew Wages

Opt - Travel & Accomodation

Opt - Food & Provision

Opt - Taxes/Permit & Others

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

26,520,928.69
19,497.45
189,935.64

26,730,361.78

153,073.16
(51,506.26)
2,218.93
3,867,935.17
123,158.75

4,094,879.75
(76,856.16)

4,018,023.59

2,801,172.84
701,269.44
1,670,411.44
54,929.35

5,227,783.07




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
OPERATING - HSE
Opt - Crew Training & Safety Courses - 25,635.12
Opt - Medical Check Up - 59,415.85
Opt - Safety & PPE - 1,603.60
Opt - ISPC 7,246.04

o 93,900.61

OPERATING - TECHNICAL
Opt - R&M - Main Engines - 50,270.95
Opt - R&M - Mech & Deck Machinery - 197,861.22
Opt - R&M - Navigation & Communication Equipment - 67,250.51
Opt - R&M - Environmental Protection - 2,887.67
Opt - R&M - Electrical System - 442,347.80
Opt - R&M - Airconditioning / Refrigeration Plant - 113,029.34
Opt - R&M - Accomodation / Hotel System - 120,442.55
Opt - R&M - Crane & Lifting Gears - 345,722.29
Opt - R&M - Water Maker - 96,966.13
Opt - R&M - Gear Box / Propulsion / Steering / Thruster - 8,919.25
Opt - R&M - Bulk Material Handling Equipment - 14,250.05
Opt - R&M - Workshop Equipment / Tools - 61,971.23
Opt - R&M - Hull / Helideck - 114,635.22
Opt - R&M - Control System & Instrumentation - 3,834.18
Opt - R&M - Auxiliary Engines - 491,232.68
Opt - R&M - Pumps, Pipes & Valves - 168,406.37
Opt - R&M - External Fire Fighting Equipment - 20,055.67
Opt - R&M - Others - 169,942.57
Opt - Design & Consultation - 10,143.42
Opt - Dry Docking - (7,915.33)

5 2,492,253.77



FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

OPERATING - CLASSIFICATION & FLAG
Opt - Intermediate / Annual Survey - 105,689.54
Opt - Special survey - 14,855.44
Opt - Classification Fees - 33,785.98
Opt - Classification Others - 15,951.00

- 170,281.96
OPERATING - OPERATIONS
Opt - Insurance (Hul/MCS/IV/War) - 133,544.29
Opt - Insurance (PNl/Liability) 620,552.49
Opt - Bareboat charter 359,815.70
Opt - Equipment Rental - 35,939.85
Opt - Tug Hire Or Towing Cost - 275,147.24
Opt - Logistics Expenses - 265,055.80
Opt - Safety Equipments - 169,645.61
Opt - Consumables Stores Supply - 515,332.95
Opt - Fuel - 950,762.77
Opt - Lube Oil/Water - 156,115.50
Opt - Port Expenses - 925,443.33
Opt - VsI Communication - 131,222.64
Opt - Flag Expenses - 132,148.57
Opt - Operating Cost Others - 1,483,334.09
Opt - Branch office 32,215.17
Opt - Depreciation of Dry Docking (New) - 407,166.22

Opt - Depreciation Of Vessel

Opt - Impairment expenses - Vessel

OPERATING - MARKETING

11,327,793.73
2,323,586.04

20,246,152.55

Opt - Agency Fees - 26,490.34
Opt - Marketing / Management Travel - 2,559.84
Opt - Bank Charges - 120.00

34,170.18




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

OPERATING - ADMINISTRATION
Opt - Operations Travel

Opt - Revenue Tax/Vat

Opt - Bank Charges

Opt - Bid/ Performance Bond

Opt - Others

Total Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Other vessel operating income

Interest income

Sale of equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Fixed deposit interest

Government grants - job credit scheme

Other sundry income

Total Other Operating Income

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

6,905.58
312,403.08
373,194.83

82,735.09

2,976.71

778,215.29

33,060,781.02

(6,330,419.24)

51.51

43,773.38

1,896,116.93
18,884.37
9,764.80
18,127,495.29
4714
24,729.44
277,894.90

43,824.89

20,354,932.87




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Staff expenses

Directors' remuneration
Directors' transport allowance
Directors' CPF

Salary & allowances

Staff CPF

Bonus & cpf - directors
Bonus & cpf - staff

Foreign worker levy

Skill development fund levy
Economic compensation
Staff welfare

Recruitment

Medical fee

Jamsostek

Training

Total Staff Expenses

Motor vehicle expenses

Petrol

Parking

Repair & maintenance - motor vehicles
Road tax, insurance

Others - upkeep of motor vehicles

Total Motor Vehicle Expenses

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

488,886.23 1,122,349.87
67,792.23 76,483.54
10,350.30 17,306.93

347,599.28 2,259,284.61
36,540.32 69,476.32

- 2,280.57

- 13,318.69
460.01

679.30 1,273.43

- 47,070.92

- 25,681.30

- 1,296.11

1,995.84 74,890.41

- 229,868.99

58.52 960.36

951,631.82 3,938,811.84

2,673.59 17,156.11

7,153.15 19,391.71

1,881.62 3,870.05

4,418.51 5,950.28

1,479.75 3,144.41

17,606.62 49,512.56




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Office expenses

Accountancy fee

Amortisation of intangible assets
Allowance for doubtful debts
Audit fee

Write off of other receivables
Bank charges

Casual wages

Consultation fee

Contract and manpower charges
Depreciation on fixed assets
Directors' fee

Exchange difference
Impairment loss on related company receivables
General expenses

General insurance

Gift & donation

IT & computer cost

Impairment of vessel

Lease rental - Land

Legal & professional fee
Licence fee

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Postage & courier charges
Printing & stationery

Rental of office premises
Repair & maintenance

Retainer fee - secretarial
Subscription & membership
Storage costs

Tax fee & GST

Taxes & rights

Telephone charges

Transport

Travelling expense - office
Upkeep of office

Utilities

Website expenses

Withholding tax

Others

Total Office Expenses

FALCON ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED

86,913.11

1,355.35

4,439.12
119,505.53
(1,850,161.10)
30,236.66
10,480.37

395,376.71
1,144.24
214.40
23,602.24
218,067.74
5,582.14
8,674.60
1,635.79
4,694.02

9,727.24

663.23
2,025.77
3,639.77

2,849.98
30,200.04
41,004,625.50
136,490.16
233,371.12
26,150.90
16,677.35
722.38
47,051.28
138,022.80
123,411.80

(1,841,063.38)
70,795.76
130,647.90
116,057.52
2,558.68
5,322.41
0.00
5,818.81
471,610.25
3,125.42
4,546.41
2,280.57
33,379.96
252,147.84
22,028.66
10,545.67
21,904.93
4,834.16
8,173.44
40,025.55
21,646.55
945.00
75,485.11
16,009.68
14,234.64
4,955.55
8,748.89

(0.00)

(887,191.65)

41,301,330.71




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

Marketing expenses

Travelling expense 124.57 20,133.17
Transport 1,397.42 7,163.04
Entertainment & refreshment 4,655.62 39,787.26
Others 13,294.05
Total Marketing Expenses 6,177.61 80,377.52
Total Administrative Expenses 88,224.40 45,370,032.63
Bank overdraft interest 34.02 48.20
Loan interest - UOB - 4,334.94
Loan interest - OCBC Spring loan - 165,264.07
Loan interest 610,164.09 3,333,589.46
Hire purchase interest - 51,045.85
Total Finance Costs 2,722,254.42 5,666,338.83
Share of (loss)/profit of asssociates - 223.60
Share of profit of JV - Dictamismo S De R.L. De CV (net of tax) - 1,262,276.82
Total Share of Profit of Associates and Joint Ventures - 1,262,500.42

Profit / (Loss) before Income Tax (2,766,653.93) (35,749,357.41)




FALCON ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Income tax - Current

Total Income Tax

Profit / (Loss) after tax

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Total Comprehensive loss for the year

Total Comprehensive loss attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total Comprehensive loss for the year

FALCON ENERGY

GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED
37.21
- 37.21
(2,766,653.93) (35,749,394.62)
- 14,489,870.46
(2,766,653.93) (21,259,524.16)

(2,766,653.93)

(21,459,420.03)
199,435.86

(2,766,653.93)

(21,259,984.17)

(2,766,653.93)

(21,259,984.17)

(2,766,653.93)

(21,259,984.17)

(2,766,653.93)

(21,459,420.03)

199,435.86

(2,766,653.93)

(21,259,984.16)
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Group Structure as at 20 Feb 2020

Falcon Oilfield Projects Inc
(Incorporated in British Virgin
Islands)

Passiflora Capital Ltd
(Incorporated in British Virgin
islands)

100%]  Falcon Energy Projects Pte
i

(Incorporated in Singapore)

Otira Corporation

(Incorporated in British Virgin
Islands)

Federal Offshore Services Pte

(Incorporated in Singapore)

Sears Marine SA. Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd

—Lo0%} (Incorporated in Panama) L (Incorporated in Brunei)

100% PDE International Ltd

(Incorporated in Labuan)

T Bayu Maritim Group
100% FEG Offshore Pte Ltd (incorporated in Indonesia)

(Incorporated in Singapore)

PT. Bayu Maritim Makmur
(Incorporated in Indonesia)

90% PT. Bayu Maritim Berkah
(Incorporated in Indonesia)
40%
Bayu Maritime International Pte.
20%) td

(Incorporated in Singapore)

100% Excel Marine S.A
(Incorporated in Panama)

100%| Morrison Marine Services S.A.
(Incorporated in Panama)

100% Century Marine S.A.
(Incorporated in Panama)

Motley Trio Offshore Pte Ltd
(Incorporated in British Virgin

Islands)
Oilfield Services Company
1000 Limited 1oow|  Asetanian Marine pre Ltd NAseiMarine pelL )
(incorporated in Hong Kong) | 200%}  (incorporated in Singapore) (incorporated in Singapore)
|00y Atlantic Marine S.A
(Incorporated in Panama)
Imperial Marine S.A.
100% e
Trio Victory Inc.
(Incorporated in British Virgin
ind
Innovest Resources Limited
100% in British Virgin 50% | Dictamismo S DE R.L. DE. C.V.
Lo e in Mexico)
Falcon Energy Group
Limited E CH Offshore Ltd
100% nergian Pre. Ltd 34.01%) ]
(Incorporated in Singapore) | 1 100%] . \orated in Singapore) in Singapore)

|29 Faicon oilfield Services Pte Lid

(Incorporated in Singapore)

Capital Guardian Limited
| 200% | nearporateaim Hong Kong)

Falcon Resources Management
100% Pte Ltd
(Incorporated in Singapore)
100% Radford Holdings Limited 100%)  Quick Link Holdings Limited
(bcatporatedilbondlono) (incorporated in Hong Kong)
Krameria Limited
10 in Hong Kong)

T. Majujasa Sumber 99.80%)
(incorporated in Indonesia)

PT. Majujasa Tenaga 99.60%)
(Incorporated in Indonesia)

PT. Ganindo Sentosa Makmur 99.60%
(incorporated in Indonesia)

PT. Falindo Sukses Abadi 99.60%)
(incorporated in Indonesia)

TS Amber Limited

(Incorporated in British Virgin
Islands)

50% FTS Derricks Pte. Ltd 70%) TS Drilling Pte Ltd
(Incorporated in Singapore) (Incorporated in Singapore)

TS Pearl Limited
(Incorporated in British Virgin
100% Islands)

TS Coral Limited
(Incorporated in British Virgin

100% Islands)

TS Emeraldd Limited
1005 (Incorpoated in British Virgin
o Islands)

FTSG Co. Limited TS Drilling Holdings Limited TS Jade Llrr}lgeﬁ w
(Incorporated in British Virgin in British Virgin in British Virgin
Islands) Islands)
S Opal Limited

(Incorporated in British Virgin
islands)

100%) Petro Asset Pte Ltd

(Incorporated in Singapore)

TS Topaz Limited
(Incorporated in British Virgin
Islands)
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KPMG

Falcon Energy Group Limited

11 October 2019

Disclaimer

This report is in relation to Falcon Energy Group Limited (the “Company”/’"FEG”) and its
key subsidiaries (“FEG Group” or the “Group”), and has been prepared pursuant to the
Orders of Court dated 22 August 2019 made in HC/OS 956/2019 and HC/OS 957/2019.
This report and its contents may not be relied upon, quoted, referred to or shown to any
other parties, as well as used by any person, for any other purpose, or used in any other
context unrelated to HC/OS 956/2019 and HC/OS 957/2019 without our prior express
consent in writing.

Our primary source of information has been FEG’s records, management accounts for
the period ended 30 June 2019, explanations and representations made available to us
and/or made to us by the Directors and management of FEG (“Management”), publicly
available information and published industry reports. We have not sought to establish
the reliability or independently verify the accuracy and completeness of the information
given to us and disclaim any responsibility for information provided by the Management,
which remains the responsibility of the Management.

Whilst all reasonable care has been exercised in the preparation of this report, it should
be noted that our work does not constitute an audit in accordance with Singapore
Standards on Auditing and Singapore Standards on Review Engagements. Accordingly,
no assurance will be expressed. We do not make any representation or warranty,
express or implied, pertaining to the achievability or reasonableness of any information
provided by the Management on future projections, estimates, prospects or returns
contained in this report. The projections are not guarantees of future performance. This
report does not purport to contain all of the information that may be material in the
assessment of the financial position of FEG and users of the report should seek to obtain
their own independent financial and/or legal advice. Any persons who choose to rely
upon any of the contents of this report do so at their own risk.

We accept and assume no responsibility whatsoever for any loss or liability of
whatsoever nature to any parties howsoever arising out of, in relation to and/or in
connection with this report or any part thereof (including but not limited to any use or
reliance upon the same) by any party. We are under no obligation to update this report if
circumstances or management’s estimates should change after the date of this report.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Falcon Energy Group Limited

11 October 2019

Glossary

AmBank AmBank (M) Berhad

Asetanian Asetanian Marine Pte Ltd

Avg Average

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate
CIMB CIMB Bank Berhad

CHO CH Offshore Ltd and its subsidiaries
DCR Daily Charter Rate

EOS Estimated Outcome Statement

ERV Estimated Realisable Value
FEG/Group Falcon Energy Group Limited and its subsidiaries
FY Financial Year ended 30 June
Intended Scheme The Intended Scheme for FEG
Interco Intercompany/related parties
Management Management of FEG

US$ United Stated Dollars

Util Utilisation

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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1.2

KPMG

Falcon Energy Group Limited

11 October 2019

Viability assessment

The Intended Scheme

Prior to the onset of the oil crisis of 2014, FEG had significantly leveraged its balance
sheet to fund aggressive expansion into the offshore and marine sector, more
specifically, in the upstream oil and gas segments. Significant acquisitions include CHO
and commissioning the build of 5 brand new offshore drilling and production rigs, 1 in
Singapore and 4 in shipyards in China.

The collapse of oil prices in 2014 resulted in a catastrophic fall in demand for these
assets. All 5 rigs in varying stages of construction were subsequently terminated and/or
abandoned, aggregate deposits amounting to US$27.3 million was forfeited and lost.
Similarly, the equity value of CHO fell below acquisition price.

As a consequence of the forgoing, much of the debt incurred to fund the above
investments were no longer backed by assets and prospects of repayment looked
dismal.

The Intended Scheme has been designed with the underlying intention of restructuring
FEG to sustainable levels by deleveraging the balance sheet. Debt holders will be
converted to equity and in aggregate will account for up to 90% of FEG’s enlarged share
capital.

FEG in its current state is unlikely to pique the interest of any white knight. By
recapitalising FEG’s equity base through a debt-to-equity conversion exercise, the hope
is that FEG will be better able to present itself as an investable platform to attract strategic
investors who may inject much needed fresh capital. The debt to equity conversion will
also permit debt holders to exit FEG by disposing of their shares on the Singapore
Exchange once the share trade suspension is lifted.

Scheme design

To date, FEG has disposed of all its material unencumbered assets. Proceeds arising
from the sale of these assets have been applied towards funding working capital
requirements and/or servicing interest payments on its borrowings. The only remaining
assets capable of generating cash at present, are its vessels. All of which are secured
to various financial institutions.

Under the Intended Scheme:-
= Secured debt amounting to US$83.56 million will be retained.

= By way of a valuation exercise, it was determined that the value of certain assets
exceeded the corresponding secured debt by US$11.33 million in aggregate (the
“Surplus Value”).

= This Surplus Value will technically be available to general unsecured creditors after
settling the secured debt. This Surplus Value will therefore form the basis in
determining the quantum of unsecured debts which FEG may be able to realistically
sustain with prospects of a repayment.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Falcon Energy Group Limited

11 October 2019

= Given the inherent uncertainty as to whether the Surplus Value would eventually
materialise, a conservative recovery of 50% was made as regards to the possible
realisation value of this Surplus. Premised on this, it was decided that US$5.66
million of FEG’s unsecured debts will be retained. Aggregated third party debts
amounting to circa US$137 million is converted to equity.

= Given the inter-related and cross default risks posed by Asetanian Marine Pte Ltd.
(“Asetanian”) financial obligations to third party creditors and its inability to
commercially advance and effect a debt resolution proposal with its creditors. A
substantive consolidation approach has been taken to concurrently resolve
Asetanian’s financial obligations.

= |nter-company claims are subordinated to third party creditors

1.21 Diagrammatic illustration of the Intended Scheme

Debt under intended scheme reduced by 60.6%

New shareholding

US§'000 US$'000

General unsecured
Secured Lenders creditors — Debt to
- Secured with equity
vessels 118,985
83,567

MTN Holders
23.3%

Exisiting
Sharehoiders
10.0%

——

Associates
3.5%

FEG - Other unsecured

5 Asetanian - Unsecured AmBank creditors
Sustainable Interest \ Secured Lenders creditors 2 B% Maybank 0.4%
rieaDec M — Debt to equity 2.1% 2.1%
:;?E B0.6% of debt under 18,041
- intended scheme to 8.0%
be converled (o
equity

1.2.2 Debt servicing - secured creditors

Given current market conditions and level of activity or lack of in the oil and gas sector,
the risk of defaulting on debt servicing is high. To overcome this the proposed Cash
Waterfall Mechanism in the Intended Scheme will serve to minimize default risks.

Under the Cash Waterfall Mechanism, existing contractual repayment obligations will be
modified to the extent that repayments are only made when cash surpluses are available
after meeting critical expenses necessary for FEG to operate the cash generating assets.

On a collective basis, there appears to be sufficient cash generated by the fleet to
adequately sustain operations. On an individual, bank-by-bank basis, 2 lenders, namely
CIMB and AmBank are expected to run into cash deficit situations and will likely be
required to tap into surpluses from the other banks.

To facilitate the above, banks that are running on cash surpluses at present and likely to
do so well into the future, are prepared to allow their surpluses to be used for the greater

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Falcon Energy Group Limited

11 October 2019

benefit of all stakeholders subject to there being put in place, super priority rescue
financing arrangements within the Intended Scheme.

Premised on the above, the ability of FEG to continue its operations appears positive.

Outcome of Scheme

FEG Group Consolidated Balance Sheet

Pre-scheme Post-scheme

US$'000 Consolidated financials as at 31 May
Current assets 93,064 93,064
Non-current assets 176,098 176,098
Total assets 269,162 269,162
Current liabilities 290,560 153,534
Non-current liabilities 21,198 21,198
Total liabilities 311,758 174,732
Equity (42,596) 94,430
Financial ratios

Current ratio 0.32 0.61
Total Liability-Asset ratio 1.16 0.65
Total Liability-Equity ratio (7.32) 1.85

Impact on operations

Business operations continue to be regularly disrupted on account of various creditor
actions against both FEG and Asetanian for recoveries of moniesowed.

Post implementation of the Intended Scheme, it is anticipated that these disruptions will
cease and management will be able to focus its already limited resources on running the
business.

Assessment of consolidated projected earnings of FEG

Cash Flow assumptions

Reference is made to the summated Cash Flow projections and Profit and Loss
projections furnished by FEG. We would like to highlight that these have not been
prepared on a consolidated basis. These can be found in Appendix.

The management of FEG has offered an explanation that consolidated projections were
not prepared as all other divisions and subsidiaries within the Group are dormant and

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.



1311

1.3.1.2

1.3.1.3

KPMG

Falcon Energy Group Limited

11 October 2019

that these summated Cash Flow and Profit and Loss projections are representative of
the Group’s financial performance.

Utilisation rates

= The Cash Flow projections makes the assumption that average utilisation rates will
range between 68% to 72% from FY21 to FY27.

= Actual utilisation rate in FY19 was 46%
= The spike in utilisation rate is explained by the reduction of vessels in the fleet.

= |n FY19, FEG Group operated 16 vessels, this will be reduced to 13 by FY21 with 3
vessels planned for scraping.

= Assumption appears reasonable against actual fleet performance in recent times.

Vessel Utilisation (All vessels) (US$)

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27
Entity Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg
UTIL | DCR | UTIL | DCR | UTIL | DCR | UTIL | DCR | UTIL | DCR | UTIL | DCR | UTIL | DCR | UTIL [ DCR | UTIL | DCR
Group 46%| 6,566 64%| 7,625 72%| 8,013 69%| 9,048 68%| 10,179 68%| 11,247 68%| 11,249 68%)| 11,249 68%| 11,249
Vessels 16 16 13 13 13 13 13 13 13

Note: Vessel utilisation are compiled based on projection made by FEG.

Daily charter rates

Average daily charter rates are assumed to escalate from US$6,566/day in FY19 (actual)
to US$11,249/day in FY27 (projected). This translates to a CAGR of approximately
6.96%.

Whilst we have highlighted that an average daily charter rate growth of 16% in the
immediate term from FY19 (actual) to FY20 appears overly bullish, management has
explained that based on recent developments in Indonesia where the Group operates
predominantly, both demand and rates for the types of vessels operated by FEG have
picked up very significantly.

Our view is that the rates used appear overly optimistic in light of current market
conditions and unfolding geopolitical developments. Notwithstanding that explanations
have been offered to justify the rapid near term rate appreciation, there is little or no
evidence to suggest that such appreciation is sustainable into the medium and longer
term.

Principal repayments to secured creditors

FEG projects that an aggregate sum of US$35.3 million in principal repayments being
made to secured creditors during the course of the proposed 7 year restructuring period.

Premised on our observations highlighted in the paragraph 1.3.1.2, these projections
may be overstated.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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1.3.1.4 Cash balance at the end of 7" year

FEG projects a cash balance of US$13.5 million at the end of FY27. This appears overly
optimistic in our view.

1.3.2 Recommendations

Given the inherent difficulties in formulating Cash Flow projections beyond 3 years. It
may be prudent for FEG to consider taking a range-bound approach depicting a worst
case, best case and likely case scenario to serve as a guide tostakeholders.

Alternatively, if FEG is confident of these projections, the Company may wish to
reconsider shortening the restructuring period and/or increasing the level of sustainable
unsecured debt.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Liquidation analysis and comparison

Liquidation scenario

FEG

US$'000 ERV
Securities

CHO shares 9,599
Total securities 9,599
(less) Secured creditor (15,940)
Shortfall to secured creditor (6,341)
Recoverability to secured creditor 60%

Estimated Outcome Statement as at 30 June 2019 (Unsecured creditors)

US$'000 ERV
Assets of FEG
Cash 10
Amount due from interco 2,723
Total assets 2,733
(less) Priority expenses (638)
Surplus / (shortfall) funds available to unsecured creditors 2,095
Unsecured creditors (292,754)
Surplus / (shortfall) funds available for shareholders (290,659)
Recoverability to unsecured creditors 0.72%
6
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Asetanian
US$'000 ERV
Assets of Asetanian
Cash 3
Amount due from interco 2,490
Others -
Total assets 2,493
(less) Priority expenses (20)
Surplus / (shortfall) funds available to unsecured creditors 2,473
Unsecured creditors (106,925)
Surplus / (shortfall) funds available for shareholder (104,452)
Recoverability to unsecured creditors 2%

Assumptions for liquidation scenario

Item Basis of ERV

Cash and cash at bank Estimated to be fully recoverable — 100%

PPE Estimated in accordance to nature of each asset
» Properties: NBV
= \essels : Forced sale value based on 2019 valuation
Motor Vehicles — 20%
Renovation — 0%
= Furniture and Fittings — 0%
= Computers — 0%

Investment in subsidiaries,
associates and JV

Based on estimated outcome of the respective entities

Asset available forsale 0%

Other receivables Prepayments, deposils, tax advances — 0%

Interco interest receivables — 0%

Trade receivables Estimated based on ageing of each debtor past its stipulated credit terms:
Qutstanding past credit terms by 0 — 30 days — 100%
Qutstanding past credit terms by 31 — 60 days - 100%
Qutstanding past credit terms by 61 — 90 days — 100%

Outstanding past credit terms by =120 days — 0%

Inventories Estimated based on nature and its respective disposal value:

- FEG group — 0%

Intangible assets Estimated based on nature and its cash value upon sale:

» Deferred mining expenses and mining rights — 0%

Liquidation and receivership
expenses

Liquidation — Estimated based on estimated time to be spent on each entities:
* FEG-USD300k , BMB - USD550k, other entities with vessel - USDS50k each, remaining entities — USD20k each.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Estimated returns under the Intended Scheme

Estimated returns to unsecured creditors

UsS$'000 Scenario 1 Scenario 2
Total unsecured debts (A) 142,691 142,691

Debt converted to equity 137,025 137,025

Debt retained (B) 5,666 5,666
No. of new shares issued 7,889,683,275 7,889,683,275
Total estimated returns to unsecured creditors from shares (C) 123,760 77,350
Total estimated recovery to unsecured creditors (D) = (B) + (C) 129,426 83,016
% of recovery for unsecured creditors (E ) = (D)/(A) 91% 58%

Scenario 1: Using 80% of last traded share price at S$0.027, conversion rate at S$1 = US$1.377
Scenario 2: Using 50% of last traded share price
Note: Secured creditors expect a full recovery on their loans.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Falcon Energy Group Limited

26 November 2019

Disclaimer

This supplemental report in relation to Falcon Energy Group Limited (the
“Company”/’FEG") and its key subsidiaries (“FEG Group” or the “Group”) has been
prepared pursuant to the hearing of HC/OS 956/2019 and HC/OS 957/2019 on 21
October 2019. This supplemental report and its contents may not be relied upon, quoted,
referred to or shown to any other parties, as well as used by any person, for any other
purpose, or used in any other context unrelated to HC/OS 956/2019 and HC/OS
95772019 without our prior express consent in writing.

Our primary source of information has been FEG's records, management accounts for
the period ended 30 June 2019, explanations and representations made available to us
and/or made to us by the Directors and management of FEG (‘Management”}, publicly
available information and published industry reports. We have not sought to establish
the reliability or independently verify the accuracy and completeness of the information
given to us and disclaim any responsibility for information provided by the Management,
which remains the responsibility of the Management.

Whilst all reasonable care has been exercised in the preparation of this supplemental
report, it should be noted that our work does not constitute an audit in accordance with
Singapore Standards on Auditing and Singapore Standards on Review Engagements.
Accordingly, no assurance will be expressed. We do not make any representation or
warranty, express or implied, pertaining to the achievability or reasonableness of any
information provided by the Management on future projections, estimates, prospects or
returns contained in this supplemental report. The projections are not guarantees of
future performance. This supplemental report does not purport to contain all of the
information that may be material in the assessment of the financial position of FEG and
users of the supplemental report should seek to obtain their own independent financial
and/or legal advice. Any persons who choose to rely upon any of the contents of this
supplemental report do so at their own risk.

We accept and assume no responsibility whatsoever for any loss or liability of
whatsoever nature to any parties howsoever arising out of, in relation to and/or in
connection with this supplemental report or any part thereof (including but not limited to
any use or reliance upon the same) by any party. We are under no obligation to update
this supplemental report if circumstances or management’'s estimates should change
after the date of this supplemental report.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Glossary
Avg Average
DCR Daily Charter Rates
FEG/Group Falcon Energy Group Limited and its subsidiaries
FY Financial Year ended 30 June
Management Management of FEG
Prev. Proj. Previous Projections
SGX Singapore Exchange Limited
US$ United States Dollar
Util Utilisation
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Assessment of revised consolidated projected earnings
of FEG

Reference is made to our report of 11 October 2019 in connection with the assessment
of viability and projected earnings of FEG post implementation of the Intended Scheme
(the “KPMG report”).

FEG has adopted our recommendation of taking a range-bound approach to forecast its
projected earnings post implementation of the Intended Scheme. These revised
projections can be found in the Appendix to this report which sets out the best, worst and
likely scenarios based on Management's assessment and expectations of the markets
FEG operates in. The revised projected earnings now takes into consideration and
illustrates the potential downside risks to Management'’s prior projections and makes for
a more balanced representation as to FEG's future performance.

We wish to again put on record that these projections have not been prepared on a
consolidated basis as the Management is of the view that all other divisions and
subsidiaries within the Group are dormant and accordingly summated Cash Flow and
Profit and Loss projections are representative of the Group’s financial performance.

Viability of the Intended Scheme vis-a-vis the consolidated
projected earnings of FEG.

It would be noteworthy to highlight that the Intended Scheme has been specifically
formulated to address the excessive debt levels which was no longer sustainable. This
was to be achieved by way of a debt to equity conversion of all debts which was not
correspondingly backed by cash generating assets.

Save for interest servicing and principal repayments to FEG's secured creditors which is
tc be regulated by the proposed Cash Waterfall Mechanism, there is no further
requirements and/or expectations for repayments to FEG’s unsecured creditors under
the Intended Scheme.

In the absence of preset repayment milestones to unsecured creditors under the
Intended Scheme, there is little relevance for unsecured creditors to make reference to
the projected earnings in order to determine the sustainability of the Intended Scheme.
If at all, only secured creditors will find utility in these projections in their assessment as
to the likelihood of FEG’s ability to meet repayment terms under the Cash Waterfall
Mechanism.

Based on actual performance and contracts secured to date, we have noted in the KPMG
report that FEG would be able to meet its obligations to secured creditors on an
aggregated basis.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Daily charter rates assumption

Vessel Wilisation - Group

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Comnmolve DOR |0 DR M0 bGR M8 bok |9 ook |0 ook |9 oo 9 ook 9 ook

(uss$) (USS$) (Us$) (Us$) (uss$) (uss$) (Us$) (Us$) (US$)
Prev. Proj. | 46% 6,566 | 64% 7,625 |72% 8,013 | 69% 9,048 | 68% 10,179 [ 68% 11,247 | 68% 11,249 | 68% 11,249 | 68% 11,249
Best 46% 6,566 | 64% 7,470 |72% 7,705|71% 8,537 | 70% 10,605 | 70% 10,605 | 70% 12,693 | 70% 12,693 | 70% 12,693
Likely 46% 6,566 | 64% 7,470 | 72% 7,705 | 71% 8,637 [ 70% 9,721 | 70% 9,721 | 70% 10,685 | 70% 10,685 | 70% 10,685
Worst 46% 6,566 | 64% 7,470 | 72% 7,705|71% 7,791 |70% 8,837 |70% 8,837 |70% 9,721 |70% 9,721 |70% 9,721
Vessels 16 16 13 13 13 13 13 13 13

Note: Vessel utilisation are compiled based on projections made by FEG.

Management remains stoically confident that the projected rates are attainable in the
medium to long term. Historically, actual average daily charter rates of US$19,825 had

been recorded prior to the collapse of oil prices in 2014.

Principal repayment to secured creditors

Projected principal repayment

Projected Principal Repayment to Secured Creditors {US$ million)

Cash Flow Scenarios

Prev. Proj. 35.3
Best 56.4
Likely 35.9
Worst 20.9

The above projected principal repayments to secured lenders does not take into
consideration sale of secured assets nor the possibility that these assets may be

refinanced.

Cash balance at the end of the 7" year

Cash Balance at the end of 7" year (US$' million})

Cash Flow Scenarios Cash Balance Free Cash Flow
Prev. Proj. 135 11.1
Best 10.2 7.3
Likely 9.8 3.8
Worst 9.9 3.8

In the event the projected fleet utilisation and daily charter rates are achieved, it is likely

that FEG may be able to repay residual unsecured debt of US$5.66 million.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Liquidation analysis and comparison

The revised projected earnings of FEG has no impact to the liquidation analysis and
comparison to the Intended Scheme outcome.

The above analysis presented in section 2.2 of the KPMG report in connection with the
estimated returns under the Intended Scheme were based on assumptions in connection
with the pricing of FEG's quoted shares on the SGX and makes no reference to a
definitive time frame, these assumptions are forward-looking that will as such, invelve
risks and uncertainty.

Given the risks (both known and unknown), uncertainties and other factors that may
result in FEG’s actual future results, performance and commercial achievements being
materially different from the expected, KPMG is unable to and does not represent or
warrants that FEG's actual future share price will be as projected. For purposes of
illustration, 2 price points were used to reference a potential indicative yield under the
Intended Scheme, one being at a 50% discount to the last traded price before trading in
FEG's shares were suspended on 18 January 2019 and a second being at a 80%
discount to the last traded price in arriving at an estimated yield between 91% and 58%
respectively.

© 2019 KPMG Services Pte. Ltd.. All rights reserved.
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Likely Case Scenario
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Worst Case Scenario
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Indicative Timetable for the FEG Scheme Meeting

S/n. | Date Date Legislation/Document | Milestone Party
Responsible
1. X Wednesday, 3 February 2021 Section 210(1) of the Hearing of application for leave to convene R&T
Companies Act (Cap. Scheme Meeting; grant of leave to convene
50) (“CA”) Scheme Meeting
2. X + 7 days Wednesday, 10 February 2021 | - Printing and issuance of Scheme Document FEG
to Scheme Creditors
3. X + 21 days Wednesday, 24 February 2021, | Section 68(2) Deadline for Scheme Creditors to submit the | Noteholders
(i.e. 14 days after 5:00PM Insolvency, Proof of Debt / Voting Instruction Form (both | and Other
milestone (2)) Restructuring and a “POD”) Creditors
Dissolution Act (“IRDA”)
/ Meeting Notice
4, X + 28 days Wednesday, 3 March 2021 Reg 3 of Insolvency, Chairman to send the list of creditors who KPMG
(i.e. within 7 days of Restructuring and filed a POD
milestone (3)) Dissolution (Proofs of
Debt in Schemes of
Arrangement)
Regulations 2020
(“PODSAR”)
5. T-29 days Thursday, 1 April 2021 Reg 5(1) and 5(2) of the | Chairman to complete the adjudication and KPMG
PODSAR send out a summary of the adjudication
results
6. T-21 days Friday, 9 April 2021 Reg 4(1) PODSAR Deadline for any Scheme Creditor who Scheme
submitted a POD to request to inspect Creditor
another Scheme Creditor’'s POD by:
(a) Sending in the request in writing to the
Chairman; and
(b) Sending in a written notice of the request
to FEG and the affected Scheme
Creditor
7. T-17 days Tuesday, 13 April 2021 Reg 4(2) PODSAR Affected Scheme Creditor has to send written | Scheme
(i.e. within 3 working notice to the Chairman stating whether it Creditor

days of milestone

(6))

objects to the inspection of its POD




S/n. | Date Date Legislation/Document | Milestone Party
Responsible
8. T-14 (within 3 Friday, 16 April 2021 Reg 5(3) to 5(5) of the Deadline for FEG or any Scheme Creditor FEG/Scheme
working days of PODSAR; Rule 43(1)(a) | who submitted a POD to object to results of Creditor
milestone (7)) of the Insolvency, adjudication by:
Restructuring and (a) Sending a written request seeking
Dissolution (Corporate agreement for the appointment of an
and Restructuring) independent assessor to the Company,
Rules 2020 the Chairman, and/or the Scheme
Creditor whose POD will be affected
(where applicable) to seek their
agreement on the appointment of an
independent assessor; or
(b) Make an application to court for the
appointment of an independent assessor
under section 68(9)(b) of the IRDA
9. T-8 Thursday, 22 April 2021 Reg 6(1) and 6(2) of the | Latest date for the appointment of Party seeking
PODSAR Independent Assessor and by which appointment
Chairman is to provide Independent of IA
Assessor with the relevant POD
10. | T-3 Tuesday, 27 April 2021, Explanatory Statement/ | Deadline for Other Creditors to submit Proxy | Scheme
(i.e. 3 working days | 10:00AM Scheme Forms Creditors
before T)
1. | T-1 Thursday, 29 April 2021 Reg 6(1) and 6(2) of the | Latest date by which Independent Assessor
(i.e. 1 working day PODSAR should complete adjudication
before T)
If Scheme Meeting is to be held via video-
conference, deadline for FEG/KPMG to send
the Scheme Creditors the necessary video-
conferencing details to attend the Scheme
Meeting.
12. | T Friday, 30 April 2021 Reg 7 of the PODSAR Scheme Meeting KPMG / FEG

Chairman to provide updated list of Scheme
Creditors by way of electronic mail to every
Scheme Creditor whose Voting Instruction




APPENDIX N —= PROTOCOL FOR CONDUCT OF SCHEME MEETING VIA VIDEO-CONFERENCE

PROTOCOL FOR CONDUCT OF SCHEME MEETING VIA VIDEO-CONFERENCE
(“PROTOCOL")

Unless defined otherwise, all capitalised terms used herein shall bear the meaning ascribed in the
Scheme proposed to be made pursuant to section 210 of the Act between the Company and the
Scheme Creditors.

1.

In view of the COVID-19 situation, in lieu of a physical meeting, the Scheme Meeting may be
conducted electronically via Video-Conference. This Protocol sets out the procedures and
measures to be implemented by the Company for the conduct of the Scheme Meeting via
Video-Conference.

Scheme Creditors or their proxies (if applicable) should read this Protocol carefully and follow
the instructions set out below to ensure that they can participate in the Scheme Meeting via
Video-Conference.

The Scheme Meeting will be held via Video-Conference through one of the following Video-
Conferencing platforms, namely, Zoom or Microsoft Teams (to be determined by the
Chairman). The Video-Conferencing platform(s) may be accessed on a computer or mobile
device using iOS or Android operating systems, and is available for free download at
https://zoom.us/download / https://www.microsoft.com/ensg/microsoft-365/microsoft-
teams/download-app (for computers) and from the App Store (for iOS devices) or from the
Google Play Store (for Android devices). The detailed system requirements can be found at
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-
Linux /  https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoftteams/hardware-requirements-for-the-
teams-app. Scheme Creditors or their proxies (if applicable) who have technical questions
regarding the Electronic Meeting Platform may visit the Zoom/Microsoft Teams technical
support page at https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us / https://support.microsoft.com/en-
us/teams.

Scheme Creditors or their proxies participating in the Scheme via Video-Conference must
ensure that they have access to a computer or mobile device using the iOS or Android operating
system. It is recommended that a computer or mobile device with reliable internet connection
be used during the Scheme Meeting.

The Video-Conference will be conducted as follows:

€) Prior to the Scheme Meeting, each Scheme Creditor or their proxy (if applicable) will
be sent a weblink to the Scheme Meeting to the E-Mail address indicated in the Voting
Instruction Form, Proof of Debt, or Proxy Form (as the case may be). The weblink shall
be kept confidential. This will permit the Chairman to monitor attendance at the Scheme
Meeting and ensure that only authorised individuals may access the Scheme Meeting.
On the day of the Scheme Meeting, the Chairman may also subject the Scheme
Creditors or their proxies (if applicable) to identity verification checks prior to allowing
them to access the Scheme Meeting via Video-Conference. Scheme Creditors who
fail to provide avalid E-Mail address in the Voting Instruction Form, Proof of Debt
or Proxy Form (as the case may be) will not be allowed to participate in the
Scheme Meeting save as the Chairman may otherwise permit in his absolute
discretion.

(b) At the Scheme Meeting, a presentation on the Scheme will be given by the Chairman
and/or the Company to the Scheme Creditors or their proxies via Video-Conference. In
this regard, a screen will be displayed on the Video-conferencing platform showing the
presentation slides.

(©) The Company may require that Scheme Creditors or their proxies (if applicable), send
to the Chairman, by post or electronic mail, the matters which the Scheme Creditors
wish to raise at the Scheme Meeting, and each such matter, if substantial and relevant
and sent within a reasonable time before the Scheme Meeting, is to be responded to
at or before the Scheme Meeting by electronic means. For the avoidance of doubt, in
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APPENDIX N —= PROTOCOL FOR CONDUCT OF SCHEME MEETING VIA VIDEO-CONFERENCE

addition to (but not in place of) post and electronic mail, the Company may provide for
any matter to be raised by a Scheme Creditor and for the matter to be responded to at
the meeting through real-time electronic communication such as video-conferencing or
live chat.

(d) The Chairman will invite the Scheme Creditors or their proxies (if applicable) to submit
their votes on the Scheme by way of e-mail. Scheme Creditors or their proxies (if
applicable) may vote by e-mail from (and only from) the E-mail address referred to in
paragraph 5(a) above. The cut-off timing for voting shall at least 2 hours from the end
of the Scheme Meeting, and will be announced by the Chairman at the Scheme
Meeting.

(e) The Chairman will announce the results of the voting on the day itself or at the latest,
the day after the scheme Meeting. The results of the voting will be announced by way
of e-mail to the Scheme Creditors, and the Chairman will thereafter also update the
Court.

6. The Company shall take all necessary logistical precautions in order to ensure that the Video-
Conferencing platform is an effective and safe method to permit all creditors to communicate,
consult and/or express their opinions in respect of the proposed Scheme without any significant
impediment, and the Scheme Meeting can be convened in a manner that approximates a
physical meeting without prejudice to the Scheme Creditors.

7. Notwithstanding any of the above, the Company may, at its discretion, conduct the Scheme
Meeting physically in the event that the Government lifts its ban on large group gatherings, and
circumstances permit such that it feasible to conduct the Scheme Meeting physically, taking
into consideration the Government’s directives and advisories regarding the conduct of events
and mass gatherings. If the Company elects to conduct the Scheme Meeting physically, further
instructions will be given to Scheme Creditors and their proxies as soon as reasonably
practicable.
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APPENDIX O — MODIFICATIONS AS AT 29 JANUARY 2021 TO FALCON ENERGY GROUP

LIMITED’S SCHEME DATED 4 NOVEMBER 2020

Unless defined otherwise, all capitalised terms used herein shall bear the meaning ascribed in the

Modifications as at 29 January 2021 to

Falcon Enerqy Group Limited’s Scheme dated 4 November 2020

Scheme annexed at B-1 of the Scheme Document.

S/No.

Amendment

Explanation?

(@)

Amendment of the definition of “Vessel”
in Clause 1.1 of the Scheme as follows
(in bold and underlined / struckthrough):

“All vessels owned by the Group, which
the Lenders hold security over_as at the
Effective Date, and each a “Vessel”.”

CIMB wishes to take steps to sell its
Vessels “K300” and “Bayu Laut”. In
addition, another Lender has been taking
steps to dispose of one of its Vessels.

The Company has no clarity at this
juncture as to when the sale of each of
the aforesaid Vessels is likely to be
completed. The Company is still in
discussions with the potential buyer of
CIMB’s 2 Vessels on the terms of sale
though the buyer has placed a 10%
deposit for the purchase of each Vessel
in escrow pending finalisation of the sale
terms.

The definition of “Vessel” in Clause 1.1 of
the Scheme will therefore be amended to
account for the possibility that a Vessel
which a Lender holds Security over as at
the date of this Affidavit may be sold prior
to the Effective Date of the Scheme.

(b)

Amendment to Clause 5.13 of the
Scheme to include a new sub-clause (g),
which shall state as follows:

“where the Scheme Creditor is a Lender,
reduced by any amount paid to,
recovered or received by or for the
account of that Lender before the
Effective Date under or arising from any
Security held by that Lender over any
Secured Assets.”

As stated in paragraph (a) above, some
of the Lenders wish to take steps to sell
some of their Vessels prior to the
proposed Scheme taking effect.

In connection with the foregoing, the
Claims of each Lender should take into
account any payments received by that
Lender pursuant to any disposal of any of
its Secured Asset(s) prior to the Effective
Date of the Scheme.

(€)

Amendment to Clause 6.1(a) of the
Scheme as follows (in bold and
underlined / struckthrough):

“Each Lender may, in accordance with
Clause 6.2 below, elect to take delivery
of or instruct the Company to procure
the sale of all or some of its Secured
Assets iraccordancewith-Clause 62
below.,”

Some Lenders have informed the
Company that they do not wish to take
delivery of the Vessels as provided for in
Clauses 6.1 and 6.2 of the Scheme dated
4 November 2020. Instead, these
Lenders would prefer that the Group
continue to manage the Vessels whilst
assisting the Lender in procuring a
purchaser for the Vessels.

1 As set out in the 2" Affidavit of Tan Pong Tyea filed on 29 January 2021 in HC/OS 32/2021
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APPENDIX O — MODIFICATIONS AS AT 29 JANUARY 2021 TO FALCON ENERGY GROUP

LIMITED’S SCHEME DATED 4 NOVEMBER 2020

S/No. Amendment Explanation?

(d) Amendment to Clause 6.1(b) of the | The amendments to Clauses 6.1 and 6.2
Scheme as follows (in bold and | of the Scheme dated 4 November 2020
underlined / struckthrough): give each Lender the option of instructing

the Group to continue managing the
“‘Each Lender who has elected to take | Vessels and to assist that Lender in
delivery of or_instructed the Company | procuring a purchaser for the Vessel.
to procure the sale of all of its Secured
Assets shall be allocated and issued | In connection with the foregoing,
Scheme Shares for the whole of its | amendments have been proposed to
Approved Claim in accordance with | Clause 6.1(c) of the Scheme dated 4
Clause 6.1(e) below (the “Allocated | November 2020 to clarify that the costs
Shares”)” and expenses incurred in connection with
the Vessel incurred pending completion
(e) Amendment to Clause 6.1(c) of the | of the sale shall be deducted from the

Scheme as follows (in bold and

underlined / struckthrough):

“With respect to each Lender who
elects to take delivery of its Secured
Asset(s), theFhe Company shall
procure that each Lender’s Secured
Assets are delivered and/or transferred
to the Lender by no later than the date
falling 6 months after the Effective Date
on such terms as may be agreed upon
in writing between the Company and the
relevant Lender (each party acting
reasonably). All costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the delivery
and/or transfer of a Secured Asset shall
be borne by the Lender. Upon delivery
ortransferof a-Secured-Assetto-the
Lender election in accordance with
Clause 6.2 below, the Lender shall be
solely responsible for all costs and
expenses in connection with the
Secured Asset and the Group shall have
no further obligations to pay any such
costs and expenses.

With respect to each Lender who
elects to instruct the Company to
procure the sale of all or some of its
Secured Assets, the Company shall
assist the Lender in procuring a
purchaser for the Secured Asset(s)
and shall endeavour to find a
purchaser willing to pay the full sale
proceeds in respect of the Secured
Asset(s) into and held in an escrow
account pending completion of the
sale. Pending completion of the sale
of the Secured Asset(s) on terms to
be approved by the Lender, the

Group shall continue to manage the

earnings.
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APPENDIX O — MODIFICATIONS AS AT 29 JANUARY 2021 TO FALCON ENERGY GROUP
LIMITED’S SCHEME DATED 4 NOVEMBER 2020

S/No. Amendment Explanation?

Secured Asset(s) and all costs and
expenses in connection with the
Secured Asset(s) incurred up till
completion of the sale shall be
debited from any earnings generated
by the Secured Asset(s).

)] Amendment to Clause 6.1(d) of the
Scheme as follows (in bold and
underlined / struckthrough):

“All Secured Assets shall be sold or
disposed of by the Lender who has
elected to take delivery of or instruct the
Company to procure the sale of all of
its Secured Assets by no later than the
Disposal Date and the net proceeds of
sale from the Lender’s Secured Assets
shall be applied towards reducing the
Lender's Approved Claim. If a Lender
fails to sell or dispose of any of its
Secured Assets by the Disposal Date,
any portion of the Lender's Approved
Claim which remains unsatisfied shall
automatically be deemed to have been
settled in full and the Lender shall not be
entitled to receive any Allocated Shares”

(9) Amendment to Clause 6.1(e) of the
Scheme as follows (in bold and
underlined / struckthrough):

“With respect to any Lender who has
elected to take delivery of or_instructed
the Company to procure the sale of all
of its Secured Assets and who has sold
or disposed of all of its Secured Assets
by no later than the Disposal Date, the
Company shall issue the Allocated
Shares to a that Lender within 2 weeks
after the Disposal Date in full and final
settlement of such portion of the Lender’s
Approved  Claim  which  remains
unsatisfied pursuant to the sale or
disposal or the Secured Assets as at the
Disposal Date. Any Allocated Shares
which are not issued to a Lender shall be
distributed in accordance with Clause 6.6
below”

(h) Amendment to Clause 6.1(f) of the
Scheme as follows (in bold and
underlined / struckthrough):
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APPENDIX O — MODIFICATIONS AS AT 29 JANUARY 2021 TO FALCON ENERGY GROUP

LIMITED’S SCHEME DATED 4 NOVEMBER 2020

S/No.

Amendment

Explanation?

“With respect to any Lender who has not
elected to take delivery of or instruct
the Company to procure the sale of
all of its Secured Assets, any portion of
the Approved Claim of the Lender which
remains unsatisfied pursuant to the sale
or disposal or the Secured Assets as at
the Disposal Date shall be settled in
accordance with Clause 6.3 below.”

(i)

Amendment to Clause 6.2 of the Scheme
as follows (in bold and underlined /
struckthrough):

“Election for delivery of or instruction
to procure sale of Secured Assets.
Within 7 days after the Effective Date,
each Lender shall submit a written
notice to the Company identifying which
of its Secured Assets it wishes to take
delivery of or instruct the Company to
procure the sale of. If a Lender does
not submit a written notice in
accordance with this Clause 6.2, the
Lender shall be deemed to have elected
to take delivery of all its Secured
Assets.”

()

Amendment to Clause 6.3 of the Scheme
as follows (in bold and underlined /
struckthrough):

‘Remaining Secured Assets. With
respect to any Lender who has not
elected to take delivery of or_instructed
the Company to procure the sale of all
of its Secured Assets, the Company shall
make payment to the Lender in respect of
its Approved Claim in accordance with
Clauses 6.3(a) to 6.3(s) below. For the
avoidance of doubt, Clauses 6.3(a) to
6.3(s) below do not apply to a Lender
who has elected to take delivery of or
instructed the Company to procure
the sale of all of its Secured Assets or to
any Secured Assets which has been
transferred or delivered to a Lender
pursuant to Clause 6.1 above...

(b) Where the Secured Asset(s) which
the Lender has elected not to take
delivery of or instruct the Company to
procure the sale of in accordance with

Clause 6.2 above comprise Vessels, the

Consequential amendment to address
the indications given by the Lenders,
details of which are explained at
paragraph (c) above.
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Company shall procure the
establishment of a Designated Account
for the Lender (if one has not already
been established) and shall execute or
procure the execution of (as may be
applicable) a charge over the
Designated Account established in
favour of the Lender.”

(k)

Amendment to item 2 of Schedule C of
the Scheme to include the vessel
“Berani” as a Security of CIMB which is
owned by “Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd”.

Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd is an associated
company of the Company. The Company
holds 50% of the shareholding in Maritim
indah Sdn Bhd. At the time OS 206 was
filed, the banking facilities granted by
CIMB to Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd (which is
secured by, inter alia, a mortgage over
the “Berani” and a guarantee issued by
the Company) was not in default.

As a result of the COVID-19 situation and
its impact on global economic situation in
2020, the income generated by the
“Berani” is no longer sufficient to service
the banking facilities granted to Maritim
Indah Sdn Bhd. CIMB requires the debt
arising in relation to banking facilities
granted to Maritim Indah Sdn Bhd to be
included in the Scheme.

O-5




	App A 
	App B
	App C
	App D
	App E
	App F
	App G
	App H
	App I
	App J
	App K
	App L
	App M 
	App N
	App O

